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This Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities. No
securities regulatory authority has expressed an opinion about any information contained herein and it is an
offence to claim otherwise.

PROSPECTUS

NON-OFFERING PROSPECTUS October 26, 2018

AGRIOS GLOBAL HOLDINGS LTD.

No securities are being offered pursuant to this Prospectus.

This prospectus (the “Prospectus”) is being filed with the British Columbia Securities Commission (the “BCSC”)
for the purpose of allowing Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. (“Company”) to comply with Policy 2 – Qualifications for
Listing of the Canadian Securities Exchange of the Canadian Securities Exchange (the “CSE”) in order for the
Company to meet one of the eligibility requirements for the listing of the Company’s common shares (the
“Common Shares”) on the CSE by becoming a reporting issuer pursuant to applicable securities legislation in the
Province of British Columbia. Upon the final receipt of this Prospectus by the BCSC, the Company will become a
reporting issuer in British Columbia.

Since no securities are being offered pursuant to this Prospectus, no proceeds will be raised and all expenses
incurred in connection with the preparation and filing of this Prospectus will be paid by the Company from its
general corporate funds.

An application is being filed by the Company to have its Common Shares listed for trading on the CSE.

There is currently no market through which any of the securities of the Company may be sold and holders of
the Company’s securities may not be able to resell any such securities. This may affect the pricing of the
Company’s securities in the secondary market, the transparency and availability of trading prices, the
liquidity of the securities, and the extent of issuer regulation.

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Company does not have any of its securities listed or quoted, has not applied to
list or quote any of its securities, and does not intend to apply to list or quote any of its securities, on the Toronto
Stock Exchange, Aequitas NEO Exchange Inc., a U.S. marketplace, or a marketplace outside Canada and the United
States of America.

An investment in the securities of the Company is speculative and involves a high degree of risk. In reviewing
this Prospectus, you should carefully consider the matters described under the heading “Risk Factors”. No
underwriters or selling agents have been involved in the preparation of this Prospectus or performed any
review or independent due diligence of the contents of this Prospectus.



No person has been authorized to provide any information or to make any representation not contained in this
Prospectus and, if provided or made, such information or representation should not be relied upon. The information
contained in this Prospectus is accurate only as of the date of this Prospectus.

Two of the persons providing a certificate under part 5 of National Instrument 41-101 – General Prospectus
Requirements of the Canadian Securities Administrators, and one additional director of the Company, are
incorporated, continued or otherwise organized under the laws of a foreign jurisdiction or reside outside of Canada.
The individuals, Chris Kennedy, Larry Ellison and James F. Foster have each appointed Baron Global Financial
Canada Ltd. of Suite 1980, 1075 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada, V6E 3C9, as their
respective agent for service of process in British Columbia. It may not be possible for investors to enforce
judgments obtained in Canada against any person that resides outside of Canada even if the party has
appointed an agent for service of process.

This Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities.

Unless otherwise noted all currency amounts in this Prospectus are stated in Canadian dollars.

The Company is expected to indirectly derive a portion of its revenues from the cannabis industry in the State
of Washington (where local state law permits such activities); however, such industry is illegal under U.S.
federal law.

Although certain states and territories of the U.S. authorize medical or recreational cannabis production and
distribution by licensed or registered entities, including the State of Washington, under U.S. federal law, the
possession, use, cultivation, and transfer of cannabis and any related drug paraphernalia is illegal and any
such acts are criminal acts under federal law under any and all circumstances under the Controlled
Substances Act (the “CSA”). An investor’s contribution to and involvement in such activities may result in
federal civil and/or criminal prosecution, including forfeiture of his, her or its entire investment.

Almost half of the states in the United States have enacted legislation to regulate the sale and use of medical
cannabis without limits on tetrahydrocannabinol (“THC”), while other states have regulated the sale and use
of medical cannabis with strict limits on the levels of THC. Notwithstanding the permissive regulatory
environment of adult-use recreational and medical cannabis at the state level, cannabis continues to be
categorized as a controlled substance under the CSA in the United States and as such, cannabis-related
practices or activities, including without limitation, the manufacture, importation, possession, use or
distribution of cannabis are illegal under United States federal law. Strict compliance with state laws with
respect to cannabis will neither absolve the Company of liability under United States federal law, nor provide
a defense to any federal proceeding which may be brought against the Company. Any such proceedings
brought against the Company may adversely affect the Company’s operations and financial performance.

As a result of the conflicting views between state legislatures and the federal government of the United States
regarding cannabis, investments in cannabis businesses in the United States are subject to inconsistent
legislation and regulation. Unless and until the United States Congress amends the CSA with respect to
cannabis (and as to the timing or scope of any such potential amendments there can be no assurance), there is
a risk that federal authorities may enforce current federal law, which may adversely affect the current and
future business and investments of the Company in the United States. As such, there are a number of risks
associated with the Company’s existing and future business and investments in the United States.

For the reasons set forth above, the Company’s interests in the United States cannabis market may become
the subject of heightened scrutiny by regulators, stock exchanges, clearing agencies and other authorities in
Canada.

It has been reported by certain publications in Canada that the Canadian Depository for Securities Limited is
considering a policy shift that would see its subsidiary, CDS, refuse to settle trades for cannabis issuers that



have investments in the United States. CDS is Canada’s central securities depository, clearing and settlement
hub settling trades in the Canadian equity, fixed income and money markets. The TMX Group, owner and
operator of CDS subsequently issued a statement on August 17, 2017 reaffirming that there is no CDS ban on
the clearing of securities of issuers with cannabis-related activities in the U.S., despite media reports to the
contrary and that they were working with regulators to arrive at a solution that will clarify this matter, which
would be communicated at a later time. On November 24, 2017, the TMX Group issued a further statement
acknowledging that the matter is complex and touches multiple aspects of Canada’s capital market system
and, as such, requires close examination and careful consideration. The TMX Group noted that CDS
continues to work with regulators and exchanges to arrive at a solution that will clarify this matter for
issuers, investors, participants and the public. This solution will be founded on each exchange’s role in
applying listing requirements, including exchange rules related to issuers’ compliance with applicable laws.
In the interim, the TMX Group reiterated there is no CDS ban on the clearing of securities of issuers with
marijuana-related activities in the U.S. On February 8, 2018, CDS signed a memorandum of understanding
(the “CDS MOU”) with the Aequitas NEO Exchange Inc., the CSE, the Toronto Stock Exchange and the TSX
Venture Exchange (collectively, the “Exchanges”). The CDS MOU outlines CDS’ and the Exchanges’
understanding of Canada’s regulatory framework applicable to the rules and procedures and regulatory
oversight of the Exchanges and CDS. The CDS MOU confirms, with respect to the clearing of listed
securities, that CDS relies on the Exchanges to review the conduct of listed issuers. As a result, there is
currently no CDS ban on the clearing of securities of issuers with marijuana-related activities in the U.S.
However, if CDS were to proceed in the manner suggested by these publications, and apply such a policy to
the Company, it would have a material adverse effect on the ability of holders of Common Shares to make
trades. In particular, the Common Shares would become highly illiquid as investors would have no ability to
effect a trade of the Common Shares through the facilities of a stock exchange.

There are a number of risks associated with the business of the Company. See “Risk Factors”.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

The following is a glossary of certain defined terms used throughout this Prospectus. This is not an exhaustive list of 
defined terms used in this Prospectus and additional terms are defined throughout. Terms and abbreviations used in 
the financial statements of the Company are defined. Words importing the singular, where the context requires, 
include the plural and vice versa, and words importing any gender include all genders. 

“aeroponics” means the process of growing plants in an air or mist environment without the use of 
soil or an aggregate medium. 

“Agrios Asia” means Agrios Asia Holdings Limited., a corporation incorporated pursuant to the laws 
of Hong Kong (Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China). 

“Agrios Solutions” means Agrios Global Solutions, Inc., a corporation incorporated pursuant to the laws 
of the State of Delaware. 

“Agrios WA” means Agrios Global Holdings (Washington), LLC, a limited liability company 
formed pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington. 

“Agrios USA” means Agrios Global Holdings (USA), Inc., a corporation incorporated pursuant to the 
laws of the State of Delaware. 

“Associate” means, when used to indicate a relationship with a person or company:  

(a) an issuer of which the person or company beneficially owns or controls, 
directly or indirectly, voting securities entitling him to more than 10% of 
the voting rights attached to outstanding securities of the issuer; 

(b) any partner of the person or company; 

(c) any trust or estate in which the person or company has a substantial benefit 
interest or in respect of which a person or company serves as trustee or in a 
similar capacity; 

(d) in the case of a person, a relative of that person, including  

(i) that person’s spouse or child, or 

(ii) any relative of the person or of his spouse who has the same 
residence as that person;  

but 

(e) where the Exchange determines that two persons shall, or shall not, be 
deemed to be associates with respect to a Member firm, Member Company 
or holding company of a Member Company, then such determination shall 
be determinative of their relationships in the application of Rule D with 
respect to that Member firm, Member Company or holding company. 

“BCBCA” means the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia). 

“Board” or “Board of 
Directors” 

means the board of directors, or comparable corporate governing structure, of the 
Company. 

“CBD” means cannabidiol, a naturally occurring cannabinoid constituent of cannabis. 

“CEO” means Chief Executive Officer. 
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“CFO” means Chief Financial Officer. 

“Chinese Joint Venture” means the joint venture between Greenfields and YHFHMC in China with respect to 
hemp project investment, product sales, raw materials supply, hemp oil extraction 
technology and the integrated development and application of hemp oil in other areas. 
Greenfields and YHFHMC ownership in the Chinese Joint Venture are 65% and 35%, 
respectively. 

“Class A Shares” means the Class A restricted voting shares in the capital of the Company. 

“Common Shares” means the common shares in the capital of the Company. 

“company” means, unless specifically indicated otherwise, a corporation, incorporated association 
or organization, body corporate, partnership, trust, association or other entity other 
than an individual. 

“Company” or “Agrios” means Agrios Global Holdings Ltd., a corporation existing under the BCBCA. 

“Company Financial 
Statements” 

means the audited financial statements of the Company as at March 31, 2018 and 2017 
for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the period ended March 31, 2017, together with 
the notes thereto and the auditors’ report thereon, and the unaudited interim financial 
statements of the Company for the three months ended June 30, 2018, attached hereto 
at Schedule “A”. 

“Company MD&A”  means the management’s discussion and analysis of the Company for the year ended 
March 31, 2018 and the management’s discussion and analysis of the Company for the 
three months ended June 30, 2018, attached hereto at Schedule “B”. 

“Control Person”  means any person or company that holds or is one of a combination of persons or 
companies that holds a sufficient number of any of the securities of an issuer so as to 
affect materially the control of that issuer, or that holds more than 20% of the 
outstanding voting securities of an issuer except where there is evidence showing that 
the holder of those securities does not materially affect the control of the issuer. 

“CSE” or “Exchange”  means the Canadian Securities Exchange. 

“CSE Approval”  means conditional approval or acceptance of the CSE of the listing of the Common 
Shares on the CSE. 

“EH” means EH Enterprises Management, Inc., dba Evergreen Herbal, a limited liability 
company formed pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington. 

“Finder’s Warrants” means share purchase warrants exercisable to acquire Common Shares and issued to 
certain finders. 

“First Cascade” means First Cascade Financial Services, LLC, a limited liability company formed 
pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington. 

“GAAP”  means generally accepted accounting principles in Canada, which is “IFRS” meaning 
International Financial Reporting Standards. 

“Greenfields” means Greenfields Agritech Limited, a corporation incorporated pursuant to the laws 
of Hong Kong (Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China). 

“Greenfields means the acquisition of all of the issued and outstanding securities of Greenfields by 
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Acquisition” Agrios Asia. 

“Greenfields LOI” means the letter of intent, dated effective as of July 20, 2018, among the Company, 
Agrios Asia. Greenfields and the Greenfields Shareholder.  

“Greenfields 
Shareholder” 

means the sole shareholder of Greenfields. 

“Insider”  means: 

(a) a director or senior officer of the Company;  

(b) a director or senior officer of the Company that is an Insider or subsidiary 
of the Company, 

(c) a Person that beneficially owns or controls, directly or indirectly, Voting 
Shares carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to all 
outstanding voting shares of the Company; or 

(d) the Company itself if it holds any of its own securities. 

“License Holders” means WSLCB producer and production license holders. 

“Liquidity Event” means one of the following events that results in the Company being listed as a 
reporting issuer on a recognized exchange: 

(a) the filing of a final prospectus in relation to an initial public offering of the 
Company; 

(b) the filing of a final decision document in relation to a reverse take-over 
whereby a publicly listed company acquires all of the issued and 
outstanding common shares of the Company; 

(c) a change of control of the Corporation which includes (a) a merger or 
acquisition in which the Company is not the surviving entity, other than a 
transaction the principal purpose of which is to change the incorporating 
jurisdiction of the Company; (b) the sale, transfer or other disposition of all 
or substantially all of the assets of the Company; or (c) any other corporate 
reorganization or business combination pursuant to which 50% or more of 
the outstanding voting stock of the Company is transferred, or exchanged 
through merger, to different holders in a single transaction of the Company 
or in a series of related transactions.  

“LLC”  means a limited liability company a specific private limited company in the United 
States. 

“Merger Agreement” means the merger agreement and plan of reorganization, dated effective as of February 
26, 2018, among the Company, Agrios Merger Sub (Washington) Inc. and BDB 
Finance and Leasing Two, LLC (now TimberLand), as amended by agreement dated 
effective as of May 30, 2018. 

“Named Executive 
Officers” or “NEO” 

means: 

(d) the CEO, or comparable position; 

(e) the CFO, or comparable position; 

(f) each of the issuer’s three most highly compensated executive officers, other 
than the CEO and CFO, who were serving as executive officers at the end 
of the most recently completed financial year and whose total salary and 
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bonus, individually, exceeds CAD$150,000 per year; or 

(g) any additional individuals for whom disclosure would have been provided 
under (c) except that the individual was not serving as an officer of the 
issuer at the end of the most recently completed financial year. 

“NI 41-101” means National Instrument 41-101 – General Prospectus Requirements, of the 
Canadian Securities Administrators. 

“NI 45-102 means National Instrument 45-102 – Resale of Securities, of the Canadian Securities 
Administrators. 

“NI 52-110” means National Investment 52-110 – Audit Committees, of the Canadian Securities 
Administrators. 

“Options” means stock options to acquire Common Shares. 

“Pacific Green” means Pacific Green Technology and Agronomy, LLC, a limited liability company 
formed pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington. 

“Performance 
Warrants” 

means share purchase warrants exercisable to acquire Common Shares and issued to 
certain management and advisors of the Company. 

“Person” means a company or individual. 

“Principal Regulator” means the British Columbia Securities Commission. 

“Pro-forma 
Consolidated Statement 
of Financial Position” 

means the unaudited consolidated statement of financial position of the Company as at 
June 30, 2018, together with the notes thereto, attached hereto as Schedule “E”. 

“Promoter”  means (a) a person or company who, acting alone or in conjunction with one or more 
other persons, companies or a combination thereof, directly or indirectly, takes the 
initiative in founding, organizing or substantially reorganizing the business of an 
issuer, or (b) a person or company who, in connection with the founding, organizing or 
substantial reorganizing of the business of an issuer, directly or indirectly, receives in 
consideration of services or property, or both services and property, 10% or more of 
any class of securities of the issuer or 10% or more of the proceeds from the sale of 
any class of securities of a particular issue, but a person or company who receives such 
securities or proceeds either solely as underwriting commissions or solely in 
consideration of property shall not be deemed a promoter within the meaning of this 
definition if such person or company does not otherwise take part in founding, 
organizing, or substantially reorganizing the business. 

“Rainer” means Rainier Product Services, LLC, a limited liability company formed pursuant to 
the laws of the State of Washington. 

“Regulation S” means Regulation S promulgated under the U.S. Securities Act. 

“SEDAR” means the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval maintained by the 
Canadian Securities Administrators. 

“Shareholders”  means holders from time to time of Common Shares. 

“Shelton Facility”  means the integrated 30,000-square foot cultivation facility acquired by the Company 
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and located in Shelton, Washington. 

“Stock Option Plan” means the incentive stock option plan of the Company. 

“TimberLand” means TimberLand Bay Properties, LLC (formerly BDB Finance and Leasing Two, 
LLC), a limited liability company formed pursuant to the laws of the State of 
Washington. 

“TimberLand 
Acquisition” 

means the acquisition of TimberLand by the Company pursuant to the Merger 
Agreement. 

“TimberLand Financial 
Statements” 

means the audited financial statements of TimberLand as at March 31, 2018 and 2017 
for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the period ended March 31, 2017, together with 
the notes thereto and the auditors’ report thereon, attached hereto at Schedule “C”. 

“TimberLand MD&A”  means the management’s discussion and analysis of TimberLand for the year ended 
March 31, 2018, attached hereto at Schedule “D”. 

“US Securities Act” means the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 

“USA”, “United States”, 
“U.S.” or “US” 

means the United States of America, its territories and possessions, and any state of the 
United States, and the District of Columbia. 

“Warrants” means share purchase warrants exercisable to acquire Common Shares. 

“WSLCB” means the Washington State Liquor and Cannabis Board. 

“YHFHMC” means Yunnan Hua Fang Health Management Co., Ltd., a corporation incorporated 
pursuant to the laws of the People’s Republic of China. 
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GENERAL MATTERS 

Unless otherwise noted or the context indicates otherwise “we”, “us”, “our” or the “Company” refer to Agrios 
Global Holdings Ltd. and its direct and indirect subsidiaries. 

The Company is not offering to sell securities under this Prospectus. Readers should rely only on the information 
contained in this Prospectus. The Company has not authorized any other person to provide you with additional or 
different information. If anyone provides you with additional or different or inconsistent information, including 
information or statements in media articles about the Company, you should not rely on it. You should assume that 
the information appearing in this Prospectus is accurate only as at its date. The Company’s business, financial 
conditions, results of operations and prospects may have changed since that date. 

The Company presents its financial statements in Canadian dollars. Amounts in this Prospectus are stated in 
Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION IN THIS PROSPECTUS 

The following financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and are included in this Prospectus (see “Financial 
Statements”): 

1. Audited financial statements of the Company as at March 31, 2018 and 2017 for the year ended March 31, 
2018 and the period ended March 31, 2017;  

2. Unaudited interim financial statements of the Company for the three months ended June 30, 2018; and 

3. Audited financial statements of TimberLand as at March 31, 2018 and 2017 for the year ended March 31, 
2018 and the period ended March 31, 2017. 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This Prospectus contains forward-looking statements or information (collectively “forward-looking statements”) that 
are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts, projections, beliefs and assumptions made by management of 
the Company about the industry in which it operates. Such statements include, in particular, statements about the 
Company’s plans, strategies and prospects under the headings “Summary”, “Risk Factors”, and “Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis”. Words such as “expect”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “plan”, “believe”, “seek”, “estimate”, and 
variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These 
statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve assumptions and risks and uncertainties that are 
difficult to predict. Therefore, actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed, implied or 
forecasted in such forward-looking statements. The Company does not intend, and disclaims any obligation, to 
update any forward-looking statements after it files this Prospectus, whether as a result of new information, future 
events or otherwise, except as required by the securities laws. These forward looking statements are made as of the 
date of this Prospectus.  

In some cases, these forward-looking statements can be identified by words or phrases such as “may”, “might”, 
“will”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “intend”, “plan”, “indicate”, “seek”, “believe”, “predict” or “likely”, or 
the negative of these terms, or other similar expressions intended to identify forward-looking statements. The 
Company has based these forward-looking statements on its current expectations and projections about future events 
and financial trends that it believes might affect its financial condition, results of operations, business strategy and 
financial needs. These forward-looking statements include, among other things, statements relating to: 

 the intention to complete the listing of the Common Shares on the CSE and all transactions related thereto; 

 the Company’s expectations regarding its revenue, expenses and operations; 
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 the Company’s anticipated cash needs and its needs for additional financing; 

 the Company’s intention to grow the business and its operations; 

 expectations with respect to future production costs and capacity; 

 the grant and impact of any license or supplemental license to conduct activities with marijuana or any 
amendments thereof; 

 expectations with respect to the future growth of its medical and/or adult-use recreational cannabis 
products; 

 the Company’s competitive position and the regulatory environment in which the Company operates; 

 the Company’s expectation that revenues derived from its operations will be sufficient to cover its expenses 
during 2018 and over the next twelve months; 

 the Company’s expected business objectives for the next twelve months; 

 the Company’s ability to obtain additional funds through the sale of equity or debt commitments; 

 the development of the Shelton Facility (as defined herein) and the respective costs and timing associated 
therewith; and 

 the legalization of the use of marijuana for medical and/or adult recreational use in jurisdictions outside of 
the State of Washington and the Company’s opportunities for expansion into such jurisdictions.  

Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and analyses made by the Company in light of the 
experience and perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments and other 
factors it believes are appropriate, and are subject to risks and uncertainties. In making the forward looking 
statements included in this Prospectus, the Company has made various material assumptions, including but not 
limited to: (i) obtaining the necessary regulatory approvals; (ii) that regulatory requirements will be maintained; (iii) 
general business and economic conditions; (iv) the Company’s ability to successfully execute its plans and 
intentions; (v) the availability of financing on reasonable terms; (vi) the Company’s ability to attract and retain 
skilled staff; (vii) market competition; (viii) the products and technology offered by the Company’s competitors; and 
(ix) that our current good relationships with our service providers and other third parties will be maintained. 
Although the Company believes that the assumptions underlying these statements are reasonable, they may prove to 
be incorrect, and the Company cannot assure that actual results will be consistent with these forward-looking 
statements. Whether actual results, performance or achievements will conform to the Company’s expectations and 
predictions is subject to a number of known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors, 
including those listed under “Risk Factors”, which include: 

 the Company is a development stage company with little operating history, a history of losses and the 
Company cannot assure profitability; 

 uncertainty about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern; 

 the Company has negative cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2018; 

 the Company’s actual financial position and results of operations may differ materially from the 
expectations of management; 

 the Company expects to incur significant ongoing costs and obligations relating to its investment in 
infrastructure, growth, regulatory compliance and operations; 
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 there are factors which may prevent the Company from the realization of growth targets; 

 the Company is subject to changes in Canadian laws, regulations and guidelines, which could adversely 
affect the Company’s future business, financial condition and results of operations; 

 the Company is subject to changes in laws in the State of Washington and the federal laws of the United 
States, which could adversely affect the Company’s future business, financial condition and results of 
operations; 

 there is no assurance that the Company will turn a profit or generate revenues; 

  the Company may not be able to effectively manage its growth and operations, which could materially and 
adversely affect its business; 

 the Company may be unable to adequately protect its proprietary and intellectual property rights; 

 the Company may be forced to litigate to defend its intellectual property rights, or to defend against claims 
by third parties against the Company relating to intellectual property rights; 

 the Company may become subject to litigation, which may have a material adverse effect on the 
Company’s reputation, business, results from operations and financial condition; 

 the Company faces competition from other companies where it will conduct business that may have a 
higher capitalization, more experienced management or may be more mature as a business; 

 if the Company is unable to attract and retain key personnel, it may not be able to compete effectively in 
the cannabis market; 

 there is no assurance that the Company will obtain and retain any relevant licenses; 

 failure to successfully integrate acquired businesses, its products and other assets into the Company, or if 
integrated, failure to further the Company’s business strategy, may result in the Company’s inability to 
realize any benefit from such acquisition; 

 the size of the Company’s target market is difficult to quantify and investors will be reliant on their own 
estimates on the accuracy of market data; 

 the Company’s industry is experiencing rapid growth and consolidation that may cause the Company to 
lose key relationships and intensify competition; 

 the Company will continue to sell securities for cash to fund operations, capital expansion, mergers and 
acquisitions that will dilute the current shareholders; 

 the Company currently has insurance coverage; however, because the Company’s business is ancillary to 
the cannabis industry, there are additional difficulties and complexities associated with such insurance 
coverage; 

 the Company is currently reliant on a single location. Adverse changes affecting the Shelton Facility, 
development project could materially affect the Company’s plans; 

 the Company does not anticipate the ability to immediately diversify its business; 

 the Company is reliant on a limited number of tenants and is reliant on the business of such tenants; 
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 the Company may face significant competition from other facilities; 

 the Company could be liable for fraudulent or illegal activity by its employees, contractors and consultants 
resulting in significant financial losses to claims against the Company; 

 the Company will be reliant on information technology systems and may be subject to damaging 
cyberattacks; 

 the Company may be subject to breaches of security at its facilities, or in respect of electronic documents 
and data storage, and may face risks related to breaches of applicable privacy laws; 

 the Company’s officers and directors may be engaged in a range of business activities resulting in conflicts 
of interest; 

 in certain circumstances, the Company’s reputation could be damaged; 

 the Company is operating at a regulatory frontier. The cannabis industry is a new industry that may not 
succeed and, as a result of the Company’s ancillary involvement in such industry, the Company’s business 
may suffer; 

 the Company may not be able to obtain all necessary licenses and permits or complete construction of its 
facilities timely, which could, among other things, delay or prevent the Company from becoming 
profitable; 

 regulatory scrutiny of the Company’s industry may negatively impact its ability to raise additional capital; 

 some of the Company’s planned business activities, while believed to be compliant with applicable certain 
U.S. state and local law, are illegal under United States federal law; 

 the enforcement of relevant laws is a significant risk; 

 the Company’s investments and operations in the United States may be subject to heightened scrutiny; 

 the Company’s directors, officers, employees and its investors may face challenges entering the United 
States; 

 the Company may have difficulty accessing the service of banks and processing credit card payments in the 
future, which may make it difficult for the Company to operate; 

 due to the classification of cannabis as a Schedule I controlled substance under the CSA, banks and other 
financial institutions which service the cannabis industry are at risk of violating certain financial laws, 
including anti-money laundering statutes; 

 the Company cannot assure you that a market will develop or exist for the Common Shares or what the 
market price of the Common Shares will be; 

 the size of the Company’s target market is difficult to quantify and investors will be reliant on their own 
estimates on the accuracy of market data; 

 U.S. Federal trademark and patent protection may not be available for the intellectual property of the 
Company due to the current classification of cannabis as a Schedule I controlled substance; 

 the Company’s contracts may not be legally enforceable in the United States; 
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 the Company will be subject to additional regulatory burden resulting from its public listing on the CSE; 

 it may be difficult, if not impossible, for U.S. holders of Common Shares to resell them over the CSE; 

 the market price for Common Shares may be volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in response to 
numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control; 

 the Company is subject to uncertainty regarding Canadian and U.S. legal and regulatory status and changes; 

 the Company does not anticipate paying cash dividends; 

 future sales of Common Shares by existing shareholders could reduce the market price of the Company’s 
shares;  

 the Company is subject to currency fluctuations; and 

 no guarantee on the use of available funds by the Company. 

These factors should not be considered exhaustive. If any of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or if 
assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements prove incorrect, actual results might vary materially from 
those anticipated in those forward-looking statements.  

Information contained in forward-looking statements in this Prospectus is provided as of the date of this Prospectus, 
and we disclaim any obligation to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information or 
future events or results, except to the extent required by applicable securities laws. Accordingly, potential investors 
should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements or the information contained in those statements. 

All of the forward-looking statements contained in this Prospectus are expressly qualified by the foregoing 
cautionary statements. Investors should read this entire Prospectus and consult their own professional advisors to 
assess the income tax, legal, risk factors and other aspects of their investment. 

MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA 

Unless otherwise indicated, information contained in this Prospectus concerning the Company’s industry and the 
markets in which it operates, including general expectations and market position, market opportunities and market 
share, is based on information from independent industry organizations, other third-party sources (including industry 
publications, surveys and forecasts) and management studies and estimates. 

Unless otherwise indicated, the Company’s estimates are derived from publicly available information released by 
independent industry analysts and third-party sources as well as data from the Company’s internal research, and 
knowledge of Washington, and more generally the United States, cannabis market and economy, and include 
assumptions made by the Company which management believes to be reasonable based on their knowledge of the 
Company’s industry and markets. The Company’s internal research and assumptions have not been verified by any 
independent source, and it has not independently verified any third-party information. While the Company believes 
the market position, market opportunity and market share information included in this Prospectus is generally 
reliable, such information is inherently imprecise. In addition, projections, assumptions and estimates of the 
Company’s future performance and the future performance of the industry and markets in which it operates are 
necessarily subject to a high degree of uncertainty and risk due to a variety of factors, including those described 
under the heading “Forward-Looking Statements” and “Risk Factors”. 
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY 

The following is a summary of the principal features of this Prospectus and should be read together with the more 
detailed information and financial data and statements contained elsewhere in this Prospectus. Certain capitalized 
terms and phrases used in this Prospectus are defined in the “Glossary of Terms” beginning on page 1. 

Principal Business of the Company 

The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, currently operates as an agricultural technology, services and 
property management company. The Company provides real property and equipment for lease and enhanced 
ancillary services to the agricultural and cannabis industries in the State of Washington. The Company chose 
Washington given the proximity to Vancouver, British Columbia and as Washington was one of the first states to 
legalize and regulate the use of recreational cannabis for adults in 2014 and as such its regulatory regime is stable. 

The Company’s mission is to enable licensed cultivators of cannabis and/or other agricultural crops to enhance both 
crop quality and yields through proprietary knowledge and the use of clean technology and tools.  

The Company is corporately structured to provide a comprehensive range of flexible options to licensed cannabis 
cultivators, and processors for the cultivating, processing, packaging, and distribution of cannabis and cannabis 
products. The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, also provides long-term advisory and consulting 
services in cannabis and other agricultural crops. 

The Company provides an integrated facility (the “Shelton Facility”), the technology, and the structure to comply 
with Washington and municipal cannabis laws in Shelton, Washington. The Company also provides supply services 
for Tier 3 WSLCB producer and production license holders (“License Holders”) and derives income streams from 
the License Holders for the cultivation, growing, processing, packaging, and distribution of cannabis within 
Washington. 

The Company has leased 30,000 square feet of canopy space and about 42,000 square feet of space for product 
processing, and product drying to License Holders at its Shelton Facility. The Shelton Facility provides aeroponic 
technologies and growing equipment along with methods in bio-monitored grow rooms monitored by an information 
technology system to optimize growing conditions and increase plant yields. The benefits of the technology used in 
the Shelton Facility for License Holders include: 

 Precision agriculture techniques (sensors, data collection, and networked monitoring); 
 Aeroponics (exposed roots nutrient spray); 
 Automation (monitoring the environment for optimal growing conditions and inventory control); and 
 Bio controls (maintain facility through proprietary methods). 

On February 26, 2018, the Company entered into the Merger Agreement with an arms-length party, BDB Finance 
and Leasing Two, LLC (now renamed as TimberLand), and Agrios Merger Sub (Washington) Inc. (“Agrios 
MergerSub”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The transaction was structured as a business 
combination, specifically as a triangular merger under the Washington Business Corporations Act Title 23B RCW, 
pursuant to which Agrios MergerSub was merged with and into TimberLand, with TimberLand as the surviving 
entity and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “TimberLand Acquisition”). The Merger Agreement 
provided the Company with access to the building and equipment necessary to provide License Holders with an 
integrated production and processing facility. The TimberLand Acquisition closed on June 8, 2018. 

On July 20, 2018, the Company entered into the Greenfields LOI with Agrios Asia, Greenfields, an arm’s length 
party, and the Greenfields Shareholder, pursuant to which Agrios Asia has agreed to acquire 100% ownership of 
Greenfields (the “Greenfields Acquisition”). In consideration for the acquisition of 100% ownership of 
Greenfields, the Company expects to make an aggregate payment of US$330,000 and issue an aggregate of 
2,000,000 Common Shares (the “Consideration Shares”) at a deemed price of $0.60 per Common Share to the 
Greenfields Shareholder. The Consideration Shares will be issued in escrow on the closing date and will be released 
upon the Chinese Joint Venture (defined below) achieving certain milestones over a period of 36 months. 
Greenfields is engaged in the business of investment and acquisition of hemp projects in Asia. Greenfields has 
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entered into a Cooperation Agreement, dated May 27, 2018, with YHFHMC whereby Greenfields and YHFHMC 
will jointly form a joint venture in China (the “Chinese Joint Venture”) with respect to hemp project investment, 
product sales, raw materials supply, hemp oil extraction technology and the integrated development and application 
of hemp oil in other areas. Greenfields and YHFHMC ownership in the Chinese Joint Venture are 65% and 35%, 
respectively. The Greenfields Acquisition is expected to close by December 31, 2018. 

The Company’s head office is located at Suite 1980 – 1075 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, 
Canada, V6E 3C9. The Company’s registered and records office is located at Suite 1500 – 1055 West Georgia 
Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada, V6E 4N7.  

No Proceeds Raised 

No securities are being offered pursuant to this Prospectus. This Prospectus is being filed with the BCSC for the 
purpose of allowing the Company to become a reporting issuer in such jurisdiction and to enable the Company to 
develop an organized market for its Common Shares. Since no securities are being offered pursuant to this 
Prospectus, no proceeds will be raised and all expenses incurred in connection with the preparation and filing of this 
Prospectus will be paid by the Company.  

The Listing 

The Company has applied to list its Common Shares on the CSE. Listing will be subject to the Company’s fulfilling 
all of the listing requirements of the CSE, including, without limitation, the distribution of the Company’s Common 
Shares to a minimum number of public shareholders and the Company meeting the minimum listing requirements.  

Risk Factors 

An investment in the securities of the Company is speculative and involves a high degree of risk. The following are 
a summary of certain of the risk factors described elsewhere herein. Prospective purchasers should carefully 
consider the information set out under “Risk Factors” and the other information in this Prospectus before purchasing 
securities of the Company.  

Limited Operating History  

The Company was incorporated on February 18, 2017 and has only recently begun operations. The Company is 
therefore subject to many of the risks common to early-stage enterprises, including limitations with respect to 
personnel, financial, and other resources and lack of revenues. There is no assurance that the Company will be 
successful in achieving a return on shareholders’ investment and the likelihood of success must be considered in 
light of the early stage of operations.  

History of Net Losses  

The Company has incurred operating losses since incorporation. The Company may not be able to achieve or 
maintain profitability and may continue to incur significant losses into the future. In addition, the Company expects 
to continue to increase operating expenses as it implements initiatives to grow its business. If the Company’s does 
not generate revenues to offset these expected increases in costs and operating expenses, the Company will not be 
profitable. 

Negative Operating Cash Flow  

The Company did not generate operating revenue and historically has had negative cash flow from operating 
activities. It is anticipated that the Company will continue to have negative cash flows in the foreseeable future. 
Continued losses may have the following consequences:  

 increasing the Company’s vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;  
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 limiting the Company’s ability to obtain additional financing to fund future working capital, capital 
 expenditures, operating costs and other general corporate requirements; and  

 limited the Company’s flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in its business and the industry.  

Summary Financial Information 

The following selected financial information has been derived from and is qualified in its entirety by the Company 
Financial Statements, and the notes thereto (included at Schedule “A” to this Prospectus), the TimberLand Financial 
Statements, and the notes thereto (included at Schedule “C” to this Prospectus), and the Pro-Forma Consolidated 
Statement of Financial Position, and the notes thereto (included at Schedule “E” to this Prospectus), and should be 
read in conjunction with the respective management’s discussion and analysis thereto, attached at Schedule “B” and 
Schedule “D” to this Prospectus.  

 

TimberLand for the 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2018
(audited) (US$) 

Company for the 
Year Ended  

March 31, 2018  
(audited) ($) 

Company 
for the Three Months 

Ended  
June 30, 2018

(unaudited) (US$) 

Pro-Forma 
Consolidated 
Statement of 

Financial Position as 
at June 30, 2018 

(unaudited) (US$) 

Revenue – – 427,750 N/A 

Total Expenses 449,142 961,760 1,030,277 N/A 

Net Income (Loss) (449,142) (963,218) (698,504) N/A 

Total Comprehensive 
Loss (449,142) (963,218) (650,910) N/A 

Current Assets  3,620,126 8,787,136 7,747,546 11,910,993 

Total Assets 9,421,324 8,787,136 29,435,264 33,598,711 

Total Liabilities  9,883,611 89,238 9,090,081 9,090,081 

Shareholders’ Equity 
(Deficiency) (462,287) 8,697,898 20,345,183 24,508,630 

See “Selected Financial Information”.  
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE 

Name, Address and Incorporation 

The Company was incorporated under the BCBCA as “Sparrow Capital Corp.” on February 18, 2017 and changed 
its name to “Agrios Global Holdings Ltd.” on June 23, 2017. On June 8, 2018, the Company completed the 
TimberLand Acquisition, and, as a result, TimberLand became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. 

The Company’s head office is located at Suite 1980 – 1075 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, 
Canada, V6E 3C9. The Company’s registered and records office is located at Suite 1500 – 1055 West Georgia 
Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada, V6E 4N7.  

Intercorporate Relationships 

The Company has eight (8) wholly-owned subsidiaries: (i) TimberLand (ii) Agrios USA, (iii) Agrios Solutions, (iv) 
Agrios WA, (v) Rainer, (vi) Pacific Green, (vii) First Cascade, and (vii) Agrios Asia. The corporate structure of the 
Company is outlined in the diagram below and is current as at the date of filing of this Prospectus. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subsidiaries  

The Company owns 100% of the issued and outstanding common shares of Agrios Global Holdings (USA), Inc. 
(“Agrios USA”). Agrios USA was incorporated in the State of Delaware on December 15, 2017. Agrios USA’s 
head office is located at 1980 – 1075 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6E 3C9. Agrios USA’s 
registered office is located at 9 E Loockerman Street, Suite 311, Dover, Delaware, 19901. 

The Company owns 100% of the membership units of TimberLand Bay Properties, LLC (“TimberLand”) 
(formerly known as “BDB Finance and Leasing Two, LLC”). TimberLand is a limited liability company formed in 
the State of Washington on March 20, 2017. TimberLand’s head office is located at 111 Sargison Loop, Shelton, 
Washington 98584. TimberLand’s registered office is located at KTC Service Corporation, 701 Fifth Avenue, Suite 
3300, Seattle, Washington, 98104. 

The Company owns 100% of the issued and outstanding common shares of Agrios Asia Holdings Limited (“Agrios 
Asia”). Agrios Asia was incorporated in Hong Kong on June 5, 2018. Agrios Asia’s head office is located at 1980 – 
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1075 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6E 3C9. Agrios Asia’s registered office is located at 
26/F, Beautiful Group Tower, 77 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. 

Agrios USA owns 100% of the membership units of Agrios Global Holdings (Washington), LLC (“Agrios WA”). 
Agrios WA was formed in the State of Washington on December 18, 2017. Agrios WA’s head office is located at 
1980 – 1075 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6E 3C9. Agrios WA’s registered office is located 
at 3400 Capitol Blvd. S.W. Ste. 101, Turnwater, Washington, 98501. 

Agrios USA owns 100% of the membership units of Agrios Global Solutions, Inc. (“Agrios Solutions”). Agrios 
Solutions was formed in the State of Delaware on June 27, 2018. Agrios WA’s head office is located at 1980 – 1075 
West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6E 3C9. Agrios WA’s registered office is located at 3400 
Capitol Blvd. S.W. Ste. 101, Turnwater, Washington, 98501. 

Agrios WA owns 100% of the membership units of Rainier Product Services, LLC (“Rainier”). Rainier was formed 
in the State of Washington on March 30, 2018. Rainier’s head office is located at 13818 Goldman Drive, Gig 
Harbor, WA 98329. Rainier’s registered office is located at KTC Service Corporation, 701 Fifth Avenue, Suite 
3300, Seattle, Washington, 98104. 

Agrios WA owns 100% of the membership units of Pacific Green Technology and Agronomy, LLC (“Pacific 
Green”). Pacific Green was formed in the State of Washington on March 30, 2018. Pacific Green’s head office is 
located at 13818 Goldman Drive, Gig Harbor, WA 98329. Pacific Green’s registered office is located at KTC 
Service Corporation, 701 Fifth Avenue, Suite 3300, Seattle, Washington, 98104. 

Agrios WA owns 100% of the membership units of First Cascade Financial Services, LLC (“First Cascade”). First 
Cascade was formed in the State of Washington on March 30, 2018. First Cascade’s head office is located at 1001 S 
Pickwick, Springfield, MO 65804. First Cascade’s registered office is located at KTC Service Corporation, 701 Fifth 
Avenue, Suite 3300, Seattle, Washington, 98104. 

Upon closing of the Greenfields Acquisition, Agrios Asia will own 100% of the issued and outstanding securities of 
Greenfields. Greenfields was incorporated in Hong Kong on March 28, 2018. Agrios Asia’s head office is located at 
1980 – 1075 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6E 3C9. Greenfield’s registered address is 
located at 1402 Glenealy Tower 1 Glenealy, Rd Mid-Levels, Hong Kong. The Company, through Greenfields 
intends on entering into the Chinese Joint Venture with YHFHMC. Accordingly, upon closing of the Greenfields 
Acquisition, the corporate structure of the Company will be as follows: 
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THE BUSINESS 

Overview 

The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, currently operates as an agricultural technology, services 
provider and property management company. The Company provides real property and equipment for lease and 
enhanced ancillary services to the agricultural and cannabis industries in the State of Washington and other potential 
geographical areas. The Company chose Washington given the proximity to Vancouver, British Columbia and as 
Washington was one of the first states to legalize and regulate the use of recreational cannabis for adults in 2014 and 
as such its regulatory regime is stable. 

The Company’s mission is to enable licensed cultivators of cannabis and/or other agricultural crops to enhance both 
crop quality and yields through proprietary knowledge and the use of clean technology and tools.  

The Company is corporately structured to provide a comprehensive range of flexible options to licensed cannabis 
cultivators, and processors for the cultivating, growing, processing, packaging, and distribution of cannabis and 
cannabis products. The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, also provides long-term advisory and 
consulting services in agriculture and cannabis. 

The Company provides an integrated facility (the “Shelton Facility”), the technology, and the structure to comply 
with Washington and municipal cannabis laws in Shelton, Washington. The Company also provides supply services 
for Tier 3 WSLCB producer and production license holders (“License Holders”) and derives income streams from 
the License Holders for the cultivation, growing, processing, packaging, and distribution of cannabis within 
Washington 

The Company has leased 30,000 square feet of canopy space and about 42,000 square feet of space for product 
processing, and product drying to License Holders at its Shelton Facility. The Shelton Facility provides aeroponic 
technologies and growing equipment along with methods in bio-monitored grow rooms monitored by an information 
technology system to optimize growing conditions and increase plant yields. The benefits of the technology used in 
the Shelton Facility for License Holders include: 

 Precision agriculture techniques (sensors, data collection, and networked monitoring); 
 Aeroponics (exposed roots nutrient spray); 
 Automation (monitoring the environment for optimal growing conditions and inventory control); and 
 Bio controls (maintain facility through proprietary methods). 

On February 26, 2018, the Company entered into the Merger Agreement with an arms-length party, BDB Finance 
and Leasing Two, LLC (now renamed as TimberLand), and Agrios Merger Sub (Washington) Inc., a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of the Company. The transaction was structured as a business combination, specifically as a triangular 
merger under the Washington Business Corporations Act Title 23B RCW, pursuant to which Agrios MergerSub was 
merged with and into TimberLand, with TimberLand as the surviving entity and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the 
Company (the “TimberLand Acquisition”). The Merger Agreement provided the Company with access to the 
building and equipment necessary to provide License Holders with an integrated cannabis production and processing 
facility. The TimberLand Acquisition closed on June 8, 2018. See “Merger with TimberLand”. 

On July 20, 2018, the Company entered into the Greenfields LOI with Agrios Asia, Greenfields, an arm’s length 
party, and the Greenfields Shareholder, pursuant to which Agrios Asia has agreed to acquire 100% ownership of 
Greenfields (the “Greenfields Acquisition”). In consideration for the acquisition of 100% ownership of 
Greenfields, the Company expects to make an aggregate payment of US$330,000 and issue an aggregate of 
2,000,000 Common Shares (the “Consideration Shares”) at a deemed price of $0.60 per Common Share to the 
Greenfields Shareholder. The Consideration Shares will be issued in escrow on the closing date and will be released 
upon the Chinese Joint Venture (defined below) achieving certain financing milestones over a period of 36 months. 
Greenfields is engaged in the business of investment and acquisition of hemp projects in Asia. Greenfields has 
entered into a Cooperation Agreement, dated May 27, 2018, with YHFHMC whereby Greenfields and YHFHMC 
will jointly form a joint venture in China (the “Chinese Joint Venture”) with respect to hemp project investment, 
product sales, raw materials supply, hemp oil extraction technology and the integrated development and application 
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of hemp oil in other areas. Greenfields and YHFHMC ownership in the Chinese Joint Venture are 65% and 35%, 
respectively. The Greenfields Acquisition is expected to close by December 31, 2018. 

The Company’s head office is located at Suite 1980 – 1075 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, 
Canada, V6E 3C9. The Company’s registered and records office is located at Suite 1500 – 1055 West Georgia 
Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada, V6E 4N7. 

Development  

The Company was incorporated under the BCBCA as “Sparrow Capital Corp.” on February 18, 2017 and changed 
its name to “Agrios Global Holdings Ltd.” on June 23, 2017. Since 2017, the Company has sought to invest in 
cannabis-related assets and companies for the purpose of entering the cannabis industry in State of Washington. 
From incorporation to July 23, 2018, the Company has issued 83,419,454 common shares in initial financing rounds 
for gross proceeds of $18,712,450. 

Merger with TimberLand 

On February 26, 2018, the Company entered into the Merger Agreement with an arms-length party, BDB Finance 
and Leasing Two, LLC (now TimberLand), and Agrios MergerSub, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. 
The transaction was structured as a business combination, specifically as a triangular merger under the Washington 
Business Corporations Act Title 23B RCW, pursuant to which Agrios MergerSub was merged with and into 
TimberLand, with TimberLand as the surviving entity and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Merger 
Agreement provided the Company with access to the building and equipment necessary to provide License Holders 
with an integrated cannabis production and processing facility. The consideration paid by the Company to 
TimberLand members was based management’s valuation of TimberLand at US$23,000,000 (as determined through 
negotiations with TimberLand) and the Company satisfied this price through: 

 the issuance of 29,166,667 Common Shares to TimberLand members (at a deemed price of $0.60 per 
Common Share); 

 the Company’s assumption of TimberLand debt in the amount of US$4,500,000, in the form of the Citizens 
Facility Agreement (as defined below); and 

 the Company’s advance of US$4,500,000 loan to TimberLand for the purposes of the Phase II buildout of 
the Shelton Facility. 

In connection with the assumption of TimberLand debt, the Company secured a mortgage facility with Citizens 
Bank of Newburg (the “Citizens Facility Agreement”) in the amount of $5,778,686, which was used to settled 
three separate credit facilities. In connection with the execution of the Citizens Facility Agreement, the Company, 
through TimberLand, granted security in the form of a security interest in all equipment, inventory, accounts 
receivable and intangibles owned by TimberLand and granted a deed of trust against the Shelton Facility. In 
addition, James Foster and Larry Ellison have provided guarantees in respect of the Citizens Facility Agreement.  

On December 19, 2017, upon notice by TimberLand that an advance of funds prior to closing of the Merger 
Agreement would be necessary to continue construction efforts at the Shelton Facility, the Company entered into a 
secured credit agreement with TimberLand, (the “TimberLand Credit Agreement”) pursuant to which the 
Company advanced US$700,000. The Company provided an additional advance of US$4,652,920 upon execution of 
the Merger Agreement on February 26, 2018.  Management of the Company determined that amounts in excess of 
US$4,500,000 were necessary to assist with the operation of TimberLand and the Shelton Facility. Such advances 
satisfied the Company’s obligation to advance US4,500,000 to TimberLand for the purposes of the Phase II buildout 
of the Shelton Facility. As security for the obligations under the TimberLand Credit Agreement, TimberLand has 
granted a deed of trust relating to the Shelton Facility to the Company. 

Upon completion of the merger on June 8, 2018, TimberLand members (including, but not limited to James F. 
Foster and Larry Ellison, two current directors of the Company) were issued 29,166,667 Common Shares. None of 
the TimberLand members had any beneficial ownership interest in the Company prior to completion of the merger.  
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Acquisition of Greenfields 

On July 20, 2018, the Company entered into the Greenfields LOI with Agrios Asia, Greenfields, an arm’s length 
party, and the Greenfields Shareholder, pursuant to which Agrios Asia has agreed to acquire 100% ownership of 
Greenfields. In consideration for the acquisition of 100% ownership of Greenfields, the Company expects to pay the 
purchase price of $1,629,000 through an aggregate payment of US$330,000 ($429,000) and issue an aggregate of 
2,000,000 Common Shares (the “Consideration Shares”) at a deemed price of $0.60 per Common Share to the 
Greenfields Shareholder. Taking into account US$150,000 previously spent by the Greenfields Shareholder for 
business development of Greenfields, which led to the creation of the Chinese Joint Venture, management of the 
Company determined that the upfront cost of US$330,000 to acquire Greenfields was reasonable in the 
circumstances.  

The Consideration Shares will be issued in escrow on the closing date and will be released upon the Chinese Joint 
Venture achieving certain financing milestones over a period of 36 months, including: (i) 500,000 Consideration 
Shares to be released upon the Chinese Joint Venture obtaining the Product Export License enabling the Chinese 
Joint Venture to export hemp materials, products, and CBD; (ii) 500,000 Consideration Shares to be releaed upon 
the Chinese Joint Venture obtaining the Health Product Specific License enabling the Chinese Joint Venture to sell 
hemp related to specific health products within China; and (iii) the remaining 1,000,000 Consideration Shares to be 
released upon the Chinese Joint Venture obtaining the Hemp Cultivation License in the Yunnan Province enabling 
the Chinese Joint Venture to engage farmers and acquire capacity to grow outdoor hemp in the province of Yunnan. 

Greenfields is engaged in the business of investment and acquisition of hemp projects in Asia. Greenfields has 
entered into a Cooperation Agreement, dated May 27, 2018, with YHFHMC whereby Greenfields and YHFHMC 
will jointly form the Chinese Joint Venture with respect to hemp project investment, product sales, raw materials 
supply, hemp oil extraction technology and the integrated development and application of hemp oil in other areas. 
Greenfields and YHFHMC ownership in the Chinese Joint Venture are 65% and 35%, respectively. The Greenfields 
Acquisition is expected to close by December 31, 2018. 

Upon completion of the Greenfields Acquisition, Agrios Asia through the Chinese Joint Venture will develop or 
acquire technology for using hemp fiber to produce products that have high demands, like disposable utensils, toilet 
papers, hemp plastics, etc.  To make use of the low costs supply of hemp fiber and develop household products for 
the Chinese consumer market and also for export. The Company expects that its business in China will be focuses 
solely on the Yunnan Province for the following 12-24 months. 

Subsidiaries and License Holders Agreements 

The Agrios Subsidiaries were formed to provide certain consulting, advisory, services and products to the License 
Holders of the Shelton Facility in the cultivation, production, and processing of cannabis. The Subsidiaries signed 
agreements with the License Holders on April 1, 2018 to provide their services. See “Material Contracts” for more 
information. 

(i) Agrios USA 

Agrios USA was incorporated for the purpose of establishing and owning 100% of the membership units of Agrios 
WA. 

(ii) Agrios WA 

Agrios WA was formed to conduct business with Washington state cannabis producer and production license 
holders through its subsidiaries. See “Principal Products and Services”.  

(iii) Agrios Asia 

Agrios Asia was incorporated for the purposes of acquiring Greenfields, a company engaged in the business of 
investment and acquisition of hemp projects in Asia. Greenfields is engaged in the Chinese Joint Venture with 
YHFHMC in China and will pursue three licenses in the next twelve months to export hemp related products from 
China, sell hemp related products in China, and cultivate outdoor hemp in the Chinese province of Yunnan. 
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(iv) Agrios Solutions 

Agrios Solutions intends to provide an integrated solution to cannabis producers and manufacturers with access to 
the Company’s facility design, equipment, technology, and Shelton Facility data on cannabis cultivation. Agrios 
Solutions plans to provide integrated solutions throughout the United States and other jurisdictions in which the 
cultivation and manufacturing of medical and/or recreational cannabis has been legalized. In addition to providing 
access to Agrios’ facility design, equipment, technology, and data, Agrios Solutions will offer integrated solutions 
and Agrios’ management experience and knowledge of cannabis cultivation and manufacturing. 

(v) TimberLand 

Agrios, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, TimberLand, owns the necessary equipment required for License 
Holders in both the production and processing of cannabis. TimberLand leases the equipment to the License Holders 
operating out of Agrios’ Shelton Facility as well as provides maintenance and support services for the equipment. 
On April 1, 2018, TimberLand entered into an equipment lease and services agreement with EH. See “Material 
Contracts”. 

(vi) Rainier 

Rainier provides License Holders with certain consulting services including general marketing support, advising on 
and purchasing nutrients and supplies for maximizing yield on cannabis production, recommending non-cannabis 
supplies and suppliers, advising on product purchasing and inventory strategies, and coordination of product 
deliveries. On April 1, 2018, Rainier entered into a consulting and supply agreement with EH. See “Material 
Contracts”. 

(vii) Pacific Green 

Pacific Green licenses to the License Holders the intellectual property of the Company for use in connection with 
the License Holders’ cannabis cultivating operations. The intellectual property consists of certain proprietary and 
innovative technologies relating to plant cultivation including without limitation proprietary facility designs, control 
systems, proprietary software connecting grow software to building equipment, and grow recipes/formulas and data 
that may be used in connection with third party growth software. Pacific Green also advises other growers and 
producers in the agricultural industry on strategies and methods for maximizing production. On April 1, 2018, 
Pacific Green entered into a license consulting agreement with EH. See “Material Contracts”. 

(viii) First Cascade 

First Cascade provides License Holders with the administrative, financial, and other support services necessary to 
permit the License Holder to devote their full efforts to the production and processing of cannabis and cannabis 
goods while ensuring that the License Holders meet all of their tax, record keeping and accounting obligations. On 
April 1, 2018, First Cascade entered into a financial services agreement with EH. See “Material Contracts”. 

(x) Greenfields 

Greenfields is engaged in the business of investment and acquisition of hemp projects in Asia. Greenfields will 
jointly form a Chinese Joint Venture with YHFHMC in China with respect to hemp project investment, product 
sales, raw materials supply, hemp oil extraction technology and the integrated development and application of hemp 
oil in other areas. 

Acquisition of the Shelton Facility  

The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, TimberLand, acquired the land and buildings comprising the 
Shelton Facility for an aggregate amount of $3,785,331 and has spent an additional $2,006,067 as of March 31, 2018 
for the acquisition of equipment at the Shelton Facility. TimberLand has pledged its interest in the Shelton Facility 
as security to Agrios pursuant to the TimberLand Credit Agreement. In addition, TimberLand, granted security in 
the form of a security interest in all equipment, inventory, accounts receivable and intangibles owned by 
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TimberLand and granted a deed of trust against the Shelton Facility, each in respect of the Citizens Facility 
Agreement. See “Merger with TimberLand” above. 

The Company has leased 30,000 square feet of canopy space and about 42,000 square feet of space for product 
processing, and product drying to License Holders at its Shelton Facility. The Shelton Facility provides aeroponic 
technologies and growing equipment along with methods in bio-monitored grow rooms monitored by an information 
technology system to optimize growing conditions and increase plant yields. The benefits of the technology used in 
the Shelton Facility for License Holders include: 

 Precision agriculture techniques (sensors, data collection, and networked monitoring); 
 Aeroponics (exposed roots nutrient spray); 
 Automation (monitoring the environment for optimal growing conditions and inventory control); and 
 Bio controls (maintain facility through proprietary methods). 

On April 1, 2018, TimberLand, as successor in interest, became party to a building lease agreement with EH with 
respect to the Shelton Facility. The original lease for the Shelton Facility, located at 111 Sargison Loop, Shelton, 
WA, USA 98584, was made between Black Diamond Finance and Leasing, LLC, a Washington limited liability 
company and EH on January 25, 2017, and was amended to include BDB Finance and Leasing Two, LLC, as 
landlord. BDB Finance and Leasing Two, LLC changed its name to Timberland Bay Properties, LLC on April 24, 
2018.  On May 17, 2018, the TimberLand, EH and Onyx Agronomics, Inc. entered into a lease assignment 
agreement effective once the transfer of the Tier 3 Producer/ Processor marijuana license (#425183) from EH to 
Onyx Agronomics, Inc. is approved by the WSLCB. Once effective, Onyx Agronomics, Inc. will become the tenant 
under the lease. The Company expects such transfer to be completed as early as October 31, 2018. The existing 
lease for the premises commenced on April 1, 2018 and terminates twenty-four months thereafter. Monthly base rent 
for the premises, due on the first of the month, is US$82,500. Rent accrues under the lease on a monthly basis; 
however, payment of rent is deferred until the first full month after the first harvest of cannabis. At such time, the 
tenant has six months to repay all deferred rent. See “Material Contracts”. 

The WSLCB has completed all necessary inspections of the Shelton Facility and has approved for operations. 
According to applicable laws in the State of Washington, TimberLand, as landlord of the Shelton Facility, is not 
required to obtain any form of a license to lease the Shelton Facility to a lessee with cannabis operations.  

Agreements with EH Enterprises Management, Inc. 

The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, has entered into certain agreements with an arms-length 
party, EH, a License Holder in the State of Washington, including: 

1. a building lease between EH and TimberLand respecting the Shelton Facility;  
2. a consulting and supply agreement between EH and Rainer; 
3. an equipment lease and services agreement between EH and TimberLand; 
4. a financial services agreement between EH and First Cascade; and 
5. a license and consulting agreement between EH and Pacific Green 

(collectively, the “EH Agreements”).  

EH is a licensed marijuana producer/processor in the State of Washington responsible for producing a wide-range of 
popular marijuana products including beverages and edibles.  EH was formed January 22, 2013. All issued and 
outstanding shares of EH are owned by Marco Hoffman. One of EH’s licenses, a “Tier 3 Producer/ Processor” 
marijuana license (#425183), is pending transfer to Onyx Agronomics, Inc., a Washington corporation.  

Financings 

On May 18, 2017, the Company completed an initial non-brokered private placement for gross proceeds of $31,375, 
consisting of 627,500 Common Shares at a price of $0.05 per Common Share. 



 

21 
 

On December 14, 2017, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement for gross proceeds of $500,000, 
consisting of 10,000,000 Common Shares at a price of $0.05 per Common Share. 

On January 11, 2018, the Company completed the first tranche of its non-brokered private placement for gross 
proceed of $1,133,125.50, consisting of 7,554,170 Common Shares at a price of $0.15 per Common Share. On 
January 29, 2018, the Company completed the second tranche of its non-brokered private placement of $363,555, 
consisting of 2,423,698 Common Shares at a price of $0.15 per Common Share. 

On February 20, 2018, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement for gross proceeds of 
$1,052,811.00, consisting of 4,211,244 Common Shares at a price of $0.25 per Common Share. In connection with 
the private placement, the Company also issued 226,279 Finders’ Warrants to certain finders. Each such Finders’ 
Warrant entitles the holder thereof to acquire one additional Common Share at a price of $0.25 per Common Share 
exercisable for a period expiring 24 months form the closing date of the offering. 

On March 2, 2018, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement for gross proceeds of $6,442,948, 
consisting of 12,885,896 Common Shares at a price of $0.50 per Common Share. In connection with the private 
placement, the Company also issued 920,132 Finders’ Warrants to certain finders. Each such Finders’ Warrant 
entitles the holder thereof to acquire one additional Common Share at a price of $0.50 per Common Share 
exercisable for a period expiring 24 months form the closing date of the offering. 

Between June 20, 2018 and July 16, 2018, the Company completed the first and second tranches of a brokered 
private placement for gross proceeds of $3,712,000, consisting of 7,424,000 Units at a price of $0.50 per Unit. Each 
such Unit consists of one Common Share and one common share purchase warrant (each, a “Warrant”), with each 
such Warrant entitling the holder thereof to acquire, without further consideration, 0.10 Common Shares (each 
whole Common Share, a “Warrant Share”) if the Company has not completed a Liquidity Event by the later of (i) 
120 days following the respective date of closing, or (ii) December 31, 2018 (the “Liquidity Expiry Date”), 
provided that for each additional thirty day period after the Liquidity Expiry Date that the Company has not 
completed a Liquidity Event, each Warrant shall automatically convert into an additional 0.05 of a Warrant Share 
without further action or consideration by the holder subject to a pro-rata per diem adjustment should a Liquidity 
Event close within any such thirty day period (the “Penalty Provision”). In connection with the private placement, 
the Company issued to the agents a total of 445,440 compensation options (each, an “Agent’s Compensation 
Option”). Each such Agent’s Compensation Option entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for and purchase one 
Common Share at a price of $0.50 per Common Share for a period that is 24 months from the date of a Liquidity 
Event. In connection with the offering, the Company also paid cash compensation to the agents in an amount equal 
to 6% of the proceeds raised by the agents (equal to $216,720) and a corporate finance fee of $35,000 plus GST. 

On July 23, 2018, the Company completed the first tranche of a non-brokered private placement for gross proceeds 
of $5,475,767, consisting of 9,126,278 Common Shares at a price of $0.60 per Common Share. In connection with 
the private placement, the Company also paid cash commission equivalent to 6% of the proceeds of subscribers 
introduced by certain finders (equal to $310,080.93) and issued 516,802 Finders’ Warrants to such finders. Each 
such Finders’ Warrant entitles the holder thereof to acquire one additional Common Share at a price of $0.60 per 
Common Share exercisable for a period expiring 24 months form the closing date of the offering. On August 27, 
2018, the Company closed the second tranche of the non-brokered private placement for gross proceeds of 
$130,761, consisting of 217,935 Common Shares at a price of $0.60 per Common Share, for an aggregate total of 
$5,606,527.  

Principal Products and Services 

Agrios provides an integrated facility, the technology, and the structure to comply with Washington and municipal 
cannabis laws in Shelton, Washington (“Shelton Facility”). Agrios also provides supply services for Tier 3 WSLCB 
producer and production license holders (“License Holders”) and derives income streams from the License Holders 
for the cultivation, growing, processing, packaging, and distribution of cannabis within Washington. 

Agrios has leased 30,000 square feet of canopy space and about 42,000 square feet of space for product processing, 
and product drying to License Holders at its Shelton Facility. The Shelton Facility provides aeroponic technologies 
and growing equipment along with methods in bio-monitored grow rooms monitored by an information technology 
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system to optimize growing conditions and increase plant yields. The benefits of the technology used in Agrios’ 
facility for License Holders include: 

 Precision agriculture techniques (sensors, data collection, and networked monitoring); 
 Aeroponics (exposed roots nutrient spray); 
 Automation (monitoring the environment for optimal growing conditions and inventory control); and 
 Bio controls (maintain facility through proprietary methods. 

Employees, Specialized Skill and Knowledge 

As of the date of this Prospectus, the Company has eight individuals working. The operations of the Company are 
managed by its directors and officers.  

The nature of the Company’s business requires specialized knowledge and technical skill around the cultivating, 
harvesting, production, and regulations of cannabis and the cannabis industry. 

The required skills and knowledge to succeed in this industry are available to the Company through certain members 
of the Company’s management, directors, officers, and advisory teams. 

Competitive Conditions  

Financing for companies in the cannabis sector is more difficult than other sectors, particularly in the United States, 
due to the fact that cannabis is still classified as a Schedule I drug and illegal at a Federal level. The changing 
regulatory environment at a state level further complicates financing for companies in this sector. 

The fast-growing market for legalized cannabis in both Canada and the U.S. has created a competitive environment 
for cannabis producers as well as other types of companies who provide goods and services to the cannabis industry. 
However, there remains a significant lack of traditional sources of bank lending and equity capital available to fund 
the operations of companies in the cannabis sector. Management believes that the Company can continue to expand 
its cannabis-related holdings by providing tailored, state law compliant, and financially attractive sources of funding 
and/or equity investment to cannabis and cannabis-connected companies, as evidenced by its Agrios WA operations. 
Because of the rapid growth of the cannabis industry, the Company faces competition from other companies in the 
sector who are accessing the equity capital markets. See “Risk Factors”. 

Competitor Comparison 

Competitor Description of Business Operations Location 

Cannex Capital Holdings Inc. Delivers comprehensive solutions for developing, operating, 
branding, and supplying licensed cannabis cultivators and 
producers throughout the United States. 

California; Washington, 
U.S.A. 

iAnthus Capital Holdings, Inc. iAnthus was created to capitalize on the rapidly growing U.S. 
regulated cannabis market and the unique opportunity that 
exists for providing capital investment and expert management 
services (“value-added capital”) to licensed cultivators, 
product manufacturers and dispensaries. 

Florida; Maryland; 
Massachusetts; New 
Mexico; Nevada; New 
York; Oregon; Rhode 
Island; Vermont, U.S.A. 

MPX Bioceutical Corporation Multinational diversified cannabis company focused on the 
medical and adult use cannabis markets. 

 

The company has a growing presence in the U.S. with 
imminent plans for ten dispensaries and four production 
facilities in four states. It also has a production facility under 
construction in Canada as well as a pending license application 

Arizona; Nevada; 
Massachusetts; Maryland, 
U.S.A. 
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Competitor Description of Business Operations Location 

to Health Canada. 

CannaRoyalty Corp. CannaRoyalty invests flexibly, assembling its platform of 
holdings via royalty agreements, equity interests, secured 
convertible debt, and licensing agreements in various 
businesses in the United States and Canada. 

California; Washington; 
Arizona; Florida; Nevada, 
U.S.A. 

Canada 

Liberty Health Sciences Inc. Acquire and operate U.S. – based 

companies in the medical cannabis market. Liberty is 
committed to delivering high-quality, clean and safe 
pharmaceutical grade cannabis to patients while optimizing 
returns to our shareholders. 

Florida, U.S.A. 

Terra Tech Corp. Vertically integrated cannabis-focused agriculture company 
that is committed to cultivating and providing the highest 
quality medical cannabis and other agricultural products. 

California; Nevada, 
U.S.A. 

Friday Night Inc. Owns and controls cannabis and hemp-based assets in Las 
Vegas Nevada as well as an international cannabis and mining 
security logistics consulting firm. 

Nevada, U.S.A. 

Golden Leaf Holdings Ltd. One of the largest cannabis oil and solution providers in North 
America and is a leading cannabis company in Oregon. With a 
product portfolio built around recognized brands, the 
Company strives to provide cannabis users with superior value 
and experience. 

Oregon, U.S.A. 

Hemp Competition in China 

Hemp cultivation and CBD processing is currently occurring across China; however, only three companies in the 
province of Yunnan are approved and have government licenses to process industrial hemp flowers and leaves. 

(i) Yunnan Industrial Hemp Inc. 

Yunnan Industrial Hemp Inc, founded in 2001, is a subsidiary of Yunnan Hanpu Health Products Co. Ltd, and was 
the first company to obtain the proper licensing for the processing of industrial hemp flowers and stems in China. 
The company specializes in cultivation, production and processing of industrial hemp. Its product line includes: 
hemp whole seeds, hulled seeds, hemp oil, CBD capsules and extracts. 

(ii) Yunnan Hanmusen Ltd. 

Yunnan Hanmusen Ltd. is a biotech company located in Yunnan province. The company specializes in fiber 
production and CBD extraction by utilizing the ‘YunMa 7’ variety. Dr. Xuan Chen, the director of industrial hemp 
project from Yunnan Academy of Agricultural Sciences visited Hanmusen hemp fields in August 2016 and 
discussed the potential of the new cultivar 

(iii) Yunnan Shaoxing Jincheng Yama Ltd. 

In 2013, Yunnan Shaoxing Jincheng Yama Ltd. planted 30,000 acres of industrial hemp in Yunnan. Yalou Li, the 
CEO of the company said they will expand their business to Beijing and plant more in 2018. Jincheng Yama Ltd. 
specializes in fiber processing and also has a processing line for industrial hemp flower and leaves. 

Proprietary Protection 

The Company currently relies on trade secrets and proprietary knowledge.  
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Employees 

As of March 31, 2018, the Company had eight employees. The Company also relies on consultants and contractors 
to conduct its operations.  

Foreign Operations 

The Company conducts its business in the State of Washington in the United States and Hong Kong.  

Bankruptcy and Similar Procedures 

The Company has not been involved in any bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings or any voluntary 
bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings since incorporation or completed during or proposed for the current 
financial year. 

Industry and Regulatory Overview 

On February 8, 2018, the Canadian Securities Administrators published Staff Notice 51-352 (Revised) Issuers with 
U.S. Marijuana-Related Activities (“Staff Notice 51-352”) which provides specific disclosure expectations for 
issuers that currently have, or are in the process of developing, cannabis-related activities in the United States as 
permitted within a particular state’s regulatory framework. All issuers with United States cannabis-related activities 
are expected to clearly and prominently disclose certain prescribed information in prospectus filings and other 
required disclosure documents. 

The Company is involved in activities that, according to Staff Notice 51-352, would categorize the Company as a 
U.S. Marijuana Issuer with ancillary involvement in the cultivation and distribution of cannabis in the State of 
Washington. As of the date hereof, the Company has no further direct or indirect cannabis-related activity elsewhere 
in the United States. As a result of the Company’s investments in the State of Washington, the Company is subject 
to Staff Notice 51-352 and accordingly provides the following disclosure: 

The Company operates in the United States as more specifically described below. 

State Companies Type of Investment 
Permitted Number of 

Facilities 

Washington Agrios Global Holdings 
(Washington), LLC and 

TimberLand Bay 
Properties, LLC 

100% Equity Ownership N/A(1) 

     
Notes: 
(1) The Company, through its subsidiaries, holds assets including real estate leased to other, consisting of one facility designed 

for cultivation and processing totalling 72,000 square feet in Shelton, Washington as well as equipment and other tangible 
and intangible assets and all of the intellectual property. The foregoing assets are held by the Company’s subsidiaries, 
Rainier, Pacific Green, and First Cascade and are classified as “ancillary” involvement in the United States cannabis 
industry for the purpose of Staff Notice 51-352. The WSLCB regulates Washington’s marijuana regulatory program. 
Applicable regulation in Washington requires licensed operators and all shareholders to be resident of Washington and 
accordingly, the Company, as a publicly listed company, is unable at this time to acquire a direct license under 
Washington’s marijuana regulatory program. For further information on the license holder in Washington see “Legal and 
Regulatory Trends – Washington Regulations” below. 

 

United States Federal Overview 

In the United States, twenty-nine states, Washington D.C. and Puerto Rico have legalized medical marijuana, while 
nine states and Washington D.C. have also legalized recreational marijuana. At the federal level, however, cannabis 
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currently remains a Schedule I controlled substance under the Controlled Substances Act of 1970 (the “CSA”). 
Under United States federal law, a Schedule I drug or substance has a high potential for abuse, no accepted medical 
use in the United States, and a lack of accepted safety for the use of the drug under medical supervision. As such, 
cannabis-related practices or activities, including without limitation, the manufacture, importation, possession, use 
or distribution of cannabis remains illegal under United States federal.  

Although federally illegal, the U.S. federal government’s approach to enforcement of such laws has, at least until 
recently, trended toward non-enforcement. On August 29, 2013, the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”) issued a 
memorandum known as the “Cole Memorandum” to all U.S. Attorneys’ offices (federal prosecutors). The Cole 
Memorandum generally directed U.S. Attorneys not to prioritize the enforcement of federal marijuana laws against 
individuals and businesses that rigorously comply with state regulatory provisions in states with strictly-regulated 
medial or recreational cannabis programs. The Cole Memorandum, while not legally binding, served as 
prosecutorial guidance, and laid a framework for managing the conflict between state and federal laws concerning 
state-regulated marijuana businesses. 

However, on January 4, 2018 the Cole Memorandum was revoked by Attorney General Jeff Sessions, a longtime 
opponent of state-regulated medical and recreational cannabis. While this did not create a change in federal law, as 
the Cole Memorandum was not itself law, the revocation removed the DOJ’s guidance to U.S. Attorneys that state-
regulated marijuana industries substantively in compliance with the Cole Memorandum’s guidelines should not be a 
prosecutorial priority. 

In addition to his revocation of the Cole Memorandum, A.G. Sessions also issued a one-page memorandum known 
as the “Sessions Memorandum.” The Sessions Memorandum confirmed the rescission of the Cole Memorandum and 
explained the rationale of the DOJ in so doing: the Cole Memorandum, according to the Sessions Memorandum, 
was “unnecessary” due to existing general enforcement guidance adopted in the 1980s, as set forth in the U.S. 
Attorney’s Manual (the “USAM”). The USAM enforcement priorities, like those of the Cole Memorandum, are also 
based on the federal government’s limited resources, and include “law enforcement priorities set by the Attorney 
General,” the “seriousness” of the alleged crimes, the “deterrent effect of criminal prosecution,” and “the cumulative 
impact of particular crimes on the community.” 

While the Sessions Memorandum emphasizes that marijuana is a Schedule I controlled substance, and reiterates the 
statutory view that it is a “dangerous drug and that marijuana activity is a serious crime,” it does not otherwise 
indicate that the prosecution of marijuana-related offenses is now a DOJ priority. Furthermore, the Sessions 
Memorandum explicitly describes itself as a guide to prosecutorial discretion. Such discretion is firmly in the hands 
of U.S. Attorneys in deciding whether or not to prosecute marijuana-related offenses. U.S. Attorneys could 
individually continue to exercise their discretion in a manner similar to that displayed under the Cole 
Memorandum’s guidance. Dozens of U.S. Attorneys across the country have affirmed their commitment to 
proceeding in this manner, or otherwise affirming that their view of federal enforcement priorities has not changed, 
although a few have displayed greater ambivalence. In California, at least one U.S. Attorney has made comments 
indicating a desire to enforce the CSA: Adam Braverman, Interim U.S. Attorney for the Southern District of 
California, has been viewed as a potential enforcement hawk after stating that the rescission of the Cole 
Memorandum “returns trust and local control to federal prosecutors” to enforce the Controlled Substances Act. 
Additionally, Greg Scott, the Interim U.S. Attorney for the Eastern District of California, has a history of 
prosecuting medical cannabis activity: his office published a statement that cannabis remains illegal under federal 
law, and that his office would “evaluate violations of those laws in accordance with our district’s federal law 
enforcement priorities and resources.” 

It is too soon to determine what prosecutorial effects will be created by the rescission of the Cole Memorandum. 
While initial fears of a nationwide “crackdown” have not yet materialized, considerable uncertainty remains. 

Regardless, marijuana remains a Schedule I controlled substance at the federal level, and neither the Cole 
Memorandum nor its rescission has altered that fact. The federal government of the United States has always 
reserved the right to enforce federal law in regard to the production, sale, and disbursement of medical or 
recreational marijuana, even if state law sanctioned such production, sale, and disbursement. It remains unclear 
whether the risk of enforcement has actually been altered. 
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Additionally, under U.S. federal law, it may potentially be a violation of federal money laundering statutes for 
financial institutions to take any proceeds from the sale of marijuana or any other Schedule I controlled substance. 
Canadian banks are likewise hesitant to deal with cannabis companies, due to the uncertain legal and regulatory 
framework of the industry. Banks and other financial institutions could be prosecuted and possibly convicted of 
money laundering for providing services to cannabis businesses. Under U.S. federal law, banks or other financial 
institutions that provide a cannabis business with a checking account, debit or credit card, small business loan, or 
any other service could be found guilty of money laundering, aiding and abetting, or conspiracy. Despite these laws, 
the U.S. Department of the Treasury issued a memorandum on February 14, 2014 (the “FinCEN Memorandum”) 
outlining the pathways for financial institutions to bank state-sanctioned marijuana businesses. Under these 
guidelines, financial institutions must submit a Suspicious Activity Report (“SAR”) in connection with all 
marijuana-related banking activities by any client of such financial institution, in accordance with federal money 
laundering laws. These marijuana-related SARs are divided into three categories: (i) marijuana limited; (ii) 
marijuana priority; and (iii) marijuana terminated, based on the financial institution’s belief that the business in 
question follows state law, is operating outside of compliance with state law, or where the banking relationship has 
been terminated. 

On the same day as the FinCEN Memorandum was published, the DOJ issued a memorandum (the “2014 Cole 
Memo”) directing prosecutors to apply the enforcement priorities of the Cole Memorandum in determining whether 
to charge individuals or institutions with crimes related to financial transactions involving the proceeds of 
marijuana-related conduct. The 2014 Cole Memo has been rescinded as of January 4, 2018, along with the Cole 
Memorandum, removing guidance that enforcement of applicable financial crimes against state-compliant actors 
was not a DOJ priority. 

However, Attorney General Sessions’ revocation of the Cole Memorandum and the 2014 Cole Memo has not 
affected the status of the FinCEN Memorandum, nor has the Department of the Treasury given any indication that it 
intends to rescind the FinCEN Memorandum itself. Though it was originally intended for the 2014 Cole Memo and 
the FinCEN Memorandum to work in tandem, the FinCEN Memorandum appears to be a standalone document 
which explicitly lists the eight enforcement priorities originally cited in the Cole Memorandum. As such, the 
FinCEN Memorandum remains intact.  

Enforcement of U.S. Federal Laws 

For the reasons set forth above, the Company’s existing investments in the United States, and any future 
investments, may become the subject of heightened scrutiny by regulators, stock exchanges and other authorities in 
Canada. As a result, the Company may be subject to significant direct and indirect interaction with public officials. 
There can be no assurance that this heightened scrutiny will not in turn lead to the imposition of certain restrictions 
on the Company’s ability to invest in the United States or other jurisdiction.  

Government policy changes or public opinion may also result in a significant influence over the regulation of the 
cannabis industry in Canada, the United States or elsewhere. A negative shift in the public’s perception of medical 
cannabis in the United States or any other applicable jurisdiction could affect future legislation or regulation. Among 
other things, such a shift could cause state jurisdictions to abandon initiatives or proposals to legalize medical 
cannabis, thereby limiting the number of new state jurisdictions into which the Company could expand. Any 
inability to fully implement the Company’s expansion strategy may have a material adverse effect on the 
Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations.  

Further, violations of any federal laws and regulations could result in significant fines, penalties, administrative 
sanctions, convictions or settlements arising from civil proceedings conducted by either the federal government or 
private citizens, or criminal charges, including, but not limited to, disgorgement of profits, cessation of business 
activities or divestiture. This could have a material adverse effect on the Company, including its reputation and 
ability to conduct business, its holding (directly or indirectly) of medical cannabis licenses in the United States, the 
listing of its securities on various stock exchanges, its financial position, operating results, profitability or liquidity 
or the market price of its publicly traded shares. In addition, it is difficult for the Company to estimate the time or 
resources that would be needed for the investigation of any such matters or its final resolution because, in part, the 
time and resources that may be needed are dependent on the nature and extent of any information requested by the 
applicable authorities involved, and such time or resources could be substantial.  
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U.S. Enforcement Proceedings  

The Cole Memorandum outlined certain priorities for the DOJ relating to the prosecution of cannabis offenses. In 
particular, the Cole Memorandum noted that in jurisdictions that have enacted laws legalizing cannabis in some 
form and that have also implemented strong and effective regulatory and enforcement systems to control the 
cultivation, distribution, sale and possession of cannabis, conduct in compliance with those laws and regulations is 
less likely to be a priority at the federal level. Notably, however, the DOJ has never provided specific guidelines for 
what regulatory and enforcement systems it deems sufficient under the Cole Memorandum standard.  

However, as noted above, on January 4, 2018, the Cole Memorandum was revoked by Attorney General Sessions.  

Although the Cole Memorandum has been rescinded, one legislative safeguard for the medical cannabis industry 
remains in place, because the Department of Justice memorandums serve as discretionary agency guidance and do 
not constitute a force of law, cannabis related businesses have worked to continually renew the Rohrabacher 
Blumenauer Appropriations Amendment (originally the Rohrabacher Farr Amendment) that has been included in 
federal annual spending bills since 2014. This amendment restricts the Department of Justice from using federal 
funds to prevent states with medical cannabis regulations from implementing laws that authorize the use, 
distribution, possession or cultivation of medical cannabis. In 2017, Senator Patrick Leahy (D-Vermont) introduced 
a parity amendment to H.R.1625–a vehicle for the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2018, preventing federal 
prosecutors from using federal funds to impede the implementation of medical cannabis laws enacted at the state 
level, subject to Congress restoring such funding (“Leahy Amendment”). The Leahy Amendment was set to expire 
with the 2018 Fiscal Year on September 30, 2018, however, Congress approved a nine-week continuing resolution 
from the 2018 Fiscal Year (the “Continuing Resolution”). The Continuing Resolution has the result of providing 
ongoing and consistent protection for the medical cannabis industry until December 7, 2018.  

Congress has been negotiating the 2019 Fiscal Year appropriations since February 2018. The much relied on 
appropriations protecting the medical cannabis industry was renewed in both the House and Senate versions of the 
2019 Fiscal Year Appropriations bills, with the expectation that the language will been acted in the final 2019 Fiscal 
Year Appropriations Bill. However it should be noted that there is no assurance that the final 2019 Fiscal Year 
Appropriations Bill will include appropriations protecting the medical cannabis industry. 

Compliance with Applicable State Law in the United States 

Each state licensee owned by or with a business relationship with the Company complies with applicable U.S. state 
licensing requirements as follows: (1) each licensee is licensed pursuant to applicable U.S. state law to cultivate, 
possess, and/or distribute marijuana in such state; (2) renewal dates for such licenses are docketed by legal counsel 
and/or other advisors; (3) internal audits of the licensee’s business activities are conducted by the applicable state 
regulator and by the respective investee to ensure compliance with applicable state law; (4) each employee is 
provided with an employee handbook that outlines internal standard operating procedures in connection the 
cultivation, possession, and distribution of marijuana to ensure that all marijuana inventory and proceeds from the 
sale of such marijuana are properly accounted for and tracked and using scanners to confirm each customer’s legal 
age and the validity of each customer’s drivers’ license; (5) each room that marijuana inventory and/or proceeds 
from the sale of such inventory enter is monitored by video surveillance; (6) software is used to track marijuana 
inventory from seed to sale; and (7) each licensee is contractually obligated to the Company to comply with 
applicable state law in the United States in connection with the cultivation, possession, and/or distribution of 
marijuana. 

The Company’s United States legal counsel reviews, from time to time, the licenses and documents referenced 
above in order to confirm such information and identify any deficiencies. 

Each business holding a contractual relationship with the Company and/or its subsidiaries, that is a license holder, 
holds licenses that are in good standing to cultivate, possess and/or wholesale marijuana in its respective state in the 
United States in compliance with its respective state marijuana regulatory program. To the knowledge of the 
Company, no licensee has experienced any material non-compliance that would endanger the status of any license. 
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The Company, and its subsidiaries, is in compliance with applicable U.S. state and local law. The Company has 
engaged United States legal counsel to advise the Company in connection with compliance with Washington law on 
an ongoing basis. The Company will continue to work closely with U.S. counsel to develop and improve its internal 
compliance procedures and will defer to their legal opinions and risk mitigation guidance regarding Washington’s 
regulatory framework.  

Cole Memorandum and Continued Review of Changes in Law 

Aside from complying with applicable state law of the United States, each licensee takes the following steps to 
ensure its marijuana operations are conducted in a manner consistent with the United States federal enforcement 
priorities articulated in the memorandum dated August 29, 2013 addressed to “All United States Attorneys” from 
James M. Cole, Deputy Attorney General of the United States, and having the subject line “Guidance Regarding 
Marijuana Enforcement” (the “Cole Memorandum”). Pursuant to the Cole Memorandum, such enforcement 
priorities are to: (1) prevent the distribution of marijuana to minors by using scanners to confirm each customer’s 
legal age and the validity of each customer’s driver’s license; (2) prevent revenue from marijuana from going to 
criminal enterprises, gangs, and cartels by conducting background checks on each owner of an licensee, employee, 
and/or prospective employee and by ensuring that all marijuana inventory and proceeds from the sale of such 
marijuana are property accounted for and tracked; (3) prevent the diversion of marijuana from states where it is legal 
under state law in some form to other states by only dispensing marijuana through licensed dispensaries located in 
states where marijuana is legal under state law in some form and not dispensing any quantity of marijuana to a 
customer in excess of the legal limits under applicable state law (e.g., 2 ounces); (4) prevent state authorized 
marijuana activity from being used as a cover or pretext for the trafficking of other illegal drugs or other illegal 
activity by prohibiting the sale of any inventory other than marijuana inventory and accessories; (5) prevent violence 
and the use of firearms in the cultivation and distribution of marijuana by ensuring that each room that marijuana 
inventory and/or proceeds from the sale of such inventory enter is monitored by video surveillance, prohibiting 
employees from bringing firearms on the premises, and ensuring that safes are used to store large amounts of 
proceeds from the sale of marijuana inventory; (6) prevent drugged driving and the exacerbation of other adverse 
public health consequences associated with marijuana use by prohibiting the consumption of marijuana on the 
premises, prohibiting the usage of harmful pesticides on marijuana inventory and testing marijuana inventory to 
confirm a lack of harmful pesticides and ideal cannabinoid levels; (7) prevent the growing of marijuana on federal 
lands and the attendant public safety and environmental dangers posed by unregulated marijuana production on 
federal lands by only cultivating, possessing, or dispensing marijuana on private property with all requisite licenses 
and permits to cultivate, possess, and/or distribute marijuana on such private property; and (8) prevent marijuana 
possession or use on federal property by only cultivating, possessing, and dispensing marijuana on private property 
with all requisite licenses and permits to cultivate, possess and/or distribute marijuana on such private property. 

On January 4, 2018, the U.S. Department of Justice rescinded the Cole Memorandum. 

The Company’s United States legal counsel reviews, from time to time, each licensee’s procedures with respect to 
the Cole Memorandum in order to confirm if each licensee’s operations are conducted in a manner consistent with 
the guidelines noted Cole Memorandum. Despite the rescission of the Cole Memorandum, the U.S. Department of 
Justice continues to have discretion to enforce federal drug laws, which discretion remained when the Cole 
Memorandum was originally issued in 2013. In addition, the Company, along with its United States legal counsel 
and other professional advisors, regularly monitor the activities of the Trump Administration for evidence and/or 
indications of current or anticipated cannabis policy and guidance, and the Company governs its actions accordingly. 

Ability to Access Public and Private Capital 

The Company has historically, and continues to have, access to equity financing from the public and prospectus 
exempt (private placement) markets in Canada. Specifically: (i) From incorporation to July 23, 2018, the Company 
has issued 83,419,454 common shares in initial financing rounds for gross proceeds of $18,712,450; and (ii) in 
connection with the TimberLand Merger, Agrios issued 29,166,667 common shares upon closing of the transaction. 

If such equity and/or debt financing was no longer available in the public markets in Canada due to changes in 
applicable law, then the Company expects that it would have access to raise equity and/or debt financing privately. 
Commercial banks, private equity firms and venture capital firms have approached the cannabis industry cautiously 
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to date. However, there are increasing numbers of high net worth individuals and family offices that have made 
meaningful investments in companies and projects similar to the Company’s projects. Although there has been an 
increase in the amount of private financing available over the last several years, there is neither a broad nor deep 
pool of institutional capital that is available to cannabis license holders and license applicants. There can be no 
assurance that additional financing, if raised privately, will be available to the Company when needed or on terms 
which are acceptable. The Company’s inability to raise financing to fund capital expenditures or acquisitions could 
limit its growth and may have a material adverse effect upon future profitability. See “Risk Factors” hereto. 

Financial Transactions 

Certain financial institutions in Canada and the U.S. will not allow companies who generate funds from the sale of 
cannabis and cannabis related products to open bank accounts or process the transfer of funds from the sale of 
cannabis. 

Specifically, the federal illegality of marijuana in the U.S. means that financial transactions involving proceeds 
generated by marijuana-related conduct can form the basis for prosecution under the money laundering statutes (18 
U.S.C. § 1956 and 1957), the unlicensed money transmitter statute (18 U.S.C. § 1960), and the Bank Secrecy Act 
(the “BSA”). Consequently, businesses involved in the marijuana industry often have difficulty finding a bank 
willing to accept their business. Banks who do accept deposits from marijuana-related businesses in the U.S. must 
do so in compliance with the FinCEN Memorandum and the 2014 Cole Memo, each dated February 14, 2014. The 
Cole Financial Crime Memo states that prosecutors should apply the enforcement priorities of the Cole 
Memorandum in determining whether to charge individuals or institutions with crimes related to financial 
transactions involving the proceeds of marijuana-related conduct. The FinCen Memo provides guidelines to banks 
on how to accept deposits from marijuana-related businesses while remaining compliant with the BSA. The 
Financial Crime Enforcement Network has not rescinded the FinCEN Memo following the U.S. Department of 
Justice’s January 4, 2018 announcement rescinding the Cole Memorandum. 

Currently, management expects to be able to transfer any funds owed to the Company by Agrios WA (or its 
subsidiaries) into bank accounts held by Agrios outside of the United States. However, given the regulatory 
uncertainty with respect to banking and cannabis in the United States, such ability to transfer may be eliminated 
and/or hampered at any time. In the foreseeable future, the Company expects any amounts payable by Agrios WA 
(or its subsidiaries) to the Company to be paid to Agrios USA or deployed in other investments in the United States. 
The Company expects to fund its operations through Agrios WA and its subsidiaries’ cash flow from operations. 
The Company may also consider future debt or equity financings. 

State-Level Overview  

The following sections present an overview of market and regulatory conditions for the marijuana industry in U.S. 
states in which the Company has a substantial operating presence and is presented as of July 2018, unless otherwise 
indicated. Although the Company’s activities are compliant with applicable United States state and local law, strict 
compliance with state and local laws with respect to cannabis may neither absolve the Company of liability under 
United States federal law, nor may it provide a defense to any federal proceeding which may be brought against the 
Company. 

Washington State 

Washington Regulations 

Washington has authorized the cultivation, possession, processing, wholesaling, and retail sale of marijuana by 
certain licensed Washington businesses. The Washington State Liquor and Cannabis Board (“WSLCB”) regulates 
Washington’s marijuana regulatory program. Agrios WA is advised by legal counsel and/or other advisors in 
connection with Washington’s marijuana regulatory program. Agrios WA only engages in transactions with 
Washington marijuana businesses that hold licenses that are in good standing and in compliance with Washington’s 
marijuana regulatory program. To the extent required by Washington’s marijuana regulatory program, Agrios WA 
has fully disclosed and/or registered its and/or its subsidiaries relationships with Washington marijuana businesses. 
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Agrios WA and Agrios WA’s subsidiaries, Rainier, Pacific Green and First Cascade, and the business licensees 
contracting with such subsidiaries are in substantial compliance with Washington’s marijuana regulatory program. 

(i) Application and Licensing 

Every individual with an ownership or equity interest, with a right to receive a percentage of gross or net profits, or 
who exercises control over a licensed marijuana operator must apply for licensing with the WSLCB and be 
approved. Each applicant must be over 21 years of age and a Washington resident. 

An applicant must provide the WSLCB with the applicant’s organizational and operational documents, including the 
entity’s operating agreement and a detailed operating plan, in order to verify that the proposed business meets the 
minimum requirements for licensing. 

An applicant must provide the WSLCB the applicant’s financial statements to verify the source of funds for the 
business, including any acquisition agreements and any agreements for the development of an operating marijuana 
business, as well as financial documents verifying the source of funds for all purchases of and material changes to 
the business. An applicant must disclose any financiers which are providing funds to be used by the marijuana 
business, and such financiers, except banks and other financial institutions, are subject to a substantially similar 
application process through the WSCLB. 

An applicant must provide the WSLCB the applicant’s and the applicant’s spouse’s personal and criminal history, 
including fingerprints for the submission of a criminal records background check with the Washington State Patrol 
and the U.S. Federal Bureau of Investigation. Conviction for certain serious crimes, or over a certain amount of 
convictions for more minor crimes, may disqualify an applicant from holding a marijuana license. 

Any change in the initial ownership of a cannabis entity must receive prior approval through the WSLCB and 
undergoes a review of the same rigor and breadth as an initial application. 

(ii) Operations 

An applicant must provide an operational plan that includes a detailed description of all applicable areas of: security; 
traceability; employee qualifications and training; transportation of product including packaging for transportation; 
destruction of waste product; description of growing operation including 

growing media, size of grow space allocated for plant production, space allocated for any other business activity, 
description of all equipment used in the production process, and a list of soil amendments, fertilizers, other crop 
production aids, or pesticides, utilized in the production process; description of the types of products to be processed 
with a complete description of all equipment including all cannabis-infused edible processing facility equipment and 
solvents, gases, chemicals and other compounds used to create extracts and for processing of marijuana-infused 
products; testing procedures and protocols; employee compensation and benefits data; description of packaging and 
labeling of products; and the array of products are to be sold and how are the products to be displayed to consumers. 

Any significant change in the operational plan (e.g. adding volatiles processing capabilities, expanding the floorplan 
of the marijuana business, etc.) of a licensed cannabis entity must receive prior approval through the WSLCB, and 
undergoes a review of the same rigor and breadth as an initial application. 

(iii) Inspections 

The WSLCB sends an enforcement officer to inspect each proposed marijuana facility prior to granting approval to 
be authorized to begin cultivation, processing, or dispensing. Licensed operators must permit WSLCB enforcement 
officers to inspect the premises, vehicles, records, and marijuana products at any time, and random inspections are 
conducted frequently by enforcement officers. 
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(iv) Security Requirements 

The WSLCB requires all licensed operators, employees, and non-employee visitors other than retail customers to 
display an identification badge at all times on the premises. Each licensed operator must keep a log of all visitors 
other than retail customers to the premises. 

All premises must have a security alarm system on all perimeter entry points and perimeter windows. All premises 
must have a complete video surveillance system with minimum required camera resolution and a surveillance 
system storage device or internet protocol storage compatibility that: (a) records continuously for 24 hour per day, 
(b) has cameras in fixed places that allow for the clear identification of persons and activities in the controlled areas 
of the premises, including grow rooms, processing rooms, storage rooms, disposal rooms/areas and point of sale 
rooms, (c) has the capability of recording clear images and displays the time and date of the recording, and (d) 
demonstrates a plan for retention of recordings for at least 45 days; and (iv) provides outdoor lighting for outdoor 
cultivation. 

(v) Traceability and Inventory Tracking 

Washington requires use of a seed-to-sale tracking system. Licensed operators must use an inventory control system 
that identifies and tracks the plant from the time it reaches a height of six inches through harvest, processing, 
packaging, wholesale, and retail sale. Licensed operators must also manifest and quarantine all marijuana to be 
delivered to another licensed operator or destroyed as waste for a period of at least 24 hours in order to allow for 
inspection by WSLCB enforcement officers. Vehicles transporting marijuana must have: (i) a vehicle security 
system, including separate, secure, locking compartment to store any marijuana product; and (ii) a transportation 
manifest reported through the seed-to-sale tracking system, including (a) the departure time, (b) name, location, 
address and license number of the originating licensed operator, (c) quantity and form of product to be delivered, (d) 
estimated time of arrival, and (e) name of the employee and identification of the vehicle delivering the product. 
Licensed operators must retain traceability records for three years and make records available upon request for 
inspection by the WSLCB or other law enforcement. 

The WSLCB currently has in place a contingency traceability plan that requires licensed operators to report all 
changes in traceability records weekly. Beginning February 1, 2018, Washington will transition to a new online 
traceability reporting system using MJ Platform’s Leaf Database System. Licensed operators will provide all 
traceability records to the WSLCB at the time of transition. 

(vi) Pricing and Prohibited Practices 

Marijuana products must be sold at a price indicative of true value. Licensed retailers may not sell marijuana 
products below the wholesale acquisition price of the product. Licensed marijuana producers and processors are 
prohibited from offering conditional sales, discounts, loans, rebates, free products, or any agreement that causes 
undue influence over another licensed operator. However, licensed producers and processers are allowed to provide 
licensed retailers certain promotional items of nominal value such as hats, mugs, etc. 

(vii) Testing 

The WSLCB requires quality assurance testing for of each lot of final marijuana product be conducted by an 
independent, state certified, third-party testing laboratory with a statistically significant number of samples using 
acceptable methodologies to ensure that all lots manufactured of each marijuana product are adequately assessed for 
contaminants and the cannabinoid profile is correctly labeled for consumers. The quality assurance tests required for 
marijuana flowers and infused products currently include moisture content, potency analysis, foreign matter 
inspection, microbiological screening, and residual solvent levels. 

The results of the inspection and testing are submitted to the WSLCB through the traceability system. In conjunction 
with the Washington State Department of Agriculture, the WSLCB conducts random screening for pesticide 
residues. A lot of cannabis product may not move forward in processing, delivery, or sale without a passing test for 
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that lot reported by the independent lab itself into the traceability system. All test results are required to be provided 
to retailers and/or end consumers upon request. 

(viii) Packaging and Labelling 

Each package containing marijuana or a marijuana product must have affixed a label including required warnings 
for all marijuana products and for the specific product type. The label must also include identifying information for 
the producer and retailer of the marijuana product. Each edible cannabis-infused product must be packaged in child-
safe packaging and contain under 10 mg of active THC per serving. Licensed marijuana retailers must make testing 
results available to the customer upon request. 

(ix) Advertising 

The WSLCB restricts advertising by licensee marijuana operators. Advertising in any form is prohibited within 
1,000 feet of school grounds, playgrounds, recreation centers or facilities, child care centers, public parks, libraries, 
or game arcades with unrestricted admission. Advertising is also prohibited on public transit vehicles or transit 
shelters, and on any publicly owned or operated property. Advertising visible from a public roadway may only 
contain the name, location, and nature of the business. No advertising may target youth or use objects likely to be 
appealing to youth. All advertising, including digital advertising, must include required warnings prescribed by 
regulation. 

Hemp Regulations in China 

In 2010, Yunnan was the first province in China to release formal regulations on the hemp plant’s 
cultivation. 1 Yunnan is located in the warm and humid south of China. The Yunnan Drug Enforcement 
Administration has first defined industrial hemp as “the plant Cannabis sativa L. and any part of such plant, whether 
growing or not, with THC concentration of no more than 0.3 percent on a dry weight basis.” These regulations also 
require licenses for the extraction and processing of CBD. Currently, Yunnan has more than 120,000 acres under 
cultivation mainly for fiber production. However, in 2013, CBD extraction from byproducts was officially permitted 
on about 2,000 acres devoted to fiber.2 The Yunnan government has regulations of industrial hemp cultivation 
through the Rules Pertaining to the Administration and Enforcement of the Industrial Hemp, which is further 
described below. 

In 2017, Hei Longjiang Province, located in northeast China, launched “Anti-drug Regulation of Hei Longjiang 
Province”, becoming the second province in China to legalize the plantation of industrial hemp. The regulation 
makes clear requirements for the cultivation, plantation and processing of the industrial hemp and enlarges the 
plantation area of industrial hemp in Heilongjiang. According to the regulation, industrial hemp, which has been 
conformed to the rule, can be planted, sold and processed. In order to form a new economic growth point and 
increase farmers’ revenue, the regulation innovatively creates terms for the management and use of industrial hemp, 
which separates the industrial hemp from drug, allows the local enterprises and individuals to plant, sell and process 
industrial hemp. Heilongjiang Province is located in the northeastern most portion of China bordering Russia. In 
2014, Heilongjiang exceeded 130,000 acres and in 2016 hosted a global hemp conference in the capital of Harbin. 
Production of industrial hemp in Heilongjiang is mainly for fiber, and some acres for hempseed.3 

To the Company’s knowledge, there is no regulation specifically for the CBD industry in China. 

  

                                                           

1 https://www.scmp.com/news/china/society/article/2108347/green-gold-how-china-quietly-grew-cannabis-superpower 
2 Elma M J Salentijn, Qinying Zhang, etc. ‘New development in fiber hemp (Cannabis sativa L.) breeding’, Industrial Crops and Products, 2014. 
Available at: https://www.researchgate.net/publication/273729995 
3 https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/seedcx.com//assets/The-Chinese-Hemp-Industry.pdf 
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Hemp Licenses in China 

(i) Product Export License 

To apply for a product export license or “Outward Trading Entity Permit”, the Chinese Joint Venture will need to be 
registered with the Commerce Bureau and Custom Department.  After being issued the a Outward Trading Entity 
Permit, the Chinese Joint Venture can export products outside of China by submitting all necessary docs for each 
transaction, including sales contract, product testing report and sales invoice. 

(ii) Health Product License 

To apply for the Health Product Trading License, the Chinese Joint Venture must submit an application to China 
Food and Drug Administration.  Documents to be submitted including: 

1) Completed application form; 
2) Business registration copy; 
3) Proof of right to use for the operating and warehouse venues (either properties ownership proof or lease 

contract); 
4) Floor plan design of operating venue; 
5) Standard operating procedures; and 
6) Staff training certificate for food safety 

(iii) Hemp Cultivation License 

To apply for a license for the purpose of commercial hemp cultivation, Chinese Joint Venture has to meet the 
following criteria:  

1) Legally certified cultivars; 
2) Capital no less than one million RMB (about $150,000);  
3) Employment of at least three researchers/consultants;  
4) THC testing facilities and operators;  
5) Safe storage facilities for hemp seeds; 
6) No cultivations of other crops within 3 km; and 
7) Management statement of hemp testing, storage and entity financial situation. 

To apply for a license for the purpose of commercial hemp cultivation, Chinese Joint Venture has to provide the 
followings to the local police department:  

1) Application form for cultivating hemp;  
2) Certification of registered hemp cultivars;  
3) Operation license or operation register certification;  
4) Qualifications of the cultivation researchers and testing technicians;  
5) A list and photos of testing, storage facilities; and 
6) Management statement of hemp testing, storage and entity financial situation. 

Compliance with relevant Chinese regulations 

Greenfields and YHFHMC will jointly form a joint venture in China and the Company will rely on YHFHMC’s 
expertise with the hemp industry and regulations in China.  In addition, the Company will engage legal counsels in 
Hong Kong with the expertise in relevant regulations in China to represent the Company.  The Company intends to 
appoint a managing director of Agrios Asia, to be based in Hong Kong, upon signing the definitive agreement with 
Greenfields. The managing director will oversee all the regulatory and business matters of Agrios Asia including the 
Chinese Joint Venture.   
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Market 

The international cannabis industry continues to go through a period of strong growth as deregulation and increased 
consumer interest are poised to drive the market past US$30 billion by 20214. 

The Company believes the full potential of domestic and international cannabis markets is not yet realized. The 
decriminalization of cannabis for both medical treatment and recreational applications is a well adopted global trend 
therefore Agrios is corporately structured to provide a comprehensive range of flexible options for licensed cannabis 
cultivators, processors and dispensaries, both domestically and internationally. 

The emerging United States legal cannabis industry is booming, taking in approximately US$9 billion in sales in 
2017. Eight states and the District of Columbia now allow for recreational cannabis use and 30 allow for medical 
use. Over the past five-year, legalization has spread across the United States. There is an industry consensus that 
national cannabis sales will continue to rise to US$11 billion by the end of 20185. 

Washington derived revenue nearing US$1.5 billion in 2017 from the cannabis industry. Washington has 
approximately one million resident cannabis users spending an average of US$116 per month on cannabis related 
purchases6.  

Agrios took into consideration the state’s market dynamics which offered a recreational cannabis market that is 
maturing and entering a consolidation cycle after six years, and an environment that is well regulated for cultivation, 
processing and retail sales. 

Hemp Market in China 

According to research from Cornell University, approximately 30 countries grow hemp and China is the largest 
hemp producing and exporting country representing 1/5 of total global production.7 There has been increasing 
interest in hemp-derived CBD extract in China given its potential to serve as a high value cash crop for farmers as 
well as the range of potential uses. However, despite this interest the understanding of the global supply of CBD, 
especially from Asia, has been limited, leading many within the industry to wonder about the role China currently 
plays within the world of CBD without any formal understanding of the nature of cultivation, production, and sale of 
the product within the country.8 

China is the largest supplier of raw and processed hemp fiber for the US. US imported US$36.9 million worth of 
hemp in 2013. It also exported yarn worth US$11.9 million which increased sales by up to 145.2% in the same 
year.9 

According to a report released by the Brightfield Group, hemp is likely to become a billion-dollar market within the 
next three years. Additionally, hemp CBD is growing at 55 percent each year, and nearly two thirds of hemp sales 
occur online. Due to the projected market value of CBD and the high demand for this cannabinoid, a leading 
financial information company for Chinese-speaking investors in the U.S. and China has recently made a huge 
splash within the CBD industry.10 

                                                           

4  Zhang, M. (2017, November 07). The Global Marijuana Market Will Soon Hit $31.4 Billion But Investors Should Be Cautious. 
https://www.forbes.com/sites/monazhang/2017/11/07/global-marijuana-market-31-billion-investors-cautious/#1370a8c97297 
5  Smith, Aaron. (2018, January 31). The U.S. legal marijuana industry is booming. Retrieved from 
http://money.cnn.com/2018/01/31/news/marijuana-state-of-the-union/index.html 
6 https://www.502data.com as of December 31, 2017 
7 http://ccetompkins.org/resources/industrial-hemp-from-seed-to-market 
8 The Chinese Hemp Industry, Edward Wooford and Xiurui ‘Iris’ Cui 
9 https://hempedification.wordpress.com/2016/08/27/hemp-production-around-the-world/ 
10 Brightfield Group, Hemp-Derived CBD Report 
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Future Developments 

Agrios will continue to evaluate changing cannabis regulations and landscape within the United States and 
internationally to expand operations in opportune locations. The Company will also evaluate new technologies 
which may be utilized in the Company’s facilities in the future. The Company does not intend to directly develop 
new technology itself. 

USE OF AVAILABLE FUNDS 

Since no securities are being sold pursuant to this Prospectus, no proceeds will be raised. 

Funds Available 

This is a non-offering Prospectus. The Company is not raising any funds in conjunction with this Prospectus and, 
accordingly, there are no proceeds to be raised by the Company pursuant to this Prospectus. 

As a result, as at March 31, 2018, the Company had negative cash flows from operations. There is no assurance 
that additional capital or other types of financing will be available if needed or that these financings will be on terms 
at least as favorable to the Company as those previously obtained, or at all. See “Risk Factors”. 

As of September 30, 2018, the Company has cash on hand of approximately $11,419,594 and the working capital 
balance is $13,466,409. Based upon Management’s current intentions, the estimated expenditures for which the total 
available funds will be used in the 12 months after the date hereof are as follows:  

Item $ 

Funds Available  

Working capital of Agrios as at September 30, 2018 13,
46
6,4
09 

Total Available Funds 13,
46
6,4
09 

  

Principal Purposes for the Available Funds  

Build out of cultivation facility (1) 3,5
00,
00
0 

Vertical integration of processing facility (1) 10
1,0
00 

Expansion into China through Greenfields 48
7,0
00 
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General and administrative costs for 12 months after completion of the Transaction (2) 4,6
08,
56
7 

Unallocated working capital to fund ongoing operations and for reviewing business opportunities 4,7
69,
84
2 

Total 

13,
46
6,4
09 

     
Notes: 
(1) See “Business Objective and Milestones” below. 
(2) General and administrative costs are broken down as follows: (i) wages and salaries ($2,274,499), (ii) professional fees ($953,760), (iii) 

maintenance fees ($452,640), (iii) office supplies and miscellaneous ($506,350), and (iv) loan payments and interest of ($421,319). 
 
The Company intends to spend the funds available to it in order to complete the Greenfield Acquisition, Phase II of 
the Shelton Facility, the vertical integration of its processing facility and its listing on the CSE. In addition, the 
Company intends to spend certain funds to service the Citizens Facility Agreement, in the amount of $105,330 
payable every three months commencing August 18, 2018. The Company expends to service such loan payments 
through the Company’s current cash on hand ($11,419,594) and revenue produced from the operations of the 
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries.  

The Company intends to spend the funds available to it as stated in this Prospectus. There may be circumstances 
however, where, for sound business reasons, a reallocation of funds may be necessary. Due to the uncertain nature 
of the cannabis industry, projects may be frequently reviewed and reassessed. Accordingly, while it is currently 
intended by Management that the available funds will be expended as set forth above, actual expenditures may in 
fact differ from these amounts and allocations. 

Business Objectives and Milestones 

The primary business objectives for the Company over the next 12 months are: 

Milestone Timeline Expected Cost 

Buildout of cultivation facility October 2018 to December 2018 $3,500,000 

Vertical integration of processing 
facility 

October 2018 to March 2019 $101,000 

Expansion in other regions October 2018 to August 2019 $487,000 

 

Buildout of Cultivation Facility  

The Shelton facility has a grow canopy capacity of 30,000 square feet. In addition, there is an approximate 
additional 42,000 square feet to be used for drying, processing, administrative space and for future expansion. The 
construction and equipping of three grow rooms for its lessee has been completed at the Shelton Facility. The total 
cost of equipping the first three grow rooms was $2,956,000. TimberLand has entered Phase II of the Shelton 
Facility upgrade which will involve equipping an additional five grow rooms. The Shelton Facility Phase II upgrade 
is expected to utilize $4,290,000 of the total funds available. This figure is based on the first three grow rooms build 
out cost a total of $2,956,000 or an average of $985,000 per room. Based on that average, the cost of the remaining 
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five rooms would be a total of $4,925,000. Of that amount, $1,425,000 has already been paid as of September 30, 
2018. Accordingly, about $3,500,000 is expected to be paid to complete the cultivation facility. Included in the 
$3,500,000, the Company factored in inflation and unexpected cost increases of $715,000.  No specific plans have 
been developed for any additional future expansion of the facility as that is expected to be at least 24 months into the 
future. 

Vertical Integration of Processing Facility 

The Company plans to acquire equipment to lease to License Holders in the Shelton Facility that enables the 
manufacturing and production of various cannabis-infused products. The Company will undertake the vertical 
integration of the processing facility once the buildout of the cultivation facility is completed. The acquisition of the 
remaining equipment and set up of the processing facility will utilize $101,000 of the total funds available. As at 
September 30, 2018, all major equipment for the processing operation have been purchased at a total cost of 
$419,000. Additional minor equipment is expected to cost a total of about $25,000. In addition, general construction 
update for the facility is expected to cost $76,000. Thus, the total cost of the completed processing facility is 
$101,000. Management plans to lease the processing facility equipment to the License Holder for use in processing 
and packaging their production. As of the date of this Prospectus, the processing integration project is complete.  
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Expansion in other Regions 

The Company will seek to enter international markets outside of the United States in the future. On July 20, 2018, 
the Company and Agrios Asia signed the Greenfields LOI, pursuant to which the Company intends on completing 
the Greenfields Acquisition. Greenfields, a company engaged in the business of investment and acquisition of hemp 
projects in Asia. Through the Chinese Joint Venture between Greenfields and YHFHMC, three licenses will be 
pursued in China within the next twelve months including: 

1. Product Export License: enabling the Chinese Joint Venture to export hemp materials, products, and CBD 
(estimated cost of $10,000); 

2. Health Product Specific License: enabling the Chinese Joint Venture to sell hemp related to specific health 
products within China (estimated cost of $18,000); and 

3. Hemp Cultivation License in the Yunnan Province: enabling the Chinese Joint Venture to engage farmers 
and acquire capacity to grow outdoor hemp in the province of Yunnan (estimated cost of $30,000). 

In addition to the above costs, upon signing the definitive agreement with Greenfields, the Company expects to pay 
the shareholder of Greenfields US$330,000 ($429,000) as part of the consideration. 

DIVIDENDS OR DISTRIBUTIONS 

The Company has not declared dividends on any of their shares in the past and do not intend to pay any in the 
foreseeable future. Any future determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of the Board of Directors and 
will depend on the financial condition, business environment, operating results, capital requirements, any contractual 
restrictions on the payment of dividends and any other factors that the Board of Directors deems relevant. 

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

The following tables set forth selected financial information for the Company and TimberLand, summarized from 
the Company Financial Statements, the TimberLand Financial Statements and the Pro-Forma Consolidated 
Statement of Financial Position, attached as Schedule “A”, Schedule “C” and Schedule “E”, respectively, hereto.  

 

TimberLand for the 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2018
(audited) (US$) 

Company for the 
Year Ended  

March 31, 2018  
(audited) ($) 

Company 
for the Three Months 

Ended  
June 30, 2018

(unaudited) (US$) 

Pro-Forma 
Consolidated 
Statement of 

Financial Position as 
at June 30, 2018 

(unaudited) (US$) 

Revenue – – 427,750 N/A 

Total Expenses 449,142 961,760 1,030,277 N/A 

Net Income (Loss) (449,142) (963,218) (698,504) N/A 

Total Comprehensive 
Loss (449,142) (963,218) (650,910) N/A 

Current Assets  3,620,126 8,787,136 7,747,546 11,910,993 

Total Assets 9,421,324 8,787,136 29,435,264 33,598,711 

Total Liabilities  9,883,611 89,238 9,090,081 9,090,081 

Shareholders’ Equity 
(Deficiency) (462,287) 8,697,898 20,345,183 24,508,630 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Attached to this Prospectus at Schedule “B” is the Company MD&A. The Company MD&A provides an analysis of 
the Company’s financial results for: (i) the period from the date of incorporation on February 18, 2017 to March 31, 
2017; (ii) the year ended March 31, 2018; and (iii) the three months ended June 30, 2018, which should be read in 
conjunction with the financial statements of the Company for the corresponding period, and the notes thereto 
respectively. 

Attached to this Prospectus at Schedule “D” is the TimberLand MD&A. The TimberLand MD&A provides an 
analysis of TimberLand’s financial results for: (i) the period from the date of formation on March 20, 2017 to March 
31, 2017; (ii) the year ended March 31, 2018; and (iii) the three months ended June 30, 2018, which should be read 
in conjunction with the financial statements of TimberLand for the corresponding period, and the notes thereto 
respectively. 

Certain information included in the Company MD&A and TimberLand MD&A is forward-looking and based upon 
assumptions and anticipated results that are subject to uncertainties. Should one or more of these uncertainties 
materialize or should the underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary significantly from those 
expected. See “Forward-Looking Statements” for further details.  

DESCRIPTION OF THE SECURITIES 

The authorized capital of the Company includes an unlimited number of Common Shares and an unlimited number 
of Class A Shares.  

The holders of Common Shares are entitled to receive notice of and to attend and vote at all meetings of the 
Company Shareholders and each Common Share confers the right to one vote in person or by proxy at all meetings 
of the Company Shareholders. The holders of the Common Shares are entitled to receive such dividends in any 
financial year as the Company’s board may by resolution determine. In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or 
winding-up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary, holders of Common Shares are entitled to share 
rateably, together with holders of Class A Shares, in such assets of the Company as are available for distribution. 

The holders of the Class A Shares are entitled to receive notice of and to attend all meetings of the Company 
Shareholders or holders of Class A Shares and to one vote per Class A Share at any meeting of the Company 
Shareholders provided that the holders of the Class A Shares will not be entitled to vote for the election or removal 
of the directors of the Company. Such holders will be entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the 
board if also paid to holders of Common Shares. In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the 
Company, whether voluntary or involuntary, holders of Class A Shares are entitled to share rateably, together with 
holders of Common Shares, in such assets of the Company as are available for distribution.  

Each Class A Share shall be convertible into one Common Share, without payment of additional consideration, at 
the option of the holder thereof as follows: 

(a) at any time that is not a Restricted Period; 

(b) if the Company determines that it has ceased to be a “foreign issuer” (see below), as such term is defined in 
Rule 902(e) of the U.S. Securities Act, and has notified the holders of the Class A Shares of such 
determination; 

(c) if there is an offer to purchase the Common Shares which must be made by reason of applicable securities 
legislation or the rules or policies of a stock exchange to all or substantially all of the holders of Common 
Shares any of whom are in, or whose last address as shown on the books of the Company is in, a province 
or territory of Canada to which the relevant requirement applies. 

For these purposes, a “Restricted Period” means any time at which the board of directors of the Company reasonably 
believes that the Company is a “Domestic Issuer” under applicable United States securities laws – being a U.S. 
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issuer or a non-U.S. issuer that has a majority (50.1% or more) of its outstanding voting securities held by U.S. 
residents and either the majority of the executive officers or directors are U.S. citizens or residents, a majority of the 
assets of the issuer are located in the U.S., or the business of the Company is administered principally in the U.S. – 
or would become a Domestic Issuer as a result of the issuance of Common Shares upon the conversion of Class A 
Shares. 

In addition, each Class A Share may be converted into one Common Share at any time and from time to time at the 
option of the Company upon notice to the holder thereof. 

As of the date of this Prospectus, there are 83,637,389 Common Shares and nil Class A Shares issued and 
outstanding. 

Capitalization 

Other than as indicated below, there have been no material changes in the share capitalization or in the indebtedness 
of the Company since incorporation on February 17, 2017. 

On July 16, 2018, the Company amended its articles and created the Class A Shares. 

The following chart sets out the capitalization of the Company as at June 30, 2018 and the date of this Prospectus:  

 Amount Authorized 
Amount Outstanding as of 

June 30, 2018 
Amount Outstanding as of 
the date of this Prospectus 

Common Shares Unlimited 73,934,176 83,637,389 

Class A Shares Unlimited nil nil 

Options Up to 10% of the issued 
and outstanding Common 

Shares and Class A 
Shares 

nil 5,300,000 

Warrants(1) Unlimited 7,065,000 7,424,000 

Performance Warrants(2) 13,500,000 13,500,000 13,500,000 

Finders’ Warrants(3) Unlimited 1,146,411 1,663,213 

Agent’s Compensation 
Options(4) 

Unlimited 423,900 445,440 

 
     
Notes: 
(1) In connection with the Company’s brokered private placement of Units, the Company issued 7,424,000 Warrants, with each 

such Warrant entitling the holder thereof to acquire, without further consideration, 0.10 Common Shares (each whole 
Common Share, a “Warrant Share”) if the Company has not completed a Liquidity Event (as defined in the Agency 
Agreement) by the later of (i) 120 days following the respective date of closing, or (ii) December 31, 2018 (the “Liquidity 
Expiry Date”), provided that for each additional thirty day period after the Liquidity Expiry Date that the Company has not 
completed a Liquidity Event, each Warrant shall automatically convert into an additional 0.05 of a Warrant Share without 
further action or consideration by the holder subject to a pro-rata per diem adjustment should a Liquidity Event close within 
any such thirty day period (the “Penalty Provision”).  

(2) Issued to certain employees, consultants and management of the Company. Such Performance Warrants vest according to 
the following milestones: (i) 33% vest on the date that is four months after the Company completes a going public 
transaction; (ii) 33% vest upon the Company’s completion of construction of eight grow rooms (Phase II of the Shelton 
buildout); and (iii) 34% vest when TimberLand, and such related entities as the Company may determine, achieves earnings 
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before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) of USD$3,500,000 in a consecutive twelve month period, as 
determined by TimberLand’s financial statements. 

(3) On February 20, 2018, in connection with the closing of the Company’s non-brokered private placement of Common 
Shares, the Company issued 226,279 Finders’ Warrants to certain finders. Each such Finders’ Warrant entitles the holder 
thereof to acquire one additional Common Share at a price of $0.25 per Common Share exercisable for a period expiring 24 
months form the closing date of the offering. On March 2, 2018, in connection with the closing of the Company’s non-
brokered private placement of Common Shares, the Company issued 920,132 Finders’ Warrants to certain finders. Each 
such Finders’ Warrant entitles the holder thereof to acquire one additional Common Share at a price of $0.50 per Common 
Share exercisable for a period expiring 24 months form the closing date of the offering. On July 23, 2018, in connection 
with the closing of the Company’s non-brokered private placement of Common Shares, the Company issued 516,802 
Finders’ Warrants to certain finders. Each such Finders’ Warrant entitles the holder thereof to acquire one additional 
Common Share at a price of $0.60 per Common Share exercisable for a period expiring 24 months form the closing date of 
the offering. 

(4) In connection with the Company’s brokered private placement of Units, the Company issued 445,440 Agent’s 
Compensation Options to the agents. Each such Agent’s Compensation Option entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for 
and purchase one Common Share at a price of $0.50 per Common Share for a period that is 24 months from the date of a 
Liquidity Event.  

 

OPTION TO PURCHASE COMMON SHARES 

On July 26, 2018, the Board of Directors has adopted a 10% rolling stock option plan (the “Stock Option Plan”) 
under which Options may be granted to the Company’s directors, officers, employees and consultants. See 
“Executive Compensation.” 

The following is a summary of the material terms of the Stock Option Plan: 

(i) the maximum number of Options which may be granted to any one holder under the Stock Option 
Plan within any 12 month period shall be 5% of the number of issued and outstanding Common 
Shares (unless the Company has obtained disinterested shareholder approval if required by 
applicable laws); 

(ii) if required by applicable laws, disinterested shareholder approval is required to the grant to related 
persons, within a 12 month period, of a number of Options which, when added to the number of 
outstanding Options granted to related persons within the previous 12 months, exceed 10% of the 
issued Common Shares; 

(iii) the expiry date of an Option shall be no later than the tenth anniversary of the grant date of such 
Option;  

(iv) the maximum number of Options which may be granted to any one consultant within any 12 
month period must not exceed 2% of the number of issued and outstanding Common Shares;  

(v) the maximum number of Options which may be granted within any 12 month period to employees 
or consultants engaged in investor relations activities must not exceed 2% of the number of issued 
and outstanding Common Shares and such Options must vest in stages over 12 months with no 
more than 25% of the Options vesting in any three month period; 

(vi) the exercise price of any Option issued under the Stock Option Plan shall not be less than the 
Market Value (as defined in the Stock Option Plan) of the Common Shares as of the grant date; 
and 

(vii) the Board, or any committee to whom the Board delegates, may determine the vesting schedule for 
any Option. 

The following table summarizes the allocation of the Options granted by the Company up to the date of this 
Prospectus: 
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Optionee Number of Options Exercise Price Expiry Date 
Executive Officers as a group (1) 1,900,000 $0.60 July 26, 2023 

Directors as a group (2) 1,600,000 $0.60 July 26, 2023 

Consultants as a group(3) 1,800,000 $0.60 July 26, 2023 

Total: 5,300,000   

     
Notes: 
(1) This information applies to five executive officers of the Company, two of which are also directors of the Company. 
(2) This information applies to four directors of the Company. Directors who are also executive officers are excluded from this 

figure. 
(3) Options were issued in connection with certain services provided, including but not limited to: design, engineering, 

construction, and equipment installation at the Shelton Facility; corporate secretarial services; business development in 
Asia/Southeast Asia; agricultural technology advising; preparation of corporation presentations and public disclosure; and 
corporate communications. 

 

The following table summarizes the allocation of the Performance Warrants granted by the Company up to the date 
of this Prospectus: 

Performance Warrantholder 

Number of 
Performance 

Warrants Exercise Price Expiry Date 
Executive Officers as a group (1) 2,500,000 $0.25 February 23, 2023 

 2,500,000 $0.05 January 1, 2023 

Directors as a group (2) 1,000,000 $0.25 February 23, 2023 

1,000,000 $0.05 January 1, 2023 

Consultants as a group(3) 6,500,000 $0.05 January 1, 2023 

Total: 13,500,000   

     
Notes: 
(1) This information applies to two executive officers of the Company, one of which is also a director of the Company. 
(2) This information applies to two directors of the Company. Directors who are also executive officers are excluded from this 

figure. 
(3) Performance Warrants were issued in connection with certain services provided, including but not limited to: design, 

engineering, construction, and equipment installation at the Shelton Facility; business development in Asia/Southeast Asia; 
business development in North America, accounting and finance, and corporate governance. 

 
PRIOR SALES 

Since incorporation, the Company issued the following Common Shares and securities convertible into Common 
Shares: 

Date of Issuance Security Type Number of Securities Issue/Exercise Price  

May 18, 2017 Common Shares 627,500 (1) $0.05 
December 14, 2017 Common Shares 10,000,000 (2) $0.05 
January 1, 2018 Performance Warrants 10,000,000 (3) $0.05 
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Date of Issuance Security Type Number of Securities Issue/Exercise Price  

January 11, 2018 Common Shares 7,554,170 (4) $0.15 
January 29, 2018 Common Shares 2,423,698 (4) $0.15 
February 1, 2018 Performance Warrants 500,000 (3) $0.25 
February 20, 2018 Common Shares 4,211,244 (5) $0.25 
February 20, 2018 Finders’ Warrants 226,279 (5) $0.25 
February 23, 2018 Performance Warrants 3,000,000 (3) $0.25 
March 2, 2018 Common Shares 12,885,896 (6) $0.50 
March 2, 2018 Finders’ Warrants 920,132 (6) $0.50 
June 8, 2018 Common Shares 29,166,667 (7) $0.60 
June 20, 2018 Common Shares 7,065,000 (8) $0.50 
June 20, 2018 Warrants 7,065,000 (8) - 

June 20, 2018 
Agent’s Compensation 

Options 423,900 (8) $0.50 
July 16, 2018 Common Shares 359,000 (8) $0.50 
July 16, 2018 Warrants 359,000 (8) - 

July 16, 2018 
Agent’s Compensation 

Options 21,540 (8) $0.50 
July 23, 2018 Common Shares 9,126,278 (9) $0.60 
July 23, 2018 Finders’ Warrants 516,802 (9) $0.60 
July 26, 2018 Options 5,300,000(10) $0.60 
August 27, 2018 Common Shares 217,935 (11) $0.60 
     
Notes: 
(1) Issued pursuant to a non-brokered private placement of Common Shares. 
(2) Issued pursuant to a non-brokered private placement of Common Shares. 
(3) Issued to certain employees, consultants and management. Subject to release upon achievement of certain performance 

milestones as described in the respective warrant certificates. See “Description of the Securities – Capitalization”. 
(4) Issued pursuant to a non-brokered private placement of Common Shares. 
(5) Issued pursuant to a non-brokered private placement of Common Shares. Each Finders’ Warrant is exercisable into one 

Common Share at a price of $0.25 per Common Share for a period of 24 months following the date of issuance. 
(6) Issued pursuant to a non-brokered private placement of Common Shares. Each Finders’ Warrant is exercisable into one 

Common Share at a price of $0.50 per Common Share for a period of 24 months following the date of issuance. 
(7) Issued upon completion of the TimberLand Acquisition to prior holders of membership interests of TimberLand (including 

Larry Ellison and James F. Foster, current directors of the Company) pursuant to the Merger Agreement.  
(8) Issued pursuant to a brokered private placement of Units. Each Warrant is convertible, without further consideration, into 

0.10 Common Shares (each whole Common Share, a “Warrant Share”) if the Company has not completed a Liquidity 
Event (as defined in the Agency Agreement) by the later of (i) 120 days following the respective date of closing, or (ii) 
December 31, 2018 (the “Liquidity Expiry Date”), provided that for each additional thirty day period after the Liquidity 
Expiry Date that the Company has not completed a Liquidity Event, each Warrant shall automatically convert into an 
additional 0.05 of a Warrant Share without further action or consideration by the holder subject to a pro-rata per diem 
adjustment should a Liquidity Event close within any such thirty day period (the “Penalty Provision”). Each Agent’s 
Compensation Option entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for and purchase one Common Share at a price of $0.50 per 
Common Share for a period that is 24 months from the date of a Liquidity Event. 

(9) Issued pursuant to a non-brokered private placement of Common Shares. Each Finders’ Warrant is exercisable into one 
Common Share at a price of $0.60 per Common Share for a period of 24 months following the date of issuance. 

(10) Issued to certain directors, management, and consultants. Vesting occurs over a period of 18 months, except for 300,000 
Options, which vest over a period of 12 months from the grant date. Each Option is exercisable into one Common Share at a 
price of $0.60 per Common Share and expires on July 26, 2023. 

(11) Issued pursuant to a non-brokered private placement of Common Shares. 
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PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS 

To the knowledge of the directors and senior officers of the Company as of the date hereof, the following are the 
only persons that beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or exercise control or direction over voting securities 
carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to any class of voting securities of the Company: 

Name 
Number of Common Shares Owned, 

Controlled or Directed 
% of Outstanding Common 

Shares(1) 

James F. Foster 21,583,334 25.81% 

     
Notes: 
(1) Percentage is based on 83,637,389 Common Shares issued and outstanding as of the date hereof. 
 

ESCROWED SECURITIES 

As at the date of this Prospectus, the securities expected to be subject to escrow upon completion of the listing of the 
Common Shares on the CSE are shown in the following table: 

Designation of Class 

Total number of securities held in 
escrow or that are subject to a 

contractual restriction on transfer Percentage of Class(5) 

Common Shares (2) 24,817,939 29.67% 

Options (3) 2,050,000 38.68% 

Performance Warrants (4) 7,000,000 51.85% 

     
Notes: 
(1) Common Shares held in Escrow and released over a 36-month period pursuant to an escrow agreement dated October 25, 

2018 (the “Escrow Agreement”) between directors, executive officers and Odyssey Trust Company, as escrow agent. The 
release of the Common Shares under the Escrow Agreement is as follows: 10% on date of listing on the CSE and thereafter 
15% released every six months over a 36-month period. 

(2) Including 21,583,334 Common Shares held by James Foster, 1,708,333 Common Shares held by Larry Ellison, and 
1,526,272 Common Shares held by Curtis Livesay. 

(3) Including 550,000 Options held by Chris Kennedy, 450,000 Options held by James Foster, 450,000 Options held by Larry 
Ellison, 300,000 Options held by Leo Robinton, and 300,000 Options held by Curtis Livesay. 

(4) Including 2,500,000 Performance Warrants held by Chris Kennedy, 500,000 Performance Warrants held by James Foster, 
1,500,000 Performance Warrants held by Larry Ellison, and 2,500,000 Performance Warrants held by Leo Robinton.  

(5) Percentage is based on 83,637,389 Common Shares, 5,300,000 Options and 13,500,000 Performance Warrants issued and 
outstanding as of the date hereof. 

 

Directors and executive officers and certain shareholders of the Company (the “Escrow Shareholders”) have 
entered into the Escrow Agreement with the Company pursuant to which the Escrow Shareholders have agreed to 
deposit the securities of the Company which they hold with Odyssey Trust Company until they are released in 
accordance with terms of their respective Escrow Agreements, CSE Policy and applicable securities law as follows: 

Release Date Amount of Securities to be Released 

On the date the Company’s securities are listed on a 10% of escrow securities 
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Release Date Amount of Securities to be Released 

Canadian Exchange 

6 months after the listing date 15% of escrow securities 

12 months after the listing date 15% of escrow securities 

18 months after the listing date 15% of escrow securities 

24 months after the listing date 15% of escrow securities 

30 months after the listing date 15% of escrow securities 

36 months after the listing date 15% of escrow securities 

TRADING PRICE AND VOLUME 

The Common Shares were not previously traded on any market or exchange. 

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

The names, municipalities of residence, number of voting securities beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or 
over which each exercises control or direction, and the offices held by each in the Company and the principal 
occupation of the directors and senior officers of the Company during the past five years are as follows:  

Name and 
Municipality 

of Residence(1) Position Held(2) Principal Occupation for Last Five Years(3) 

Number of Common Shares of the Company 
Held Directly or Indirectly as of the date of 

this Prospectus (% of class)(4)  

Common Shares  (% of class) 

Chris Kennedy 

Washington, 
United States 

President and 
Chief Executive 

Officer, since 
February 2018, 
and Director, 

since June, 2018 

Business Development Director at Utah Educational 
Savings Plan from 2016 to 2018, Vice President of 
Strategic Initiatives at Alliance Health from 2009 to 

2016, and Managing Director at Inflection Point 
Strategies, LLC from 2015 to 2018 

Nil 0% 

Herrick Lau 

British 
Columbia, 
Canada 

Chief Financial 
Officer, 

Corporate 
Secretary, and 
Director, since 
February, 2017 

Managing Director, Corporate Finance at Baron 
Global Financial Canada Ltd. from 2007 to present 

5,000 <0.1% 

James F. Foster 

Washington, 
United States 

Director, since 
June, 2018 

Owner and Chief Executive Officer of custom 
machine shop specializing in oilfield services 
equipment and several car wash facilities and 

service entities 

21,583,334 25.81% 

Larry Ellison(5) 

Missouri, 
United States 

Director, since 
June, 2018 

Certified Public Accountant providing business 
consulting, business valuation and litigation support 

services 

1,708,333 2.04% 

John MacPhail(5) 

British 
Columbia, 

Director, since 
July, 2018 

President of Global Securities Ltd. from 2012 to 
2017. CEO and Director of I-5 Holdings Ltd. 

Nil 0% 
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Name and 
Municipality 

of Residence(1) Position Held(2) Principal Occupation for Last Five Years(3) 

Number of Common Shares of the Company 
Held Directly or Indirectly as of the date of 

this Prospectus (% of class)(4)  

Common Shares  (% of class) 

Canada 

Savio Chiu(5) 

British 
Columbia, 
Canada 

Director, since 
February 2017 

Senior Manager, Corporate Finance at Baron Global 
Financial Canada Ltd. from May 2009 to present. 

5,000 <0.1% 

Curtis Livesay  

Washington, 
United States 

Director of 
Agronomy 

Services, since 
July 2018 

Agronomist from 2012 to 2018, Independent 
Researcher, and Consultant 

1,526,272 1.82% 

Vania Gaudia 

Utah, United 
States 

Director of 
Operations, since 

July 2018 

Sr. Director Business Operations from 2012 to 2016, 
Director of Operations for Consumer Direct from 

2016 to 2018 

Nil 0% 

Leo Robinton 

Washington, 
United States 

Vice President 
Business 

Development, 
since February, 

2018 

Consultant of Fitchburg Management in Oakland, 
CA from 2015 to 2018. Co-Founder and Creative 
Director at Forth and Back Design Studio in Los 

Angeles, CA from 2014 to 2016. Head of Business 
Development for Sierra Vacations Rentals and Sales 

in Lake Tahoe, CA from 2013 to 2014. 

Nil 0% 

     
Notes: 
(1) Information as to municipality of residence, principal occupation, securities beneficially owned or over which a director or 

officer exercises control or direction has been furnished by the respective individuals as of the date of this Prospectus.  
(2) The term of office of each of the directors expires on the earlier of the Company’s next annual general meeting or upon 

resignation. The term of office of the officers expires at the discretion of the directors. 
(3) See “Management and Key Personnel” for additional information regarding the principal occupations of the Company’s 

directors and officers. 
(4) Based on 83,637,389 issued and outstanding Common Shares as of the date of this Prospectus. 
(5) The members of the Company’s Audit Committee are Savio Chiu (chair), John MacPhail and Larry Ellison.  
 

As of the date hereof, the Company’s directors and officers as a group, beneficially own, directly and indirectly, or 
exercise control or direction over, 24,827,939 Common Shares, representing 29.69% of the issued and outstanding 
Common Shares as of the date of this Prospectus. 

Biographies of Directors and Officers 

The following are brief profiles of our executive officers and directors, including a description of each individual’s 
principal occupation within the past five years. 

Chris Kennedy (Age 39) – President, Chief Executive Officer and Director 

Mr. Kennedy has extensive experience in business development. Mr. Kennedy was Vice President of Strategic 
Initiatives and Operations for a digital health company based in Salt Lake City, Utah responsible for building 
innovative direct-to-patient programs with pharmacy and pharmaceutical partners and a former Managing Director 
at Inflection Point Strategies, LLC, a strategic advisory firm.  
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Mr. Kennedy is an employee of the Company and has entered into a non-competition or confidentiality agreement 
with the Company. It is expected that he will devote 100% of his time to the business of the Company to effectively 
fulfill his duties as the President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director of the Company and CEO of TimberLand, 
Agrios WA and Agrios Solutions.  

Herrick Lau (Age 52) – Chief Financial Officer, Corporate Secretary, and Director 

Mr. Lau is an experienced investment banking professional who has conducted transactions in initial public 
offerings, reverse takeovers, financings, mergers & acquisitions, divestitures, and various advisory services. 
Through his over 20 years of experience in financial management and corporate finance, Mr. Lau is experienced in 
developing financing strategy, liaising with external parties, devising business development plans and maintaining 
compliance with corporate governance. Mr. Lau also has experience as a senior financial executive in public 
companies, having acted as CFO and/or director for various public companies listed on the TSX Exchange (“TSX”), 
the TSX Venture Exchange (“TSXV”) and the Canadian Securities Exchange (“CSE”). Mr. Lau obtained his 
bachelor and master degrees in Business and Economics from Simon Fraser University in Vancouver, British 
Columbia, Canada and is a charter holder of the Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) designation.  

Mr. Lau is not a party to any employment, non-competition or confidentiality agreement with the Company. It is 
expected that he will devote approximately 40% of his time to the business of the Company to effectively fulfill his 
duties as the Chief Financial Officer, Corporate Secretary, and Director of the Company.  

James F. Foster (Age 53) – Director 

Mr. Foster has commercial property holdings. Mr. Foster owns and operates a custom machine shop specializing in 
oilfield services equipment and several car wash facilities and service entities.  

Mr. Foster is an employee of the Company and has entered into a non-competition or confidentiality agreement with 
the Company. It is expected that he will devote 100% of his time to the business of the Company to effectively 
fulfill his duties as an employee and Director of the Company.  

Larry Ellison (Age 72) – Director 

Mr. Ellison has over 50 years of expertise in finance, mergers and acquisitions, forensic accounting, business 
consulting, business management and auditing. He is the current Chief Financial Officer of the Agrios subsidiary, 
Timberland Bay Properties and of Agrios USA and its subsidiary entities. Formerly, while a Partner and National 
Director of Quality Control at BKD LLP, Mr. Ellison completed the final review and approval of all S.E.C. audit 
and registration engagements. He left BKD LLP and continued his career as Executive Vice President of a large 
NYSE propane company in 1981where he was involved in numerous public registrations. Mr. Ellison is also a 
former partner with KPM, CPA’s and with EllisonLiggett Litigation Services. He has also been active in over 30 
civic entities including Make a Wish Foundation, the American Cancer Society and a National Treasurer and 
Director of the National Red Angus Association.  

Mr. Ellison is an employee of the Company and has entered into a non-competition or confidentiality agreement 
with the Company. It is expected that he will devote 100% of his time to the business of the Company to effectively 
fulfill his duties as the Director of the Company and Chief Financial Officer of Timberland Bay and Agrios USA 
and subsidiary entities.  

Leo Robinton (Age 28) – Vice President, Business Development 

Mr. Robinton has over a decade of experience in sales and business development roles. In addition to acting as a 
private land use consultant for commercial properties in Los Angeles, he operated a property management and real 
estate company in Lake Tahoe, California. While in Los Angeles, Mr. Robinton co-founded a boutique, design/build 
firm that serviced restaurant/retail stores in the city. In 2016, Mr. Robinton became the Chief Operating Officer of a 
cannabis cultivation company. As Chief Operating Officer, Mr. Robinton became familiar with cannabis botany, 
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manufacturing sciences and the regulatory complexities of the cannabis industry. He has also researched and created 
partnerships with technology companies, cannabis operators, regulators, and industry and financial experts.  

Mr. Robinton is an employee of the Company and has entered into a non-competition or confidentiality agreement 
with the Company. It is expected that he will devote 100% of his time to the business of the Company to effectively 
fulfill his duties as the Vice President, Business Development of the Company. 

John MacPhail (Age 56) – Director 

Mr. MacPhail is most recently the founder and CEO of I-5 Holdings Ltd. and is a board member of Mainstem Goods 
& Services, Green Stripe Naturals Inc. and East West Sciences Ltd. Prior to his involvement in the US cannabis 
space he was President of a regional Canadian investment dealer and prior to that, the CEO of a national investment 
dealer he also served on the board of directors for 3 other Canadian investment dealers. As an Investment Banker he 
has assisted companies raise funds and advised management on corporate strategy for more than 20 years. Mr. 
MacPhail has also served on numerous industry boards and committees in the investment industry during his career 
as an investment banker.  

Mr. MacPhail is not a party to any employment, non-competition or confidentiality agreement with the Company. It 
is expected that he will devote approximately 20% of his time to the business of the Company to effectively fulfill 
his duties as the Director of the Company.  

Savio Chiu (Age 35) – Director 

Savio Chiu is a Chartered Professional Accountant and holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting from 
the University of British Columbia. He is currently the Senior Manager, Corporate Finance of Baron Global 
Financial Canada Ltd. Previously, he was a senior associate with Deloitte & Touche LLP. He is currently an officer 
of Confederation Minerals Ltd. (TSXV: CFM), a director of Jayden Resources Inc. (TSX-V: JDN), and a director of 
H-Source Holdings Ltd. (TSX-V: HSI). Mr. Chiu has previously held various management and directorship 
positions with other public companies.  

Mr. Chiu is not a party to any employment, non-competition or confidentiality agreement with the Company. It is 
expected that he will devote approximately 20% of his time to the business of the Company to effectively fulfill his 
duties as the Director of the Company.  

Curtis Livesay (Age 35) – Director of Agronomy Services 

Dr. Curtis Livesay is a Certified Crop Advisor and owner/operator of Dynamite Ag, a crop consulting company. The 
consulting company services over 20 states and covers a diverse range of crop growers cultivating everything from 
cotton to cannabis. Dr. Livesay has provided consultation services for numerous state champions of crop yield 
contests run by National Corn, Soybean and Wheat Growers Associations, and has numerous clients with noted 
successes in increased crop yields. Dr. Livesay is an expert in research methods and regularly conducts independent 
research trials on various products and practices with growers in the United States. He also provides pro bono 
consulting to two charitable organizations focused on sustainable crop production in impoverished regions of 
Nigeria. 

Mr. Livesay is an employee of the Company and has entered into a non-competition or confidentiality agreement 
with the Company. It is expected that he will devote 100% of his time to the business of the Company to effectively 
fulfill his duties as the Director of Agronomy Services of the Company. 

Vania Gaudia (Age 33) – Director of Operations 

Mrs. Gaudia has over a decade of experience in business operations across multiple industries, including healthcare, 
mortgage banking, and oil and gas industries. At Healthways, she spent 6 years helping develop business 
partnerships with government accounts focusing on operational readiness and sustainable growth. While there, she 
earned her Green Belt, Lean Six Sigma Certification. In 2012 she transitioned to Alliance Health where she 
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managed operations, overseeing Marketing, Business Intelligence, and Technology Operations initiatives. As a Sr. 
Director Business Operations, she also focused on pharma brand partnerships ensuring successful integrations 
including multi-tier corporate structures for pharmacy locations across the U.S. In her recent role as Director of 
Operations for Consumer Direct, Mrs. Gaudia played a critical role in developing the organization’s technology 
stack to build out the Consumer Direct division and led the team in an effort to roll-out the marketing channel to 
support 17 branches nationally. Mrs. Gaudia also co-founded Inflection Point Strategies, LLC, a strategic advisory 
firm.  

Mrs. Gaudia is an employee of the Company and has entered into a non-competition or confidentiality agreement 
with the Company. It is expected that she will devote 100% of her time to the business of the Company to 
effectively fulfill her duties as the Director of Operations of the Company. 

Corporate Cease Trade Orders and Bankruptcies 

To the Company’s knowledge, no existing or proposed director, officer or promoter of the Company or a 
securityholder anticipated to hold a sufficient number of securities of the Company to affect materially the control of 
the Company, within 10 years of the date of this Prospectus, has been a director, officer or promoter of any person 
or company that, while that person was acting in that capacity, 

(a) was the subject of a cease trade or similar order, or an order that denied the other issuer access to 
any exemptions under applicable securities law, for a period of more than 30 consecutive days; or 

(b) became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or 
was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a 
receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets. 

Penalties or Sanctions 

To the Company’s knowledge, no existing or proposed director, officer or promoter of the Company, or a 
securityholder anticipated to hold sufficient securities of the Company to affect materially the control of the 
Company, has: 

(a) been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or by 
a securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a securities 
regulatory authority; or 

(b) been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body, including a 
self-regulatory body that would be likely to be considered important to a reasonable securityholder 
making a decision in regards to the Company. 

Personal Bankruptcies 

To the Company’s knowledge, no existing or proposed director, officer or promoter of the Company, or a 
securityholder anticipated to hold sufficient securities of the Company to affect materially the control of the 
Company, or a personal holding company of such persons has, within the 10 years before the date of this Prospectus, 
become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or been subject to or 
instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee 
appointed to holder the assets of the director, officer or promoter. 

Conflicts of Interest  

Members of Management are, and may in future be, associated with other firms involved in a range of business 
activities. Consequently, there are potential inherent conflicts of interest in their acting as officers and directors of 
our company. Although the officers and directors are engaged in other business activities, the Company anticipates 
they will devote an important amount of time to our affairs.  
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The Company’s officers and directors are now and may in the future become shareholders, officers or directors of 
other companies, which may be formed for the purpose of engaging in business activities similar to the Company’s. 
Accordingly, additional direct conflicts of interest may arise in the future with respect to such individuals acting on 
behalf of us or other entities. Moreover, additional conflicts of interest may arise with respect to opportunities which 
come to the attention of such individuals in the performance of their duties or otherwise. Currently, the Company 
does not have a right of first refusal pertaining to opportunities that come to their attention and may relate to our 
business operations.  

The Company’s directors and officers are subject to fiduciary obligations to act in the best interest of the Company. 
Conflicts, if any, will be subject to the procedures and remedies of the BCBCA or other applicable corporate 
legislation. 

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

Compensation Discussion and Analysis  

The purpose of this Compensation Discussion and Analysis is to provide information about the Company’s 
executive compensation objectives and processes and to discuss compensation decisions relating to its named 
executive officers (“Named Executive Officers” or “NEOs”) listed in the Summary Compensation Table set out 
below. In accordance with applicable securities legislation, the Company currently has two Named Executive 
Officers; being Chris Kennedy, CEO, President and a director, and Herrick Lau, CFO, Corporate Secretary and a 
director. 

The Board assumes responsibility for reviewing and monitoring the long-range compensation strategy for the senior 
management of the Company although the Compensation Committee guides it in this role. In determining executive 
compensation, the Board considers the Company’s financial circumstances at the time decisions are made regarding 
executive compensation, and also the anticipated financial situation of the Company in the mid and long-term. 

Compensation Objectives and Principles 

The compensation program for the senior management of the Company is designed to ensure that the level and form 
of compensation achieves certain objectives, including: 

(a) attracting and retaining qualified executives; 

(b) motivating the short and long-term performance of these executives; and 

(c) better aligning their interests with those of the Company’s shareholders. 

In compensating its senior management, the Company has employed a combination of base salary, bonus 
compensation and equity participation through its stock option plan. The Company does not provide any retirement 
benefits for its directors or officers.  

Elements of Compensation 

Base Salary 

In the Board’s view, paying base salaries which are reasonable in relation to the level of service expected while 
remaining competitive in the markets in which the Company operates is a first step to attracting and retaining 
qualified and effective executives. Competitive salary information on comparable companies within the Company’s 
industry is compiled from a variety of sources, including national and international publications. 

  



 

51 
 

Bonus Incentive Compensation 

The Board will consider executive bonus compensation dependent upon the Company meeting its strategic 
objectives and milestones and sufficient cash resources being available for the granting of bonuses.  

Equity Participation 

The Company believes that encouraging its executives and employees to become shareholders is the best way of 
aligning their interests with those of its shareholders. Equity participation is accomplished through the Company’s 
Stock Option Plan (as described below). Options may be granted to executives and employees taking into account a 
number of factors, including the amount and term of options previously granted, base salary and bonuses and 
competitive factors. The amounts and terms of options granted are determined by the Board. 

Compensation Risks 

The Board is keenly aware of the fact that compensation practices can have unintended risk consequences. The 
Board will continually review the Company’s compensation policies to identify any practice that might encourage 
an employee to expose the Company to unacceptable risk. At the present time the Board is satisfied that the current 
executive compensation program does not encourage the executives to expose the business to inappropriate risk. The 
Board takes a conservative approach to executive compensation rewarding individuals for the success of the 
Company once that success has been demonstrated and incenting them to continue that success through the grant of 
long-term incentive awards. 

Hedging Policy 

The Company has no policy on whether an NEO or director is permitted to purchase certain financial instruments, 
including, for greater certainty, prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, collars or units of exchange funds 
which are designed to hedge or offset a decrease in the market value of equity securities granted as compensation or 
held, directly or indirectly, by the NEO or director. 

Compensation Process 

The Company does not have a compensation committee or a formal compensation policy. The Company relies 
solely on the directors to determine the compensation of the Named Executive Officers. In determining 
compensation, the directors consider industry standards and the Company’s financial situation, but the Company 
does not have any formal objectives or criteria. The performance of each executive officer is informally monitored 
by the directors, having in mind the business strengths of the individual and the purpose of originally appointing the 
individual as an officer.  

In establishing compensation for executive officers, the Board as a whole seeks to accomplish the following goals:  

 To recruit and subsequently retain highly qualified executive officers by competitive offering overall 
compensation; 

 To motivate executives to achieve important corporate and personal performance objectives and reward 
them when such objectives are met; and 

 To align the interests of executive officers with the long-term interests of shareholders through 
participation in the Company’s Stock Option Plan. 

When considering the appropriate executive compensation to be paid to our officers, the Board have regard to a 
number of factors including: (i) recruiting and retaining executives critical to the success of the Company and the 
enhancement of shareholder value; (ii) providing fair and competitive compensation; (iii) balancing the interests of 
management and the Company’s shareholders; (iv) rewarding performance, both on an individual basis and with 
respect to operations generally; and (v) available financial resources. 
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Option-Based Awards 

Long-term incentives in the form of Options are intended to align the interests of our directors and executive officers 
with those of the Company’s Shareholders and to provide a long-term incentive to reward those individuals for their 
contribution to the generation of shareholder value, while reducing the burden of cash compensation that would 
otherwise be payable by the Company.  

The Stock Option Plan is administered by the Board. In determining the number of incentive Options to be granted 
to the Named Executive Officers, the Board has regard to several considerations including previous grants of 
Options and the overall number of outstanding Options relative to the number of outstanding Common Shares, as 
well as the degree of effort, time, responsibility, ability, experience and level of commitment of the executive 
officer. For a detailed discussion of the Stock Option Plan, please see “Options to Purchase Securities”.  

Compensation of Directors  

Other than as disclosed, the only arrangements we have, standard or otherwise, pursuant to which we compensated 
directors for their services in their capacity as directors, or for committee participation, involvement in special 
assignments or for services as a consultant or expert during the most recently completed financial year or 
subsequently, are by (i) the issuance of incentive stock options; and (ii) reimbursement for out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Company.  

Summary Compensation Table 

The Company was not a reporting issuer at any time during its most recently completed financial year. Accordingly, 
the following table sets forth information with respect to the anticipated compensation of each Named Executive 
Officer and directors of the Company once the Company becomes a reporting issuer: 

Table of Compensation Excluding Compensation Securities 

Name and Principal 
Position 

 

Year  

Salary, 
consulting fee, 

retainer or 
commission 

($) 
Bonus 

($) 

Committee 
or meeting 

fees 
($) 

Value of 
perquisites  

($) 

Long-term 
incentive 

plans 
($) 

Value of all 
other 

compensation 
(4) 
($) 

Total 
compensation 

($) 

Chris Kennedy 
President, CEO and 
Director 

2018 292,600(1) - - - - 356,075 648,675 

Herrick Lau 
CFO, Corporate 
Secretary and 
Director 

2018 - - - - - 199,605 199,605 

James F. Foster 
Director 2018 266,000(2) - - - - 222,028 488,028 

Larry Ellison 
Director 2018 345,800(3) - - - - 287,407 633,207 

John MacPhail 
Director 2018 - - - - - 133,070 133,070 

Savio Chiu 
Director 2018 - - - - - 177,427 177,427 

Leo Robinton 
VP Business 
Development 

2018 226,100 - - - - 279,406 505,506 
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Name and Principal 
Position 

 

Year  

Salary, 
consulting fee, 

retainer or 
commission 

($) 
Bonus 

($) 

Committee 
or meeting 

fees 
($) 

Value of 
perquisites  

($) 

Long-term 
incentive 

plans 
($) 

Value of all 
other 

compensation 
(4) 
($) 

Total 
compensation 

($) 

Curtis Livesay 
Director of 
Agronomy Services 

2018 172,900 - - - - 133,070 305,970 

Vania Gaudia 
Director of 
Operations 

2018 179,550 - - - - 133,070 312,620 

     
Notes: 
(1) Chris Kennedy received $292,600 in relation to his position as President and CEO and nil in relation to his position as a director of the 

Company. 
(2) James F. Foster received $266,000 in relation to his employment with the Company and nil in relation to his position as a director of the 

Company. 
(3) Larry Ellison received $266,000 in relation to his employment with the Company and nil in relation to his position as a director of the 

Company. In addition, beginning June 1, 2018, and ending 20 months from the start date, a $6,650 monthly payment shall be made totalling 
$133,000. 

(4) Includes the value of Options and Performance Warrants granted to such individual.  

The anticipated compensation set out above is based on current conditions in the agricultural industry and on the 
associated approximate allocation of time for each NEO and director, and is subject to adjustments based on 
changing market conditions and corresponding changes to required time commitments.  

Stock Options and Other Compensation Securities 

The following table discloses all compensation securities granted or issued to each Named Executive Officer and 
directors by the Company during the period from the Company’s incorporation on February 18, 2017 to the date of 
this Prospectus for services provided or to be provided, directly or indirectly, to the Company:  

Compensation Securities 

Name and Position 

 

Type of 
compensation 

security  

Number of 
compensation 
securities and 
percentage of 

class (1) 

Date of 
issue or 
grant 

Issue 
conversion 
of exercise 

price 
($) 

Closing price 
of security on 
date of grant 

($) 

Closing 
price of 

security at 
year-end 

($) 
Expiry 
Date 

Chris Kennedy 
President, CEO and 
Director 

Performance 
Warrants 

2,500,000 
(18.52%) 

Feb. 23, 
2018 0.25 N/A N/A Feb. 23, 

2023 

Options 550,000 
(10.38)% 

July 26, 
2018 0.60 N/A N/A July 26, 

2023 

Herrick Lau 
CFO, Corporate 
Secretary and Director 

Options 450,000 
(8.49)% 

July 26, 
2018 0.60 N/A N/A July 26, 

2023 

James F. Foster 
Director 

Performance 
Warrants 

500,000 
(3.70%) 

Feb. 23, 
2018 0.25 N/A N/A Feb. 23, 

2023 

Options 450,000 
(8.49)% 

July 26, 
2018 0.60 N/A N/A July 26, 

2023 

Larry Ellison 
Director 

Performance 
Warrants 

1,000,000 
(7.41%) 

Jan. 1, 
2018 0.05 N/A N/A Jan. 1, 

2023 
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Name and Position 

 

Type of 
compensation 

security  

Number of 
compensation 
securities and 
percentage of 

class (1) 

Date of 
issue or 
grant 

Issue 
conversion 
of exercise 

price 
($) 

Closing price 
of security on 
date of grant 

($) 

Closing 
price of 

security at 
year-end 

($) 
Expiry 
Date 

Performance 
Warrants 

500,000 
(3.70%) 

Feb. 23, 
2018 0.25 N/A N/A Feb. 23, 

2023 

Options 450,000 
(8.49)% 

July 26, 
2018 0.60 N/A N/A July 26, 

2023 

John MacPhail 
Director Options 300,000 

(5.66%) 
July 26, 

2018 0.60 N/A N/A July 26, 
2023 

Savio Chiu 
Director Options 400,000 

(7.55%) 
July 26, 

2018 0.60 N/A N/A July 26, 
2023 

Leo Robinton 
VP Business 
Development 

Performance 
Warrants 

2,500,000 
(18.52%) 

Jan. 1, 
2018 0.05 N/A N/A Jan. 1, 

2023 

Options 300,000 
(5.66%) 

July 26, 
2018 0.60 N/A N/A July 26, 

2023 

Curtis Livesay 
Director of Agronomy 
Services 

Options 300,000 
(5.66%) 

July 26, 
2018 0.60 N/A N/A July 26, 

2023 

Vania Gaudia 
Director of Operations Options 300,000 

(5.66%) 
July 26, 

2018 0.60 N/A N/A July 26, 
2023 

     
Notes: 
(1) Percentage is based on 13,500,000 Performance Warrants and 5,300,000 Options outstanding as of the date hereof. 
 
Since incorporation on February 18, 2017 to the date of this Prospectus, there has been no exercise of compensation 
securities of the Company issued to Named Executive Officer and directors of the Company.  

Employment, Consulting and Management Agreements 

The Company has entered into the following employment agreements with officers of the Company (each, an 
“Executive”): 

(i) Employment Agreement dated February 26, 2018 among Chris Kennedy, the Company and Agrios WA 
(the “Kennedy Employment Agreement”); 

(ii) Employment Agreement dated February 5, 2018 among Leo Robinton, the Company and Agrios WA (the 
“Robinton Employment Agreement”); 

(iii) Employment Agreement dated January 1, 2018 among James Foster, the Company and Agrios WA (the 
“Foster Employment Agreement”); 

(iv) Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2018 among Larry Ellison, the Company, Agrios WA and 
TimberLand (the “Ellison Employment Agreement”) 

(v) Employment Agreement dated July 1, 2018 among Curtis Livesay, the Company and Pacific Green (the 
“Livesay Employment Agreement”); and 

(vi) Employment Agreement effective August 1, 2018 among Vania Gaudia, the Company and Agrios WA (the 
“Gaudia Employment Agreement” and collectively with the Kennedy Employment Agreement, the 
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Robinton Employment Agreement, the Foster Employment Agreement, the Ellison Employment 
Agreement, and the Livesay Employment Agreement, the “Employment Agreements”). 

The Executive Agreements provide for remuneration of the above listed individuals with respect to their respective 
roles with the Company and its subsidiaries.  

Pursuant to the Kennedy Employment Agreement, Chris Kennedy will be paid a gross annual salary of US$220,000 
for his role with the Company and its subsidiaries. In addition, Chris Kennedy was issued an aggregate of 2,500,000 
Performance Warrants releasable upon the occurrence of certain performance milestones including the Company’s 
listing on the CSE and certain financial achievements. See “Stock Options and other Compensation Securities” 
above. See also “Description of the Securities – Capitalization”. 

Pursuant to the Robinton Employment Agreement, Leo Robinton will be paid a gross annual salary of US$170,000 
for his role with the Company and its subsidiaries. In addition, Leo Robinton was issued an aggregate of 2,500,000 
Performance Warrants releasable upon the occurrence of certain performance milestones including the Company’s 
listing on the CSE, the build-out of the Shelton Facility and certain financial achievements. See “Stock Options and 
other Compensation Securities” above. See also “Description of the Securities – Capitalization”. 

Pursuant to the Foster Employment Agreement, James Foster will be paid a gross annual salary of US$200,000 for 
his role with the Company and its subsidiaries. In addition, James Foster was issued an aggregate of 500,000 
Performance Warrants releasable upon the occurrence of certain performance milestones including the Company’s 
listing on the CSE, the build-out of the Shelton Facility and certain financial achievements. See “Stock Options and 
other Compensation Securities” above. See also “Description of the Securities – Capitalization”. 

Pursuant to the Ellison Employment Agreement, Larry Ellison will be paid a gross annual salary of US$200,000 for 
his role with the Company and its subsidiaries as well as a bonus payment of $100,000 to be paid equally over 20 
months. In addition, Larry Ellison was issued an aggregate of 1,500,000 Performance Warrants releasable upon the 
occurrence of certain performance milestones including the Company’s listing on the CSE, the build-out of the 
Shelton Facility and certain financial achievements. See “Stock Options and other Compensation Securities” above. 
See also “Description of the Securities – Capitalization”. 

Pursuant to the Livesay Employment Agreement, Curtis Livesay will be paid a gross annual salary of US$130,000 
for his role with the Company and its subsidiaries. In addition, Curtis Livesay was granted 300,000 Options pursuant 
to the Livesay Employment Agreement. See “Stock Options and other Compensation Securities” above.  

Pursuant to the Gaudia Employment Agreement, Vania Gaudia will be paid a gross annual salary of US$135,000 for 
her role with the Company and its subsidiaries. In addition, Vania Gaudia was granted 300,000 Options pursuant to 
the Gaudia Employment Agreement. See “Stock Options and other Compensation Securities” above.  

The Employment Agreements also provide for payments to be made by the Company in the event of termination of 
the Executive Agreements by the Company without cause or following a change of control, the details of which are 
summarized below.  

Meaning of “Cause”, “Change of Control” and “Good Reason”  

In the Employment Agreements, “Cause” means the occurrence of any of the following: 

(a) an act of fraud or dishonesty or unlawful conduct by or involving the Executive which results in 
any loss to the Company; 

(b) a violation of the code of conduct or other policies of the Company which is deemed to be 
material by the Company in its sole reasonable discretion; 

(c) willful neglect of the Executive’s duties;  
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(d) the Executive’s failure to perform the Executive’s duties in a competent and diligent manner after 
the Company has provided the Executive with thirty (30) days’ written notice of the performance 
deficiency and the Executive has failed to cure such deficient performance—unless the Executive 
has already been given notice and opportunity to cure regarding any performance deficiency 
whatsoever during the same calendar year, in which case the Company may terminate the 
Executive’s employment for Cause without first providing notice and opportunity to cure;  

(e) conduct of the Executive that is reasonably determined by the board of directors of the Company to 
be detrimental to the business of the Company, and which the Executive persists in after being 
instructed by the Company to cease such conduct. 

In the Employment Agreements, “Change of Control” means: 

(a) the acquisition, directly or indirectly, by any person or group of persons acting jointly or in 
concert, as such terms are defined in the Securities Act (British Columbia, Canada), of common 
shares of the Company which, when added to all other common shares of the Company at the 
time held directly or indirectly by such person or persons acting jointly or in concert, constitutes 
for the first time in the aggregate 30% or more of the outstanding common shares of the 
Company and such shareholding exceeds the collective shareholding of the current directors of 
the Company, excluding any directors acting in concert with the acquiring party; or 

(b) the removal, by extraordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company, of more than 51% 
of the then incumbent directors of the Company or the election at a meeting of shareholders of a 
majority of directors to the board of directors of the Company who were not management 
nominees for election as directors at such meeting; or 

(c) consummation of a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company; or 

(d) the consummation of a reorganization, plan of arrangement, merger or other transaction which 
has substantially the same effect as (a) (b) or (c) above. 

In the Employment Agreements, “Good Reason” means the occurrence of any of the following events and the 
Company’s failure to cure any of the following after thirty days’ written notice from the Executive: 

(a) the assignment by the Company to the Executive, without the Executive’s consent, of any 
substantial new or different duties inconsistent with the Executive’s positions, duties, 
responsibilities and status with the Company immediately prior to such change in assigned duties; 

(b) a material reduction in the Executive’s responsibilities, without the Executive’s consent, except as 
a result of the Executive’s death or disability; 

(c) a reduction by the Company in the Executive’s compensation not agreed to by the Executive; or 

(d) a material change in the terms of the Executive’s participation in benefits under any incentive 
plan, the effect of which would be to materially reduce the total value, in the aggregate, of the 
benefit to the Executive under the incentive plan. 

Termination by the Company on a Change of Control  

If within 12 months following a Change of Control (or in the case of the Foster Employment Agreement or the 
Ellison Employment Agreement, within the 5 year term of such Employment Agreement), an Employment 
Agreement is terminated by the Company other than for Cause, or such Employment Agreement is terminated by 
the Executive with Good Cause at any time within six (6) months after a Change of Control, in either case, the 
respective Executive will receive a termination payment in an amount equal to the following: 
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(i) six (6) months of the Executive’s then current monthly salary, in the case of Chris Kennedy (equivalent to 
US$110,000);  

(ii) three (3) months of the Executive’s then current monthly salary, in the case of Leo Robinton (equivalent to 
US$42,500), Curtis Livesay (equivalent to US$32,500) and Vania Gaudia (equivalent to US$33,750); and  

(iii) the amount owed to the Executive for the remainder of his term, in the case of James Foster (equivalent to 
US$1,100,000) and Larry Ellison (equivalent to US$1,100,000). 

Termination by the Company Without Cause 

The Company may terminate the Employment Agreements and the engagement of the Executives without Cause at 
any time by notice in writing, and the Executives may terminate their respective Employment Agreement for Good 
Reason on two weeks’ written notice. In either event, the Company shall pay the respective Executive: 

(i) six (6) months of the Executive’s then current monthly salary, in the case of Chris Kennedy (equivalent to 
US$110,000);  

(ii) three (3) months of the Executive’s then current monthly salary, in the case of Leo Robinton (equivalent to 
US$42,500), Curtis Livesay (equivalent to US$32,500) and Vania Gaudia (equivalent to US$33,750); and  

(iii) the amount owed to the Executive for the remainder of his term, in the case of James Foster (equivalent to 
US$1,100,000) and Larry Ellison (equivalent to US$1,100,000). 

within forty-five (45) days of the Executive’s execution of a separation and release agreement in a form acceptable 
to the Company. 

Termination by the Company for Cause 

If the Company terminates the Executive Agreement with Cause, the Executive is not entitled to any termination 
payment from the Company. 

Pension Plan Benefits 

The Company currently does not provide pension plan benefits for Named Executive Officers, directors or 
employees. 

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

As at the date of this Prospectus, none of the directors and executive officers of the Company or Associates of such 
persons is indebted to the Company or another entity where the indebtedness is the subject of a guarantee, support 
agreement, letter of credit or other similar arrangement or understanding provided by the Company. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Audit Committee Charter 

The full text of the charter of the Audit Committee is attached as Schedule “F” to this Prospectus.  

Composition of the Audit Committee 

Pursuant to applicable laws, the Company is required to have an audit committee comprised of at least three 
directors, the majority of whom must not be officers or employees of the Company or an affiliate of the Company.  

The following are the members of the audit committee: 
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Member Independence Financially Literacy 

Savio Chiu Independent(1) Financially Literate 

Larry Ellison Not Independent(1) (2) Financially Literate 

John MacPhail Independent(1) Financially Literate 

   
Notes: 
(1) Within the meaning of National Instrument 52-110 – Audit Committees (“NI 51-110”). 
(2) Larry Ellison is an executive officer of Agrios WA and TimberLand and therefore, he is considered under NI 52-110 to be 

non-independent. 
 

Relevant Education and Experience 

In addition to each member’s general business experience, the education and experience of each Audit Committee 
member is set out in “Directors and Officers” above. 

Mandate and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee’s mandate and responsibilities include: (i) reviewing and recommending for approval to the 
Board the financial statements, accounting policies that affect the statements, annual MD&A and associated press 
releases; (ii) being satisfied that adequate procedures are in place for the review of the Company’s public disclosure 
of financial information extracted or derived from the Company’s financial statements and periodically assessing 
those procedures; (iii) establishing and maintaining compliant procedures regarding accounting, internal accounting 
controls, or auditing matters and the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the Company of concerns 
regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters; (iv) overseeing the work of the external auditor engaged for 
the purpose of preparing or issuing an auditor’s report or performing such other audit, review or attest services for 
the Company, including the resolution of disagreements between management and the external auditor regarding 
financial reporting; (v) pre-approving all non-audit services to be provided to the Company or its subsidiary entities 
by the external auditor; (vi) reviewing and monitoring the processes in place to identify and manage the principal 
risks that could impact the financial reporting of the Company; and (vii) reviewing and approving the Company’s 
hiring policies regarding partners, employees, and former partners and employees of the present and former external 
auditor of the Company.  

The Audit Committee is to meet at least quarterly to review financial statements and MD&A and to meet with the 
Company’s external auditors at least once a year. 

Audit Committee Oversight 

At no time since the date of incorporation on February 18, 2017 was a recommendation of the Audit Committee to 
nominate or compensate an external auditor not adopted by the Board. 

Reliance on Certain Exemptions 

At no time since the date of incorporation on February 18, 2017, has the Company relied on the exemption in 
section 2.4 of NI 52-110 (De Minimis Non-audit Services), or an exemption from NI 52-110, in whole or in part, 
granted under Part 8 of NI 52-110. 

The Company will rely on the exemptions provided for “venture issuers” in section 6.1 of National Instrument 52-
110 – Audit Committees with respect to Part 3 – Composition of the Audit Committee and Part 5 – Reporting 
Obligations.  
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Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures 

The Audit Committee is required to approve the engagement of the Company’s external auditors in respect of non-
audit services. 

External Auditor Service Fees (By Category) 

The Audit Committee has reviewed the nature and amount of the non-audit services provided by Manning Elliott 
LLP to ensure auditor independence. The following table sets out the aggregate fees billed by Manning Elliott LLP 
from the date of incorporation to March 31, 2018 for each category of fees described:  

Financial Period Ended March 31, 2018 Audit Fees(1) Audit Related Fees(2) Tax Fees(3) All Other Fees(4) 

 $50,000 - - - 

   
Notes: 
(1) “Audit Fees” includes fees necessary to perform the annual audit and quarterly reviews of the Company’s financial 

statements. Audit Fees include fees for review of tax provisions and for accounting consultations on matters reflected in the 
financial statements. Audit Fees also include audit or other attest services required by legislation or regulation, such as 
comfort letters, consents, reviews of securities filings and statutory audits. 

(2) “Audit-Related Fees” include services that are traditionally performed by the auditor. These audit-related services include 
employee benefit audits, due diligence assistance, accounting consultations on proposed transactions, internal control 
reviews and audit or attest services not required by legislation or regulation. 

(3) “Tax Fees” include fees for all tax services other than those included in “Audit Fees” and “Audit-Related Fees”. This 
category includes fees for tax compliance, tax planning and tax advice. Tax planning and tax advice includes assistance with 
tax audits and appeals, tax advice related to mergers and acquisitions, and requests for rulings or technical advice from tax 
authorities. 

(4) “All Other Fees” include all other non-audit services. 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

On June 30, 2005, the Canadian Securities Administrators (“CSA”) enacted National Policy 58-201 – Corporate 
Governance Guidelines (the “Governance Policy”) and National Instrument 58-101 – Disclosure of Corporate 
Governance Practices (“NI 58-101”). The Governance Policy provides guidelines on corporate governance 
practices while NI 58-101 requires Canadian reporting Companies to disclose their corporate governance practices 
in accordance with the disclosure items set out in Form 58-101F1. 

The Company has reviewed its own corporate governance practices in light of the guidelines contained in the 
Governance Policy. The Company’s practices comply generally with the guidelines, however, the current directors 
of the Company consider that some of the guidelines are not suitable for the Company at its current state of 
development and therefore the Company’s governance practices do not reflect these particular guidelines. Given that 
the Company is a relatively small Company in terms of both activities and market capitalization, the directors of the 
Company believe that the current governance structure is cost-effective and appropriate for the needs of the 
Shareholders. 

Set out below is a description of the Company’s corporate governance practices as required to be disclosed by NI 
58-101. 

Board of Directors 

At the date of filing of this Prospectus, the Board consisted of six directors, two of whom (John MacPhail and Savio 
Chiu) are independent. The other four directors are Chris Kennedy, President and CEO of the Company, Herrick 
Lau, CFO and Corporate Secretary of the Company, James F. Foster, employee of the Company, and Larry Ellison, 
executive officer of Agrios WA and TimberLand. 
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Directors are expected to attend Board meetings and meetings of committees on which they serve and to spend the 
time needed and meet as frequently as necessary to properly discharge their responsibilities. 

Board Mandate 

The Board facilitates independent supervision of management through meetings of the Board and through frequent 
informal discussions among independent members of the Board and management. In addition, the Board has access 
to the Company’s external auditors, legal counsel and to any of the Company’s officers.  

The Board has a stewardship responsibility to supervise the management of and oversee the conduct of the business 
of the relevant company, provide leadership and direction to management, evaluate management, set policies 
appropriate for the business of the Company and approve corporate strategies and goals.  

The day-to-day management of the business and affairs of the Company is delegated by the Board to the senior 
officers of the Company. The Board will give direction and guidance through the President to management and will 
keep management informed of its evaluation of the senior officers in achieving and complying with goals and 
policies established by the Board.  

The Board recommends nominees to the shareholders for election as directors, and immediately following each 
annual general meeting appoints an Audit Committee.  

The Board exercises its independent supervision over management by its policies that (a) periodic meetings of the 
Board be held to obtain an update on significant corporate activities and plans; and (b) all material transactions of 
the Company are subject to prior approval of the Board. To facilitate open and candid discussion among its 
independent directors, such directors are encouraged to communicate with each other directly to discuss ongoing 
issues pertaining to the Company. 

Position Description 

Because the Board is a small, working board, it has not developed written position descriptions and does not have a 
process for assessing the performance of the directors or the chair of the Board committees. 

The CEO and President of the Company are responsible for the general management of the day-to-day affairs of the 
Company within the guidelines established by the Board, consistent with decisions requiring prior approval of the 
Board. 

Other Reporting Issuer Experience 

The following table sets out the directors, officers and promoters of the Company that are, or have been within the 
last five years, directors, officers or promoters of other issuers that are or were reporting issuers in any Canadian 
jurisdiction:  

Name of 
Director, 
Officer or 
Promoter Name of Reporting Issuer Exchange Position Term 

Herrick Lau Exalt Capital Corp. TSXV CFO, Corporate 
Secretary & Director 

September 2017 to present 

Savio Chiu H-Source Holdings Ltd. TSXV Director August 2015 to present 

Jayden Resources Inc. TSXV Director June 2016 to present 

John MacPhail Eastwest Science Ltd. TSXV Executive Director February 2018 to present 
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Name of 
Director, 
Officer or 
Promoter Name of Reporting Issuer Exchange Position Term 

Pacific Arc Resources Ltd. NEX CEO & Director January 2018 to present 

 

Orientation and Continuing Education 

While the Company does not have formal orientation and training programs, orientation of new members of the 
Board is conducted by informal meetings with members of the Board, briefings by management, and the provision 
of copies of or access to the Company’s documents.  

The Company has not adopted formal policies respecting continuing education for Board members. Board members 
are encouraged to communicate with management, legal counsel, auditors and consultants, to keep themselves 
current with industry trends and developments and changes in legislation with management’s assistance, and to 
attend related industry seminars and visit the Company’s operations. Board members have full access to the 
Company’s records. 

Ethical Business Conduct 

The Board has found that the fiduciary duties placed on individual directors by governing corporate legislation and 
the common law, and the restrictions placed by the BCBCA on an individual director’s participation in decisions of 
the board in which the director has an interest, have helped to ensure that the Board operates independently of 
management and in the best interests of the Company.  

Under corporate legislation, a director is required to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests 
of a company and exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in 
comparable circumstances. In addition, if a director of a company also serves as a director or officer of another 
company engaged in similar business activities to the first company, that director must comply with the conflict of 
interest provisions of the BCBCA, as well as the relevant securities regulatory instruments, in order to ensure that 
directors exercise independent judgment in considering transactions and agreements in respect of which a director or 
officer has a material interest. Any interested director would be required to declare the nature and extent of his 
interest and would not be entitled to vote at meetings of directors that evoke such a conflict. 

Nomination of Directors 

The Company does not have a stand-alone nomination committee. The full Board has responsibility for identifying 
potential Board candidates. The Board assesses potential Board candidates to fill perceived needs on the Board for 
required skills, expertise, independence and other factors. Members of the Board and representatives of the industry 
are consulted for possible candidates. 

Compensation  

The Board conducts reviews with regard to directors’ and officers’ compensation at least once a year. For 
information regarding the steps taken to determine compensation for the directors and the executive officers, see 
“Executive Compensation” herein.  

Other Board Committees  

The Board has no other committees other than the Audit Committee.  
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Assessments  

The Board monitors the adequacy of information given to directors, communication between the Board and 
management and the strategic direction and processes of the Board and committees. On an ongoing annual basis, the 
Board assesses the performance of the Board as a whole, each of the individual directors and each committee of the 
Board in order to satisfy itself that each is functioning effectively.  

RISK FACTORS 

Investing in the Company involves significant risks. An investor should carefully consider the risks described below. 
The risks and uncertainties described below are those that the Company currently believes to be material, but they 
are not the only ones that the Company faces. If any of the following risks, or any other risks and uncertainties that 
the Company has not yet identified or that the Company currently consider not to be material, actually occur or 
become material risks, the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows 
could be materially and adversely affected. In that event, the market price of the Company could decline and an 
investor could lose part or all of such investor’s investment. 

Risks Related to the Company 

The Company is a development stage company with little operating history, a history of losses and the Company 
cannot assure profitability. 

As the Company has only just begun to generate revenue, it is extremely difficult to make accurate predictions and 
forecasts of its finances. This is compounded by the fact the Company intends to operate in the cannabis industry, 
which is rapidly transforming. There is no guarantee that the Company’s products or services will be attractive to 
potential consumers. 

Uncertainty about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

The Company is in the development stage and is currently seeking additional capital, mergers, acquisitions, joint 
ventures, partnerships and other business arrangements to expand its product offerings in the cannabis industry and 
grow its revenue. The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon its ability in the future to 
grow its revenue and achieve profitable operations and, in the meantime, to obtain the necessary financing to meet 
its obligations and repay its liabilities when they become due. External financing, predominantly by the issuance of 
equity and debt, will be sought to finance the operations of the Company; however, there can be no certainty that 
such funds will be available at terms acceptable to the Company. These conditions indicate the existence of material 
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

The Company has negative cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2018. 

The Company had negative operating cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2018. To the extent that the Company 
has negative operating cash flow in future periods, it may need to allocate a portion of its cash reserves to fund such 
negative cash flow. The Company may also be required to raise additional funds through the issuance of equity or 
debt securities. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to generate a positive cash flow from its 
operations, that additional capital or other types of financing will be available when needed or that these financings 
will be on terms favourable to the Company. The Company’s actual financial position and results of operations may 
differ materially from the expectations of the Company’s management. 

The Company’s actual financial position and results of operations may differ materially from the expectations of 
the Company’s management. 

The Company’s actual financial position and results of operations may differ materially from management’s 
expectations. As a result, the Company’s revenue, net income and cash flow may differ materially from the 
Company’s projected revenue, net income and cash flow. The process for estimating the Company’s revenue, net 
income and cash flow requires the use of judgment in determining the appropriate assumptions and estimates. These 
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estimates and assumptions may be revised as additional information becomes available and as additional analyses 
are performed. In addition, the assumptions used in planning may not prove to be accurate, and other factors may 
affect the Company’s financial condition or results of operations. 

There are factors which may prevent the Company from the realization of growth targets. The Company is 
currently in the expansion from early development stage. 

The Company’s growth strategy contemplates building the Shelton Facility. There is a risk that this will not be 
achieved on time, on budget, or at all, as it can be adversely affected by a variety of factors, including some that are 
discussed elsewhere in these “Risk Factors” and the following: 

 delays in obtaining, or conditions imposed by, regulatory approvals; 

 facility design errors; 

 environmental pollution; non-performance by third party contractors; increases in materials or labour costs; 
construction performance falling below expected levels of output or efficiency; 

 breakdown, aging or failure of equipment or processes; 

 contractor or operator errors; 

 operational inefficiencies; 

 labour disputes, disruptions or declines in productivity; inability to attract sufficient numbers of qualified 
workers; disruption in the supply of energy and utilities; and 

 major incidents and/or catastrophic events such as fires, explosions or storms. 

The Company may be reliant on a single stream of income through its 100% ownership of Agrios USA and its 
subsidiary Agrios WA. Adverse changes affecting Agrios WA could materially affect the Company’s plans. 

The Company, through Agrios USA, owns 100% of the membership interests and the business of Agrios WA. 
Agrios WA is a Washington holding company, holding 100% interests in subsidiary entities engaging in business 
ancillary to cannabis and holding intellectual property. These businesses have material contracts with Washington-
state cannabis License Holders. The License Holders hold “marijuana producer” licenses and “marijuana processor” 
licenses, both issued by the WSLCB. Agrios WA’s activities and resources have been focused on Washington. The 
Company expects to continue to primarily be in a business relationship with the License Holders for the foreseeable 
future. Adverse changes or developments affecting the License Holders, or marijuana businesses generally, could 
have a material and adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and prospects. 

Nature of the Business Model 

The primary businesses of the Company (through one or more operating companies owned by the Company) are 
intended to be: (i) the leasing of integrated commercial real estate to marijuana producers and processors in the State 
of Washington; and (ii) the providing of other products and services to “marijuana producers” and “marijuana 
processors”. Because the production and sale of recreational cannabis remain illegal under federal law, it is possible 
that the Company’s future tenants and customers may be forced to cease activities. The U.S. federal government, 
through both the Drug Enforcement Agency (“DEA”) and Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”), has the right to 
actively investigate, audit and shut-down marijuana growing facilities, processors and retailers. The U.S. federal 
government may also attempt to seize the Company’s property. Any action taken by the DEA and/or the IRS to 
interfere with, seize, or shut down a tenant’s operations will have an adverse effect on the Company’s business, 
operating results and financial condition. 
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Probable lack of business diversification. 

Because the Company will be focused on developing its business ancillary to the cannabis industry, and potentially 
directly in the cannabis industry, the prospects for the Company’s success will be dependent upon the future 
performance and market acceptance of the Company’s intended facilities, products, processes, and services. Unlike 
certain entities that have the resources to develop and explore numerous product lines, operating in multiple 
industries or multiple areas of a single industry, the Company does not anticipate the ability to immediately diversify 
or benefit from the possible spreading of risks or offsetting of losses. Again, the prospects for the Company’s 
success may become dependent upon the development or market acceptance of a very limited number of facilities, 
products, processes or services. 

Limited numbers of tenants and customers. 

Because the Company, through its affiliates and subsidiaries, intends to lease a small number of integrated facilities, 
to a small number of select tenants involved in the production of marijuana and processing of marijuana, any 
problems associated with the business of such tenants will have an adverse effect on the Company’s business, 
operating results and financial condition. Problems associated with such tenants may include loss of licenses to do 
business, delays and other problems in production; regulatory interference, including inspections and penalties for 
violations of the Washington Administrative Code which may affect the revenues and operations of the business; 
and additional unforeseen circumstances. There can be no guarantees that the Company, and/or its affiliates and 
subsidiaries, will be able to find suitable tenants for their facilities, or that such tenants’ performance will enable 
such tenants to make timely payments of rent. 

The Company may face significant competition from other facilities. 

Many other businesses in the Washington State engage in similar activities to the Company, leasing commercial 
space to “marijuana producers” and “marijuana processors”, and providing additional products and services to 
similar customers. The Company cannot assure you that it will be able to compete successfully against current and 
future competitors. Competitive pressures faced by the Company could have a material adverse effect on its 
business, operating results and financial condition. 

The Company expects to incur significant ongoing costs and obligations related to its investment in 
infrastructure, growth, regulatory compliance and operations. 

The Company expects to incur significant ongoing costs and obligations related to its investment in infrastructure 
and growth and for regulatory compliance, which could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s results of 
operations, financial condition and cash flows. In addition, future changes in regulations, more vigorous 
enforcement thereof or other unanticipated events could require extensive changes to the Company’s operations, 
increased compliance costs or give rise to material liabilities, which could have a material adverse effect on the 
business, results of operations and financial condition of the Company. The Company’s efforts to grow its business 
may be costlier than the Company expects, and the Company may not be able to increase its revenue enough to 
offset its higher operating expenses. The Company may incur significant losses in the future for a number of 
reasons, and unforeseen expenses, difficulties, complications and delays, and other unknown events. If the Company 
is unable to achieve and sustain profitability, the market price of the Common Shares may significantly decrease. 

The Company may be subject to additional regulatory burden resulting from its public listing on the CSE. 

The Company has not been subject to the continuous and timely disclosure requirements of Canadian securities laws 
or other rules, regulations and policies of the CSE. The Company is working with its legal, accounting and financial 
advisors to identify those areas in which changes should be made to the Company’s financial management control 
systems to manage its obligations as a public company listed on the CSE. These areas include corporate governance, 
corporate controls, disclosure controls and procedures and financial reporting and accounting systems. The 
Company has made, and will continue to make, changes in these and other areas, including the Company’s internal 
controls over financial reporting. However, the Company cannot assure holders of Company’s shares that these and 
other measures that the Company might take will be sufficient to allow us to satisfy the Company’s obligations as a 
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public company listed on the CSE on a timely basis. In addition, compliance with reporting and other requirements 
applicable to public companies listed on the CSE will create additional costs for the Company and will require the 
time and attention of management. The Company cannot predict the amount of the additional costs that the 
Company might incur, the timing of such costs or the impact that management’s attention to these matters will have 
on the Company’s business. 

There is no assurance that the Company will turn a profit or generate immediate revenues. 

There is no assurance as to whether the Company will be profitable, earn revenues, or pay dividends. The Company 
has incurred and anticipates that it will continue to incur substantial expenses relating to the development and initial 
operations of its business. 

The payment and amount of any future dividends will depend upon, among other things, the Company’s results of 
operations, cash flow, financial condition, and operating and capital requirements. There is no assurance that future 
dividends will be paid, and, if dividends are paid, there is no assurance with respect to the amount of any such 
dividends. 

In the event that any of the Company’s investments, or any proceeds thereof, any dividends or distributions there 
from, or any profits or revenues accruing from such investments in the United States were found to be in violation of 
money laundering legislation or otherwise, such transactions may be viewed as proceeds of crime under one or more 
of the statutes noted above or any other applicable legislation. This could restrict or otherwise jeopardize the ability 
of the Company to declare or pay dividends, effect other distributions or subsequently repatriate such funds back to 
Canada. 

The Company may not be able to effectively manage its growth and operations, which could materially and 
adversely affect its business. 

The Company has grown by acquisition. If the Company implements it business plan as intended, it may in the 
future experience rapid growth and development in a relatively short period of time. The management of this growth 
will require, among other things, continued development of the Company’s financial and management controls and 
management information systems, stringent control of costs, the ability to attract and retain qualified management 
personnel and the training of new personnel. The Company intends to utilize outsourced resources, and hire 
additional personnel, to manage its expected growth and expansion. Failure to successfully manage its possible 
growth and development could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business and the value of the 
Common Shares. 

The Company may be unable to adequately protect its proprietary and intellectual property rights, particularly in 
the U.S. 

The Company’s ability to compete may depend on the superiority, uniqueness and value of any intellectual property 
and technology that it may develop. To the extent the Company is able to do so, to protect any proprietary rights of 
the Company, the Company intends to rely on a combination of patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret laws, 
confidentiality agreements with its employees and third parties, and protective contractual provisions. Despite these 
efforts, any of the following occurrences may reduce the value of any of the Company’s intellectual property: 

 the market for the Company’s products and services may depend to a significant extent upon the goodwill 
associated with its trademarks and trade names, and its ability to register certain of its intellectual property 
under U.S. federal and state law is impaired by the illegality of cannabis under U.S. federal law; 

 patents in the cannabis industry involve complex legal and scientific questions and patent protection may 
not be available for some or any products; the Company’s applications for trademarks and copyrights 
relating to its business may not be granted and, if granted, may be challenged or invalidated; 

 issued patents, trademarks and registered copyrights may not provide the Company with competitive 
advantages; the Company’s efforts to protect its intellectual property rights may not be effective in 
preventing misappropriation of any its products or intellectual property; 
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 the Company’s efforts may not prevent the development and design by others of products or marketing 
strategies similar to or competitive with, or superior to those the Company develops; 

 another party may assert a blocking patent and the Company would need to either obtain a license or design 
around the patent in order to continue to offer the contested feature or service in its products; or 

 the expiration of patent or other intellectual property protections for any assets owned by the Company 
could result in significant competition, potentially at any time and without notice, resulting in a significant 
reduction in sales. The effect of the loss of these protections on the Company and its financial results will 
depend, among other things, upon the nature of the market and the position of the Company’s products in 
the market from time to time, the growth of the market, the complexities and economics of manufacturing a 
competitive product and regulatory approval requirements but the impact could be material and adverse. 

The Company may be forced to litigate to defend its intellectual property rights, or to defend against claims by 
third parties against the Company relating to intellectual property rights. 

The Company may be forced to litigate to enforce or defend its intellectual property rights, to protect its trade 
secrets or to determine the validity and scope of other parties’ proprietary rights. Any such litigation could be very 
costly and could distract its management from focusing on operating the Company’s business. The existence and/or 
outcome of any such litigation could harm the Company’s business. Further, because the content of much of the 
Company’s intellectual property concerns cannabis and other activities that are not legal in some state jurisdictions 
or under federal law, the Company may face additional difficulties in defending its intellectual property rights. 

The Company may become subject to litigation, including for possible product liability claims, which may have a 
material adverse effect on the Company’s reputation, business, results from operations, and financial condition. 

The Company may be named as a defendant in a lawsuit or regulatory action. The Company may also incur 
uninsured losses for liabilities which arise in the ordinary course of business, or which are unforeseen, including, but 
not limited to, employment liability and business loss claims. Any such losses could have a material adverse effect 
on the Company’s business, results of operations, sales, cash flow or financial condition. 

The Company faces competition from other companies where it will conduct business that may have higher 
capitalization, more experienced management or may be more mature as a business. 

An increase in the companies competing in this industry could limit the ability of the Company to expand its 
operations. Current and new competitors may have better capitalization, a longer operating history, more expertise 
and able to develop higher quality equipment or products, at the same or a lower cost. The Company cannot provide 
assurances that it will be able to compete successfully against current and future competitors. Competitive pressures 
faced by the Company could have a material adverse effect on its business, operating results and financial condition. 

If the Company is unable to attract and retain key personnel, it may not be able to compete effectively in the 
cannabis market. 

The Company’s success has depended and continues to depend upon its ability to attract and retain key 
management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, and technical experts. The 
Company will attempt to enhance its management and technical expertise by continuing to recruit qualified 
individuals who possess desired skills and experience in certain targeted areas. The Company’s inability to retain 
employees and attract and retain sufficient additional employees or engineering and technical support resources 
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operations, sales, cash flow or financial 
condition. Shortages in qualified personnel or the loss of key personnel could adversely affect the financial condition 
of the Company, results of operations of the business and could limit the Company’s ability to develop and market 
its cannabis-related products. The loss of any of the Company’s senior management or key employees could 
materially adversely affect the Company’s ability to execute the Company’s business plan and strategy, and the 
Company may not be able to find adequate replacements on a timely basis, or at all. The Company does not 
maintain key person life insurance policies on any of the Company’s employees. 
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There is no assurance that the Company will obtain and retain any relevant licenses. 

If obtained, any state licenses in the U.S. are expected to be subject to ongoing compliance and reporting 
requirements. Failure by the Company to comply with the requirements of licenses or any failure to maintain 
licenses would have a material adverse impact on the business, financial condition and operating results of the 
Company. Should any state in which the Company considers a license important not grant, extend or renew such 
license or should it renew such license on different terms, or should it decide to grant more than the anticipated 
number of licenses, the business, financial condition and results of the operation of the Company could be materially 
adversely affected. 

Failure to successfully integrate acquired businesses, its products and other assets into the Company, or if 
integrated, failure to further the Company’s business strategy, may result in the Company’s inability to realize 
any benefit from such acquisition. 

The Company expects to grow by acquiring businesses. The consummation and integration of any acquired 
business, product or other assets into the Company may be complex and time consuming and, if such businesses and 
assets are not successfully integrated, the Company may not achieve the anticipated benefits, cost-savings or growth 
opportunities. Furthermore, these acquisitions and other arrangements, even if successfully integrated, may fail to 
further the Company’s business strategy as anticipated, expose the Company to increased competition or other 
challenges with respect to the Company’s products or geographic markets, and expose the Company to additional 
liabilities associated with an acquired business, technology or other asset or arrangement. 

When the Company acquires cannabis businesses, it may obtain the rights to applications for licenses as well as 
licenses; however, the procurement of such applications for licenses and licenses generally will be subject to 
governmental and regulatory approval. There are no guarantees that the Company will successfully consummate 
such acquisitions, and even if the Company consummates such acquisitions, the procurement of applications for 
licenses may never result in the grant of a license by any state or local governmental or regulatory agency and the 
transfer of any rights to licenses may never be approved by the applicable state and/or local governmental or 
regulatory agency. 

The size of the Company’s target market is difficult to quantify and investors will be reliant on their own 
estimates on the accuracy of market data. 

Because the cannabis industry is in an early stage with uncertain boundaries, there is a lack of information about 
comparable companies available for potential investors to review in deciding about whether to invest in the 
Company and, few, if any, established companies whose business model the Company can follow or upon whose 
success the Company can build. Accordingly, investors will have to rely on their own estimates in deciding about 
whether to invest in the Company. There can be no assurance that the Company’s estimates are accurate or that the 
market size is sufficiently large for its business to grow as projected, which may negatively impact its financial 
results. The Company regularly purchases and follows market research. 

The Company’s industry is experiencing rapid growth and consolidation that may cause the Company to lose key 
relationships and intensify competition. 

The cannabis industry and businesses ancillary to and directly involved with cannabis businesses are undergoing 
rapid growth and substantial change, which has resulted in an increase in competitors, consolidation and formation 
of strategic relationships. Acquisitions or other consolidating transactions could harm the Company in a number of 
ways, including by losing strategic partners if they are acquired by or enter into relationships with a competitor, 
losing customers, revenue and market share, or forcing the Company to expend greater resources to meet new or 
additional competitive threats, all of which could harm the Company’s operating results. As competitors enter the 
market and become increasingly sophisticated, competition in the Company’s industry may intensify and place 
downward pressure on retail prices for its products and services, which could negatively impact its profitability. The 
Company continues to sell shares for cash to fund operations, capital expansion, mergers and acquisitions that will 
dilute the current shareholders. 
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There is no guarantee that the Company will be able to achieve its business objectives. The continued development 
of the Company will require additional financing. The failure to raise such capital could result in the delay or 
indefinite postponement of current business objectives or the Company going out of business. There can be no 
assurance that additional capital or other types of financing will be available if needed or that, if available, the terms 
of such financing will be favourable to the Company. 

If additional funds are raised through issuances of equity or convertible debt securities, existing shareholders could 
suffer significant dilution, and any new equity securities issued could have rights, preferences and privileges 
superior to those of holders of Common Shares. The Company’s articles permit the issuance of an unlimited number 
of Common Shares, and shareholders will have no pre-emptive rights in connection with such further issuance. The 
directors of the Company have discretion to determine the price and the terms of issue of further issuances. 
Moreover, additional Common Shares will be issued by the Company on the exercise of options under the Stock 
Option Plan and upon the exercise of outstanding Warrants. In addition, from time to time, the Company may enter 
into transactions to acquire assets or the shares of other companies. These transactions may be financed wholly or 
partially with debt, which may temporarily increase the Company’s debt levels above industry standards. Any debt 
financing secured in the future could involve restrictive covenants relating to capital raising activities and other 
financial and operational matters, which may make it more difficult for the Company to obtain additional capital and 
to pursue business opportunities, including potential acquisitions. The Company may require additional financing to 
fund its operations to the point where it is generating positive cash flows. Negative cash flow may restrict the 
Company’s ability to pursue its business objectives. 

The Company currently has insurance coverage; however, because the Company’s business is ancillary to the 
cannabis industry, there additional difficulties and complexities associated with such insurance coverage. 

The Company believes that it and its subsidiaries currently have insurance coverage with respect to workers’ 
compensation, general liability, fire and other similar policies customarily obtained for businesses to the extent 
commercially appropriate; however, because the Company is engaged in and operates within the cannabis industry, 
there are exclusions and additional difficulties and complexities associated with such insurance coverage that could 
cause the Company to suffer uninsured losses, which could adversely affect the Company’s business, results of 
operations, and profitability. There is no assurance that the Company will be able to fully utilize such insurance 
coverage, if necessary. 

The Company could be liable for fraudulent or illegal activity by its employees, contractors and consultants 
resulting in significant financial losses to claims against the Company. 

The Company is exposed to the risk that its employees, independent contractors and consultants may engage in 
fraudulent or other illegal activity. Misconduct by these parties could include intentional, reckless and/or negligent 
conduct or disclosure of unauthorized activities to the Company that violate government regulations. It is not always 
possible for the Company to identify and deter misconduct by its employees and other third parties, and the 
precautions taken by the Company to detect and prevent this activity may not be effective in controlling unknown or 
unmanaged risks or losses or in protecting the Company from governmental investigations or other actions or 
lawsuits stemming from a failure to be in compliance with such laws or regulations. If any such actions are instituted 
against the Company, and it is not successful in defending itself or asserting its rights, those actions could have a 
significant impact on the Company’s business, including the imposition of civil, criminal and administrative 
penalties, damages, monetary fines, contractual damages, reputational harm, diminished profits and future earnings, 
and curtailment of the Company’s operations, any of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s 
business, financial condition and results of operations. 

The Company will be reliant on information technology systems and may be subject to damaging cyberattacks. 

The Company has entered into agreements with third parties for hardware, software, telecommunications and other 
information technology (“IT”) services in connection with its operations. The Company’s operations depend, in 
part, on how well it and its suppliers protect networks, equipment, IT systems and software against damage from a 
number of threats, including, but not limited to, cable cuts, damage to physical plants, natural disasters, intentional 
damage and destruction, fire, power loss, hacking, computer viruses, vandalism and theft. The Company’s 
operations also depend on the timely maintenance, upgrade and replacement of networks, equipment, IT systems 
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and software, as well as pre-emptive expenses to mitigate the risks of failures. Any of these and other events could 
result in information system failures, delays and/or increase in capital expenses. The failure of information systems 
or a component of information systems could, depending on the nature of any such failure, adversely impact the 
Company’s reputation and results of operations. 

The Company has not experienced any material losses to date relating to cyber-attacks or other information security 
breaches, but there can be no assurance that the Company will not incur such losses in the future. The Company’s 
risk and exposure to these matters cannot be fully mitigated because of, among other things, the evolving nature of 
these threats. As a result, cyber security and the continued development and enhancement of controls, processes and 
practices designed to protect systems, computers, software, data and networks from attack, damage or unauthorized 
access is a priority. As cyber threats continue to evolve, the Company may be required to expend additional 
resources to continue to modify or enhance protective measures or to investigate and remediate any security 
vulnerabilities. 

The Company’s officers and directors may be engaged in a range of business activities resulting in conflicts of 
interest. 

Although certain officers and board members of the Company are expected to be bound by anticircumvention 
agreements limiting their ability to enter into competing and/or conflicting ventures or businesses, the Company 
may be subject to various potential conflicts of interest because some of its officers and directors (and consequently, 
some of the officers and directors of Agrios and Agrios WA) may be engaged in a range of business activities. In 
addition, the Company’s executive officers and directors may devote time to their outside business interests, so long 
as such activities do not materially or adversely interfere with their duties to the Company. In some cases, the 
Company’s executive officers and directors may have fiduciary obligations associated with these business interests 
that interfere with their ability to devote time to the Company’s business and affairs and that could adversely affect 
the Company’s operations. These business interests could require significant time and attention of the Company’s 
executive officers and directors. 

In addition, the Company may also become involved in other transactions which conflict with the interests of its 
directors and the officers who may from time to time deal with persons, firms, institutions or companies with which 
the Company may be dealing, or which may be seeking investments similar to those desired by it. The interests of 
these persons could conflict with those of the Company. In addition, from time to time, these persons may be 
competing with the Company for available investment opportunities. Conflicts of interest, if any, will be subject to 
the procedures and remedies provided under applicable laws. In particular, if such a conflict of interest arises at a 
meeting of the Company’s directors, a director who has such a conflict will abstain from voting for or against the 
approval of such participation or such terms. In accordance with applicable laws, the directors of the Company are 
required to act honestly, in good faith and in the best interests of the Company. 

In certain circumstances, the Company’s reputation could be damaged. 

Damage to the Company’s reputation can be the result of the actual or perceived occurrence of any number of 
events, and could include any negative publicity, whether true or not. The increased usage of social media and other 
web-based tools used to generate, publish and discuss user-generated content and to connect with other users has 
made it increasingly easier for individuals and groups to communicate and share opinions and views regarding the 
Company and its activities, whether true or not. Although the Company believes that it operates in a manner that is 
respectful to all stakeholders and that it takes care in protecting its image and reputation, the Company does not 
ultimately have direct control over how it is perceived by others. Reputation loss may result in decreased investor 
confidence, increased challenges in developing and maintaining community relations and an impediment to the 
Company’s overall ability to advance its projects, thereby having a material adverse impact on financial 
performance, financial condition, cash flows and growth prospects. 

No guarantee on the use of available funds by the Company. 

The Company cannot specify with certainty the particular uses of available funds. Management has broad discretion 
in the application of its proceeds. Accordingly, a holder of Common Shares will have to rely upon the judgment of 
management with respect to the use of available funds, with only limited information concerning management’s 
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specific intentions. The Company’s management may spend a portion or all of the available funds in ways that the 
Company’s shareholders might not desire, that might not yield a favourable return and that might not increase the 
value of a purchaser’s investment. The failure by management to apply these funds effectively could harm the 
Company’s business. Pending use of such funds, the Company might invest the available funds in a manner that 
does not produce income or that loses value. 

Currency Fluctuations. 

The Company’s revenues and expenses are expected to be primarily denominated in U.S. dollars, and therefore may 
be exposed to significant currency exchange fluctuations. Recent events in the global financial markets have been 
coupled with increased volatility in the currency markets. Fluctuations in the exchange rate between the U.S. dollar 
and the Canadian dollar may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and 
operating results. The Company may, in the future, establish a program to hedge a portion of its foreign currency 
exposure with the objective of minimizing the impact of adverse foreign currency exchange movements. However, 
even if the Company develops a hedging program, there can be no assurance that it will effectively mitigate 
currency risks. 

Risk Factors Specifically Related to the United States Regulatory System 

The Company operates in a new industry which is highly regulated, highly competitive and evolving rapidly. As 
such, new risks may emerge, and management may not be able to predict all such risks or be able to predict how 
such risks may result in actual results differing from the results contained in any forward-looking statements. 

The Company incurs ongoing costs and obligations related to regulatory compliance. Failure to comply with 
regulations may result in additional costs for corrective measures, penalties or in restrictions of operations. In 
addition, changes in regulations, more vigorous enforcement thereof or other unanticipated events could require 
extensive changes to operations, increased compliance costs or give rise to material liabilities, which could have a 
material adverse effect on the business, results of operations and financial condition of the Company and, therefore, 
on the Company’s prospective returns. Further, the Company may be subject to a variety of claims and lawsuits. 
Adverse outcomes in some or all of these claims may result in significant monetary damages or injunctive relief that 
could adversely affect our ability to conduct our business. The litigation and other claims are subject to inherent 
uncertainties and management’s view of these matters may change in the future. A material adverse impact on our 
financial statements also could occur for the period in which the effect of an unfavorable final outcome becomes 
probable and reasonably estimable. 

The industry is subject to extensive controls and regulations, which may significantly affect the financial condition 
of market participants. The marketability of any product may be affected by numerous factors that are beyond the 
control of the Company and which cannot be predicted, such as changes to government regulations, including those 
relating to taxes and other government levies which may be imposed. Changes in government levies, including 
taxes, could reduce the Company’s earnings and could make future capital investments or the Company’s operations 
uneconomic. The industry is also subject to numerous legal challenges, which may significantly affect the financial 
condition of market participants and which cannot be reliably predicted. 

Some of the Company’s planned business activities, while believed to be compliant with applicable certain U.S. 
state and local law, are illegal under United States federal law. 

While the Company’s business activities are compliant with applicable state and local law, such activities remain 
illegal under United States federal law. The Company is involved in the cannabis industry in the U.S. where local 
and state laws permit such activities or provide limited defenses to criminal prosecutions.  

Unlike in Canada which has federal legislation uniformly governing the cultivation, distribution, sale and possession 
of medical marijuana under the Access to Cannabis for Medical Purposes Regulations, investors are cautioned that 
in the United States, marijuana is largely regulated at the state level. Although certain states and territories of the 
U.S. authorize medical or recreational cannabis production and distribution by licensed or registered entities, under 
U.S. federal law, the possession, use, cultivation, and transfer of cannabis and any related drug paraphernalia is 
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illegal and any such acts are criminal acts under federal law under any and all circumstances under the U.S. 
Controlled Substances Act (“CSA”). An investor’s contribution to and involvement in such activities may result in 
federal civil and/or criminal prosecution, including forfeiture of his, her or its entire investment. 

Violations of any federal laws and regulations could result in significant fines, penalties, administrative sanctions, 
convictions or settlements arising from civil proceedings conducted by either the federal government or private 
citizens, or criminal charges, including but not limited to disgorgement of profits, cessation of business activities or 
divestiture. This could have a material adverse effect on the Company, including its reputation and ability to conduct 
business, its holding (directly or indirectly) of marijuana licenses in the United States, the listing of its securities on 
various stock exchanges, its financial position, operating results, profitability or liquidity or the market price of its 
publicly traded shares. 

In addition, it is difficult to estimate the time or resources that would be needed for the investigation of any such 
matters or its final resolution because, in part, the time and resources that may be needed are dependent on the 
nature and extent of any information requested by the applicable authorities involved, and such time or resources 
could be substantial. 

In addition, since the possession and use of cannabis and any related drug paraphernalia is illegal under U.S. federal 
law, the Company may be deemed to be aiding and abetting illegal activities through the contracts it has entered into 
and the products that it intends to provide. The Company intends to lease real estate, provide material supply 
agreement, and provide intellectual property to a licensed “marijuana producer” and “marijuana processor” in 
Washington State. As a result, U.S. law enforcement authorities, in their attempt to regulate the illegal use of 
cannabis and any related drug paraphernalia, may seek to bring an action or actions against the Company, including, 
but not limited to, aiding and abetting another’s criminal activities. The Federal aiding and abetting statute provides 
that anyone who “commits an offense against the United States or aids, abets, counsels, commands, induces or 
procures its commission, is punishable as a principal.” As a result of such an action, the Company may be forced to 
cease operations and its investors could lose their entire investment. Such an action would have a material negative 
effect on our business and operations. 

The enforcement of relevant laws is a significant risk. 

Twenty-nine of the states in the U.S. have enacted comprehensive legislation to regulate the sale and use of medical 
cannabis. Notwithstanding the permissive regulatory environment of medical cannabis at the state level, cannabis 
continues to be categorized as a Schedule 1 controlled substance under the Controlled Substances Act. As such, 
cannabis-related practices or activities, including without limitation, the cultivation, manufacture, importation, 
possession, use or distribution of cannabis, are illegal under U.S. federal law. Strict compliance with state laws with 
respect to cannabis will neither absolve the Company of liability under U.S. federal law, nor will it provide a 
defense to any federal proceeding which may be brought against the Company. Any such proceedings brought 
against the Company may adversely affect the Company’s operations and financial performance. 

Because of the conflicting views between state legislatures and the federal government of the U.S. regarding 
cannabis, cannabis-related operations and investments in cannabis businesses in the U.S. are subject to inconsistent 
legislation, regulation, and enforcement. Unless and until the U.S. Congress amends the Controlled Substances Act 
with respect to cannabis or the Drug Enforcement Agency reschedules or de-schedules cannabis (and as to the 
timing or scope of any such potential amendments there can be no assurance), there is a risk that federal authorities 
may enforce current federal law, which would adversely affect the Company’s operations in the U.S. along with any 
future investments of the Company in the U.S. As a result of the tension between state and federal law, there are a 
number of risks associated with the Company’s operations and potential future investments in the U.S. 

For the reasons set forth above, the Company’s existing interests in the U.S. cannabis market may become the 
subject of heightened scrutiny by regulators, stock exchanges, clearing agencies and other authorities in Canada. It 
has been reported by certain publications in Canada that the Canadian Depository for Securities Limited may 
implement policies that would see its subsidiary, CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc. (“CDS”), refuse to 
settle trades for cannabis issuers that have cannabis-related operations and/or investments in the United States. CDS 
is Canada’s central securities depository, clearing and settlement hub settling trades in the Canadian equity, fixed 
income and money markets. The TMX Group, the owner and operator of CDS, subsequently issued a statement on 
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August 17, 2017 reaffirming that there is no CDS ban on the clearing of securities of issuers with cannabis-related 
activities in the United States, despite media reports to the contrary and that the TMX Group was working with 
regulators to arrive at a solution that will clarify this matter, which would be communicated at a later time. 

On February 8, 2018, following discussions with the Canadian Securities Administrators (“CSA”) and recognized 
Canadian securities exchanges, the TMX Group announced the signing of a Memorandum of Understanding (“TMX 
MOU”) with Aequitas NEO Exchange Inc., the CSE, the Toronto Stock Exchange, and the TSX Venture Exchange. 
The TMX MOU outlines the parties’ understanding of Canada’s regulatory framework applicable to the rules, 
procedures, and regulatory oversight of the exchanges and CDS as it relates to issuers with cannabis-related 
activities in the United States. The TMX MOU confirms, with respect to the clearing of listed securities, that CDS 
relies on the exchanges to review the conduct of listed issuers. As a result, there is no CDS ban on the clearing of 
securities of issuers with cannabis-related activities in the United States. However, there can be no guarantee that 
this approach to regulation will continue in the future. If such a ban were to be implemented, it would have a 
material adverse effect on the ability of holders of Common Shares to make and settle trades. In particular, the 
Common Shares would become highly illiquid as until an alternative was implemented, investors would have no 
ability to effect a trade of the Common Shares through the facilities of a stock exchange. 

The Company’s activities and operations in the U.S. are, and will continue to be, subject to evolving regulation by 
governmental authorities. The Company will be directly engaged in the medical and recreational cannabis industry 
in the California, where local state law permits such activities. 

The Company’s operations are exclusively focused in Washington, a state that has legalized the recreational use of 
cannabis. Currently, the states of Alaska, California Colorado, Maine, Massachusetts, Nevada, Oregon, Vermont and 
the District of Columbia have also legalized recreational use of cannabis. Over half of the U.S. states have enacted 
legislation to legalize and regulate the sale and use of medical cannabis. However, the U.S. federal government has 
not enacted similar legislation. As such, the cultivation, manufacture, distribution, sale and use of cannabis remains 
illegal under U.S. federal law. 

Further, on January 4, 2018, U.S. Attorney General Jeff Sessions formally rescinded the standing U.S. Department 
of Justice federal policy guidance governing enforcement of marijuana laws, as set forth in a series of memos and 
guidance from 2009-2014, principally the Cole Memorandum. The Cole Memorandum generally directed U.S. 
Attorneys not to enforce the federal marijuana laws against actors who are compliant with state laws, provided 
enumerated enforcement priorities were not implicated. The rescission of this memo and other Obama-era 
prosecutorial guidance did not create a change in federal law as the Cole Memorandums were never legally binding; 
however, the revocation removed the DOJ’s guidance to U.S. Attorneys that state-regulated cannabis industries 
substantively in compliance with the Cole Memorandum’s guidelines should not be a prosecutorial priority. The 
federal government of the United States has always reserved the right to enforce federal law regarding the sale and 
disbursement of medical or recreational marijuana, even if state law sanctioned such sale and disbursement. 
Although the rescission of the above memorandums does not necessarily indicate that marijuana industry 
prosecutions are now affirmatively a priority for the DOJ, there can be no assurance that the federal government will 
not enforce such laws in the future. 

Additionally, there can be no assurance that state laws legalizing and regulating the sale and use of cannabis will not 
be repealed or overturned, or that local governmental authorities will not limit the applicability of state laws within 
their respective jurisdictions. It is also important to note that local and city ordinances may strictly limit and/or 
restrict the distribution of cannabis in a manner that could make it extremely difficult or impossible to transact 
business in the cannabis industry. If the federal government begins to enforce federal laws relating to cannabis in 
states where the sale and use of cannabis is currently legal, or if existing state laws are repealed or curtailed, the 
Company’s current and future operations along with any future investments in such businesses would be materially 
and adversely affected. Federal actions against any individual or entity engaged in the marijuana industry or a 
substantial repeal of marijuana related legislation could adversely affect the Company, its business and its potential 
investments. 

In light of the political and regulatory uncertainty surrounding the treatment of U.S. cannabis-related activities, 
including the rescission of the Cole Memorandum discussed above, on February 8, 2018 the CSA published a Staff 
Notice 51-352 setting out the CSA’s disclosure expectations for specific risks facing issuers with cannabis-related 
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activities in the U.S. Staff Notice 51-352 confirms that a disclosure-based approach remains appropriate for issuers 
with U.S. cannabis-related activities. Staff Notice 51-352 includes additional disclosure expectations that apply to all 
issuers with U.S. cannabis-related activities, including those with direct and indirect involvement in the cultivation 
and distribution of cannabis, as well as issuers that provide goods and services to third parties involved in the U.S. 
cannabis industry. The Company views this staff notice favourably, as it provides increased transparency and greater 
certainty regarding the views of its exchange and its regulator of existing operations and strategic business plan as 
well as the Company’s ability to pursue future investment and opportunities in the U.S. 

The concepts of “medical cannabis” and “retail cannabis” do not exist under U.S. federal law because the U.S. 
Controlled Substances Act classifies “marijuana” as a Schedule I drug. Under U.S. federal law, a Schedule I drug or 
substance has a high potential for abuse, no accepted medical use in the U.S., and a lack of accepted safety for the 
use of the drug under medical supervision. As such, cannabis-related practices or activities, including without 
limitation, the manufacture, importation, possession, use or distribution of cannabis remain illegal under U.S. federal 
law. Although the Company’s activities are compliant with applicable U.S. state and local law, strict compliance 
with state and local laws with respect to cannabis may neither absolve the Company of liability under U.S. federal 
law, nor may it provide a defense to any federal proceeding which may be brought against the Company. Any such 
proceedings brought against the Company may adversely affect the Company’s operations and financial 
performance. 

Violations of any U.S. federal laws and regulations could result in significant fines, penalties, administrative 
sanctions, convictions or settlements arising from civil proceedings conducted by either the U.S. federal government 
or private citizens, or criminal charges, including, but not limited to, disgorgement of profits, cessation of business 
activities or divestiture. This could have a material adverse effect on the Company, including its reputation and 
ability to conduct business, its holding (directly or indirectly) of cannabis licenses in the U.S., the listing of its 
securities on various stock exchanges, its financial position, operating results, profitability or liquidity or the market 
price of its publicly traded shares. In addition, it is difficult for the Company to estimate the time or resources that 
would be needed for the investigation of any such matters or its final resolution because, in part, the time and 
resources that may be needed are dependent on the nature and extent of any information requested by the applicable 
authorities involved, and such time or resources could be substantial. 

There is still uncertainty surrounding the Trump Administration and Attorney General Jeff Sessions and their 
influence and policies in opposition to the cannabis industry as a whole. 

Many factors could cause the Company’s actual results, performances and achievements to differ materially from 
those expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements and forward-looking information, including without 
limitation, the following factors: 

 The Company operates in the cannabis sector in the U.S., where cannabis is federally illegal; 

 The activities of the Company are subject to evolving regulation that is subject to changes by governmental 
authorities in Canada and the U.S.; 

 Third parties with which the Company does business, including banks and other financial intermediaries, 
may perceive that they are exposed to legal and reputational risk because of the Company’s cannabis 
business activities; 

 The Company’s ability to repatriate returns generated from investments in the U.S. may be limited by anti-
money laundering laws; 

 Under Section 280E of the Internal Revenue Code, normal business expenses incurred in the business of 
selling marijuana and its derivatives are not deductible in calculating income tax liability. Therefore, the 
Company will be precluded from claiming certain deductions otherwise available to non-marijuana 
businesses. As a result, an otherwise profitable business may in fact operate at a loss after taking into 
account its income tax expenses. There is no certainty that the Company will not be subject to 280E in the 
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future, and accordingly, there is no certainty that the impact that 280E has on the Company’s margins will 
ever be reduced; 

 Federal prohibitions result in marijuana businesses being potentially restricted from accessing the U.S. 
federal banking system, and the Company and its subsidiaries may have difficulty depositing funds in 
federally insured and licensed banking institutions. This may lead to further related issues, such as the 
potential that a bank will freeze the Company’s accounts and risks associated with uninsured deposit 
accounts. There is no certainty that the Company will be able to maintain its existing accounts or obtain 
new accounts in the future; and 

 Although the TMX MOU confirms that there is currently no CDS ban on the clearing of securities of 
issuers with cannabis-related activities in the United States, there can be no guarantee that this approach to 
regulation will continue in the future. 

The Company’s investments and operations in the United States may be subject to heightened scrutiny. 

For the reasons set forth above, the Company’s existing investments and operations in the United States, and any 
future investments or operations, may become the subject of heightened scrutiny by regulators, stock exchanges and 
other authorities in Canada. As a result, the Company may be subject to significant direct and indirect interaction 
with public officials. There can be no assurance that this heightened scrutiny will not in turn lead to the imposition 
of certain restrictions on the Company’s ability to invest in the United States or any other jurisdiction. 

Although the TMX MOU has confirmed that there is currently no CDS ban on the clearing of securities of issuers 
with cannabis-related activities in the United States, there can be no guarantee that this approach to regulation will 
continue in the future. If such a ban were to be implemented, it would have a material adverse effect on the ability of 
holders of Common Shares to make and settle trades. In particular, the Common Shares would become highly 
illiquid as until an alternative was implemented, investors would have no ability to effect a trade of the Common 
Shares through the facilities of a stock exchange. 

Government policy changes or public opinion may also result in a significant influence over the regulation of the 
cannabis industry in the U.S. or elsewhere. A negative shift in the public’s perception of cannabis in the U.S. or any 
other applicable jurisdiction could affect future legislation or regulation. Among other things, such a shift could 
cause state jurisdictions to abandon initiatives or proposals to legalize cannabis, thereby limiting the number of new 
state jurisdictions into which the Company could expand, should it decide to do so. The Company’s inability to 
expand its operations into other jurisdictions may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, 
financial condition and results of operations. 

Unlike in Canada, which has federal legislation uniformly governing the cultivation, distribution, sale and 
possession of medical cannabis under the Access to Cannabis for Medical Purposes Regulations, investors are 
cautioned that in the U.S., cannabis is largely regulated at the state level. Notwithstanding the permissive regulatory 
environment of medical and recreational cannabis at the state level in certain states, cannabis continues to be 
categorized as a controlled substance under the Controlled Substances Act in the U.S. and as such, may be in 
violation of federal law in the U.S. 

As previously stated, the United States Congress has passed the Leahy Amendment each of the last four years to 
prevent the federal government from using congressionally appropriated funds to enforce federal marijuana laws 
against regulated medical marijuana actors operating in compliance with state and local law. The 2018 Consolidated 
Appropriations Act was passed by Congress on March 23, 2018, and included the re-authorization of the Leahy 
Amendment. The Leahy Amendment was set to expire with the 2018 Fiscal Year on September 30, 2018, however, 
Congress approved a nine-week continuing resolution from the 2018 Fiscal Year (the “Continuing Resolution”). 
The Continuing Resolution has the result of providing ongoing and consistent protection for the medical cannabis 
industry until December 7, 2018. 

American courts have construed these appropriations bills to prevent the federal government from prosecuting 
individuals when those individuals comply with state medical cannabis laws. However, because this conduct 
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continues to violate federal law, American courts have observed that should Congress at any time choose to 
appropriate funds to fully prosecute the Controlled Substances Act, any individual or business—even those that have 
fully complied with state law—could be prosecuted for violations of federal law. If Congress restores funding, for 
example by declining to include the Leahy Amendment in the 2019 budget resolution, or by failing to pass necessary 
budget legislation and causing another government shutdown, the federal government will have the authority to 
prosecute individuals for violations of the law before it lacked funding under the five-year statute of limitations 
applicable to non-capital Controlled Substances Act violations. Additionally, it is important to note that the 
appropriations protections only apply to medical cannabis operations, and provide no protection against businesses 
operating in compliance with a state’s recreational cannabis laws. 

As previously stated, violations of any federal laws and regulations could result in significant fines, penalties, 
administrative sanctions, convictions or settlements arising from civil proceedings conducted by either the federal 
government or private citizens, or criminal charges, including, but not limited to, disgorgement of profits, cessation 
of business activities or divestiture. This could have a material adverse effect on the Company, including its 
reputation and ability to conduct business, its holding (directly or indirectly) of cannabis licenses in the U.S., the 
listing of its securities on various stock exchanges, its financial position, operating results, profitability or liquidity 
or the market price of its publicly traded shares. In addition, it is difficult for the Company to estimate the time or 
resources that would be needed for the investigation of any such matters or its final resolution because, in part, the 
time and resources that may be needed are dependent on the nature and extent of any information requested by the 
applicable authorities involved, and such time or resources could be substantial. 

The approach to the enforcement of cannabis laws may be subject to change or may not proceed as previously 
outlined. 

Government policy changes or public opinion may also result in a significant influence over the regulation of the 
cannabis industry in Canada, the United States or elsewhere. A negative shift in the public’s perception of medical 
or recreational cannabis in the United States or any other applicable jurisdiction could affect future legislation or 
regulation. Among other things, such a shift could cause state jurisdictions to abandon initiatives or proposals to 
legalize medical and/or recreational cannabis, thereby limiting the number of new state jurisdictions into which the 
Company could expand. Any inability to fully implement the Company’s expansion strategy may have a material 
adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. 

U.S. Border Officials could deny entry into the U.S. to management, employees and/or investors in companies 
with cannabis operations in the U.S. 

Because cannabis remains illegal under U.S. federal law, those employed at or investing in legal and licensed 
Canadian cannabis companies could face detention, denial of entry or lifetime bans from the U.S. for their business 
associations with U.S. cannabis businesses. Entry happens at the sole discretion of the U.S. Customs and Border 
Protection officers on duty, and these officers have wide latitude to ask questions to determine the admissibility of a 
foreign national. The government of Canada has started warning travelers on its website that previous use of 
cannabis, or any substance prohibited by U.S. federal laws, could mean denial of entry to the U.S. Business or 
financial involvement in the legal cannabis industry in Canada or in the United States could also be reason enough 
for U.S. border guards to deny entry. On September 21, 2018, U.S. Customs and Border Protection released a 
statement outlining its current position with respect to enforcement of the laws of the United States. On October 9, 
2018, U.S. Customs and Border Protection provided an update to such statement. It stated that Canada’s legalization 
of cannabis will not change U.S. Customs and Border Protection enforcement of United States laws regarding 
controlled substances and because cannabis continues to be a controlled substance under United States law, working 
in or facilitating the proliferation of the legal marijuana industry in U.S. states where it is deemed legal or Canada 
may affect admissibility to the U.S. As a result, U.S. Customs and Border Protection has affirmed that, employees, 
directors, officers, managers and investors of companies involved in business activities related to cannabis in the 
U.S. or Canada (such as the Company), who are not U.S. citizens face the risk of being barred from entry into the 
United States for life. The Company’s business and investments are located in the United States and while the 
majority of the Company’s directors, officers and employees are currently resident and located in the United States, 
if any of the Company’s directors, officers and employees are determined to be inadmissible to enter the United 
States, this could have a negative impact on the Company’s ability to operate in the United States. In addition, the 
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perception that involvement in the cannabis industry could lead to inadmissibility to the United States could make it 
more difficult for the Company to engage qualified directors, officers and employees in the future.  

Regulatory scrutiny of the Company’s industry may negatively impact its ability to raise additional capital. 

The Company’s business activities rely on newly established and/or developing laws and regulations in Washington 
State. These laws and regulations are rapidly evolving and subject to change with minimal notice. Regulatory 
changes may adversely affect the Company’s profitability or cause it to cease operations entirely. The cannabis 
industry may come under the scrutiny or further scrutiny by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, Securities and 
Exchange Commission, the DOJ, the Financial Industry Regulatory Advisory or other federal, Washington State or 
other applicable state or nongovernmental regulatory authorities or self-regulatory organizations that supervise or 
regulate the production, distribution, sale or use of cannabis for medical or nonmedical purposes in the United 
States. It is impossible to determine the extent of the impact of any new laws, regulations or initiatives that may be 
proposed, or whether any proposals will become law. The regulatory uncertainty surrounding the Company’s 
industry may adversely affect the business and operations of the Company, including without limitation, the costs to 
remain compliant with applicable laws and the impairment of its ability to raise additional capital, which could 
reduce, delay or eliminate any return on investment in the Company. 

The size of the Company’s target market is difficult to quantify and investors will be reliant on their own 
estimates on the accuracy of market data. 

Because the cannabis industry is in an early stage with uncertain boundaries, there is a lack of information about 
comparable companies available for potential investors to review in deciding about whether to invest in the 
Company and, few, if any, established companies whose business model the Company can follow or upon whose 
success the Company can build. Accordingly, investors will have to rely on their own estimates in deciding about 
whether to invest in the Company. There can be no assurance that the Company’s estimates are accurate or that the 
market size is sufficiently large for its business to grow as projected, which may negatively impact its financial 
results. The Company regularly purchases and follows market research. 

The Company may have difficulty accessing the service of banks and processing credit card payments in the 
future, which may make it difficult for the Company to operate. 

In February 2014, the Financial Crimes Enforcement Network (“FinCEN”) bureau of the U.S. Treasury Department 
issued guidance (which is not law) with respect to financial institutions providing banking services to cannabis 
business, including burdensome due diligence expectations and reporting requirements. This guidance does not 
provide any safe harbors or legal defenses from examination or regulatory or criminal enforcement actions by the 
DOJ, FinCEN or other federal regulators. Thus, most banks and other financial institutions do not appear to be 
comfortable providing banking services to cannabis-related businesses, or relying on this guidance, which can be 
amended or revoked at any time by the Trump Administration. 

In addition to the foregoing, banks may refuse to process debit card payments and credit card companies generally 
refuse to process credit card payments for cannabis-related businesses. As a result, the Company may have limited 
or no access to banking or other financial services in the United States and may have to operate the Company’s U.S. 
business on an all-cash basis. The inability or limitation in the Company’s ability to open or maintain bank accounts, 
obtain other banking services and/or accept credit card and debit card payments may make it difficult for the 
Company to operate and conduct its business as planned. The Company is actively pursuing alternatives that ensure 
its operations will continue to be compliant with the FinCEN guidance and existing disclosures around cash 
management and reporting to the IRS once it moves from development into production. 

U.S. Federal trademark and patent protection may not be available for the intellectual property of the Company 
due to the current classification of cannabis as a Schedule I controlled substance. 

As long as cannabis remains illegal under U.S. federal law as a Schedule I controlled substance pursuant to the CSA, 
the benefit of certain federal laws and protections which may be available to most businesses, such as federal 
trademark and patent protection regarding the intellectual property of a business, may not be available to the 
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Company. As a result, the Company’s intellectual property may never be adequately or sufficiently protected against 
the use or misappropriation by third-parties. In addition, since the regulatory framework of the cannabis industry is 
in a constant state of flux, the Company can provide no assurance that it will ever obtain any protection of its 
intellectual property, whether on a federal, state or local level. 

The Company’s contracts may not be legally enforceable in the United States. 

Because the Company’s contracts involve cannabis and other activities that are not legal under U.S. federal law and 
in some jurisdictions, the Company may face difficulties in enforcing its contracts in U.S. federal and certain state 
courts. 

Due to the classification of cannabis as a Schedule I controlled substance under the CSA, banks and other 
financial institutions which service the cannabis industry are at risk of violating certain financial laws, including 
anti-money laundering statutes. 

Because the manufacture, distribution, and dispensation of cannabis remains illegal under the CSA, banks and other 
financial institutions providing services to cannabis-related businesses risk violation of federal anti-money 
laundering statutes (18 U.S.C. §§ 1956 and 1957), the unlicensed money-remitter statute (18 U.S.C. § 1960) and the 
U.S. Bank Secrecy Act. These statutes can impose criminal liability for engaging in certain financial and monetary 
transactions with the proceeds of a “specified unlawful activity” such as distributing controlled substances which are 
illegal under federal law, including cannabis, and for failing to identify or report financial transactions that involve 
the proceeds of cannabis-related violations of the CSA. The Company may also be exposed to the foregoing risks. 

In the event that any of the Company’s investments, or any proceeds thereof, any dividends or distributions 
therefrom, or any profits or revenues accruing from such investments in the United States were found to be in 
violation of money laundering legislation or otherwise, such transactions may be viewed as proceeds of crime under 
one or more of the statutes noted above or any other applicable legislation. This could restrict or otherwise 
jeopardize the ability of the Company to declare or pay dividends, effect other distributions or subsequently 
repatriate such funds back to Canada. Furthermore, while the Company has no current intention to declare or pay 
dividends in the foreseeable future, in the event that a determination was made that any such investments in the 
United States could reasonably be shown to constitute proceeds of crime, the Company may decide or be required to 
suspend declaring or paying dividends without advance notice and for an indefinite period of time. 

Risks Related to the Company’s Securities 

The Company cannot assure you that a market will continue to develop or exist for the Common Shares or what 
the market price of the Common Shares will be. 

The Company cannot assure that a market will continue to develop or be sustained once the Company’s shares are 
listed on the CSE. If a market does not continue to develop or is not sustained, it may be difficult for investors to sell 
the Common Shares at an attractive price or at all. The Company cannot predict the prices at which the Common 
Shares will trade. 

It may be difficult, if not impossible, for U.S. holders of the Common Shares to resell them over the CSE. 

It has recently come to management’s attention that all major securities clearing firms in the U.S. have ceased 
participating in transactions related securities of Canadian public companies involved in the medical marijuana 
industry. This appears to be due to the fact that marijuana continues to be listed as a controlled substance under U.S. 
federal law, with the result that marijuana-related practices or activities, including the cultivation, possession or 
distribution of marijuana, are illegal under U.S. federal law. However, management understands that the action by 
U.S. securities clearing firms also extends to securities of companies that carry on business operations entirely 
outside the U.S. Accordingly, U.S. residents who acquire the Common Shares as “restricted securities” (including 
any Common Shares pursuant to the exercise of Warrants) may find it difficult – if not impossible – to resell such 
shares over the facilities of any Canadian stock exchange on which the shares may then be listed. It remains unclear 
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what impact, if any, this and any future actions among market participants in the U.S. will have on the ability of U.S. 
residents to resell any common shares of the Company that they may acquire in open market transactions. 

The market price for the Company’s shares may be volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in response to 
numerous factors, many of which are beyond the Company’s control. 

The market price for the Company’s shares may be volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in response to numerous 
factors, many of which are beyond the Company’s control, including the following: 

 actual or anticipated fluctuations in the Company’s quarterly results of operations; 
 recommendations by securities research analysts; 
 changes in the economic performance or market valuations of companies in the industry in which the 

Company operates; 
 addition or departure of the Company’s executive officers and other key personnel; 
 release or expiration of lock-up or other transfer restrictions on outstanding Common Shares; 
 sales or perceived sales of additional Common Shares; 
 significant acquisitions or business combinations, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital 

commitments by or involving us or the Company’s competitors; 
 operating and share price performance of other companies that investors deem comparable to us; 

fluctuations to the costs of vital production materials and services; 
 changes in global financial markets and global economies and general market conditions, such as interest 

rates and pharmaceutical product price volatility; 
 operating and share price performance of other companies that investors deem comparable to the Company 

or from a lack of market comparable companies; 
 news reports relating to trends, concerns, technological or competitive developments, regulatory changes 

and other related issues in the Company’s industry or target markets; and 
 regulatory changes in the industry. 

Financial markets have recently experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have particularly affected 
the market prices of equity securities of companies and that have often been unrelated to the operating performance, 
underlying asset values or prospects of such companies. Accordingly, the market price of the Common Shares may 
decline even if the Company’s operating results, underlying asset values or prospects have not changed. 
Additionally, these factors, as well as other related factors, may cause decreases in asset values that are deemed to 
be other than temporary, which might result in impairment losses. There can be no assurance that continuing 
fluctuations in price and volume will not occur. If such increased levels of volatility and market turmoil continue, 
the Company’s operations could be adversely affected and the trading price of the Common Shares might be 
materially adversely affected. 

The Company is subject to uncertainty regarding legal and regulatory status and changes. 

Achievement of the Company’s business objectives is also contingent, in part, upon compliance with other 
regulatory requirements enacted by governmental authorities and obtaining other required regulatory approvals. The 
regulatory regime applicable to the cannabis business in Canada and the US is currently undergoing significant 
proposed changes and the Company cannot predict the impact of the regime on its business once the structure of the 
regime is finalized. Similarly, the Company cannot predict the timeline required to secure all appropriate regulatory 
approvals for its products, or the extent of testing and documentation that may be required by governmental 
authorities. Any delays in obtaining, or failing to obtain, required regulatory approvals may significantly delay or 
impact the development of markets, products and sales initiatives and could have a material adverse effect on the 
business, results of operations and financial condition of the Company. The Company will incur ongoing costs and 
obligations related to regulatory compliance. Failure to comply with regulations may result in additional costs for 
corrective measures, penalties or in restrictions on the Company’s operations. In addition, changes in regulations, 
more vigorous enforcement thereof or other unanticipated events could require extensive changes to the Company’s 
operations, increased compliance costs or give rise to material liabilities, which could have a material adverse effect 
on the business, results of operations and financial condition of the Company. 
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The Company does not anticipate paying cash dividends. 

The Company’s current policy is to retain earnings to finance the development and enhancement of its products and 
to otherwise reinvest in the Company. Therefore, the Company does not anticipate paying cash dividends on the 
Company’s shares in the foreseeable future. The Company’s dividend policy will be reviewed from time to time by 
the Company’s board in the context of its earnings, financial condition and other relevant factors. Until the time that 
the Company pays dividends, which the Company might never do, Company shareholders will not be able to receive 
a return on their Common Shares unless they sell them. 

Future sales of Common Shares by existing shareholders could reduce the market price of the Common Shares. 

Sales of a substantial number of Common Shares in the public market could occur at any time. These sales, or the 
market perception that the holders of a large number of Common Shares intend to sell Common Shares, could 
reduce the market price of the Common Shares. Additional Common Shares may be available for sale into the public 
market, subject to applicable securities laws, which could reduce the market price for Common Shares. Holders of 
Options or Warrants or Agent’s Options will have an immediate income inclusion for tax purposes when they 
exercise their Options, Warrants or Agent’s Options (that is, tax is not deferred until they sell the underlying 
Common Shares). As a result, these holders may need to sell Common Shares purchased on the exercise of Options, 
Warrants or Agent’s Options in the same year that they exercise their options. This might result in a greater number 
of Common Shares being sold in the public market, and fewer long-term holds of Common Shares by the 
Company’s management and employees. 

PROMOTERS 

Herrick Lau may be considered a promoter of the Company within the meaning of applicable securities laws. 
Herrick Lau currently owns 5,000 Common Shares and 450,000 Options to purchase 450,000 Common Shares. 
Herrick Lau does not receive compensation from the Company for his services as CFO, Corporate Secretary and 
Director of the Company.  

Other than as disclosed in this section or elsewhere in this Prospectus, no person who was a promoter of the 
Company within the last two years: 

 received anything of value directly or indirectly from the Company or a subsidiary; 

 sold or otherwise transferred any asset to the Company or a subsidiary within the last two years; 

 has been a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer of any company that during the past 10 
years was the subject of a cease trade order or similar order or an order that denied the company access to 
any exemptions under securities legislation for a period of more than 30 consecutive days or became 
bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or been subject to or 
instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver or receiver 
manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets; 

 has been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to Canadian securities legislation 
or by a Canadian securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a Canadian 
securities regulatory authority; 

 has been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would be 
likely to be considered important to a reasonable investor making an investment decision; or 

has within the past 10 years become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or 
insolvency or been subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a 
receiver or receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets. 
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

There are no legal proceedings material to the Company to which the Company is a party or of which any of its 
property is the subject matter, and there are no such proceedings known to the Company to be contemplated. 

INTERESTS OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS 

Other than as disclosed herein, no director, officer, Insider or Promoter of the Company has had any material 
interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction since incorporation to the date hereof that has materially affected or is 
reasonably expected to materially affect the Company. 

AUDITORS 

The auditor for the Company is Manning Elliott LLP of 1030 West Georgia St., 17th Floor, Vancouver, British 
Columbia V6E 2Y3. Manning Elliott LLP has confirmed that they are independent of the Company within the 
meaning of the “CPABC Code of Professional Conduct” of the Chartered Professional Accountants of British 
Columbia. 

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR 

The transfer agent and registrar for the Company’s securities is Odyssey Trust Company, at its principal offices 
located at Vancouver, British Columbia. 

MATERIAL CONTRACTS 

Other than contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, the following are the only material contracts 
entered into by the Company or its Subsidiaries within two years prior to the date of this Prospectus which are 
currently in effect and considered to be currently material:  

Contract Parties Date Nature of Contract and Consideration 

TimberLand Credit 
Agreement 

Agrios Global Holdings 
Inc. and TimberLand Bay 
Properties, LLC 

December 19, 
2017 

Secured credit agreement whereby Agrios, as lender, 
agrees to make loans to TimberLand in the maximum 
amount of US$1,000,000 (the “Loan”). The Loan 
carries an interest rate of 2% per annum. As security 
for the Loan, TimberLand granted to the Company a 
deed of trust in respect of the Shelton Facility.  

Merger Agreement Agrios Global Holdings 
Inc., TimberLand Bay 
Properties, LLC and 
Agrios Merger Sub 
(Washington) Inc. 

February 26, 
2018, as 
amended by 
agreement 
dated May 30, 
2018 

See “Merger with TimberLand”. 

Building Lease EH Enterprises 
Management, Inc. and 
TimberLand Bay 
Properties, LLC 

April 1, 2018 Rental of building and providing maintenance, 
security, and building management services. 

Consideration for the leased building is to be paid on 
a monthly basis. Fees for other services shall be all of 
the costs to provide services to EH that are actually 
incurred by TimberLand plus a reasonable mark-up 
for services rendered. 
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Contract Parties Date Nature of Contract and Consideration 

Consulting and Supply 
Agreement 

EH Enterprises 
Management, Inc. and 
Rainier Product Services, 
LLC 

April 1, 2018 Rainier is to provide EH with certain consulting 
services including general marketing support, 
advising on and wholesale and brokering of nutrients 
and supplies for maximizing the yield on cannabis 
production, recommending non-cannabis supplies and 
suppliers, advising on product purchasing and 
inventory strategies, and coordination of EH’s 
product deliveries. 

Equipment Lease and 
Services Agreement 

EH Enterprises 
Management, Inc. and 
TimberLand Bay 
Properties, LLC 

April 1, 2018 TimberLand leases certain equipment to EH and 
provides certain maintenance and management of the 
specialty equipment leased. 

Consideration for the leased equipment is to be paid 
on a monthly basis. Fees for equipment service shall 
be all of the costs to provide equipment services to 
EH that are actually incurred by TimberLand plus a 
reasonable mark-up for services rendered. 

Financial Services 
Agreement 

EH Enterprises 
Management, Inc. and 
First Cascade Financial 
Services, LLC 

April 1, 2018 First Cascade provides EH administrative, financial, 
and other support services necessary to permit EH to 
devote full efforts to the production and processing of 
cannabis and cannabis goods while ensuring that EH 
meets all of its tax, record keeping and accounting 
obligations. 

Consideration for the administrative and financial 
services shall be an agreed upon set monthly fee and 
the actual cost plus a reasonable mark-up for 
purchased services. 

License and 
Consulting Agreement 

EH Enterprises 
Management, Inc. and 
Pacific Green Technology 
and Agronomy, LLC 

April 1, 2018 Pacific Green licenses to EH the intellectual property 
of Pacific Green for use in connection with EH’s 
grow operations. The intellectual property consists of 
certain proprietary and innovative technology relating 
to plant cultivation including without limitation 
proprietary facility designs, control systems, 
proprietary software connecting grow software to 
building equipment, and grow recipes/formulas and 
data that may be used in connection with third party 
plan growth software. Pacific Green also advises on 
strategies and methods for cannabis production and 
processing. 

Consideration for the license will be an agreed upon 
set monthly fee in the amount of and consulting fees 
per monthly invoices representing all costs actually 
incurred by Pacific Green in connection with its 
provisions of the services to EH. 



 

82 
 

Contract Parties Date Nature of Contract and Consideration 

Citizens Facility 
Agreement 

Citizens Bank of Newburg 
and TimberLand Bay 
Properties, LLC 

May 18, 2018 Promissory note and security agreement providing for 
a US$4,500,000 credit facility at an interest rate of 
4.75%. Payments of $105,330 are due every three 
months starting August 18, 2018. The credit facilities 
are repayable in full on maturity (May 18, 2020). As 
security for the credit facilities, TimberLand granted 
security in the form of a security interest in all 
equipment, inventory, accounts receivable and 
intangibles owned by TimberLand and a deed of trust 
against the Shelton Facility.  

Cooperation 
Agreement 

Greenfields Agritech 
Limited and Yunnan Hua 
Fang Health Management 
Co., Ltd. 

May 27, 2018 Cooperation agreement to establish a joint venture 
between Greenfields and YHFHMC with respect to 
hemp project investment, sales, supply, hemp oil 
extraction technology and integrated development and 
application of hemp oil in other areas. YHFHMC 
agrees to be Greenfields’ exclusive supplier of hemp 
products and to assist with relevant licenses/permits 
required in operations. Greenfields and YHFHMC 
respective profit allocation is 65% and 36%. 

Clarus 360 Productions 
Inc. 

Agrios Global Holdings 
Inc. 

June 15, 2018 Clarus 360 Productions Inc. (“Clarus”) provides 
consulting services with the Company’s management 
and/or Board regarding corporate communications 
strategies and policies, provides assistance with 
development of corporate policies, provides investor 
relations services and assists with management of 
corporate communications.  

Consideration for the services is $9,000 per month for 
an initial term of one year. 

Greenfields LOI Agrios Global Holdings 
Inc., Agrios Asia Holdings 
Limited, Greenfields 
Agritech Limited, and the 
Greenfields Shareholder 

July 20, 2018 See “The Business – Acquisition of Greenfields”. 

Copies of the above material contracts can be inspected at the Company’s head office during regular business hours 
for a period of 30 days after a final receipt is issued for this Prospectus and are also available electronically at 
www.sedar.com. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

Certain Canadian legal matters in connection with this Prospectus will be passed upon by McMillan LLP, on behalf 
of the Company. As at the date hereof, the partners and associates of McMillan LLP, as a group, beneficially own, 
directly or indirectly, less than one percent of the outstanding Common Shares of the Company. 

INTERESTS OF EXPERTS 

The following are persons or companies whose profession or business gives authority to a statement made in this 
Prospectus as having prepared or certified a part of that document or report described in the Prospectus: 

 McMillan LLP is the Company’s counsel with respect to Canadian legal matters herein;  
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 Manning Elliott LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants is the external auditor of the Company and 
reported on the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the period 
ended March 31, 2017 attached as Schedule “A”; and 

 Manning Elliott LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants is the external auditor of TimberLand and 
reported on TimberLand’s audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the period 
ended March 31, 2017 attached as Schedule “C”. 

To the knowledge of management, as of the date hereof, no expert, nor any associate or affiliate of such person has 
any beneficial interest, direct or indirect, in the securities or property of the Company or of an associate or affiliate 
of any of them, and no such person is or is expected to be elected, appointed or employed as a director, officer or 
employee of the Company or of an associate or affiliate thereof. 

OTHER MATERIAL FACTS 

To the knowledge of management, there are no other material facts relating to the Company that are not otherwise 
disclosed in this Prospectus or are necessary for this Prospectus to contain full, true and plain disclosure of all 
material facts relating to the Company.  
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INFORMATION REGARDING TIMBERLAND 

CORPORATE STRUCTURE 

Name, Address and Incorporation 

TimberLand is a limited liability company formed under the laws of the State of Washington on March 20, 2017 
under the name “BDB Finance and Leasing Two, LLC”. On April 24, 2018, TimberLand changed its name to 
“TimberLand Bay Properties LLC”. On June 8, 2018, TimberLand became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Agrios as 
a result of the TimberLand Acquisition. 

TimberLand’s head office is located at 111 Sargison Loop, Shelton, Washington 98584. TimberLand’s registered 
office is located at KTC Service Corporation, 701 Fifth Avenue, Suite 3300, Seattle, Washington, 98104.  

Intercorporate Relationships 

TimberLand has no subsidiaries. 

THE BUSINESS 

Overview 

TimberLand provides real property and equipment for lease to the agricultural and cannabis industries in the State of 
Washington. TimberLand provides an integrated facility (the “Shelton Facility”) for Tier 3 WSLCB producer and 
production license holders (“License Holders”) in Shelton, Washington. TimberLand owns the necessary 
equipment required for License Holders in both the production and processing of cannabis. TimberLand leases the 
equipment to the License Holders operating out of the Shelton Facility as well as provides maintenance and support 
services for the equipment. On April 1, 2018, TimberLand entered into an equipment lease and services agreement 
with EH. See “Material Contracts of TimberLand”. 

TimberLand has leased 30,000 square feet of canopy space and about 42,000 square feet of space for product 
processing, and product drying to License Holders at its Shelton Facility. The Shelton Facility provides aeroponic 
technologies and growing equipment along with methods in bio-monitored grow rooms monitored by an information 
technology system to optimize growing conditions and increase plant yields. The benefits of the technology used in 
the Shelton Facility for License Holders include: 

 Precision agriculture techniques (sensors, data collection, and networked monitoring); 
 Aeroponics (exposed roots nutrient spray); 
 Automation (monitoring the environment for optimal growing conditions and inventory control); and 
 Bio controls (maintain facility through proprietary methods). 

On February 26, 2018, TimberLand entered into the Merger Agreement with an arms-length party, Agrios, and 
Agrios MergerSub, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Agrios. The transaction was structured as a business combination, 
specifically as a triangular merger under the Washington Business Corporations Act Title 23B RCW, pursuant to 
which Agrios MergerSub was merged with and into TimberLand, with TimberLand as the surviving entity and a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of Agrios (the “TimberLand Acquisition”). The TimberLand Acquisition closed on June 
8, 2018.  

TimberLand’s head office is located at 111 Sargison Loop, Shelton, Washington 98584. TimberLand’s registered 
office is located at KTC Service Corporation, 701 Fifth Avenue, Suite 3300, Seattle, Washington, 98104. 

Development  

TimberLand is a limited liability company formed under the laws of the State of Washington on March 20, 2017 
under the name “BDB Finance and Leasing Two, LLC”. On April 24, 2018, TimberLand changed its name to 
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“TimberLand Bay Properties LLC”. On June 8, 2018, TimberLand became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Agrios as 
a result of the TimberLand Acquisition. 

TimberLand owns the necessary equipment required for License Holders in both the production and processing of 
cannabis. TimberLand leases the equipment to the License Holders operating out of the Shelton Facility as well as 
provides maintenance and support services for the equipment. On April 1, 2018, TimberLand entered into an 
equipment lease and services agreement with EH. See “Material Contracts of TimberLand”. 

Merger with Agrios 

On February 26, 2018, TimberLand entered into the Merger Agreement with an arms-length party, Agrios, and 
Agrios MergerSub, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Agrios. The transaction was structured as a business combination, 
specifically as a triangular merger under the Washington Business Corporations Act Title 23B RCW, pursuant to 
which Agrios MergerSub was merged with and into TimberLand, with TimberLand as the surviving entity and a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of Agrios. The consideration paid by Agrios to TimberLand members was based on 
management’s valuation of TimberLand at US$23,000,000 (as determined through negotiations with TimberLand) 
and Agrios satisfied this price through: 

 the issuance of 29,166,667 Common Shares to TimberLand members (at a deemed price of $0.60 per 
Common Share); 

 Agrios’ assumption of TimberLand debt in the amount of US$4,500,000; and 
 Agrios’ advance of US$4,500,000 loan to TimberLand for the purposes of the Phase II buildout of the 

Shelton Facility. 

In connection with the assumption of TimberLand debt, Agrios secured a mortgage facility with Citizens Bank of 
Newburg (the “Citizens Facility Agreement”) in the amount of $5,778,686, which was used to settled three 
separate credit facilities. In connection with the execution of the Citizens Facility Agreement, Agrios, through 
TimberLand, granted security in the form of a security interest in all equipment, inventory, accounts receivable and 
intangibles owned by TimberLand and granted a deed of trust against the Shelton Facility. In addition, James Foster 
and Larry Ellison have provided guarantees in respect of the Citizens Facility Agreement.  

On December 19, 2017, upon notice by TimberLand that an advance of funds prior to closing of the Merger 
Agreement would be necessary to continue construction efforts at the Shelton Facility, Agrios entered into a secured 
credit agreement with TimberLand, (the “TimberLand Credit Agreement”) pursuant to which Agrios advanced 
US$700,000. Agrios provided an additional advance of US$4,652,920 upon execution of the Merger Agreement on 
February 26, 2018.  Management of the Agrios determined that amounts in excess of US$4,500,000 were necessary 
to assist with the operation of TimberLand and the Shelton Facility. Such advances satisfied the Agrios’ obligation 
to advance US4,500,000 to TimberLand for the purposes of the Phase II buildout of the Shelton Facility. The 
obligations under the TimberLand Credit Agreement are secured by a deed of trust relating to the Shelton Facility. 

Upon completion of the merger on June 8, 2018, TimberLand members (including, but not limited to James F. 
Foster and Larry Ellison, two current directors of Agrios) were issued 29,166,667 Common Shares. 

The Shelton Facility  

Since formation on March 2 2017, TimberLand has focused on the acquisition of property and equipment at the 
Sheltono Facility. It acquired the land and buildings comprising the Shelton Facility for an aggregate amount of 
$3,785,331 and has spent an additional $2,006,067 as of March 31, 2018 for the acquisition of equipment at the 
Shelton Facility. TimberLand has pledged its interest in the Shelton Facility as security to Agrios pursuant to the 
TimberLand Credit Agreement. In addition, TimberLand, granted security in the form of a security interest in all 
equipment, inventory, accounts receivable and intangibles owned by TimberLand and granted a deed of trust against 
the Shelton Facility, each in respect of the Citizens Facility Agreement. See “Merger with TimberLand” above. 

TimberLand has leased 30,000 square feet of canopy space and about 42,000 square feet of space for product 
processing, and product drying to License Holders at its Shelton Facility. The Shelton Facility provides aeroponic 
technologies and growing equipment along with methods in bio-monitored grow rooms monitored by an information 
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technology system to optimize growing conditions and increase plant yields. The benefits of the technology used in 
the Shelton Facility for License Holders include: 

 Precision agriculture techniques (sensors, data collection, and networked monitoring); 
 Aeroponics (exposed roots nutrient spray); 
 Automation (monitoring the environment for optimal growing conditions and inventory control); and 
 Bio controls (maintain facility through proprietary methods). 

On April 1, 2018, TimberLand, as successor in interest, became party to a building lease agreement with EH with 
respect to the Shelton Facility. The original lease for the Shelton Facility, located at 111 Sargison Loop, Shelton, 
WA, USA 98584, was made between Black Diamond Finance and Leasing, LLC, a Washington limited liability 
company and EH on January 25, 2017, and was amended to include BDB Finance and Leasing Two, LLC, as 
landlord. BDB Finance and Leasing Two, LLC changed its name to Timberland Bay Properties, LLC on April 24, 
2018.  On May 17, 2018, the TimberLand, EH and Onyx Agronomics, Inc. entered into a lease assignment 
agreement effective once the transfer of the Tier 3 Producer/ Processor marijuana license (#425183) from EH to 
Onyx Agronomics, Inc. is approved by the WSLCB. TimberLand expects such transfer to be completed as early as 
October 31, 2018. Once effective, Onyx Agronomics, Inc. will become the tenant under the lease. The existing lease 
for the premises commenced on April 1, 2018 and terminates twenty-four months thereafter. Monthly base rent for 
the premises, due on the first of the month, is US$82,500.  Rent accrues under the lease on a monthly basis; 
however, payment of rent is deferred until the first full month after the first harvest of cannabis. At such time, the 
tenant has six months to repay all deferred rent. See “Material Contracts of TimberLand”. 

The WSLCB has completed all necessary inspections of the Shelton Facility and has approved for operations. 
According to applicable laws in the State of Washington, TimberLand, as landlord of the Shelton Facility, is not 
required to obtain any form of a license to lease the Shelton Facility to a lessee with cannabis operations. 

Agreements with EH Enterprises Management, Inc. 

TimberLand has entered into certain agreements with EH, a License Holder in the State of Washington, including: 

1. a building lease between EH and TimberLand respecting the Shelton Facility; and 
2. an equipment lease and services agreement between EH and TimberLand. 

Principal Products and Services 

TimberLand provides an integrated facility, the technology, and the structure to comply with Washington and 
municipal cannabis laws in Shelton, Washington (“Shelton Facility”).  

TimberLand has leased 30,000 square feet of canopy space and about 42,000 square feet of space for product 
processing, and product drying to License Holders at its Shelton Facility. The Shelton Facility provides aeroponic 
technologies and growing equipment along with methods in bio-monitored grow rooms monitored by an information 
technology system to optimize growing conditions and increase plant yields. The benefits of the technology used in 
the Shelton Facility for License Holders include: 

 Precision agriculture techniques (sensors, data collection, and networked monitoring); 
 Aeroponics (exposed roots nutrient spray); 
 Automation (monitoring the environment for optimal growing conditions and inventory control); and 
 Bio controls (maintain facility through proprietary methods. 

Employees, Specialized Skill and Knowledge 

As of the date of this Prospectus, TimberLand has three individuals working. The operations of TimberLand are 
managed by its managers and officers.  

The nature of TimberLand’s business requires specialized knowledge and technical skill around the cultivating, 
harvesting, production, and regulations of cannabis and the cannabis industry. 
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The required skills and knowledge to succeed in this industry are available to TimberLand through certain members 
of TimberLand’s management team. 

Proprietary Protection 

TimberLand currently relies on trade secrets and proprietary knowledge.  

Employees 

As of March 31, 2018, TimberLand had three employees. TimberLand also relies on consultants and contractors to 
conduct its operations.  

Foreign Operations 

TimberLand conducts its business in the State of Washington in the United States.  

Bankruptcy and Similar Procedures 

TimberLand has not been involved in any bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings or any voluntary 
bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings since incorporation or completed during or proposed for the current 
financial year. 

DIVIDENDS OR DISTRIBUTIONS 

TimberLand has not declared dividends on any of its securities in the past and do not intend to pay any in the 
foreseeable future. Any future determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of the manager of 
TimberLand and will depend on the financial condition, business environment, operating results, capital 
requirements, any contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends and any other factors that the manager deems 
relevant. 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Attached to this Prospectus at Schedule “D” is the TimberLand MD&A. The TimberLand MD&A provides an 
analysis of TimberLand’s financial results for: (i) the period from the date of formation on March 20, 2017 to March 
31, 2017; (ii) the year ended March 31, 2018; and (iii) the three months ended June 30, 2018, which should be read 
in conjunction with the financial statements of TimberLand for the corresponding period, and the notes thereto 
respectively. 

Certain information included in the TimberLand MD&A is forward-looking and based upon assumptions and 
anticipated results that are subject to uncertainties. Should one or more of these uncertainties materialize or should 
the underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary significantly from those expected. See 
“Forward-Looking Statements” for further details.  

DESCRIPTION OF THE SECURITIES 

The authorized capital of TimberLand consists of an unlimited number of membership units (“TimberLand 
Units”).   

The holders of TimberLand Units (the “TimberLand Members”) are entitled to receive notice of and to attend and 
vote at all meetings of the TimberLand Members. In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of 
TimberLand, whether voluntary or involuntary, TimberLand Members are entitled to share rateably in such assets of 
TimberLand as are available for distribution. 

As of the date of this Prospectus, there is one (1) TimberLand Unit issued and outstanding, which is held by Agrios. 
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Capitalization 

There have been no material changes in the capitalization or in the indebtedness of TimberLand since formation on 
March 20, 2018. 

The following chart sets out the capitalization of TimberLand as at June 30, 2018 and the date of this Prospectus:  

 Amount Authorized 
Amount Outstanding as of 

June 30, 2018 
Amount Outstanding as of 
the date of this Prospectus 

TimberLand Units Unlimited 1 1 

 
     
Notes: 
(1) Issued to Agrios in connection with the TimberLand Acquisition. Upon closing of the TimberLand Acquisition, all 

previously issued and outstanding TimberLand Units (1,000 TimberLand Units) were cancelled.  
 

OPTION TO PURCHASE COMMON SHARES 

There are no options or other convertible securities of TimberLand issued and outstanding as of the date of this 
Prospectus. No such options or convertible securities have been granted by TimberLand since formation on March 
20, 2017. 

PRIOR SALES 

In the twelve months prior to the date of this Prospectus, TimberLand issued the following TimberLand Units and 
securities convertible into TimberLand Units: 

Date of Issuance Security Type Number of Securities Issue/Exercise Price  

June 8, 2018 TimberLand Units 1 (1) N/A 
     
Notes: 
(1) Issued to Agrios in connection with the TimberLand Acquisition.  
 

PRINCIPAL SECURITYHOLDERS 

To the knowledge of the managers and officers of TimberLand as of the date hereof, the following are the only 
persons that beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or exercise control or direction over voting securities carrying 
more than 10% of the voting rights attached to any class of voting securities of TimberLand: 

Name 
Number of TimberLand Units 
Owned, Controlled or Directed 

% of Outstanding Common 
Shares(1) 

Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. 1 100% 

     
Notes: 
(1) Percentage is based on one (1) TimberLand Unit issued and outstanding as of the date hereof. 
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ESCROWED SECURITIES 

As at the date of this Prospectus, there are no securities of TimberLand expected to be subject to escrow restrictions.  

TRADING PRICE AND VOLUME 

The TimberLand Units were not previously traded on any market or exchange. 

MANAGERS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

The names, municipalities of residence, number of voting securities beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or 
over which each exercises control or direction, and the offices held by each in TimberLand and the principal 
occupation of the mangers and senior officers of TimberLand during the past five years are as follows:  

Name and 
Municipality 

of Residence(1) Position Held(2) Principal Occupation for Last Five Years(3) 

Number of TimberLand Units Held Directly 
or Indirectly as of the date of this Prospectus 

(% of class)(4)  

TimberLand Units  (% of class) 

Chris Kennedy 

Washington, 
United States 

Chief Executive 
Officer, since 

June, 2018 

Business Development Director at Utah Educational 
Savings Plan from 2016 to 2018, Vice President of 
Strategic Initiatives at Alliance Health from 2009 to 

2016, and Managing Director at Inflection Point 
Strategies, LLC from 2015 to 2018 

Nil 0% 

Larry Ellison(5) 

Missouri, 
United States 

CFO and 
Controller, since 
February, 2018 

Certified Public Accountant providing business 
consulting, business valuation and litigation support 

services 

Nil 0% 

Agrios Global 
Holdings Ltd. 

British 
Columbia, 
Canada 

Manager since 
June, 2018 

N/A 1 100% 

     
Notes: 
(1) Information as to municipality of residence, principal occupation, securities beneficially owned or over which a manager or 

officer exercises control or direction has been furnished by the respective individuals as of the date of this Prospectus.  
(2) The term of office of the officers expires at the discretion of the manager. 
(3) See “Management and Key Personnel” for additional information regarding the principal occupations of TimberLand’s 

officers. 
(4) Based on one (1) issued and outstanding TimberLand Unit as of the date of this Prospectus. 
 

As of the date hereof, TimberLand’s managers and officers as a group, beneficially own, directly and indirectly, or 
exercise control or direction over, one (1) TimberLand Unit, representing 100% of the issued and outstanding 
TimberLand Units as of the date of this Prospectus. 

Corporate Cease Trade Orders and Bankruptcies 

To TimberLand’s knowledge, no existing or proposed manager, officer or promoter of TimberLand or a 
securityholder anticipated to hold a sufficient number of securities of TimberLand to affect materially the control of 
TimberLand, within 10 years of the date of this Prospectus, has been a director, officer or promoter of any person or 
company that, while that person was acting in that capacity, 
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(a) was the subject of a cease trade or similar order, or an order that denied the other issuer access to 
any exemptions under applicable securities law, for a period of more than 30 consecutive days; or 

(b) became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or 
was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a 
receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets. 

Penalties or Sanctions 

To TimberLand’s knowledge, no existing or proposed manager, officer or promoter of TimberLand, or a 
securityholder anticipated to hold sufficient securities of TimberLand to affect materially the control of TimberLand, 
has: 

(a) been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or by 
a securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a securities 
regulatory authority; or 

(b) been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body, including a 
self-regulatory body that would be likely to be considered important to a reasonable securityholder 
making a decision in regards to TimberLand. 

Personal Bankruptcies 

To TimberLand’s knowledge, no existing or proposed manager, officer or promoter of TimberLand, or a 
securityholder anticipated to hold sufficient securities of TimberLand to affect materially the control of TimberLand, 
or a personal holding company of such persons has, within the 10 years before the date of this Prospectus, become 
bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or been subject to or instituted 
any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee 
appointed to holder the assets of the director, officer or promoter. 

Conflicts of Interest  

Members of TimberLand’s management team are, and may in future be, associated with other firms involved in a 
range of business activities. Consequently, there are potential inherent conflicts of interest in their acting as officers 
and directors of our company. Although the officers and directors are engaged in other business activities, 
TimberLand anticipates they will devote an important amount of time to its affairs.  

TimberLand’s officers and directors are now and may in the future become shareholders, officers or directors of 
other companies, which may be formed for the purpose of engaging in business activities similar to TimberLand’s. 
Accordingly, additional direct conflicts of interest may arise in the future with respect to such individuals acting on 
behalf of us or other entities. Moreover, additional conflicts of interest may arise with respect to opportunities which 
come to the attention of such individuals in the performance of their duties or otherwise. Currently, TimberLand 
does not have a right of first refusal pertaining to opportunities that come to their attention and may relate to its 
business operations.  

TimberLand’s managers and officers are subject to fiduciary obligations to act in the best interest of TimberLand. 
Conflicts, if any, will be subject to the procedures and remedies in place under corporate law in the State of 
Washington. 

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

Compensation Discussion and Analysis  

The purpose of this Compensation Discussion and Analysis is to provide information about TimberLand’s executive 
compensation objectives and processes and to discuss compensation decisions relating to its named executive 



 

91 
 

officers (“Named Executive Officers” or “NEOs”) listed in the Summary Compensation Table set out below. In 
accordance with applicable securities legislation, TimberLand currently has two Named Executive Officers; being 
Chris Kennedy, CEO, and Larry Ellison, CFO and Controller. 

Agrios, as manager, assumes responsibility for reviewing and monitoring the long-range compensation strategy for 
the senior management of TimberLand although the Compensation Committee guides it in this role. In determining 
executive compensation, the manager considers TimberLand’s financial circumstances at the time decisions are 
made regarding executive compensation, and also the anticipated financial situation of TimberLand in the mid and 
long-term. 

Compensation Objectives and Principles 

The compensation program for the senior management of TimberLand is designed to ensure integration with 
TimberLand’s sole member, Agrios. TimberLand’s compensation of its senior management is limited to base salary. 
TimberLand does not provide any retirement benefits for its directors or officers.  

Elements of Compensation 

Base Salary 

In the manager’s view, paying base salaries which are reasonable in relation to the level of service expected while 
remaining competitive in the markets in which TimberLand operates is a first step to attracting and retaining 
qualified and effective executives. Competitive salary information on comparable companies within TimberLand’s 
industry is compiled from a variety of sources, including national and international publications. 

Compensation Process 

TimberLand does not have a compensation committee or a formal compensation policy. TimberLand relies solely on 
its manager to determine the compensation of the Named Executive Officers. In determining compensation, the 
manager considers industry standards and TimberLand’s financial situation, but TimberLand does not have any 
formal objectives or criteria. The performance of each executive officer is informally monitored by the manager, 
having in mind the business strengths of the individual and the purpose of originally appointing the individual as an 
officer.  

When considering the appropriate executive compensation to be paid to the officers of TimberLand, the manager has 
regard to a number of factors including: (i) recruiting and retaining executives critical to the success of TimberLand; 
(ii) integration with compensation objectives of TimberLand’s sole member, Agrios, (iii) providing fair and 
competitive compensation; (iv) rewarding performance, both on an individual basis and with respect to operations 
generally; and (v) available financial resources. 

Option-Based Awards 

TimberLand does not provide for any option or equity incentives to its executive officers.  

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

As at the date of this Prospectus, none of the directors and executive officers of TimberLand or Associates of such 
persons is indebted to TimberLand or another entity where the indebtedness is the subject of a guarantee, support 
agreement, letter of credit or other similar arrangement or understanding provided by TimberLand. 

PROMOTERS 

Other than as disclosed in this section or elsewhere in this Prospectus, no person who was a promoter of 
TimberLand within the last two years: 
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 received anything of value directly or indirectly from TimberLand or a subsidiary; 

 sold or otherwise transferred any asset to TimberLand or a subsidiary within the last two years; 

 has been a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer of any company that during the past 10 
years was the subject of a cease trade order or similar order or an order that denied the company access to 
any exemptions under securities legislation for a period of more than 30 consecutive days or became 
bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or been subject to or 
instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver or receiver 
manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets; 

 has been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to Canadian securities legislation 
or by a Canadian securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a Canadian 
securities regulatory authority; 

 has been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would be 
likely to be considered important to a reasonable investor making an investment decision; or 

has within the past 10 years become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or 
insolvency or been subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a 
receiver or receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets. 

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

There are no legal proceedings material to TimberLand to which TimberLand is a party or of which any of its 
property is the subject matter, and there are no such proceedings known to TimberLand to be contemplated. 

INTERESTS OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS 

Other than as disclosed herein, no director, officer, Insider or Promoter of TimberLand has had any material interest, 
direct or indirect, in any transaction since formation to the date hereof that has materially affected or is reasonably 
expected to materially affect TimberLand. 

MATERIAL CONTRACTS OF TIMBERLAND 

Other than contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, the following are the only material contracts 
entered into by TimberLand within two years prior to the date of this Prospectus which are currently in effect and 
considered to be currently material:  

Contract Parties Date Nature of Contract and Consideration 

TimberLand Credit 
Agreement 

Agrios Global Holdings 
Inc. and TimberLand Bay 
Properties, LLC 

December 19, 
2017 

Secured credit agreement whereby Agrios, as lender, 
agrees to make loans to TimberLand in the maximum 
amount of US$1,000,000 (the “Loan”). The Loan 
carries an interest rate of 2% per annum. As security 
for the Loan, TimberLand granted to the Company a 
deed of trust in respect of the Shelton Facility.  

Merger Agreement Agrios Global Holdings 
Inc., TimberLand Bay 
Properties, LLC and 
Agrios Merger Sub 
(Washington) Inc. 

February 26, 
2018 

See “Merger with TimberLand”. 
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Contract Parties Date Nature of Contract and Consideration 

Building Lease EH Enterprises 
Management, Inc. and 
TimberLand Bay 
Properties, LLC 

April 1, 2018 Rental of building and providing maintenance, 
security, and building management services. 

Consideration for the leased building is to be paid on 
a monthly basis. Fees for other services shall be all of 
the costs to provide services to EH that are actually 
incurred by TimberLand plus a reasonable mark-up 
for services rendered. 

Equipment Lease and 
Services Agreement 

EH Enterprises 
Management, Inc. and 
TimberLand Bay 
Properties, LLC 

April 1, 2018 TimberLand leases certain equipment to EH and 
provides certain maintenance and management of the 
specialty equipment leased. 

Consideration for the leased equipment is to be paid 
on a monthly basis. Fees for equipment service shall 
be all of the costs to provide equipment services to 
EH that are actually incurred by TimberLand plus a 
reasonable mark-up for services rendered. 

Citizens Facility 
Agreement 

Citizens Bank of Newburg 
and TimberLand Bay 
Properties, LLC 

May 18, 2018 Promissory note and security agreement providing for 
a US$4,500,000 credit facility at an interest rate of 
4.75%. Payments of $105,330 are due every three 
months starting August 18, 2018. The credit facilities 
are repayable in full on maturity (May 18, 2020). As 
security for the credit facilities, TimberLand granted 
security in the form of a security interest in all 
equipment, inventory, accounts receivable and 
intangibles owned by TimberLand and a deed of trust 
against the Shelton Facility.  

Copies of the above material contracts can be inspected at the head office of Agrios during regular business hours 
for a period of 30 days after a final receipt is issued for this Prospectus and are also available electronically at 
www.sedar.com. 

 



 

 

SCHEDULE “A” 

COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 



AGRIOS GLOBAL HOLDINGS LTD.
Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended March 31, 2018
and the Period Ended March 31, 2017

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of
Agrios Global Holdings Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. which comprise
the consolidated statements of financial position as at March 31, 2018 and 2017, and the consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the
period from formation to March 31, 2017, and the related notes comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. as at March 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year
ended March 31, 2018 and the period from formation to March 31, 2017 in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the consolidated financial statements which indicates
the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the ability of Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. to
continue as a going concern.

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS
Vancouver, British Columbia
October 26, 2018
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March 31,
2018

$

March 31,
2017

$

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash 66,270 -
Term deposit (Note 3) 1,800,000 -
Amounts receivable 2,291 1
Prepaid expenses and deposits 12,593 -
Due from Timberland Bay Properties LLC (Note 4) 6,905,982 -

8,787,136 1

Total assets 8,787,136 1

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 89,238 6

Total liabilities 89,238 6

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Share capital (Note 6) 8,733,823 1
Reserves (Note 6) 927,299 -
Deficit (963,224) (6)

Total shareholders’ equity 8,697,898 (5)

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 8,787,136 1

Nature of operations and continuance of business (Note 1)
Subsequent events (Note 10)

Approved and authorized for issuance on behalf of the Board of Directors on October 26, 2018:

“Larry Ellison” “Savio Chiu”
Larry Ellison, Director  Savio Chiu, Director
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Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss
For the year ended March 31, 2018 and the period from formation to March 31, 2017
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements)
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2018 2017
$ $

Expenses

Consulting fees 93,565 -
Filing fees 6,198 -
Interest and bank charges 1,941 6
Legal fees 87,031 -
Management salaries 39,162
Meals and Entertainment 12,751 -
Office and miscellaneous 7,037 -
Share-based payments 654,073 -
Travel and accommodations 60,002 -

961,760 6

Other items

Foreign exchange loss on translation of subsidiaries 970 -
Interest revenue  (3,912) -
Loss on foreign exchange 4,400 -

Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year 963,218 6

Loss per share, basic and diluted 0.15 6

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 6,596,667 1
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AGRIOS GLOBAL HOLDINGS LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2018 and the period from formation to March 31, 2017
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements)
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2018 2017
$ $

Operating activities
Net loss (963,218) (6)

Non-cash items:
Share-based payments 654,073 –

   Loss on foreign exchange (513) –
Changes in non-cash working capital balances:

Amounts receivable (2,290) (1)
Prepaid expenses and deposits (12,593) –
Accounts payable 89,232 6

Net cash used in operating activities (235,309) (1)

Investing activities
Purchase of term deposit (1,800,000) –
Advances to Timberland Bay Properties LLC (6,905,469) –

Net cash used in investing activities (8,705,469) –
Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of common shares 9,523,814 1
Shares issuance costs (516,765) –

Net cash provided by financing activities 9,007,048 –

Change in cash 66,270 –

Cash, beginning of year – –

Cash, end of year 66,270 –



AGRIOS GLOBAL HOLDINGS LTD.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018 and the period from formation to March 31, 2017
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
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1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS
Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated in British Columbia, Canada, on
February 18, 2017. On June 23, 2017, the Company changed its name from Sparrow Capital Corp. to
Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. The Company currently has no operating business and intends invest in
the Cannabis Industry. The Company’s head office is located at 1980 – 1075 West Georgia Street,
Vancouver, BC, Canada, V6E 3C9.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company will
continue as a going concern, which assumes that the Company will be able to realize its assets and
satisfy its liabilities in the normal course of business for the foreseeable future. Management is aware,
in making its going concern assessment, of material uncertainties related to events and conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company has not yet generated revenue from operations. The continued operations of the
Company are dependent on future profitable operations, management’s ability to manage costs, and
the future availability of equity or debt financing. Whether and when the Company can generate
sufficient operating cash flows to pay for its expenditures and settle its obligations as they fall due
subsequent to March 31, 2018, is uncertain. These financial statements do not reflect the
adjustments to the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the reported expenses and statement
of financial position classifications that would be necessary were the going concern assumption
inappropriate. These adjustments could be material.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and the interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee.

(b) Basis of Presentation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. In
addition, these financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting,
except for the cash flow information. The presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements is the Canadian dollar. The functional currency of the parent entity is the Canadian
dollar and the function currency of its wholly owned active subsidiary Agrios Global Holdings
(Washington) LLC is the United States dollar.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and the
following non-active subsidiaries:

Name Jurisdiction Parent company
Agrios Global Holdings
(USA), Inc.

Delaware, USA Agrios Global Holdings Ltd.

Rainier Product Services,
LLC

Washington, USA Agrios Global Holdings Ltd.

First Cascade Financial
Services, LLC

Washington, USA Agrios Global Holdings Ltd.

Pacific Green Technology
and Agronomy, LLC

Washington, USA Agrios Global Holdings Ltd.

In the opinion of the Company’s management, all adjustments considered necessary for a fair
presentation have been included.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018 and the period from formation to March 31, 2017
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Significant areas requiring the use of estimates include the measurement of unrecognized
deferred income tax assets.

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the
financial statements include the factors that are used in determining the application of the going
concern assumption which requires management to take into account all available information
about the future, which is at least but not limited to, 12 months from the year end of the reporting
period.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with a maturity of three months or less at the
time of issuance, are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value to be cash equivalents.

(e) Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s functional currency and reporting currency is the Canadian dollar. Transactions
denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the
transaction date or at an average rate. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange in effect at the statement of financial position
date. Non-monetary items are translated using the historical rate on the date of the transaction.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are included in the statement of operations.

(f) Share Capital

Common shares issued by the Company are classified as equity. Costs directly attributable to the
issue of common shares, share purchase warrants and share options are recognized as a
deduction from equity, net of any related income tax effects.

(g) Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of equity settled stock options awarded to employees defined under IFRS 2 Share-
based payments (i.e. employees for legal and tax purpose, directors and certain consultants),
determined as of the date of grant, and awarded to non-employees defined under IFRS 2, as of
the date of delivery of service, is recognized as share-based payments expense, included in
general and administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive loss, over the vesting
period of the stock options based on the estimated number of options expected to vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity.

Warrants that are issued as payment for an agency fee or other transaction costs are accounted
for as share-based payments.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Loss Per Share

Basic loss per common share is computed by dividing their respective net loss by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the period. The computation of diluted
loss per share assumes the conversion, exercise or contingent issuance of securities only when
such conversion, exercise or issuance would have a dilutive effect on the income per share. The
dilutive effect of convertible securities is reflected in the diluted loss per share by application of
the "if converted" method. The dilutive effect of outstanding incentive stock options and their
equivalents is reflected in the diluted loss per share by application of the treasury stock method.

(i) Provisions

Provisions are recorded when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of past
events where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. As at March
31, 2018, no provision has been recorded by the Company.

(j) Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss is the change in the Company’s net assets that results from transactions,
events and circumstances from sources other than the Company’s shareholders and includes
items that are not included in the statement of operations.

(k) Income Taxes

Income tax is recognized in the statement of operations except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity. Current tax expense is
the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at period end, adjusted for amendments to tax payable with regards to
previous years.

In general, deferred income tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined on a non-discounted basis using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date and are
expected to apply when the deferred income tax asset or liability is settled. Deferred income tax
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the assets can be recovered. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are presented as non-current.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(l) Financial Instruments

(i) Non-derivative financial assets

The Company initially recognizes loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they
are originated. All other financial assets (including assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss) are recognized initially on the trade date at which the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the
financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created
or retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts
and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss when the financial asset is
held for trading or it is designated as fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if: (i) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; (ii) it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the
Company manages and has an actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or (iii) it is a
derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value with any
gain or loss recognized in the statement of operations. The net gain or loss recognized
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset. Cash and term deposit is
classified as fair value through profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are recognized on a trade-date basis and are initially measured
at fair value, including transaction costs. The Company does not have any assets classified
as held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale and that are not classified in any of the previous categories. Subsequent to
initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than
impairment losses and foreign currency differences on available-for-sale equity instruments,
are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented within equity in the fair value
reserve. When an investment is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss in other
comprehensive income is transferred to the statement of operations. The Company does not
have any assets classified as available-for-sale.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables. Such assets are initially
recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses. Loans and receivables are comprised of
amounts due from Timberland Bay Properties LLC.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(l) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i) Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income or loss are reclassified to the
statement of operations in the period. Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the investments have
been impacted. For marketable securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the securities below their cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets objective evidence of impairment could include:

• significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
• default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
• it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as amounts receivable, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. The carrying amount of financial assets is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of amounts receivable, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When an amount receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in the statement of
operations.

With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed through the statement of operations to the extent that the carrying amount of
the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized. In respect of available-for-
sale equity securities, impairment losses previously recognized through the statement of
operations are not reversed through the statement of operations. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognized directly in equity.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(ii) Financial Instruments (continued)Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Company initially recognizes debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the
date that they are originated. All other financial liabilities (including liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss) are recognized initially on the trade at which the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts
and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Company’s accounts payable are considered non-derivative financial liabilities.

Such financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

(iii) Share capital

Common shares are classified as equity. Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue
of common shares and stock options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any
tax effects.

(m) Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective

Adoption of New Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Amendments:

There were no new or amended accounting standards scheduled for mandatory adoption on April
1, 2017 and thus no new or amended accounting standards were adopted in the year ended
March 31, 2018.

Accounting Standards and Amendments Issued But Not Yet Adopted:

New accounting standards effective for annual periods on or after April 1, 2018:

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, was issued in November 2009 and addresses classification and
measurement of financial assets. It replaces the multiple category and measurement models in
IAS 39, Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement, for debt instruments with a new
mixed measurement model having only two categories: amortized cost and fair value through
profit or loss. IFRS 9 also replaces the models for measuring equity instruments. Such
instruments are either recognized at fair value through profit or loss or at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued and replaces IAS 11 – Construction Contracts, IAS 18 –
Revenue, IFRIC 13 – Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 – Agreements for the
Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 – Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC-31 –
Revenue – Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services.  IFRS 15 establishes a single five-
step model framework for determining the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows arising from a contract with a customer.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued)

IFRS 2 – Shared-Based Payments
In June 2016 the Board issued the final amendments to IFRS 2 which amended (a) the effects
that vesting conditions have on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment; (b) the
accounting for modification to the terms of a share-based payment that changes the classification
of the transaction from cash-settled to equity settled; and (c) classification of share-based
payment transactions with net settlement features.

New accounting standards effective for annual periods on or after April 1, 2019:

IFRS 16 – Leases
IFRS 16 establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases, with the objective of ensuring that lessees and lessors provide relevant information that
faithfully represents those transactions.

The extent of the impact of adoption of these new and amended standards on the financial
statements of the Company has not yet been determined.

3. TERM DEPOSIT
The Company has a $1,800,000 GIC which earns interest at prime less 2.6% per annum and matures
on March 14, 2019.

4. DUE FROM TIMBERLAND BAY PROPERTIES LLC
On December 19, 2017 the Company entered into a Credit Agreement with Timberland Bay
Properties LLC (“Timberland Bay”) whereby Agrios would provide up to $1,000,000 USD in
financing. The repayment of the advances under this Credit Agreement is due 90 days after the
termination of the letter of intent (Note 10) if it is terminated and no later than June 30, 2018. The
advances under the Credit Agreement bear interest on unpaid principal at a rate per annum of 2%.
Upon any event of default, the loans shall bear interest until paid in full at a rate per annum equal to
4%. As at March 31, 2018, $700,000 USD was advanced and outstanding under the Credit
Agreement.

The advances under the Credit Agreement are secured by a Deed of Trust on various properties.

During the year ended March 31, 2018 the Company provided additional advances in the amount of
$4,652,920 USD to Timberland Bay, these advances are non-interest bearing and are due on
demand.

5. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities. A transaction is considered to be a
related party transaction when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties.

Key management includes directors and key officers of the Company.

During the year ended March 31, 2018 the Company paid management salaries in the amount of
$14,167 (2017 - $Nil) to a director and officer of the Company.
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6. SHARE CAPITAL
(a) Share Capital

Authorized: Unlimited common shares without par value.

(i) On May 18, 2017, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross
proceeds of $31,375 by the issuance of 627,500 common shares at a price of CAD $0.05 per
share.

(ii) On December 14, 2017, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross
proceeds of $500,000 by the issuance of 10,000,000 common shares at a price of CAD $0.05
per share.

(iii) On January 11, 2018, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross
proceeds of $1,133,125 by the issuance of 7,554,170 common shares at a price of CAD $0.15
per share.

(iv) On January 29, 2018, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross
proceeds of $363,555 by the issuance of 2,423,698 common shares at a price of CAD $0.15 per
share.

(v) On February 20, 2018, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross
proceeds of $1,052,811 by the issuance of 4,211,244 common shares at a price of CAD $0.25
per share.

(vi) On March 2, 2018, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross
proceeds of $6,442,948 by the issuance of 12,885,896 common shares at a price of CAD $0.50
per share.

(b) Warrants

The continuity of warrants is as follows:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(c)

Number

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price
$ Number

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price
$

Balance, beginning of the
period - - - -

Granted 14,646,411 0.12 - -
Cancelled/Expired - - - -
Exercised - - - -

Balance, end of the period 14,646,411 0.12 - -

During the period ended March 31, 2018, 1,146,411 finder’s warrants were issued pursuant to the
non-brokered private placements and 13,500,000 of performance warrants were issued to
employees and advisors of the Company.
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6. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Full share equivalent finder’s warrants outstanding and exercisable at of March 31, 2018:

Expiry Date
Price Per

Share
Warrants

Outstanding
February 20, 2020 $0.25 226,279

March 2, 2020 $0.50 920,132
January 1, 2023 $0.05 10,500,000

February 23, 2023 $0.25 3,000,000

14,646,411

The Company used the Black-Scholes warrant pricing model to estimate the fair value of the warrants
at the grant date using the following assumptions:

March 31, 2018
Share price at measurement $0.25 - $0.50
Exercise price $0.25 - $0.50
Risk-free interest rate 1.75% - 1.78%
Dividend yield 0.00%
Expected volatility 100.00%
Expected warrant life 2 years
Expected forfeiture rate 0.00%
Fair market value of the warrants on grant date $0.50

The fair value of the warrants issued was $273,226. The amount has been recorded in Reserves on
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.

The Company used the Black-Scholes warrant pricing model to estimate the fair value of the
performance warrants at the grant date using the following assumptions:

March 31, 2018
Risk-free interest rate (%)
Weighted average share price on grant date ($)
Forfeiture rate (%)

1.90 – 2.04
$0.09
34%

Expected dividend yield (%) -
Expected stock price volatility (%) 100.00
Expected life (years)
Fair market value of the warrants on grant date

5.00
$0.05

The fair value of the performance warrants vested during the year ended June 30, 2018 $654,073 –
March 31, 2018.

Warrant-pricing models require the application of estimates and assumptions including the expected
volatility. The Company uses expected volatility rates based upon historical data from comparable
companies.
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7. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, based on the funds
available to the Company, in order to support the general operations of the Company and facilitate
the liquidity needs of its operations. The Board of Directors does not establish quantitative return on
capital criteria for management, but rather relies on the expertise of the Company's management to
sustain future development of the business. The Company defines capital to include share capital,
and deficit.

Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing basis and believes that this
approach, given the relative size of the Company, is reasonable. The Company is not subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Fair Values

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were presented on the
Company’s statement of financial position as at March 31, 2018, as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted prices in

active markets for
identical instruments

(Level 1)
$

Significant other
observable

inputs (Level 2)
$

Significant
unobservable

inputs
(Level 3)

$

Balance,
March 31,

2018
$

Cash 66,670                – – 66,670
Term deposit 1,800,000 – – 1,800,000

As at March 31, 2018, the fair value of financial instruments measured on a recurring basis
includes cash based on level one inputs, consisting of quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets. The fair value of other financial instruments, which includes amounts receivable,
approximate their carrying values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these instruments.

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counter-
party default on its obligation. The Company minimizes its credit risk associated with its cash
balance by dealing with major financial institutions in Canada. Amounts receivable consist of GST
refunds due from the Government of Canada. The carrying amount of financial assets represents
the maximum credit exposure.

(c) Foreign Exchange Rate and Interest Rate Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to foreign currency
risk to the extent that monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in foreign currency.

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk with respect to the Due from Timberland Bay
Properties LLC which is denominated in United States dollars. As at March 31, 2018, a 10%
(2017 – 10%) fluctuation in the Canadian/US exchange rates will impact the Company’s net loss
by approximately $690,495 (2017 - $Nil).

The Company is not exposed to any significant interest rate risk.
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8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations
due to shortage of funds. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash
balances and adjusting its operating budget and expenditure. Liquidity requirements are
managed based on expected cash flows to ensure that there is sufficient capital in order to meet
short-term and other specific obligations.

9. INCOME TAXES
Income tax recovery (expense) differs form the amount that would result from applying the Canadian
federal and provincial statutory income tax rates to income (loss) before future income taxes. For the
year ended March 31, 2018, the Canadian statutory rate is 26% (2017 – 26%).

The tax effect of the significant temporary differences, which comprise deferred income tax assets
and liabilities, are as follows:

2018
$

2017
$

Net loss (963,218) (6)
Statutory income tax rate 26% 26%
Income tax recovery at statutory rate (250,437) (2)
Tax effect of:
   Non-deductible differences 44,435 –
   Change in future income tax rates (7,923) –

Change in unrecognized deferred income tax assets 213,925 2
Income tax provision – –

The significant components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2018, are as
follows:

2018
$

2017
$

Deferred income tax assets
Non-capital loss carried forward 102,305 2
Share issuance costs 111,621

Total gross deferred income tax assets 213,927 2
Unrecognized deferred income tax assets (213,927) (2)
Net deferred income tax assets –

As at March 31, 2018, the Company has Canadian a non-capital loss carried forward of $254,723,
which are available to offset future years’ taxable income and expires in 2038.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AND COMMITMENTS
(a) On February 26, 2018, the Company entered into a Merger Agreement and Plan of

Reorganization (the “Agreement”) with Timberland Bay Properties LLC (“Timberland Bay”) and
Agrios Merger Sub (Washington) Inc. (“Merger Sub”). Under the Agreement the transaction will
be structured as a reverse-takeover whereby Merger Sub will be merged with and into the
Timberland Bay, and the surviving company will become a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. The members of the Timberland Bay will receive 29,166,667 fully paid common
shares of the Company.
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10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) On June 8, 2018 the Company obtained the Merger Certificate for the merger with Agrios
Merger Sub (Washington) Inc.

(c) On June 19, 2018, the Company completed a tranche 1 brokered private placement
(“Financing”) for gross proceeds of $3,532,500 at a price of $0.50 per share.  Each share
consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant, resulting in the issuance of
7,065,000 common shares and 7,065,000 share purchase warrants. The share purchase
warrants are convertible into 706,500 common shares if the Company has not completed a
liquidity event by the later of 120 days from closing or December 31, 2018. Each Financing
common share will be exercisable for an additional $0.05 security every 30 days from the later
of 120 days from closing or December 31, 2018 if the liquidity event does not occur. In
connection with the Financing the Company incurred $287,678 of share issuance costs and
issued 423,900 Agent’s Warrants. The Agent’s Warrants entitle the holders to acquire 423,900
common shares at an exercise price of $0.50 for two years from the date the company
completes a liquidity event.

(d) On July 16, 2018, the Company completed a tranche 2 brokered private placement
(“Financing”) for gross proceeds of $179,500 at a price of $0.50 per unit.  Each unit will
consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant, resulting in the issuance of
359,000 common shares and 359,000 share purchase warrants. The share purchase warrants
are convertible into 35,900 common shares if the Company has not completed a liquidity event
by the later of 120 days from closing or December 31, 2018. Each Financing common share will
be exercisable for an additional $0.05 security every 30 days from the later of 120 days from
closing or December 31, 2018 if the liquidity event does not occur. In connection with the
Financing the Company incurred $8,288 of share issuance costs and issued 21,450 Agent’s
Warrants.  The Agent’s Warrants entitle the holders to acquire 21,540 common shares at an
exercise price of $0.50 for two years from the date the company completes a liquidity event.

(e) On July 23, 2018, the Company completed a private placement (“Financing”) for gross proceeds
of $5,475,767 at a price of $0.60 per share.  In connection with the Financing the Company
incurred $302,208 of share issuance costs and issues 516,802 Finder’s Warrants.  The Finder’s
Warrants entitle the holders to acquire 516,802 common shares at an exercise price of $0.60 for
two years from the date of closing.

(f) On July 30, 2018, the Company granted 5,300,000 stock options that are exercisable at a price
of $0.60 per share for a period of five years. 5,000,000 options vest over 18 months from the
date of grant while 300,000 options vest over a period of 12 months.

(g) On August 27, 2018, the Company completed a private placement for gross proceeds of
$130,761 at a price of $0.60 per share.
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING 

The condensed consolidated interim financial statements of Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) 

are the responsibility of the Company’s management. The condensed consolidated interim finanical 

statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the 

International Accounting Standards Board, and reflect management’s best estimates and judgements 

based on information currently available. 

Management has developed and is maintaining a system of internal controls to ensure that the 

Company’s assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorized and properly recorded, and financial 

informaiton is realiable. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities. The Audit 

Committee reviews the results of the annual audit and reviews the condensed consolidated interim 

finanical statements prior to their submission to the Board of Directors for approval. 

The condensed consolidated interim financial statements as at June 30, 2018, and for the periods ended 

June 30, 2018 and 2017, have not been audited by the Company’s independent auditors. 

 

/s/ “Chris Kennedy”  /s/ “Herrick Lau” 

Chris Kennedy, President & Chief Executive Officer  Herrick Lau, Chief Financial Officer 
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Nature of operations and continuance of business (Note 1) 
Subsequent events (Note 18) 
 
Approved and authorized for issuance on behalf of the Board of Directors on October 26, 2018: 
 
/s/ “Larry Ellison”  /s/ “Savio Chiu”  

Larry Ellison, Director  Savio Chiu, Director  

Notes

June 30, 2018 

(Unaudited)

March 31, 2018 

(Unaudited)

$ $
ASSETS

Current assets

Cash 2,085,356              51,412             

Term deposit 6 4,780,858              1,396,431        

Accounts receivable 7 809,045                 1,777              

Prepaid expenses 72,287                   9,770              

Due from related parties 13 -                           5,357,628        

Total current assets 7,747,546              6,817,018        

Non-current assets
Property, plant and Equipment 9 20,435,147            -                     
Deposits 8,367                    -                     
Intangibles 8 194,032                 -                     
Goodwill 8 1,050,172              -                     

Total non-current assets 21,687,718            -                     

Total assets 29,435,264            6,817,018        

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables and accruals 13 301,800                 69,231             

Income taxes payable 46,000                   -                     

Current portion of mortgage payable 11 236,233                 -                     

Current portion of installment obligations 12 117,332                 -                     

Due to related parties 13 100,634                 -                     

Total current liabilities 801,999                 69,231             

Long-term liabilities

Long term portion of mortgage payable 11 4,363,767              -                     

Long-term portion of installment obligations 12 43,200                   -                     

Deferred income tax liability 3,881,115              -                     

Total long-term liabilities 8,288,082              -                     

Total liabilities 9,090,081              69,231             

EQUITY

Equity attributable to shareholders 

Share capital 10 20,413,169            6,833,871        

Reserves 10 1,391,608              722,600           

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (7,629)                   (55,223)            

Accumulated defecit (1,451,965)             (753,461)          

Total equity 20,345,183            6,747,787        

Total liabilities and equity 29,435,264            6,817,018        
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For the Three Months Ended June 30,

$ $

Revenue

Rental and other fees 234,677

Products and service fees 193,073

Total Revenue 427,750       -                  

Cost of Sales

Cost of products and services sold 51,919         

Gross Profit 375,831       -                  

Expenses

Accounting and Audit fees 9,886           -                  

Bank charges and interest 13,191         83               

Consulting fees 26,122         -                  

Depreciation 15,074         -                  

Filing fees 2,077           100              

Investor relations 6,160           -                  

Legal fees 42,213         3,160           

Management salaries 13 195,026       -                  

Meals and entertainment 3,517           -                  

Office and miscellaneous 29,096         -                  

Other salaries 552              -                  

Payroll taxes and benefits 24,715         -                  

Share-based payments 580,240       -                  

Travel and accommodation 82,408         -                  

(1,030,277)    (3,343)          

Loss before other items (654,446)      (3,343)          

Other Items

Foreign exchange loss on translation -                  -                  

Interest revenue 1,942           -                  

1,942           -                  

Loss before income taxes (652,504)      (3,343)          

Income tax expense 46,000         -                  

Total comprehensive Gain/(Loss) for the period (698,504)      (3,343)          

Other comprehensive loss

Foreign currency translation 47,594         -                  

Total comprehensive loss for the period (650,910)      (3,343)          

Loss per share, basic and diluted (0.01)            (0.01)            

Weighted average shares outstanding 66,028,884   330,990       

Notes
2018 

(unaudited)

2017 

(unaudited)
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Accumulated

Other

Number of Comprehensive Total

Shares Amount Reserves Deficit Income (Loss) Equity 
$ $ $ $ $

Balance - March 31, 2017 1               1               -              -                 -                    1                        
Private Placement 627,500      23,070       -              -                 -                    23,070                
Net loss and comprehensive loss -                -                -              (3,343)         -                    (3,343)                 

Balance - June 30, 2017 627,501      23,071       -              (3,343)         -                    19,728                

Balance - March 31, 2018 37,702,509 6,833,871   722,600    (753,461)     (55,223)          6,747,787            
Shares issued to acquire TimberLand Bay Properties LLC 29,166,667 11,246,955 -              -                 -                    11,246,955          
Private Placement 7,065,000   2,660,817   -              -                 -                    2,660,817            
Share issuance costs - Cash -                (239,706)     -              -                 -                    (239,706)             
Share issuance costs - Warrants -                (88,768)      88,768      -                 -                    -                         
Share-based payments -                -                580,240    580,240              
Other comprehensive income -                -                -              47,594           47,594                
Net loss and comprehensive loss -                -                -              (698,504)     -                    (698,504)             
Balance - June 30, 2018 73,934,176 20,413,169 1,391,608 (1,451,965)   (7,629)            20,345,183          

Share Capital
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Supplementary cash flow information (note 17) 
 
 

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2018 2017

$ $

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities

Loss and comprehensive loss for the period (698,504)              (3,343)               

Items not involving cash:

Interest income -                          -                       

Foreign exchange -                          -                       

Depreciation 15,074                 -                       

Income tax expense 46,000                 -                       

Share-based payments 580,240               

Changes in non-cash working capital:

Accounts receivable (434,803)              (131)                 

Prepaid expenses (62,517)                -                       

Payables and accruals 90,802                 -                       

(463,708)              (3,474)               

Investing activities:

Property, plant and equipment additions (121,732)              -                       

Deposits (496)                    -                       

(122,228)              -                       

Financing activities:

Proceeds from shares issued 2,660,817            23,070              

Share issuance costs (239,706)              -                       

Advances from related parties 100,634               -                       

Repayment of installment obligations (19,741)                -                       

2,502,004            23,070              

Net change in cash and term deposits 1,916,068            19,596              

Cash acquired on acquisition of Timberland Bay Properties LLC 4,136,748            -                       

Cash and term deposits, beginning of period 1,447,843            (6)                     

7,500,659            19,590              

Effect of exchange rate changes on transalation of cash (634,445)              1,934                

Cash and term deposits, end of period 6,866,214            21,524              

Cash and term deposits are comprised of: 2018 2017

$ $

Cash 2,085,356 21,524

Term deposit 4,780,858 -                       

6,866,214 21,524
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1.  NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS 

Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated in British Columbia, Canada, on 
February 18, 2017. On June 23, 2017, the Company changed its name from Sparrow Capital Corp. to 
Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. The Company through its wholly owned subsidiaries, currently operates 
as an agriculture technology services and property management company. The Company’s head 
office is located at 1980 – 1075 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, BC, Canada, V6E 3C9. 

These condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the 
Company will continue as a going concern, which assumes that the Company will be able to realize 
its assets and satisfy its liabilities in the normal course of business for the foreseeable future. 
Management is aware, in making its going concern assessment, of material uncertainties related to 
events and conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. 

The continued operations of the Company are dependent on future profitable operations, 
management’s ability to manage costs, and the future availability of equity or debt financing. Whether 
and when the Company can generate sufficient operating cash flows to pay for its expenditures and 
settle its obligations as they fall due subsequent to March 31, 2018, is uncertain. These financial 
statements do not reflect the adjustments to the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the 
reported expenses and statement of financial position classifications that would be necessary were 
the going concern assumption inappropriate. These adjustments could be material. 

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Statement of Compliance 

These unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with International Accounting Standard (“IAS”) 34 – Interim Financial Reporting under 
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (“IASB”). These condensed consolidated interim financial statements follow the 
same accounting policies and methods of application as the most recent annual consolidated 
financial statements of the Company, except as described under “Basis of Presentation”. These 
condensed consolidated interim financial statements do not contain all of the information required 
for full annual financial statements. Accordingly, these unaudited condensed consolidated interim 
financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s December 31, 2017, 
annual consolidated financial statements, which were prepared in accordance with IFRS as 
issued by the IASB.  
 

These unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements are expressed in US 
dollars and have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for financial instruments that 
have been measured at fair value.  In addition, these condensed consolidated interim financial 
statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting on a going concern basis. 
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in 
these condensed consolidated interim financial statements as if the policies have always been in 
effect, other than those described below: 
 
Adoption of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”) 

 
IFRS 15 establishes a single five-step model framework for determining the nature, amount, 
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. The 
standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption 
permitted. The Company has determined that the adoption of this standard has no impact on its 
financial statements. 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued) 

 
On April 1, 2018, the Company adopted the requirements of IFRS 15. IFRS 15 covers principles 
that an entity shall apply to report useful information to users of the financial statements about the 
nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a 
customer. The Company elected to apply IFRS 15 using a full retrospective approach. 
IFRS 15 requires companies to recognize revenue when “control” of goods or services transfers 
to the customer, whereas the previous standard, IAS 18, required entities to recognize revenue 
when the “risks and rewards” of the goods or services transfer to the customer. The Company 
concluded that there is no change to the timing of revenue recognition of its rental income, 
service fee income, and supply sales under IFRS 15 compared to the previous standard. As 
such, no adjustment was required to the Company’s financial statements. 

 
Adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) 

 
On April 1, 2018, the Company adopted the requirements of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 provides a revised 
model for recognition and measurement of financial instruments and a single, forward-looking 
“expected-loss” impairment model. The Company adopted a retrospective approach, other than 
for hedge accounting, which is applied prospectively.  

 
IFRS 9 did not impact the Company’s classification and measurement of financial assets and 
liabilities, and there was no significant impact on the carrying amounts of the Company’s financial 
instruments at the transition date.  

 
The introduction of the new ‘expected credit loss’ impairment model had negligible impact on the 
Company, given the Company provides its rental income, service fee income, and product sales 
concentrate to a customer with no historical level of customer default, and the corresponding 
receivables from these sales are short-term in nature. 

 
The Company currently has no hedging arrangements, and will apply the new accounting 
requirements under IFRS 9 as required.  
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(b) Basis of Presentation 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. In 
addition, these financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, 
except for the cash flow information. The presentation currency of the consolidated financial 
statements is the United States dollar. The functional currency of the parent entity is the 
Canadian dollar (“CAD”) and the function currency of its wholly owned active subsidiary Agrios 
Global Holdings (Washington) LLC is the United States dollar.  

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and the 
following subsidiaries: 

Name Jurisdiction Parent company 
Agrios Global Holdings 
(USA), Inc. 

Delaware, USA Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. 

Agrios Global Holdings 
(Washington), LLC 

Washington, USA Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. 

Rainier Product Services, 
LLC 

Washington, USA Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. 

First Cascade Financial 
Services, LLC 

Washington, USA Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. 

Pacific Green Technology 
and Agronomy, LLC 

Washington, USA Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. 

TimberLand Bay 
Properties, LLC 

Washington, USA Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. 

 

In the opinion of the Company’s management, all adjustments considered necessary for a fair 
presentation have been included. 

(c) Cash and Term deposits 

The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with a maturity of three months or less at the 
time of issuance, are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and which are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value to be cash equivalents. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(d) Accounts receivable 

We initially value our accounts receivable at fair value. We record an allowance for doubtful 
accounts against accounts receivable that management believes are impaired. We record 
specific allowances against customer receivables based on our evaluation of the customers’ 
creditworthiness and knowledge of their financial condition. We also consider the aging of the 
receivables, customer and industry concentrations, the current business environment, and 
historical experience. 
 

(e) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is provided on a straight-line basis. The estimated 
useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the 
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.  During the period 
the Company, as part of the business combination, acquired an intangible asset in the form of 
advantageous leases.  The intangible asset will be amortized over the term the lease 
arrangement. 
 
Currently the Company does not have any intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.   

 

(f) Property, plant and equipment 

The Company’s property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.  
 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes expenditures that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset. The cost includes the cost of materials 
and direct labour, site preparation costs, installation and assembly costs, and any other costs 
directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and conditions necessary for the assets 
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The cost of property, plant 
and equipment also includes any applicable borrowing costs. Borrowing costs are capitalized to 
property, plant and equipment until such time that the constructed asset is substantially complete 
and ready for its intended use.  
 
The Company uses methods and annual rates as follows: 
 
Buildings and components    20 - 40 years on a straight line basis 
Office equipment and equipment  10 years on a straight line basis 
Vehicles      10 years on a straight line basis 
 
Estimates for depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each 
reporting period-end and adjusted, if appropriate. 
 
Significant components of property, plant and equipment that are identified as having different 
useful lives are depreciated separately over their respective useful lives. Depreciation methods, 
useful lives and residual values, if applicable, are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, on a 
prospective basis at the end of each fiscal year.  Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant 
and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying 
amount of the property, plant and equipment and are recognized in profit or loss. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(g) Business combinations and goodwill 

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. At the acquisition date 
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value, 
except deferred tax assets or liabilities, which are recognized and measured in accordance with 
IAS 12 –Income Taxes. Subsequent changes in fair values are adjusted against the cost of 
acquisition if they qualify as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period is the 
period between the date of the acquisition and the date where all significant information 
necessary to determine the fair values is available and cannot exceed 12 months. All other 
subsequent changes are recognized in the consolidated statements of operations and 
comprehensive loss. 
 
The purchase price allocation process resulting from a business combination requires 
management to estimate the fair value of identifiable assets acquired including intangible assets 
and liabilities assumed including any contingently payable purchase price obligation due over 
time. The Company uses valuation techniques, such as forecasted future net cash flows 
discounted to present value and the mergers and acquisitions method. These valuations are 
closely linked to the assumptions used by management on the future performance of the related 
assets and the discount rates applied. The determination of fair value involves making estimates 
relating to acquired property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and contingent 
consideration. 

 
In certain situations, goodwill or a bargain purchase gain may result from a business combination. 
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the consideration transferred over the net amounts of the 
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. Goodwill is measured at historical cost 
and is evaluated for impairment annually or more often if events or circumstances indicate there 
may be an impairment. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing if the carrying value of 
a CGU, including the allocated goodwill, exceeds its recoverable amount determined as the 
greater of the estimated fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. Impairment losses 
recognized in respect of a CGU are first allocated to the carrying value of goodwill and any 
excess is allocated to the carrying amount of assets in the CGU. Any goodwill impairment is 
recorded in income in the period in which the impairment is identified. Impairment losses on 
goodwill are not subsequently reversed. Acquisition related costs are recognized in the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive loss as incurred. 
 

(h) Impairment of non-current assets 

Non-current assets, including property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed 
for impairment at each statement of financial position date or whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. For 
the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together 
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the cash-generating unit, or 
"CGU"). The recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is the higher of its fair value, less costs to 
sell, and its value in use. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an 
impairment charge is recognized immediately in profit or loss by the amount by which the carrying 
amount of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss subsequently 
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lesser of the revised estimate of 
recoverable amount, and the carrying amount that would have been recorded had no impairment 
loss been recognized previously. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(i) Foreign Currency Translation 

Agrios Global Holdings Ltd.’s functional currency is the Canadian dollar and reporting currency is 
the US dollar. All US subsidiaries have a functional currency of US dollar Transactions 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the 
transaction date or at an average rate. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange in effect at the statement of financial position 
date. Non-monetary items are translated using the historical rate on the date of the transaction. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses are included in the statement of operations.  

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company changed its presentation currency from the Canadian dollar 
to the US dollar. The Company believes that the change in presentation currency will provide 
shareholders with a better reflection of the Company’s business activities and enhance the 
comparability of the Company’s financial information to its peers. For more details, see Note 5 of 
these condensed consolidated financial statements. 

(j) Share Capital 

Common shares issued by the Company are classified as equity. Costs directly attributable to the 
issue of common shares, share purchase warrants and share options are recognized as a 
deduction from equity, net of any related income tax effects. 

(k) Share-based payment transactions 

The fair value of equity settled stock options awarded to employees defined under IFRS 2 Share-
based payments (i.e. employees for legal and tax purpose, directors and certain consultants), 
determined as of the date of grant, and awarded to non-employees defined under IFRS 2, as of 
the date of delivery of service, is recognized as share-based payments expense, included in 
general and administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive loss, over the vesting 
period of the stock options based on the estimated number of options expected to vest, with a 
corresponding increase in equity. 

Warrants that are issued as payment for an agency fee or other transaction costs are accounted 
for as share-based payments. 

(l) Loss Per Share 

Basic loss per common share is computed by dividing their respective net loss by the weighted 
average number of common shares outstanding during the period. The computation of diluted 
loss per share assumes the conversion, exercise or contingent issuance of securities only when 
such conversion, exercise or issuance would have a dilutive effect on the income per share. The 
dilutive effect of convertible securities is reflected in the diluted loss per share by application of 
the "if converted" method. The dilutive effect of outstanding incentive stock options and their 
equivalents is reflected in the diluted loss per share by application of the treasury stock method.  

(m) Provisions 

Provisions are recorded when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of past 
events where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. As at June 
30, 2018, no provision has been recorded by the Company. 

(n) Comprehensive Loss 

Comprehensive loss is the change in the Company’s net assets that results from transactions, 
events and circumstances from sources other than the Company’s shareholders and includes 
items that are not included in the statement of operations.  
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(o) Income Taxes 

Income tax is recognized in the statement of operations except to the extent that it relates to 
items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity. Current tax expense is 
the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at period end, adjusted for amendments to tax payable with regards to 
previous years. 

In general, deferred income tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences arising between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 
Deferred income tax is determined on a non-discounted basis using tax rates and laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date and are 
expected to apply when the deferred income tax asset or liability is settled. Deferred income tax 
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the assets can be recovered. Deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities are presented as non-current. 

 
(p) Revenue  

The Company recognizes revenue from rental income, product sales or services rendered when 
the following four criteria are met: persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, shipping or 
delivery and acceptance has occurred, or service has been rendered, the selling price is fixed or 
determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured.  

 
Rental income is recognized as revenue over the terms of the related rental agreements. Rental 
revenue from agreements with contractual rent increases or tenant incentives is recognized on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the respective agreements. 
 
Product sales represent revenue from the sale of products and related shipping fees where the 
Company records revenue of gross sales price. Product sales and shipping revenues are 
recorded when the products are shipped and title passes to customers. Cost of goods sold 
represents the average cost of products that the Company buys and sells for its customers.  The 
Company maintains minimal amounts of inventory.   

 
Service revenue is recognized when service has been rendered. 

(q) Provisions 
 
The Company recognizes provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount including those 
for legal disputes. If applicable, the provision is measured at the best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, discounted at a pre-tax rate reflecting 
current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the liability. There 
were no provisions recognized as of June 30, 2018 and 2017. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS 
 

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make certain estimates, 
judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Actual outcomes 
could differ from these estimates. These financial statements include estimates which, by their nature, 
are uncertain. The impacts of such estimates are pervasive throughout the financial statements, and 
may require accounting adjustments based on future occurrences. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. These estimates are based on historical experience, current and 
future economic conditions and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
 

Significant assumptions about the future and other sources of estimation uncertainty that 
management has made at the financial position reporting date, that could result in a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, in the event that actual results differ from 
assumptions made, relate to, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
Significant accounting estimates 

 
i. Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment –  Depreciation of property and 

equipment is dependent upon estimates of useful lives, which are determined through the 
exercise of judgment. The assessment of any impairment of these assets is dependent 
upon estimates of recoverable amounts that take into account factors such as economic 
and market conditions and the useful lives of assets. 
 

ii. Estimates used in calculations for impairment - The calculations for impairment testing of 
the Company’s goodwill, intangible assets and property plant and equipment involve 
significant estimates and assumptions. Items estimated include cash flows, discount 
rates and assumptions on revenue growth rates. These estimates could affect the 
Company’s future results if the current estimates of future performance and fair values 
change.  
 

iii. Estimates used in determining the fair value of identifiable assets acquired in business 
combination.  In estimating fair value the Company uses market-observable data to the 
extent it is available.  In certain cases where Level 1 inputs are not available the 
Company may engage an independent valuator to perform the valuation or use internally 
generated estimates.   As discussed in Note 8, during the quarter the Company entered 
into a business combination.  The Company estimated the fair value of the Property, 
Plant and Equipment acquired in the business combination using appraisal value 
method.  Inputs used in this valuation are considered to be Level 2 inputs.  The fair value 
of the advantageous lease was determined using the discounted cash flow method and 
comparable lease spaces which are considered to be Level 3 inputs. 

 
iv. In calculating share-based compensation for performance warrants, finders’ warrants and 

options granted, key estimates such as the rate of forfeiture of options granted, the 
expected life of the option, the volatility of the Company’s stock price and the risk free 
interest rate are used. In order to estimate volatility the Company uses companies with 
similar characteristics that have prices quoted on an active exchange.  To calculate the 
share-based compensation expense related to key employee performance milestones 
associated with the terms of the Company’s performance warrants, the Company must 
estimate the number of shares that will be earned and when they will be issued based on 
estimated probabilities. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (continued) 

 
Significant accounting judgments 

 
i. Determination of Company’s ability to continue as a going concern - The assessment of 

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and to raise sufficient funds to pay 
for its ongoing operating expenditures, meet its liabilities for the ensuing year, and to 
obtain profitable operations, involves significant judgment based on historical experience 
and other factors, including expectation of future events that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. 
 

ii. Determination of business combinations - Judgment is used in determining whether an 
acquisition is a business combination or an asset acquisition. In a business combination, 
all identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired are recorded at their fair 
values. In determining the allocation of the purchase price in a business combination, 
including any acquisition related contingent consideration, estimates including market 
based and appraisal values are used.  
 

iii. Determination of impairment on goodwill and intangibles - Judgment is also exercised to 
determine whether an indication of impairment is present that would require the 
completion of an impairment test in addition to the annual testing. 
 

iv. In estimating fair value of options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, 
management is required to make certain assumptions such as the expected life of 
options, volatility of the Company’s future share price, risk free rate, future dividend yields 
and estimated forfeitures at the initial grant date. Changes in assumptions used to 
estimate fair value could result in materially different results. 

 
4. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 

 
Accounting Standards and Amendments Issued But Not Yet Adopted: 
 
New accounting standards effective for annual periods on or after April 1, 2019: 

 
IFRS 16 – Leases 
IFRS 16 establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of 
leases, with the objective of ensuring that lessees and lessors provide relevant information that 
faithfully represents those transactions. 
 
The extent of the impact of adoption of these new and amended standards on the financial 
statements of the Company has not yet been determined. 
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5.  CHANGE IN PRESENTATION CURRENCY 
 
Effective April 1, 2018, the Company changed its presentation currency to US dollars from Canadian 
dollars. The Company believes that the change in presentation currency will provide shareholders with a 
better reflection of the Company’s business activities and enhance the comparability of the Company’s 
financial information to peers. In addition the majority of the Company’s operations are in the US. The 
change in presentation currency represents a voluntary change in accounting policy, which is accounted 
for retrospectively. The consolidated financial statements for all periods presented have been translated 
into the new presentation currency in accordance with IAS 21 – The Effects of Changes in Foreign 
Exchange Rates. 
 
The condensed consolidated interim statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) and the 
condensed consolidated interim statement of cash flows have been translated into the presentation 
currency using the average exchange rates prevailing during each reporting period. In the condensed 
consolidated statements of financial position, all assets and liabilities have been translated using the 
period-end exchange rates, and all resulting exchange differences have been recognized in the 
statements of operating and comprehensive income (loss). Asset and liability amounts previously 
reported in Canadian dollars have been translated into US dollar using period-end exchange rates, 
respectively, shareholders’ equity balances have been translated using historical rates in effect on the 
date of the transactions. 
 
6. TERM DEPOSIT 

 
The Company has $4,780,858 in term deposits. $2,809,842 is in a GIC which earns interest at prime less 
2.35% per annum and matures on June 19, 2019. Another $1,971,016 is in a money market certificate 
which earns 0.005% per annum and is redeemable upon notice. 

 
7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 

 June 30, 2018 March 31, 2018 
   
GST Receivable $     8,832       $      1,777       
Trade Receivables 800,213 - 
   
 $ 809,045       $      1,777  
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8. ACQUISITION OF TIMBERLAND BAY PROPERTIES 
 
On June 8, 2018, the company acquired 100% of the outstanding common shares of TimberLand Bay 
Properties LLC (“TimberLand”). The Company issued 29,166,667 common shares with a fair value of 
$11,246,955.  In addition the Company will contribute, in the form of equity, $9,000,000.  Of this amount 
$4,500,000 is part of an inter-company account loan and $4,500,000 relates to the assumption of the 
mortgage described in Note 11.   
 
The Company has determined that this transaction is a business combination as the assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed constitute a business. The transaction was accounted for using the acquisition method 
of accounting whereby the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed were recorded at their estimated 
fair value at the acquisition date. 

 
The allocation of the purchase price to the total fair value of net assets acquired is as follows: 

 
      $ 

Fair value of net assets acquired  
Cash 4,136,748 
Accounts receivable 372,465 

  Other current assets 461,761 
  Property, plant and equipment 20,328,489 
  Intangible assets 194,032 
 25,493,495 
  
  Current liabilities (452,749) 
  Long-term liabilities (1,962,848) 
  Deferred tax liability (3,881,115) 
Identifiable net assets acquired 19,196,783 
  Goodwill 1,050,172 
 20,246,955 

 
                  $ 
Consideration paid  
Fair value of 29,166,667 common shares of the Company 11,246,955 
The Company also contributed $9,000,000 of which $4,500,000 was the 
assumption of debt described at Note 11 and $4,500,000 was attributed to inter-
company loans  9,000,000 
 20,246,955 

 
The resulting goodwill represents the sales and growth potential of TimberLand in the cannabis industry 
and is not deductible for tax purposes. 
 
Since the acquisition date and up to June 30, 2018, the Company has received gross revenue of 
$427,750 from TimberLand and recorded a loss of approximately $129,000 from operations.  Had the 
transaction occurred on April 1, 2018 the revenue would have been $551,019 and the loss from 
operations would have been approximately $305,000.  
 
As part of the business combination described above the Company acquired an intangible asset in the 
form of advantageous leases.  The Company will amortize the advantageous leases over the terms of 
each lease.  The Company will amortize the intangible assets on a straight-line basis over the next six 
years.  The Company did not record any amortization as the amount would have been minimal since the 
acquisition date of June 8, 2018. 
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9.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
 

 

Land Buildings 
Office 

Equipment 
Equipment Vehicles Deposits Total 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Cost 
       

  Balance, March 31, 2017 - - - - - - - 

  Additions - - - - - - - 

  Balance, March 31, 2018 - - - - - - - 

Additions – Acquired on 
acquisition of TimberLand 
Bay Properties LLC 

1,356,295 16,700,568 6,885 2,219,860 16,028 28,853 20,328,489 

  Additions  - 96,487 2,221 23,024 - - 121,732 

  Balance, June 30, 2018 1,356,295 16,797,055 9,106 2,242,884 16,028 28,853 20,450,221 

 

Accumulated depreciation 
  

  Balance, March 31, 2017 - - - - - - - 

  Additions - - - - - - - 

  Balance, March 31, 2018 - - - - - - - 

  Additions - 13,298 - 1,776 - - 15,074 

  Balance, June 30, 2018 - 13,298 - 1,776 - - 15,074 

 

Carrying amounts 
      

 
 

  Balance, March 31, 2018 - - - - - - - 

  Balance, June 30, 2018 1,356,295 16,783,757 9,106 2,241,108 16,028 28,853 20,435,147 

 
Depreciation has not been recorded on certain assets as the Company is in the process of constructing its facility and as a result it is not available for 
use. 
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10. SHARE CAPITAL 

(a) Share Capital  

Authorized: Unlimited common shares without par value. 

(i) On May 18, 2017, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross 
proceeds of $23,051 (CAD $31,375) by the issuance of 627,500 common shares at a price of 
$0.037 (CAD $0.05) per share. 

(ii) On December 14, 2017, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross 
proceeds of $390,472 (CAD $500,000) by the issuance of 10,000,000 common shares at a 
price of $0.039 (CAD $0.05) per share. 

(iii) On January 11, 2018, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross 
proceeds of $903,969 (CAD $1,133,125) by the issuance of 7,554,170 common shares at a 
price of $0.12 (CAD $0.15) per share. 

(iv) On January 29, 2018, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross 
proceeds of $294,734 (CAD $363,555) by the issuance of 2,423,698 common shares at a 
price of $0.122 (CAD $0.15) per share. 

(v) On February 20, 2018, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross 
proceeds of $834,108 (CAD $1,052,811) by the issuance of 4,211,244 common shares at a 
price of $0.198 (CAD $0.25) per share. 

(vi) On March 2, 2018, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross 
proceeds of $4,998,020 (CAD $6,442,948) by the issuance of 12,885,896 common shares at a 
price of $0.388 (CAD $0.50) per share. 

(vii) On June 8, 2018, the Company completed the acquisition of TimberLand Bay Properties, LLC 
and issued 29,166,667 shares as consideration shares. 

(viii) On June 19, 2018 the Company completed the first tranche of a brokered private placement 
(“Financing”) for gross proceeds of $2,660,817 (CAD $3,532,500) at a price of $0.377 (CAD 
$0.50) per share.  Each share will consist of one common share and one share purchase 
warrant, resulting in the issuance of 7,065,000 common shares and 7,065,000 share purchase 
warrants. The share purchase warrants are convertible into 706,500 common shares if the 
Company has not completed a liquidity event by the later of 120 days from closing or 
December 31, 2018. Each common share purchase warrant will be exercisable for an 
additional CAD $0.05 security every 30 days from the later of 120 days from closing or 
December 31, 2018 if the liquidity event does not occur. In connection with the Financing the 
Company incurred $216,690 (CAD $287,678) of share issuance costs and issued 423,900 
Agent’s Warrants.  The Agent’s Warrants entitle the holders to acquire 423,900 common 
shares at an exercise price of CAD $0.50 for two years from the date the company completes 
a liquidity event with a fair value of $88,767 (CAD $117,847).  The fair value was estimated 
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model applying a market price of CAD $0.50, an 
exercise price of CAD $0.50, a risk free rate of 1.83%, an expected volatility of 100% and an 
expected dividend yield of 0%. The fair value of the Agent’s Warrants were recorded as a 
share issue cost. 
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10. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 

(b) Warrants 

The continuity of warrants is as follows: 
 

  

Number of               
Warrants 

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price ($CAD) 

Balance, March 31, 2017 - - 

Balance, June 30, 2017 - - 

Granted 13,500,000 0.09 

Granted – Finders Fee Warrants 1,146,411 0.45 

Balance, March 31, 2018 14,646,411 0.12 

Granted – Finders Fee Warrants 423,900 0.50 

Granted 7,065,000 - 

Balance June 30, 2018 22,135,311 0.13
 (1)

 

(1) Weighted average exercise price is calculated based on warrants that require additional consideration upon exercise. 

 
During the period ended June 30, 2018, 423,900 finder’s warrants were issued pursuant to the non-
brokered and brokered private placements and 7,065,000 common share purchase warrants issued 
in conjunction with the common shares as units. The share purchase warrants are convertible into 
706,500 common shares if the Company has not completed a liquidity event by the later of 120 days 
from closing or December 31, 2018. Each common share purchase warrant will be exercisable for an 
additional CAD $0.05 security every 30 days from the later of 120 days from closing or December 31, 
2018 if the liquidity event does not occur. 

 

Full share equivalent warrants outstanding and exercisable at of June 30, 2018: 
 

Expiry Date 

Price per 
Share ($CAD) 

Warrants 
Outstanding 

December 31,  2018 
(2)   $           -  7,065,000 

February 20, 2020 $           0.25 226,279 

March 2, 2020 $           0.50 920,132 

June 19, 2020 $           0.50 423,900 

January 1, 2023 $           0.05 10,500,000 

February 23, 2023 $           0.25 3,000,000 

   
22,135,311 

(2) The share purchase warrants are convertible into 706,500 common shares, with no further consideration, if the Company 
has not completed a liquidity event by the later of 120 days from closing or December 31, 2018. Each common share 
purchase warrant will be exercisable for an additional CAD $0.05 security every 30 days from the later of 120 days from 
closing or December 31, 2018 if the liquidity event does not occur. 
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10. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 

(b) Warrants (continued) 

The Company used the Black-Scholes warrant pricing model to estimate the fair value of the finder’s 
fee warrants at the grant date using the following assumptions: 

As at  June 30, 2018 March 31, 2018 

Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.83 1.75 - 1.78 

Weighted average share price on grant date ($) 

Forfeiture rate (%) 
0.50 

- 
0.45 

- 

Expected dividend yield (%) - - 

Expected stock price volatility (%) 100.00 100.00 

Expected life (years) 2.25 2.00 

Fair market value of the warrants on grant date 0.21 (CAD$0.27) 0.38 (CAD$0.50) 

The fair value of the warrants issued to finders was $88,768 (CAD$117,847) for June 30, 2018 
($164,497 (CAD$212,554) – March 31, 2018). The amount has been recorded in Reserves on the 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. 

The Company used the Black-Scholes warrant pricing model to estimate the fair value of the 
performance warrants at the grant date using the following assumptions: 

As at  June 30, 2018 March 31, 2018 

Risk-free interest rate (%) 
Weighted average share price on grant date ($) 
Forfeiture rate (%) 

1.90 – 2.04 
$0.08 (CAD$0.09) 

34% 

1.90 – 2.04 
$0.08 (CAD$0.09) 

34% 

Expected dividend yield (%) - - 

Expected stock price volatility (%) 100.00 100.00 

Expected life (years) 
Fair market value of the warrants on grant date 

5.00 
$0.04 (CAD$0.06) 

5.00 
$0.04 (CAD$0.05) 

The fair value of the performance warrants vested during the period ended June 30, 2018 was 
$580,240 (CAD$749,148) ($510,046 (CAD$654,073) – March 31, 2018). 

Warrant-pricing models require the application of estimates and assumptions including the expected 
volatility. The Company uses expected volatility rates based upon historical data from comparable 
companies. 
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11.  MORTGAGE PAYABLE 

 
On March 2, 2017 the Company entered into an agreement to acquire a parcel of land for a purchase 
price of $150,000. A down payment of $25,000 was made on closing and the remaining $125,000 
was financed through a mortgage agreement with the seller. The mortgage is to be repaid with five 
annual payments of $25,000 commencing on January 1, 2018. The payments are non-interest 
bearing, unless the payments are not made within 15 calendar days, after which the delinquent 
amounts will bear interest of 15% plus a 5% late fee.  
 
This transaction was undertaken by a Company controlled by a director on behalf of the Company 
with an unrelated third party, with the Company making the scheduled payments to the unrelated third 
party. 
 
As at June 30, 2018, the balance of the mortgage was $100,000 of which $25,000 is considered 
current and $75,000 as long term. 
 
The Company refinanced its credit facilities with the bank into a mortgage in the amount of 
$4,500,000 with a maturity date of May 28, 2020, bearing interest of 4.750% per annum. The loan is 
repayable in payments of $105,330 every 3 months, commencing on August 18, 2018. The loan is 
secured by a Deed of Trust on the Company’s building and land and is guaranteed by both Mr. 
James F. Foster and Larry Ellison, whom are directors of the Company. 
 
As at June 30, 2018, the balance of the bank mortgage was $4,500,000 of which $211,233 is 
considered current and $4,288,767 as long term. $26,507 of interest expense has been recognized 
on the income statement. 
 

12.  INSTALMENT OBLIGATIONS 
 

During the period ended June 30, 2018 a Company entered into 3 installment obligation 
arrangements on behalf of the Company for the acquisition of equipment for the Company’s facility. 
 
The terms of the three installment obligations are as follows: 

    2018  

Instalment Obligations             $ 

Principal - $350,600, monthly payments of $19,824, 2.5% interest 
per annum, and due on September 30, 2018 

   350,600 

Principal - $88,224, monthly payments of $3,676, non-interest 
bearing, and due on March 1, 2020 

   88,224 

Principal - $26,976, monthly payments of $1,124, non-interest 
bear, and due on March 1, 2020 

   26,976 

Less: Payments made net of interest    (305,268) 
 
Instalment obligation principal 

    
160,532 

 
Current portion 

    
(117,332) 

     
Long-term Instalment Obligations      43,200 
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12.  INSTALMENT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

 
The Company is making the required scheduled payments under the agreement to the unrelated third 
party. 
 
Subsequent to the period end, the Company retired the three installment obligation arrangements. 

 
13.  RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS 

 
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the 
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating 
decisions. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities. A transaction is considered to be a 
related party transaction when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties.   
 
Key management includes directors and key officers of the Company. 
 
As at June 30, 2018, the Company owed a company controlled by a director of the Company 
$100,634 (June 30 2017 - Nil). 
 
During the period ended June 30, 2018, the Company incurred management fees to Members of the 
Company totalling $189,967 (2017 - $Nil). 

 
14. MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL 
 

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern in order to pursue the buildout of its facility. The Company does not have any 
externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject. 
 
The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in 
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may attempt to issue new shares or dispose of assets or adjust the 
amount of cash. 
 

15. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE 
 

The Company had one customer for the period ended June 30, 2018 which accounted for all of the 
revenues. As the majority of the Company’s income is derived from the sale of services and 
products, its ability to continue operations is dependent upon the relationship with and the 
sustainability of the customer. Any significant disruption in the customer’s business could result in a 
material adverse effect on the operations of the Company. The loss of this significant customer will 
adversely impact the operations of the Company.  

 
16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 

International Financial Reporting Standards 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, establishes a fair 
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.  The fair 
value hierarchy has the following levels: 

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and 
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16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK (continued) 

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs). 

 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The Company’s financial assets include cash and cash is classified as Level 1. The carrying value 
of these instruments approximates their fair values due to the relatively short periods of maturity of 
these instruments. 

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis were presented on the Company’s statement of 
financial position as at June 30, 2018 are as follows:  

 

   Fair Value Measurements Using  
           Quoted Prices in   Significant     
  Active Markets   Other  Significant    
  For Identical   Observable  Unobservable    
  Instruments   Inputs  Inputs    
  (Level 1)   (Level 2)  (Level 3)   Total 

              $               $                 $        $ 

  Cash 
 

2,085,356  -  -  2,085,356 

  Term deposit  4,780,858  -  -  4,780,858 

 
Fair value 

 
The fair value of the Company’s financial instruments approximates their carrying value as at June 
30, 2018 because of the demand nature or short‐term maturity of these instruments. 

 
  



AGRIOS GLOBAL HOLDINGS LTD. 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017 
(In US Dollars, unless otherwise stated) 

- 25 - 
 

 
16.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK (continued) 

 

Financial risk management objectives and policies 
 

The Company’s financial instruments include cash, due from related parties, accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities, due to related party, instalment obligations and mortgage payable. The risks 
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set 
out below. Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures 
are implemented on a timely and effective manner. 

 
(i) Currency risk 
 
The Company’s expenses are denominated in United States dollars. The Company’s corporate 
office is based in the Canada and current exposure to exchange rate fluctuations is minimal. 
 
The Company does not have any significant foreign currency denominated monetary liabilities. 
The principal business of the Company is the identification and evaluation of assets or a business 
and once identified or evaluated, to negotiate an acquisition or participation in a business subject 
to receipt of shareholder approval and acceptance by regulatory authorities.  
 
(ii) Interest rate risk 
 
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on the variable rate of interest earned on bank 
deposits and paid on the credit facilities and instalment obligations. The fair value interest rate risk 
on bank deposits, credit facilities and instalment obligations is insignificant as the deposits, credit 
facilities and instalment obligations are short‐term. 
 
The Company has not entered into any derivative instruments to manage interest rate fluctuations.  
 
(iii) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with the counterparty’s inability to fulfill its payment 
obligations.  Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit 
risks consist principally of cash and accounts receivable. To minimize the credit risk of cash the 
Company places these instruments with a high quality financial institution. Credit risk from 
accounts receivable encompasses the default risk of its customers. The Company manages its 
exposure to credit risk by only working with reputable companies and by performing on-going 
credit evaluations, where it is considered necessary, of its customers financial condition and 
operations. The maximum exposure to loss arising from accounts receivable is equal to their 
carrying amounts. The Company has not recorded any allowance against its accounts receivable 
and expect to recover the full carrying amounts. 

 
(iv) Liquidity risk 

 
In the management of liquidity risk of the Company, the Company maintains a balance between 
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of borrowings.  Management closely 
monitors the liquidity position and expects to have adequate sources of funding to finance the 
Company’s projects and operations.  
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17.  SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO CASH FLOWS 

Supplementary disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities during the period ended June 
30, 2018 and 2017 were as follows: 

 
 
18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On July 16, 2018, the Company completed a second tranche of a brokered private placement 
(“Financing”) for gross proceeds of $136,637 (CAD $179,500) at a price of $0.38 (CAD $0.50) per 
share.  Each share will consist of one common share and one share purchase warrant, resulting in 
the issuance of 359,000 common shares and 359,000 share purchase warrants. The share purchase 
warrants are convertible into 35,900 common shares if the Company has not completed a liquidity 
event by the later of 120 days from closing or December 31, 2018. Each Financing common share 
will be exercisable for an additional $0.04 (CAD $0.05) security every 30 days from the later of 120 
days from closing or December 31, 2018 if the liquidity event does not occur. In connection with the 
Financing the Company incurred $6,309 (CAD $8,288) of share issuance costs and issued 21,540 
Agent’s Warrants.  The Agent’s Warrants entitle the holders to acquire 21,540 common shares at an 
exercise price of $0.38 (CAD $0.50) for two years from the date the company completes a liquidity 
event with a fair value of $4,562 (CAD $5,993).   
 
On July 23, 2018, the Company completed a private placement (“Financing”) for gross proceeds of 
$4,162,182 (CAD $5,475,767) at a price of $0.46 (CAD $0.60) per share.  In connection with the 
Financing the Company incurred $240,173 (CAD $315,972) of share issuance costs and issued 
516,802 Finder’s Warrants.  The Finder’s Warrants entitle the holders to acquire 516,802 common 
shares at an exercise price of $0.46 (CAD $0.60) for two years from the date of closing with a fair 
value of $124,891 (CAD $164,307).   
 
On July 26, 2018, the Company granted incentive stock options to consultants and employees of the 
Company, exercisable at $0.46 (CAD $0.60), to purchase up to an aggregate of 5,300,000 common 
shares of the Company.  

 
On August 27, 2018, the Company completed a private placement for gross proceeds of $100,699 
(CAD $130,761) at a price of $0.46 (CAD $0.60) per share.   

 
 

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2018 2017
$ $

Fair value of finder's fee warrants 88,768       -            

Shares issued in purchase of TimberLand Bay Properties LLC 11,246,955 -            
Increase in goodwill 1,050,172   -            

Increase in intangibles 194,032      -            

Increase in property plant & equipment 14,180,469 -            
Increase in deffered income tax liabilities 3,881,115   -            



 

 
 

SCHEDULE “B” 

COMPANY MD&A 
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BACKGROUND

The following management discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the results of operations and financial condition, prepared 
as of October 26, 2018 should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements of Agrios Global 
Holdings Ltd. (formerly Sparrow Capital Corp.) (the “Company” or “Agrios”) for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the 
period from formation to March 31, 2017, and accompanying notes thereto. The consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). 

During the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company’s critical accounting estimates, significant accounting policies and risk 
factors have remained substantially unchanged and are still applicable to the Company unless otherwise indicated. All 
amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars unless noted otherwise.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARDING LOOKING STATEMENTS

This MD&A contains certain statements that may constitute “forward-looking statements”. Forward-looking statements 
include but are not limited to, statements regarding future anticipated business developments and the timing thereof, 
regulatory compliance, sufficiency of working capital, and business and financing plans. Although the Company believes that 
such statements are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. Forward-looking 
statements are typically identified by words such as: believe, expect, anticipate, intend, estimate, postulate and similar 
expressions, or which by their nature refer to future events. The Company cautions investors that any forward-looking 
statements by the Company are not guarantees of future performance, and that actual results may differ materially from those 
in forward looking statements as a result of various factors, including, but not limited to, the Company’s ability to continue its 
projected growth, to raise the necessary capital or to be fully able to implement its business strategies. 

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND OVERALL PERFORMANCE

The Company was incorporated in British Columbia, Canada, on February 18, 2017. The Company currently has no 
operating business and intends to pursue an opportunity in the cannabis industry. The Company’s head office is located at 
1980 – 1075 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, BC, Canada, V6E 3C9.

HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 AND SUBSEQUENTLY

On May 18, 2017, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross proceeds of $31,375 by the issuance 
of 627,500 common shares at a price of CAD $0.05 per share.

On December 14, 2017, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross proceeds of $500,000 by the
issuance of 10,000,000 common shares at a price of CAD $0.05 per share.

On January 1, 2018  and then again on February 23, 2018 the Company issued a total of 13,500,000 performance warrants to 
directors, officers and consultants of the Company.  The performance warrants are exercisable into common shares at prices 
ranging from $0.05 - $0.25 and will expire if unexercised by 2023.  The performance warrants vest when the Company has 
achieved certain performance based milestones.   

On January 12, 2018, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross proceeds of $1,133,125 by the 
issuance of 7,554,170 common shares at a price of CAD $0.15 per share.

On February 19, 2018, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross proceeds of $363,555 by the 
issuance of 2,423,698 common shares at a price of CAD $0.15 per share.

On February 20, 2018, 226,279 finder’s warrants with an exercise price of $0.25 were issued pursuant to the non-brokered 
private placements.

On February 28, 2018, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross proceeds of $1,052,811 by the 
issuance of 4,211,244 common shares at a price of CAD $0.25 per share.
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On March 2, 2018, 1,146,411 finder’s warrants with an exercise price of $0.50 were issued pursuant to the non-brokered 
private placements.

On March 6, 2018, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross proceeds of $6,442,948 by the 
issuance of 12,885,896 common shares at a price of CAD $0.50 per share.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At March 31, 2018, the Company had working capital of $8,697,898. The majority of the Company’s working capital, 
$6,905,982, is based on a loan from the Company to TimberLand Bay Properties LLC (“TimberLand”). This loan is 
comprised of $883,750 of funds that have been sent as an advance under a secured credit agreement with TimberLand. The 
remaining $6,022,232 was advanced upon signing of the merger agreement between Agrios and TimberLand. The closing of 
the merger agreement occurred subsequently to the year end, and will form a portion of the consideration paid for 
TimberLand.  The remaining portions will become an intercompany loan which is eliminated upon consolidation.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable to a going 
concern which assumes the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of 
business rather than through a process of forced liquidation. At March 31, 2018, the Company had incurred a net loss of 
$963,218 (2017 – $6) and had an accumulated deficit of $963,224 (2017 – $6). The Company’s financial success is 
dependent on management’s ability to raise adequate financing on reasonable terms and to commence profitable operations in 
the future. These factors indicate the existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Should the Company be unable to realize its assets and discharge its 
liabilities in the normal course of business, the net realizable value of its assets may be materially less than the amounts 
recorded in these consolidated financial statements. These consolidated financial statements do not include adjustments that 
would be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. 

The Company’s expected cash resources are sufficient to meet its short-term needs. Management estimates that the current 
cash position and future cash flows from new equity financings and/or related party loans will be sufficient for the Company 
to carry out its anticipated costs of operations through 2018. There may be circumstances where, for sound business reasons, 
a reallocation of funds may be necessary in order for the Company to achieve its business objectives.  

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

The following share capital data is current as of the date of this document:

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Operating expenses for the year ended March 31, 2018, totaled $963,218 (2017 – $6). Significant operating expenses for the 
year ended March 31, 2018 were comprised of stock-based compensation of $654,073 related to performance warrants issued 
in January and February, 2018, consulting fees of $93,565 (2017 – $Nil), legal fees of 87,031 (2017 – $Nil), travel and 
accommodation costs of $60,002 (2017 – $Nil) and management salaries of $39,162 (2017 – $Nil).

The Company’s operations are in their infancy and no comparative or trend discussion is relevant.

Balance

Shares issued and outstanding 83,637,389
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SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION FOR MOST RECENT COMPLETED QUARTERS

March 31,
2018

December 31, 
2017

September 30,
2017

June 30,
2017

$ $ $ $
Net loss (943,130) (16,727) (18) (3,343)
Basic loss per share (0.03) (0.00) (0.00) (0.01)

March 31,
2017

December 31, 
2016

September 30,
2016

June 30,
2016

$ $ $ $
Net loss (6) Nil Nil Nil
Basic loss per share (6) Nil Nil Nil

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

All financial instruments are recorded initially at fair value. In subsequent periods, all financial instruments are measured 
based on the classification adopted for the financial instruments: held to maturity, loans and receivables, fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale, fair value through profit or loss liabilities or other liabilities. Fair value through profit or loss 
assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value with the change in the fair value recognized in net loss during the 
period. Held to maturity assets, loans and receivable, and other liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate method. Available for sale assets are subsequently measured at fair value with the change in fair
value recorded in other comprehensive loss, except for equity instruments without a quoted market price in active markets 
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, which are measured at cost.

The Company is exposed to one variety of financial instrument related risks. The Board of Directors approves and monitors 
the risk management processes, inclusive of documented investment policies, counterparty limits, and controlling and 
reporting structures. 

The principal financial instruments used by the Company, from which financial instrument risk arises are cash and cash 
equivalents, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities.

The Company’s financial instruments are exposed to certain financial risks, which include the following:

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the counterparty's inability to meet its obligations.  The Company’s exposure to credit risk 
is on its cash. Risk associated with cash is managed through the use of a major bank which is a high credit quality financial 
institutions as determined by rating agencies. 

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations when they become due.  The 
Company aims to ensure that there is sufficient capital in order to meet short-term operating requirements, after taking into 
account the Company’s holdings of cash. The Company’s cash is held in corporate bank accounts available on demand.  
Liquidity risk has been assessed as being high.
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Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates.  The Company is not currently exposed to interest rate risk.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTIONS

The Company has not entered into any significant off-balance sheet arrangements or commitments.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company had the following transactions with the directors of the Company:

As at March 31, 2018, the Company had incurred the following related party transactions:

- Management fees of $14,167 to Chris Kennedy, CEO and director of the Company

PROPOSED TRANSACTIONS

On February 26, 2018, the Company entered into a Merger Agreement and Plan of Reorganization (the “Agreement”) with 
TimberLand and Agrios Merger Sub (Washington) Inc. (“Merger Sub”). Under the Agreement the transaction will be 
structured as a merger whereby Merger Sub will be merged with and into TimberLand , and the surviving company will 
become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The members of the TimberLand will receive 29,166,667 fully paid 
common shares of the Company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On June 8, 2018 the Company obtained the Merger Certificate for the merger with Merger Sub

On June 19, 2018, the Company completed a tranche 1 brokered private placement (“Financing”) for gross proceeds of 
$3,532,500 at a price of $0.50 per share.  Each share consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant, 
resulting in the issuance of 7,065,000 common shares and 7,065,000 share purchase warrants. The share purchase warrants 
are convertible into 706,500 common shares if the Company has not completed a liquidity event by the later of 120 days from 
closing or December 31, 2018. Each Financing common share will be exercisable for an additional $0.05 security every 30 
days from the later of 120 days from closing or December 31, 2018 if the liquidity event does not occur. In connection with 
the Financing the Company incurred $287,678 of share issuance costs and issued 423,900 Agent’s Warrants. The Agent’s 
Warrants entitle the holders to acquire 423,900 common shares at an exercise price of $0.50 for two years from the date the 
company completes a liquidity event with a fair value of $117,847.  The fair value was estimated using the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model applying a market price of $0.50, an exercise price of $0.50, a risk free rate of 1.83%, an expected 
volatility of 100% and an expected dividend yield of 0%. The fair value of the Agent’s Warrants was recorded as a share 
issue cost.

On July 16, 2018, the Company completed a tranche 2 brokered private placement (“Financing”) for gross proceeds of 
$179,500 at a price of $0.50 per unit.  Each unit will consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant, 
resulting in the issuance of 359,000 common shares and 359,000 share purchase warrants. The share purchase warrants are 
convertible into 35,900 common shares if the Company has not completed a liquidity event by the later of 120 days from 
closing or December 31, 2018. Each Financing common share will be exercisable for an additional $0.05 security every 30 
days from the later of 120 days from closing or December 31, 2018 if the liquidity event does not occur. In connection with 
the Financing the Company incurred $8,288 of share issuance costs and issued 21,450 Agent’s Warrants.  The Agent’s 
Warrants entitle the holders to acquire 21,540 common shares at an exercise price of $0.50 for two years from the date the 
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company completes a liquidity event with a fair value of $5,993.  The fair value was estimated using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model applying a market price of $0.50, an exercise price of $0.50, a risk free rate of 1.92%, an expected 
volatility of 100% and an expected dividend yield of 0%. The fair value of the Agent’s Warrants was recorded as a share 
issue cost.

On July 23, 2018, the Company completed a private placement (“Financing”) for gross proceeds of $5,475,767 at a price of 
$0.60 per share.  In connection with the Financing the Company incurred $302,208 of share issuance costs and issues 516,802 
Finder’s Warrants.  The Finder’s Warrants entitle the holders to acquire 516,802 common shares at an exercise price of $0.60 
for two years from the date of closing with a fair value of $164,307. The fair value was estimated using the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model applying a market price of $0.60, an exercise price of $0.60, a risk free rate of 1.97%, an expected 
volatility of 100% and an expected dividend yield of 0%. The fair value of the Finder’s Warrants was recorded as a share 
issue cost.

On July 30, 2018, the Company granted 5,300,000 stock options that are exercisable at a price of $0.60 per share for a period 
of five years. 5,000,000 options vest over 18 months from the date of grant while 300,000 options vest over a period of 12 
months. The fair value was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model applying a market price of $0.60, an 
exercise price of $0.60, a risk free rate of 2.16%, an expected volatility of 100% and an expected dividend yield of 0%. 

On August 27, 2018, the Company completed a private placement for gross proceeds of $130,761 at a price of $0.60 per 
share.  

RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

Conflicts of Interest
Certain directors of the Company also serve as directors and/or officers of other companies involved in other business 
ventures. Consequently, there exists the possibility for such directors to be in a position of conflict. Any decision made by 
such directors involving the Company will be made in accordance with their duties and obligations to deal fairly and in good 
faith with the Company and such other companies. In addition, such directors will declare, and refrain from voting on, any 
matter in which such directors may have a conflict of interest.

Negative Operating Cash Flows
As the Company is at the early stage start up stage it may continue to have negative operating cash flows. Without the
injection of further capital and the development of revenue streams from its business, the Company may continue to have 
negative operating cash flows until it can realize stable cash flow from operations.

Risks Related as a Going Concern
The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is uncertain and dependent upon its ability to achieve profitable 
operations, obtain additional capital and receive continued support from its shareholders. Management of the Company will 
have to raise capital through private placements or debt financing and proposes to continue to do so through future private 
placements and offerings. The outcome of these matters cannot be predicted at this time.

Reliance on Key Personnel and Advisors
The Company relies heavily on its officers. The loss of their services may have a material adverse effect on the business of 
the Company. There can be no assurance that one or all of the employees of, and contractors engaged by, the Company will 
continue in the employ of, or in a consulting capacity to, the Company or that they will not set up competing businesses or 
accept positions with competitors. There is no guarantee that certain employees of, and contractors to, the Company who 
have access to confidential information will not disclose the confidential information. 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The information provided in this report is the responsibility of management.  In the preparation of these statements, estimates
are sometimes necessary to make a determination of future values for certain assets or liabilities.  Management believes such
estimates have been based on careful judgments and have been properly reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements.

RISK FACTORS

Market Risk for Securities
We are a reporting issuer company whose common shares are not listed for trading on a stock exchange. There can be no 
assurance that an active trading market for our common shares will be established and sustained. Upon a listing, the market 
price for our common shares could be subject to wide fluctuations. Factors such as commodity prices, government regulation, 
interest rates, share price movements of peer companies and competitors, as well as overall market movements, may have a
significant impact on the market price of our securities. The stock market has from time to time experienced extreme price 
and volume fluctuations, which have often been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies.

Uninsured or Uninsurable Risk
We may become subject to liability for risks against which we cannot insure or against which we may elect not to insure due 
to the high cost of insurance premiums or other factors. The payment of any such liabilities would reduce the funds available 
for our usual business activities. Payment of liabilities for which we do not carry insurance may have a material adverse 
effect on our financial position and operations.

Conflicts of Interest Risk
Certain of our directors and officers are also directors and operators in other companies. Situations may arise in connection 
with potential acquisitions or opportunities where the other interests of these directors and officers conflict with or diverge 
from our interests. In accordance with the BCBCA, directors who have a material interest in any person who is a party to a 
material contract or a proposed material contract are required, subject to certain exceptions, to disclose that interest and 
generally abstain from voting on any resolution to approve the contract. In addition, the directors and the officers are required 
to act honestly and in good faith with a view to our best interests. However, in conflict of interest situations, our directors and 
officers may owe the same duty to another company and will need to balance their competing interests with their duties to us.

Circumstances (including with respect to future corporate opportunities) may arise that may be resolved in a manner that is 
unfavourable to us.

Key Personnel Risk
Our success will depend on our directors and officers to develop our business and manage our operations, and on our ability
to attract and retain key quality assurance, scientific, sales, public relations and marketing staff or consultants once operations 
begin. The loss of any key person or the inability to find and retain new key persons could have a material adverse effect on
our business. Competition for qualified technical, sales and marketing staff, as well as officers and directors can be intense
and no assurance can be provided that we will be able to attract or retain key personnel in the future, which may adversely
impact our operations.

No Established Market for Shares Risk
There is currently no established trading market through which common shares in our authorized capital may be sold. Even if
a trading market develops, there can be no assurance that such market will continue in the future. You may lose your entire 
investment.

Global Economy Risk
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The ongoing economic slowdown and downturn of global capital markets has generally made the raising of capital by equity 
or debt financing more difficult. We will be dependent upon the capital markets to raise additional financing in the future, 
while we establish a client base for our product. Access to financing has been negatively impacted by the ongoing global 
economic downturn. As such, we are subject to liquidity risks in meeting our development and future operating cost 
requirements in instances where cash positions are unable to be maintained or appropriate financing is unavailable. These 
factors may impact our ability to raise equity or obtain loans and other credit facilities in the future and on terms favourable 
to us and our management. If uncertain market conditions persist, our ability to raise capital could be jeopardized, which 
could have an adverse impact on our operations and the trading price of our Common Shares on the Exchange.

Dividend Risk
We have not paid dividends in the past and do not anticipate paying dividends in the near future. We expect to retain our 
earnings to finance further growth and, when appropriate, retire debt.

Share Price Volatility Risk
It is anticipated that our common shares will be listed for trading on the Exchange. As such, external factors outside of our 
control such as announcements of quarterly variations in operating results, revenues and costs, and sentiments toward the
cryptocurrency sector stocks may have a significant impact on the market price of our common shares. Global stock markets, 
including the Exchange, have from time to time experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have often been 
unrelated to the operations of particular companies. There can be no assurance that an active or liquid market will develop or 
be sustained for the common shares.

OTHER INFORMATION

Additional information on the Company is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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BACKGROUND 

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) has been prepared by management as of October 26, 2018, and it 
presents an analysis of the consolidated financial position of Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. (formerly Sparrow Capital Corp.) 
(the “Company” or “Agrios”) for the period ended June 30, 2018. The following information should be read in conjunction 
with the audited financial statements of the Corporation for the year ended March 31, 2018, including the notes contained 
therein. The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(“IFRS”). 

During the period ended June 30, 2018, the Company adopted certain accounting policies, critical account estimates and risk 
factors  to reflect the acquisition of  TimberLand Bay Properties, LLC (“TimberLand”). All amounts are expressed in US 
dollars unless noted otherwise. 

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARDING LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This MD&A contains certain statements that may constitute “forward-looking statements”. Forward-looking statements 
include but are not limited to, statements regarding future anticipated business developments and the timing thereof, 
regulatory compliance, sufficiency of working capital, and business and financing plans. Although the Company believes that 
such statements are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. Forward-looking 
statements are typically identified by words such as: believe, expect, anticipate, intend, estimate, postulate and similar 
expressions, or which by their nature refer to future events. The Company cautions investors that any forward-looking 
statements by the Company are not guarantees of future performance, and that actual results may differ materially from those 
in forward looking statements as a result of various factors, including, but not limited to, the Company’s ability to continue its 
projected growth, to raise the necessary capital or to be fully able to implement its business strategies.  
 
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 

The Company was incorporated in British Columbia, Canada, on February 18, 2017. The Company’s head office is located at 
1980 – 1075 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, BC, Canada, V6E 3C9. 
 
The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, currently operates as an agricultural technology, services and property 
management company. The Company provides real property and equipment for lease and enhanced ancillary services to the 
agricultural and cannabis industries in the State of Washington. The Company chose Washington given the proximity to 
Vancouver, British Columbia and as Washington was one of the first states to legalize and regulate the use of recreational 
cannabis for adults in 2014 and as such its regulatory regime is stable. 

The Company’s mission is to enable licensed cultivators of cannabis and/or other agricultural crops to enhance both crop 
quality and yields through proprietary knowledge and the use of clean technology and tools.  

The Company is corporately structured to provide a comprehensive range of flexible options to licensed cannabis cultivators, 
and processors for the cultivating, processing, packaging, and distribution of cannabis and cannabis products. The Company, 
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, also provides long-term advisory and consulting services in cannabis and other 
agricultural crops. 
 
The Company provides an integrated facility (the “Shelton Facility”), the technology, and the structure to comply with 
Washington and municipal cannabis laws in Shelton, Washington. The Company also provides supply services for Tier 3 
WSLCB producer and production license holders (“License Holders”) and derives income streams from license holders for 
the cultivation, growing, processing, packaging, and distribution of cannabis within Washington. 

HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND SUBSEQUENTLY 
 
On June 8, 2018, the Company completed the acquisition of TimberLand Bay Properties, LLC and issued 29,166,667 shares 
as consideration shares. 
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On June 19, 2018 the Company completed a tranche 1 brokered private placement (“Financing”) for gross proceeds of 
$2,660,817 (CAD $3,532,500) at a price of $0.377 (CAD $0.50) per share.  Each share will consist of one common share and 
one share purchase warrant, resulting in the issuance of 7,065,000 common shares and 7,065,000 share purchase warrants. 
The share purchase warrants are convertible into 706,500 common shares if the Company has not completed a liquidity event 
by the later of 120 days from closing or December 31, 2018. Each Financing common share will be exercisable for an 
additional CAD $0.05 security every 30 days from the later of 120 days from closing or December 31, 2018 if the liquidity 
event does not occur. In connection with the Financing the Company incurred $216,690 (CAD $287,678) of share issuance 
costs and issued 423,900 Agent’s Warrants.  The Agent’s Warrants entitle the holders to acquire 423,900 common shares at 
an exercise price of CAD $0.50 for two years from the date the company completes a liquidity event with a fair value of 
$88,767 (CAD $117,847).   
 
On July 16, 2018, the Company completed a tranche 2 brokered private placement (“Financing”) for gross proceeds of 
$136,637 (CAD $179,500) at a price of $0.381 (CAD $0.50) per share.  Each share will consist of one common share and one 
share purchase warrant, resulting in the issuance of 359,000 common shares and 359,000 share purchase warrants. The share 
purchase warrants are convertible into 35,900 common shares if the Company has not completed a liquidity event by the later 
of 120 days from closing or December 31, 2018. Each Financing common share will be exercisable for an additional CAD 
$0.05 security every 30 days from the later of 120 days from closing or December 31, 2018 if the liquidity event does not 
occur. In connection with the Financing the Company incurred $6,309 (CAD $8,288) of share issuance costs and issued 
21,540 Agent’s Warrants.  The Agent’s Warrants entitle the holders to acquire 21,540 common shares at an exercise price of 
CAD $0.50 for two years from the date the company completes a liquidity event with a fair value of $4,562 (CAD $5,993).   
 
On July 23, 2018, the Company completed a private placement (“Financing”) for gross proceeds of $4,162,182 (CAD 
$5,475,767) at a price of $0.46 (CAD $0.60) per share.  In connection with the Financing the Company incurred $240,173 
(CAD $315,972) of share issuance costs and issued 516,802 Finder’s Warrants.  The Finder’s Warrants entitle the holders to 
acquire 516,802 common shares at an exercise price of $0.46 (CAD $0.60) for two years from the date of closing with a fair 
value of $124,891 (CAD $164,307).   

On July 26, 2018, the Company granted incentive stock options to consultants and employees of the Company, exercisable at 
$0.46 (CAD$0.60), to purchase up to an aggregate of 5,300,000 common shares of the Company. 
 
On August 27, 2018, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement raising gross proceeds of $100,699 (CAD 
$130,761) by the issuance of 217,935 common shares at a price of $0.46 (CAD $0.60) per share. 
  
OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA 
 
The following share capital data is current as of the date of this document: 
 
 
 
 

 
OVERALL PERFORMANCE 

The statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018 indicates a cash and term deposit balance of $6,866,214 (March 31, 
2018 – $1,447,843) and total current assets of $7,747,546 (March 31, 2018 – $6,817,018). The increase in cash and term 
deposit and the overall current assets is primarily due to the closed financings completed during the period.  The increase of 

 Balance 
  
Shares issued and outstanding 83,637,389 
Fully diluted 111,970,042 
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accounts receivable of $809,045 (March 31, 2018 - $1,777) is due to the Company earning revenues of $427,750 and 
acquired receivables of $372,465 upon acquisition of TimberLand. 
 
Non-current assets of $21,687,718 (March 31, 2018 – nil) is mainly related to $20,435,147 of property, plant and equipment 
acquired from the acquisition of TimberLand and $1,050,172 of goodwill recognized as part of the acquisition. 
 
Current liabilities as of June 30, 2018 was $801,999 (March 31, 2018 - $69,231). The increase is due to the following: 
completion of the acquisition of TimberLand, which results in increase in payables due to operational activities on a 
consolidated basis; current portion of mortgage payable of $236,233, which is related to the Shelton facility; current portion 
of installment obligation of $117,332, which is related to the acquisition of equipment for the grow facility; and due to related 
parties of $100,635 which is related to a deposit for construction costs for TimberLand which was advanced by JRV 
Technologies LLC, a Company controlled by James Foster, a director of the Company. Shareholders’ equity of $20,345,183 
(March 31, 2018 – $6,747,787) is comprised of share capital of $20,413,169 (March 31, 2018 - $6,833,871), reserves of 
$1,391,608 (March 31, 2018 - $722,600), accumulative other comprehensive loss of $7,629 (March 31, 2018 – $55,223), and 
accumulated deficit of $1,451,965 (March 31, 2018 - $753,461).  The increase in Shareholders’ equity was related to 
29,166,667 common shares with a fair of $11,246,955 issued to acquire TimberLand and a private placement that closed for 
gross proceeds of $2,660,817 during the period. 
 
Long-term liabilities of $8,288,082 (March 31, 2018 – nil) mainly consist of $4,363,767 the long term portion of mortgage 
payable for the Shelton facility and $3,881,115 of deferred income tax liability that is a result of the acquisition of 
TimberLand. 
 
The Company had one customer for the period ended June 30, 2018 that accounted for all of the revenues. As the majority of 
the Company’s income is derived from one customer, its ability to continue operations is dependent upon the relationship 
with and the sustainability of the customer. Any significant disruption in the customer’s business could result in a material 
adverse effect on the operations of the Company. The loss of this significant customer will adversely impact the operations of 
the Company.  

As at June 30, 2018 the Company’s working capital is $6,945,547 (March 31, 2018 – $6,747,787). 
 
As of June 30, 2018, the Company had incurred $463,708 (March 31, 2018 - $3,474) of operating activities. The increase is 
primarily attributed to the build out of the facility as well as the general and administrative expenses incurred for corporate 
matters and expenses related to financing and management meetings. The Company also has not collected any of its 
outstanding trade receivables.  
 
As of June 30, 2018, the Company has incurred $122,228 (March 31, 2018 - $Nil) of investing activities. This increase in 
cash outflow is primarily due to the continued build out of the Company’s facility. 
 
As of June 30, 2018, the Company has received $2,502,004 (March 31, 2018 - $23,070) from financing mainly through the 
issuance of common shares of the Company. There was also $100,634 which relates to a shareholder advance. 
 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
On April 1, 2018 the Company entered into equipment lease and services agreement, consulting and supply agreement, 
license consulting agreement, and financial services agreement with EH Enterprises Management, Inc., dba Evergreen Herbal 
(“EH”) and started reporting revenue in April 2018.   For the period ended June 30, 2018, the Company recorded $234,677 as 
rental and IP revenue and $193,073 as products and service revenue.  The cost of products and services sold is $51,919, 
which is related to services purchased, salaries, and cost of nutrients and supplies sold. The gross profit for the period ended 
June 30, 2018 is $375,831. Operating expenses for the period totaled $1,030,277. The expenses of the Company for the 
period ended June 30, 2018 consisted mainly of stock-based compensation related to performance warrants issued in the prior 
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year and expected to partially vest this year, management salaries of $195,026, travel and accommodation of $82,408, legal 
fees of $42,213, office and miscellaneous of $29,096 and $26,122 of consulting fees.   
 
Management salaries for the period ended June 30, 2018 amounted to $195,026, which consists of compensation provided to 
management. See related party discussion below.  
 
Travel and accommodation for the period ended June 30, 2018 amounted to $82,408, which consists of expenses related to 
travel and hotel for business purposes consisting of investor presentations, financing meetings, board meetings and general 
business duties. $10,000 in travel and accommodation relate specifically to car allowance for individuals travelling to and 
from the facility. 
 
Legal fees for the period ended June 30, 2018 amounted to $42,213, which consists of legal fees related to corporate matters 
and financings. 
 
Office and miscellaneous expenses for the period ended June 30, 2018 amounted to $29,096, consists of general office 
expenditures. 
 
Consulting fees for the period ended June 30, 2018 amounted to $26,122, which consisted of engaging consultants with 
setting up corporate subsidiaries as well as consulting on business development and market strategy. 
 
The total loss before income taxes is $652,504 (June 30, 2017 – $3,343) and after income tax expense of $46,000 (June 30, 
2017 – nil) and foreign currency translation of $47,594 (June 30, 2017 – nil) the total comprehensive loss for the period is 
$650,910 (June 30, 2017 – $3,343). The income tax expense is related to the income tax provision for the operations. The 
foreign currency translation of $47,594 is  derived from translation of the Canadian entities’ accounting records to US dollars.  
The Company’s expenses are primarily denominated in United States dollars. Only the Company’s corporate office is based 
in the Canada and current exposure to exchange rate fluctuations is minimal. 
 
As at June 30, 2018, the loss per share is $0.01 (June 30, 2017 - $0.01).  The change in loss per share remained the same due 
to the fact that there were significantly more shares outstanding as at June 30, 2018 compared to the prior period and the loss 
was larger.  As at June 30, 2018, there were 73,934,176 shares outstanding and 627,501 shares outstanding as at June 30, 
2017. 
 
COMPARISON OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
During the quarter ended June 30, 2018, the Company reported $234,677 in rental and IP revenue and $193,073 in products 
and service revenue (June 30, 2017 – nil), cost of products and services sold is $51,919 (June 30, 2017 – nil), and a gross 
profit of $375,831 (June 30, 2017 – nil), a net loss of $698,504 (June 30, 2017 - $3,343), and a net comprehensive loss of 
$650,910 (June 30, 2017 - $3,343). The increased losses during the period were attributable to the Company building out its 
facility since the acquisition of TimberLand, which closed on June 8, 2018.  
 
During the quarter ended June 30, 2018, the Company recorded operating expenses of $1,030,277 (June 30, 2017 – 3,343). 
Significant operating expenses for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 were comprised of stock-based compensation of $580,240 
management salaries of $195,026 (June 30, 2017 – nil), travel and accommodation of $82,408 (June 30, 2017 – nil), legal 
fees of 42,213 (June 30, 2017 – $3,160), office and miscellaneous expenses of $29,096 (June 30, 2017 – nil) and consulting 
fees of $26,122. The increased in cash based expenses during the period were attributable to the Company incurring expenses 
for building out the facility, raising financing, and legal fees relating to general corporate matters. 
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The Company’s operations are in their infancy and no comparative or trend discussion is applicable at the moment. 
 
SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION FOR MOST RECENT COMPLETED QUARTERS 
 
The following table sets out selected unaudited quarterly financial information of the Company. This information is derived 
from unaudited quarterly financial statements prepared by management since incorporation on February 18, 2017. These 
financial data are prepared in accordance with IFRS. 
 

 June 30,  
2018 

March 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 

September 30,  
2017 

 $ $ $ $ 
Rental and IP revenue 234,677 Nil Nil Nil 
Products and service 
revenue 

193,073 Nil Nil Nil 

Net loss (698,504) (799,103) (16,727) (18) 
Basic loss per share (0.01) (0.01) (0.00) (0.00) 

 
 June 30,  

2017 
March 31,  

2017 
  

 $ $   
Revenue Nil Nil   
Net loss (3,343) (6)   
Basic loss per share (0.01) (6)   

 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

At June 30, 2018, the Company had working capital of $6,945,547 having current assets of $7,747,546 and current liabilities 
of $801,999. The majority of the Company’s working capital, $6,945,547, is based on the Company’s cash position from 
financings closed during the period. The Company subsequently closed gross proceeds of $4,399,518 in financing rounds 
after the period end. 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable to a going 
concern which assumes the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of 
business rather than through a process of forced liquidation. At June 30, 2018, the Company had incurred a net loss of 
$698,504 (June 30, 2017 – $3,343) and had an accumulated deficit of $1,451,965 (June 30, 2017 – $3,349). The Company’s 
financial success is dependent on management’s ability to raise adequate financing on reasonable terms and to commence 
profitable operations in the future. These factors indicate the existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant 
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Should the Company be unable to realize its assets and 
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business, the net realizable value of its assets may be materially less than the 
amounts recorded in these consolidated financial statements. These consolidated financial statements do not include 
adjustments that would be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.   
 
The Company’s expected cash resources are sufficient to meet its short-term needs. Management estimates that the current 
cash position and future cash flows from new equity financings and/or related party loans will be sufficient for the Company 
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to carry out its anticipated costs of operations through fiscal 2019. There may be circumstances where, for sound business 
reasons, a reallocation of funds may be necessary in order for the Company to achieve its business objectives.   
 
In order to manage liquidity risk, the Company maintains a balance between continuity of funding and the flexibility through 
the use of borrowings.  Management closely monitors the liquidity position and expects to have adequate sources of funding 
to finance the Company’s operations.  

A summary of the Company’s contractual obligations at June 30, 2018 is detailed in the table below.  

Contractual Obligations 

Payments Due by Period 

Total 
Less than 1 

Year 1 – 3 Years 4 – 5 Years After 5 Years 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $347,800 $347,800 N/A N/A N/A 

Mortgage payable $4,600,000 $236,233 $4,363,767 N/A N/A 

Installment obligations(1) $160,532 $117,332 $43,200 N/A N/A 

Due to related parties $100,634 $100,634 N/A N/A N/A 

Total $5,208,966 $801,999 $4,406,967   

(1) Subsequent to the period end, the Company retired the total installment obligation. 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

All financial instruments are recorded initially at fair value. In subsequent periods, all financial instruments are measured 
based on the classification adopted for the financial instruments: held to maturity, loans and receivables, fair value through 
profit or loss, available-for-sale, fair value through profit or loss liabilities or other liabilities. Fair value through profit or loss 
assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value with the change in the fair value recognized in net loss during the 
period. Held to maturity assets, loans and receivable, and other liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate method. Available for sale assets are subsequently measured at fair value with the change in fair 
value recorded in other comprehensive loss, except for equity instruments without a quoted market price in active markets 
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, which are measured at cost. 

The Company is exposed to one variety of financial instrument related risks. The Board of Directors approves and monitors 
the risk management processes, inclusive of documented investment policies, counterparty limits, and controlling and 
reporting structures.  

The principal financial instruments used by the Company, from which financial instrument risk arises are cash and term 
deposits, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities. 
 

 June 30, 2018 March 31, 2018 
Financial Assets   
Cash and term deposit $6,866,214  $1,447,843 
Accounts receivable 809,045 1,777 
Due from related parties - 5,357,628 
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Total Financial Assets $7,675,259 $6,807,248 
   
Financial Liabilities    
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities $301,800   $69,231 
Due to related parties 100,634 - 
Mortgage payable 4,600,000 - 
Installment obligations 160,532 - 
Total Financial Liabilities $5,162,966  $69,231          

 
Financial instruments not measured at fair value include accounts payable and other accrued liabilities, due to (from) related 
parties, loan payable, mortgage payable and installment obligations. Due to their short-term nature, the carrying value of cash 
and term deposit, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities, due to related parties and installment 
obligations approximates their fair value.  The carrying value of the Mortgage payable approximates its fair value as the 
terms are similar to current market terms.   
  
The Company’s financial instruments are exposed to certain financial risks, which include the following: 
 
Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the counterparty's inability to meet its obligations.  The Company’s exposure to credit risk 
is on its cash.  Risk associated with cash is managed through the use of a major bank which is a high credit quality financial 
institution as determined by rating agencies.  

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations when they become due.  The 
Company aims to ensure that there is sufficient capital in order to meet short-term operating requirements, after taking into 
account the Company’s holdings of cash. The Company’s cash is held in corporate bank accounts available on demand.  
Liquidity risk has been assessed as being high. 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates.  The Company is not currently exposed to interest rate risk as its loans have fixed interest rates. 
 
OFF-BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Company has not entered into any significant off-balance sheet arrangements or commitments. 
 
LICENSE AGREEMENT 
 
The Company has not entered into any license arrangements or commitments. 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Company had the following transactions with management and directors of the Company: 
 
As at June 30, 2018, the Company had the following payables: 
 

- JRV Technologies LLC was owed $100,634 for construction costs which were paid by JRV Technologies LLC, a 
Company controlled by James Foster, a director of the Company. 
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As at June 30, 2018, the Company had incurred a total of $189,967 for the following related party transactions: 
 

- Fees of $25,000 to James Foster, a director of the Company, pursuant to an employment agreement 
- Fees of $58,967 to Larry Ellison, director of the Company, pursuant to an employment agreement  
- Fees of $42,500 to Leo Robinton, VP Business Development of the Company, pursuant to an employment agreement 
- Fees of $42,500 to Chris Kennedy, CEO, President and director of the Company, pursuant to an employment 

agreement 
- Fees of $21,000 to Curtis Livesay, Chief Agronomist of the Company, pursuant to an employment agreement 

 
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES INCLUDING INITIAL ADOPTION 

The following is a summary of recent accounting pronouncements the Company will be required to adopt in future years. The 
Company continues to evaluate the impact of these standards on its financial statements. 

Adoption of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”) 

IFRS 15 establishes a single five-step model framework for determining the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of 
revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company has determined that the adoption of this standard has no 
impact on its financial statements. 

On April 1, 2018, the Company adopted the requirements of IFRS 15. IFRS 15 covers principles that an entity shall apply to 
report useful information to users of the financial statements about the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and 
cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. The Company elected to apply IFRS 15 using a full retrospective 
approach. 

IFRS 15 requires companies to recognize revenue when “control” of goods or services transfers to the customer, whereas the 
previous standard, IAS 18, required entities to recognize revenue when the “risks and rewards” of the goods or services 
transfer to the customer. The Company concluded that there is no change to the timing of revenue recognition of its rental 
income, service fee income, and supply sales under IFRS 15 compared to the previous standard. As such, no adjustment was 
required to the Company’s financial statements. 

Adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) 

On April 1, 2018, the Company adopted the requirements of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 provides a revised model for recognition and 
measurement of financial instruments and a single, forward-looking “expected-loss” impairment model. The Company 
adopted a retrospective approach, other than for hedge accounting, which is applied prospectively.  

IFRS 9 did not impact the Company’s classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities, and there was no 
significant impact on the carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments at the transition date.  

The introduction of the new ‘expected credit loss’ impairment model had negligible impact on the Company, given the 
Company provides its rental income, service fee income, and product sales concentrate to a customer with no historical level 
of customer default, and the corresponding receivables from these sales are short-term in nature. 
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The Company currently has no hedging arrangements, and will apply the new accounting requirements under IFRS 9 as 
required.  

RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES 
 
Conflicts of Interest 
Certain directors of the Company also serve as directors and/or officers of other companies involved in other business 
ventures. Consequently, there exists the possibility for such directors to be in a position of conflict. Any decision made by 
such directors involving the Company will be made in accordance with their duties and obligations to deal fairly and in good 
faith with the Company and such other companies. In addition, such directors will declare, and refrain from voting on, any 
matter in which such directors may have a conflict of interest.  
 
Negative Operating Cash Flows 
As the Company is at the early stage start up stage it may continue to have negative operating cash flows. Without the 
injection of further capital and the development of revenue streams from its business, the Company may continue to have 
negative operating cash flows until it can realize stable cash flow from operations. 
Risks Related as a Going Concern 
The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is uncertain and dependent upon its ability to achieve profitable 
operations, obtain additional capital and receive continued support from its shareholders. Management of the Company will 
have to raise capital through private placements or debt financing and proposes to continue to do so through future private 
placements and offerings. The outcome of these matters cannot be predicted at this time.  
 
Reliance on Key Personnel and Advisors 
The Company relies heavily on its officers. The loss of their services may have a material adverse effect on the business of 
the Company. There can be no assurance that one or all of the employees of, and contractors engaged by, the Company will 
continue in the employ of, or in a consulting capacity to, the Company or that they will not set up competing businesses or 
accept positions with competitors. There is no guarantee that certain employees of, and contractors to, the Company who 
have access to confidential information will not disclose the confidential information.  
 
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The information provided in this report is the responsibility of management.  In the preparation of these statements, estimates 
are sometimes necessary to make a determination of future values for certain assets or liabilities.  Management believes such 
estimates have been based on careful judgments and have been properly reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
RISK FACTORS 
 
Market Risk for Securities 
We are a reporting issuer company whose common shares are not listed for trading on a stock exchange. There can be no 
assurance that an active trading market for our common shares will be established and sustained. Upon a listing, the market 
price for our common shares could be subject to wide fluctuations. Factors such as commodity prices, government regulation, 
interest rates, share price movements of peer companies and competitors, as well as overall market movements, may have a 
significant impact on the market price of our securities. The stock market has from time to time experienced extreme price 
and volume fluctuations, which have often been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. 
 
Uninsured or Uninsurable Risk 
We may become subject to liability for risks against which we cannot insure or against which we may elect not to insure due 
to the high cost of insurance premiums or other factors. The payment of any such liabilities would reduce the funds available 
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for our usual business activities. Payment of liabilities for which we do not carry insurance may have a material adverse 
effect on our financial position and operations. 
 
Conflicts of Interest Risk 
Certain of our directors and officers are also directors and operators in other companies. Situations may arise in connection 
with potential acquisitions or opportunities where the other interests of these directors and officers conflict with or diverge 
from our interests. In accordance with the BCBCA, directors who have a material interest in any person who is a party to a 
material contract or a proposed material contract are required, subject to certain exceptions, to disclose that interest and 
generally abstain from voting on any resolution to approve the contract. In addition, the directors and the officers are required 
to act honestly and in good faith with a view to our best interests. However, in conflict of interest situations, our directors and 
officers may owe the same duty to another company and will need to balance their competing interests with their duties to us. 
 
Circumstances (including with respect to future corporate opportunities) may arise that may be resolved in a manner that is 
unfavourable to us. 
 
Key Personnel Risk 
Our success will depend on our directors and officers to develop our business and manage our operations, and on our ability 
to attract and retain key quality assurance, scientific, sales, public relations and marketing staff or consultants once operations 
begin. The loss of any key person or the inability to find and retain new key persons could have a material adverse effect on 
our business. Competition for qualified technical, sales and marketing staff, as well as officers and directors can be intense 
and no assurance can be provided that we will be able to attract or retain key personnel in the future, which may adversely 
impact our operations. 
 
No Established Market for Shares Risk 
There is currently no established trading market through which common shares in our authorized capital may be sold. Even if 
a trading market develops, there can be no assurance that such market will continue in the future. You may lose your entire 
investment. 
 
Global Economy Risk 
The ongoing economic slowdown and downturn of global capital markets has generally made the raising of capital by equity 
or debt financing more difficult. We will be dependent upon the capital markets to raise additional financing in the future, 
while we establish a client base for our product. Access to financing has been negatively impacted by the ongoing global 
economic downturn. As such, we are subject to liquidity risks in meeting our development and future operating cost 
requirements in instances where cash positions are unable to be maintained or appropriate financing is unavailable. These 
factors may impact our ability to raise equity or obtain loans and other credit facilities in the future and on terms favourable 
to us and our management. If uncertain market conditions persist, our ability to raise capital could be jeopardized, which 
could have an adverse impact on our operations and the trading price of our Common Shares on the Exchange. 
 
Dividend Risk 
We have not paid dividends in the past and do not anticipate paying dividends in the near future. We expect to retain our 
earnings to finance further growth and, when appropriate, retire debt. 
 
Share Price Volatility Risk 
It is anticipated that our common shares will be listed for trading on the Exchange. As such, external factors outside of our 
control such as announcements of quarterly variations in operating results, revenues and costs may have an effect on the 
Company’s common shares. Global stock markets, including the Exchange, have from time to time experienced extreme 
price and volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated to the operations of particular companies. There can be no 
assurance that an active or liquid market will develop or be sustained for the common shares. 
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OTHER INFORMATION 
 
Additional information on the Company is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. 

http://www.sedar.com/
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Timberland Bay Properties LLC

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Timberland Bay Properties LLC which comprise the
statements of financial position as at March 31, 2018 and 2017, and the statements of operations and comprehensive
loss, changes in deficiency and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the period from formation to March
31, 2017, and the related notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Timberland Bay
Properties LLC as at March 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year ended
March 31, 2018 and the period from formation to March 31, 2017 in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements which indicates the existence of
a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the ability of Timberland Bay Properties LLC continue as a
going concern.

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS

Vancouver, British Columbia
October 26, 2018
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TIMBERLAND BAY PROPERTIES LLC
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT MARCH 31,

Notes 2018 2017
                                        $               $

ASSETS
Current
     Cash 3,558,565 -
     Prepaid expenses and deposits 35,671 -
     Due from related parties 10 25,890 193,274

 Total Current Assets 3,620,126 193,274

 Property, plant and equipment 5 5,801,198 2,653,869

 Total Assets 9,421,324 2,847,143

LIABILITIES
Current
     Accounts payable and accrued liabilities                                153,808 -
     Due to related party 10 100,634 -
     Credit facilities 6 3,942,300 2,860,288
     Advances from Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. 7 5,352,920 -
     Current portion of instalment obligations 8 176,349 -
     Current portion of mortgage payable 9 25,000 -

 Total Current Liabilities 9,751,011 2,860,288
 Long-term portion of mortgage payable 9 75,000 -
 Long-term portion of instalment obligations 8 57,600 -

Total Liabilities 9,883,611 2,860,288

CAPITAL AND DEFICIENCY
Capital - -
Deficit     (462,287) (13,145)

Total Capital and Deficiency (462,287) (13,145)

Total Liabilities and Deficiency 9,421,324 2,847,143

Nature of operations and going concern (Note 1)
Commitments and subsequent events (Note 13)

Approved and authorized for issue on behalf of the Board of Directors on October 26, 2018

“Chris Kennedy”  Director “Leo Robinton” Director
Chris Kennedy  Leo Robinton

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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TIMBERLAND BAY PROPERTIES LLC
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 AND PERIOD FROM FORMATION TO MARCH 31, 2017

Notes            2018               2017
..           $                  $

Expenses
   Insurance 12,384 -
   Interest expense and bank charges 46,547 -
   Labour 97,840
   Management salaries 76,260 -
   Office and miscellaneous 89,130 -
   Professional fees 69,966 3,533
   Repairs, maintenance and other 29,681 -
   Travel and entertainment 27,334 9,612

Loss and comprehensive loss 449,142 13,145

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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TIMBERLAND BAY PROPERTIES LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 AND THE PERIOD FROM FORMATION TO MARCH 31, 2017

                 2018                  2017
                $                       $

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss (449,142) (13,145)
Item not involving cash:

Accrued interest 44,344 -
Changes in non-cash working capital balances:

Increase in prepaid expenses and deposits (35,671) -
Increase in due to/from related parties 268,018 (193,274)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 109,464 -

Net cash flows used in operating activities (62,987) (206,419)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Expenditures on property, plant and equipment (2,913,380) (2,653,869)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (2,913,380) (2,653,869)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from credit facilities 1,551,422 2,882,530
Repayments of credit facilities (469,410) (22,242)
Advances from Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. 5,352,920 -
Proceeds from mortgage payable 125,000 -
Repayments of mortgage payable (25,000) -

Net cash flows provided by financing activities 6,534,932 2,860,288

NET INCREASE IN CASH 3,558,565 -

CASH AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR - -

CASH AT THE END OF THE YEAR 3,558,565 -

Supplementary cash-flow information:
Cash paid for:
  Interest - -
  Income taxes - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN

Timberland Bay Properties LLC  (“the Company”) was incorporated on March 2, 2017 under the laws of
Washington State and changed its name from BDB Finance and Leasing Two LLC to Timberland Bay
Properties, LLC. on April 24, 2018. The registered office is located at 111 Sargison Loop, Shelton,
Washington, 98584-3744.The Company’s principal business activities include the construction of a
marijuana growing facility located in Shelton Washington.

The Company has no source of operating cash flows and reported working capital deficit of $6,130,885
(March 31, 2017 - $2,667,014), and has an accumulated deficit of $ 462,287 as at March 31, 2018
(March 31, 2017 - $13,145), which has been funded by the issuance of debt and equity. The
Company’s ability to continue its operations and to realize its assets at their carrying values is
dependent upon obtaining additional financing and generating revenues sufficient to cover its operating
costs.

These financial statements do not give effect to any adjustments which would be necessary should the
Company be unable to continue as a going concern and therefore be required to realize its assets and
discharge its liabilities in other than the normal course of business and at amounts different from those
reflected in these financial statements.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

These financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution from the
Board of Directors on October 26, 2018.

b) Basis of presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, with the exception of
financial instruments which are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.  In addition, these financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting, except for cash flow information.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements.

c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is comprised of cash on hand and deposits at banks. Cash equivalents are short term, highly
liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily convertible
into a known amount of cash.  As of March 31, 2018, the Company held no cash equivalents.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

d) Foreign currency

Transactions and balances in currencies other than the United States Dollar, the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates (“the functional currency”), are
translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
exchange prevailing on the statement of financial position date are recognized in the statement of
operations and comprehensive loss.

e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the following terms:

Buildings 40 years
Manufacturing equipment 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Vehicles 5 years

Estimates of residual values or useful lives and depreciation methods are reassessed annually and
any changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively and amounts of depreciation are
adjusted accordingly.

An assets residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed during each financial
year and adjusted if appropriate. When parts of an item of equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal
with the carrying amount of the item and recognized in profit or loss. Assets under construction are
not subject to depreciation until they are available for use and depreciation of the assets
commences at that point.

f) Impairment of non-current assets

Non-current assets, including property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment at each statement of financial position date or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. For
the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the cash-generating unit, or
"CGU"). The recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is the higher of its fair value, less costs to
sell, and its value in use. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an
impairment charge is recognized immediately in profit or loss by the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lesser of the revised estimate of
recoverable amount, and the carrying amount that would have been recorded had no impairment
loss been recognized previously.

g) Members capital

Membership interests are classified as equity. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
issuance of interest are recognized as a deduction from equity. Interests issued for non-monetary
consideration are measured based on their market value at the date the interests are issued.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

h) Financial assets

All financial assets are initially recorded at fair value and designated upon inception into one of the
following four categories: held to maturity, available for sale, loans and receivables or at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

Financial assets classified as FVTPL are measured at fair value with unrealized gains and losses
recognized through earnings.  The Company’s cash is classified as FVTPL.

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables and held to maturity assets are measured at
amortized cost.  At March 31, 2018, the Company has classified due from related parties as loans
and receivables.

Financial assets classified as available for sale are measured at fair value with unrealized gains
and losses recognized in other comprehensive income and loss  except for losses in value that are
considered other than temporary which are recognized in earnings.  At March 31, 2018, the
Company has not classified any financial assets as available for sale.

Transactions costs associated with FVTPL financial assets are expensed as incurred, while
transaction costs associated with all other financial assets are included in the initial carrying
amount of the asset.

i) Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value and designated upon inception as FVTPL or
other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities classified as other financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less
directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized costs using the effective interest method.  The effective
interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period.  The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.  The Company’s accounts payable, due to related party, credit
facilities, advances from Agrios Global Holdings Ltd., instalment obligations and mortgage payable
are classified as other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities classified as FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading and recognized at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized in earnings unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.  Fair
value changes on financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognized in earnings.  At March 31,
2018, the Company has not classified any financial liabilities as FVTPL.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires.

j) Transaction costs

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 AND THE  PERIOD FROM FORMATION TO MARCH 31, 2017
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

k) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those classified at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been affected.

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make certain estimates,
judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Actual outcomes
could differ from these estimates. These financial statements include estimates which, by their nature,
are uncertain. The impacts of such estimates are pervasive throughout the financial statements, and
may require accounting adjustments based on future occurrences. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods. These estimates are based on historical experience, current and
future economic conditions and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Significant assumptions about the future and other sources of estimation uncertainty that management
has made at the financial position reporting date, that could result in a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, in the event that actual results differ from assumptions made,
relate to, but are not limited to, the following:

Significant accounting estimates

i. Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment

Significant accounting judgments

i. Determination of Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
ii. Determination of categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

4. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Adoption of New Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Amendments:

There were no new or amended accounting standards scheduled for mandatory adoption on April 1,
2017 and thus no new or amended accounting standards were adopted in the year ended March 31,
2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Accounting Standards and Amendments Issued But Not Yet Adopted:

New accounting standards effective for annual periods on or after December 1, 2017:

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
The objective of the amendments to IAS 7 is to enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.  The amendments will require entities to provide
disclosures that enable investors to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.  The amendments to IAS 7 respond
to investors’ requests for information that helps them better understand changes in an entity’s debt,
which is important to their analysis of financial statements.

New accounting standards effective for annual periods on or after December 1, 2018:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, was issued in November 2009 and addresses classification and
measurement of financial assets. It replaces the multiple category and measurement models in IAS 39,
Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement, for debt instruments with a new mixed
measurement model having only two categories: amortized cost and fair value through profit or loss.
IFRS 9 also replaces the models for measuring equity instruments. Such instruments are either
recognized at fair value through profit or loss or at fair value through other comprehensive income.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued and replaces IAS 11 – Construction Contracts, IAS 18 – Revenue,
IFRIC 13 – Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 – Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate,
IFRIC 18 – Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC-31 – Revenue – Barter Transactions Involving
Advertising Services.  IFRS 15 establishes a single five-step model framework for determining the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a
customer.

IFRS 2 – Shared-Based Payments
In June 2016 the Board issued the final amendments to IFRS 2 which amended (a) the effects that
vesting conditions have on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment; (b) the
accounting for modification to the terms of a share-based payment that changes the classification of the
transaction from cash-settled to equity settled; and (c) classification of share-based payment
transactions with net settlement features.

New accounting standards effective for annual periods on or after December 1, 2019:

IFRS 16 – Leases
IFRS 16 establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases, with the objective of ensuring that lessees and lessors provide relevant information that
faithfully represents those transactions.

The extent of the impact of adoption of these new and amended standards on the financial statements
of the Company has not yet been determined.
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6. CREDIT FACILITIES

During the year ended March 31, 2018 and the period ended March 31, 2017, companies controlled by
members of the Company entered into credit facilities with the Citizens Bank of Newburg on behalf of
the Company, the credit facilities are as follows:

On June 8, 2016 a credit facility was entered into on behalf of the Company for $3,000,000, bearing
interest of 4% per annum with a maturity date of December 8, 2016. As at March 31, 2018 the principal
balance owing was $2,974,625 (March 31, 2017 - $2,860,288)

On May 9, 2017 a credit facility was entered into on behalf of the Company for $801,563, bearing
interest of 5.5% per annum with a maturity date of June 30, 2017. As at March 31, 2018 the principal
balance owing was $588,711 (March 31, 2017 - $Nil)

On July 10, 2017 a credit facility was entered into on behalf of the Company for $388,030, bearing
interest of 5.5% per annum with a maturity date of June 30, 2018. As at March 31, 2018 the principal
balance owing was $378,964 (March 31, 2017 - $Nil).

Accrued interest as at March 31, 2018 was $44,344 (March 31, 2017 - $Nil).

The Company is making the required scheduled payments under the agreement to the unrelated third
party. Subsequent to March 31, 2018, the Company refinanced these Credit Facilities into one loan
directly with the bank, refer to Note 13 b).

7. ADVANCES FROM AGRIOS GLOBAL HOLDINGS LTD.

On December 19, 2017 the Company entered into a Credit Agreement with Agrios Global Holdings
Ltd. (“Agrios”) whereby Agrios would provide up to $1,000,000 in financing. The repayment of the
advances under this Credit Agreement is due 90 days after the termination of the letter of intent (Note
13 a) if it is terminated and no later than June 30, 2018. The advances under the Credit Agreement
bear interest on unpaid principal at a rate per annum of 2%. Upon any event of default, the loans shall
bear interest until paid in full at a rate per annum equal to 4%. As at March 31, 2018, $700,000 was
advanced and outstanding under the Credit Agreement.

The advances under the Credit Agreement are secured by a Deed of Trust on various properties.

During the year ended March 31, 2018 the Company received additional advances in the amount of
$4,652,920 , that are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are due on demand.
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8. INSTALMENT OBLIGATIONS

During the year ended March 31, 2018 a Company controlled by a member of the Company entered
into 3 installment obligation arrangements on behalf of the Company for the acquisition of equipment
for the Company’s facility. The terms of the three installment obligations are as follows:

2018
Instalment Obligations          $
Principal - $350,600, monthly payments of $19,824, 2.5% interest

per annum, and due on September 30, 2018
350,600

Principal - $88,224, monthly payments of $3,676, non-interest
bearing, and due on March 1, 2020

88,224

Principal - $26,976, monthly payments of $1,124, non-interest bear,
and due on March 1, 2020

26,976

Less: Payments made net of interest (231,851)

Instalment obligation principal 233,949

Current portion (176,349)

Long-term Instalment Obligations 57,600

The Company is making the required scheduled payments under the agreement to the unrelated third
party.

9. MORTGAGE PAYABLE

On March 2, 2017 the Company entered into an agreement to acquire a parcel of land for a purchase
price of $150,000. A down payment of $25,000 was made on closing and the remaining $125,000 was
financed through a mortgage agreement with the seller. The mortgage is to be repaid with five annual
payments of $25,000 commencing on January 1, 2018. The payments are non-interest bearing, unless
the payments are not made within 15 calendar days, after which the delinquent amounts will bear
interest of 15% plus a 5% late fee.

This transaction was undertaken by a Company controlled by a member on behalf of the Company
with an unrelated third party, with the Company making the scheduled payments to the unrelated third
party.

10. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities. A transaction is considered to be a related
party transaction when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties.

Key management includes directors and key officers of the Company.

As at March 31, 2018, the Company owed a company controlled by a member of the Company
$29,650 (March 31, 2017 - $Nil), and owed another company controlled by another member of the
Company $70,984 (March 31 2017 - $193,274 amount receivable). Amounts owing and receivable by
the Company are due on demand, non-interest bearing and where applicable unsecured.

As at March 31, 2018 the Company has a deposit in the amount of $28,853 (March 31, 2017 - $Nil)
with a Company controlled by a member of the Company.
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10. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

During the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company incurred management fees to Members of the
Company totalling $27,814 (2017 - $Nil).

11. MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to pursue the sourcing and exploration of its resource property.  The
Company does not have any externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject.

The Company considers the aggregate of its members capital and deficit as capital.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may attempt to issue new shares or dispose of assets or adjust the
amount of cash.

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK

International Financial Reporting Standards 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, establishes a fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.  The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial assets include cash and cash is classified as Level 1. The carrying value of
these instruments approximates their fair values due to the relatively short periods of maturity of these
instruments.

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis were presented on the Company’s statement of
financial position as at March 31, 2018 are as follows:

  Fair Value Measurements Using
 Quoted Prices in  Significant

Active Markets Other Significant
For Identical Observable  Unobservable
Instruments Inputs Inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
            $               $                 $       $

  Cash 3,558,565 - -  3,558,565

Fair value

The fair value of the Company’s financial instruments approximates their carrying value as at March 31,
2018 because of the demand nature or short-term maturity of these instruments.
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s financial instruments include cash, prepaid expenses and deposits, due from related
parties, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, due to related party, credit facilities, advances from
Agrios Global Holdings Ltd., instalment obligations and mortgage payable. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Currency risk

The Company’s expenses are denominated in United States dollars. The Company’s corporate office is
based in the United States of America and current exposure to exchange rate fluctuations is minimal.

The Company does not have any significant foreign currency denominated monetary liabilities. The
principal business of the Company is the identification and evaluation of assets or a business and once
identified or evaluated, to negotiate an acquisition or participation in a business subject to receipt of
shareholder approval and acceptance by regulatory authorities.

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on the variable rate of interest earned on bank deposits
and paid on the credit faiclities and instalment obligations. The fair value interest rate risk on bank
deposits, credit facilities and instalment obligations is insignificant as the deposits, credit facilities and
instalment obligations are short-term.

The Company has not entered into any derivative instruments to manage interest rate fluctuations.

(iii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with the counterparty’s inability to fulfill its payment obligations.
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risks consist
principally of cash. To minimize the credit risk the Company places these instruments with a high quality
financial institution.

(iv) Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk of the Company, the Company maintains a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of borrowings.  Management closely monitors
the liquidity position and expects to have adequate sources of funding to finance the Company’s
projects and operations.
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13. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

a) On February 26, 2018, the Company entered into a Merger Agreement and Plan of Reorganization
(the “Agreement”) with Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. (“Agrios”) and Agrios Merger Sub (Washington)
Inc. (“Merger Sub”). Under the Agreement the transaction will be structured as a reverse-takeover
whereby Merger Sub will be merged with and into the Company, and the surviving company will
become a wholly owned subsidiary of Agrios. The members of the Company will receive
29,166,667 fully paid common shares of Agrios.

On June 8, 2018 the Company obtained the Merger Certificate for the merger with Agios Merger
Sub (Washington) Inc.

b) On May 18, 2018, the Company refinanced it’s credit facilities with the Citizens Bank of Newburg
into a loan in the amount of $4,500,000 with a maturity date of May 28, 2020, bearing interest of
4.750% per annum. The loan is repayable in payments of $105,330 every 3 months, commencing
on August 18, 2018.

The loan is secured by a Deed of Trust for property located at 111 Sargison Loop, Shelton,
Washington 98584 and is guaranteed by both Mr. James F. Foster and Larry Ellison, whom are
members of the Company.
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TIMBERLAND BAY PROPERTIES LLC (FORMERLY BDB FINANCE AND LEASING TWO LLC)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(All amounts expressed in USD dollars, unless otherwise stated)

BACKGROUND

The following management discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the results of operations and financial condition, prepared 
as of October 26, 2018 should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements of Timberland Bay Properties LLC 
(formerly BDB Finance and Leasing Two LLC) (the “Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the period from 
formation to March 31, 2017, and accompanying notes thereto. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). 

During the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company’s critical accounting estimates, significant accounting policies and risk 
factors have remained substantially unchanged and are still applicable to the Company unless otherwise indicated. All 
amounts are expressed in US dollars unless noted otherwise.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This MD&A contains certain statements that may constitute “forward-looking statements”. Forward-looking statements 
include but are not limited to, statements regarding future anticipated business developments and the timing thereof, 
regulatory compliance, sufficiency of working capital, and business and financing plans. Although the Company believes that 
such statements are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. Forward-looking 
statements are typically identified by words such as: believe, expect, anticipate, intend, estimate, postulate and similar 
expressions, or which by their nature refer to future events. The Company cautions investors that any forward-looking 
statements by the Company are not guarantees of future performance, and that actual results may differ materially from those 
in forward looking statements as a result of various factors, including, but not limited to, the Company’s ability to continue its 
projected growth, to raise the necessary capital or to be fully able to implement its business strategies. 

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND OVERALL PERFORMANCE

The Company was incorporated in Washington State, USA on March 2, 2017. The Company’s principal business activities 
include the construction of a marijuana growing facility located in Shelton Washington. The Company’s head office is 
located at 111 Sargison Loop, Shelton, Washington, 98584-3744.

HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 AND SUBSEQUENTLY

The Company spent $2,913,380 during the year on the construction of the Company’s marijuana growing facility. 

The Company secured three separate credit facilities amounting to $4,189,593 from the bank which was subsequently 
refinanced into one loan facility of $4,500,000 bearing interest of 4.750% per annum and loan repayment terms of $105,330 
every 3 months commencing August 18, 2018.

See “Proposed Transaction” below

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At March 31, 2018, the Company had working capital deficit of $6,130,885 (2017 – $2,667,014). The majority of the 
Company’s working capital deficit, $9,295,220, is based the credit facility and the advances. $5,352,920 relates to the
advances from Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. to TimberLand Bay Properties. This loan is comprised of $700,000 of funds that 
have been sent as an advance under a secured credit agreement. The remaining $4,652,920 was advanced upon signing of the 
merger agreement between Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. and TimberLand Bay Properties. The closing of the merger 
agreement occurred subsequently to the year end, therefore this advance will become an intercompany loan which is 
eliminated upon consolidation. The credit facility relates to the Company’s current portion of three credit facilities.
Subsequent to year end, TimberLand Bay Properties secured a mortgage facility in the amount of $4,500,000 which was used 
to settle the three separate credit facilities. The mortgage carries an interest rate of 4.75% and matures in 24 months. The 
mortgage is amortized over 60 months with quarterly payments of $105,330 starting August 18, 2018. At the end of 24 
months, the principal balance remaining and any accrued interest is due in full. 
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These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable to a going concern which 
assumes the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business rather than
through a process of forced liquidation. At March 31, 2018, the Company had incurred a net loss of $449,142 (2017 –
$13,145) and had an accumulated deficit of $462,287 (2017 – $13,145). There is the existence of uncertainties which may 
cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Should the Company be unable to realize 
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business, the net realizable value of its assets may be materially 
less than the amounts recorded in these financial statements. These financial statements do not include adjustments that 
would be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.  

The Company’s expected cash resources are sufficient to meet its short-term needs. Management estimates that the current 
cash position and future cash flows from operations, new equity financings and/or related party loans will be sufficient for the 
Company to carry out its anticipated costs of operations through 2018. There may be circumstances where, for sound 
business reasons, a reallocation of funds may be necessary in order for the Company to achieve its business objectives.  

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

The following share capital data is current as of the date of this document:

Balance

Shares issued and outstanding 100

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Operating expenses for the year ended March 31, 2018, totaled $449,142 (2017 – $13,145). Significant operating expenses 
for the year ended March 31, 2018 were comprised labour costs of $97,840 (2017 – Nil), office and miscellaneous costs of 
89,130 (2017 – Nil), management salaries of $76,260 (2017 – Nil), professional fees of $69,966 (2017 – $3,533) and interest 
and bank charges of $46,547 (2017 – Nil).

The Company’s operations are in their infancy and no comparative or trend discussion is relevant.

SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION FOR MOST RECENT COMPLETED QUARTERS

March 31, 
2018

December 31, 
2017

September 30, 
2017

June 30, 
2017

$ $ $ $
Net loss 2,330 30,770 178,270 237,772
Basic loss per share 23 308 1,783 2,378

March 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016

September 30, 
2016

June 30, 
2016

$ $ $ $0
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Net loss 13,145 0 0 0
Basic loss per share 131 0 0 0

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

All financial instruments are recorded initially at fair value. In subsequent periods, all financial instruments are measured
based on the classification adopted for the financial instruments: held to maturity, loans and receivables, fair value through 
profit or loss, available-for-sale, fair value through profit or loss liabilities or other liabilities. Fair value through profit or loss 
assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value with the change in the fair value recognized in net loss during the 
period. Held to maturity assets, loans and receivable, and other liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method. Available for sale assets are subsequently measured at fair value with the change in fair 
value recorded in other comprehensive loss, except for equity instruments without a quoted market price in active markets 
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, which are measured at cost.

The Company is exposed to one variety of financial instrument related risks. The Board of Directors approves and monitors 
the risk management processes, inclusive of documented investment policies, counterparty limits, and controlling and 
reporting structures. 

The principal financial instruments used by the Company, from which financial instrument risk arises are cash and cash 
equivalents, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities.
The Company’s financial instruments are exposed to certain financial risks, which include the following:

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the counterparty's inability to meet its obligations.  The Company’s exposure to credit risk 
is on its cash.  Risk associated with cash is managed through the use of a major bank which is a high credit quality financial 
institutions as determined by rating agencies. 

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations when they become due.  The 
Company aims to ensure that there is sufficient capital in order to meet short-term operating requirements, after taking into 
account the Company’s holdings of cash. The Company’s cash is held in corporate bank accounts available on demand.  
Liquidity risk has been assessed as being high.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates.  The Company is not currently exposed to interest rate risk.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTIONS

The Company has not entered into any significant off-balance sheet arrangements or commitments.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company had the following transactions with members of the Company:

As at March 31, 2018, the Company had the following payables:
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- JRV Technologies LLC was owed $70,984 for construction costs which were paid by JRV Technologies LLC, a 
Company controlled by James F. Foster who is also a member of the Company.

- Ascendant Management was owed $29,650 for construction costs which were paid by Ascendant Management, a 
Company controlled by Andrew Lange who is also a member of the Company. The Company was owed $28,853 for 
construction deposits that were paid to Ascendant Management that were not used as at year end.

As at March 31, 2018, the Company had incurred the following related party transactions:

- Management fees of $8,000 to James F. Foster 
- Management fees of $19,814 to Larry Ellison

PROPOSED TRANSACTIONS

On February 26, 2018, the Company entered into a Merger Agreement and Plan of Reorganization (the “Agreement”) with 
Timberland Bay Properties LLC (“Timberland Bay”) and Agrios Merger Sub (Washington) Inc. (“Merger Sub”). Under the 
Agreement the transaction will be structured as a reverse-takeover whereby Merger Sub will be merged with and into the 
Timberland Bay, and the surviving company will become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The members of the 
Timberland Bay will receive 29,166,667 fully paid common shares of the Company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On June 8, 2018 the Company obtained the Merger Certificate for the merger with Merger Sub

RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company currently has no operating business and intends to pursue an opportunity in the cryptocurrency industry.

Conflicts of Interest
Certain directors of the Company also serve as directors and/or officers of other companies involved in other business 
ventures. Consequently, there exists the possibility for such directors to be in a position of conflict. Any decision made by
such directors involving the Company will be made in accordance with their duties and obligations to deal fairly and in good 
faith with the Company and such other companies. In addition, such directors will declare, and refrain from voting on, any 
matter in which such directors may have a conflict of interest. 

Negative Operating Cash Flows
As the Company is at the early stage start up stage it may continue to have negative operating cash flows. Without the 
injection of further capital and the development of revenue streams from its business, the Company may continue to have 
negative operating cash flows until it can realize stable cash flow from operations.

Risks Related as a Going Concern
The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is uncertain and dependent upon its ability to achieve profitable 
operations, obtain additional capital and receive continued support from its shareholders. Management of the Company may 
have to raise capital through private placements or debt financing and, if so,  proposes to continue to do so through future 
private placements and offerings. The outcome of these matters cannot be predicted at this time. 

Reliance on Key Personnel and Advisors
The Company relies heavily on its officers. The loss of their services may have a material adverse effect on the business of 
the Company. There can be no assurance that one or all of the employees of, and contractors engaged by, the Company will 
continue in the employ of, or in a consulting capacity to, the Company or that they will not set up competing businesses or 
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accept positions with competitors. There is no guarantee that certain employees of, and contractors to, the Company who 
have access to confidential information will not disclose the confidential information. 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The information provided in this report is the responsibility of management.  In the preparation of these statements, estimates
are sometimes necessary to make a determination of future values for certain assets or liabilities.  Management believes such 
estimates have been based on careful judgments and have been properly reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

RISK FACTORS

Market Risk for Securities
We are a reporting issuer company whose common shares are not listed for trading on a stock exchange. There can be no 
assurance that an active trading market for our common shares will be established and sustained. Upon a listing, the market 
price for our common shares could be subject to wide fluctuations. Factors such as commodity prices, government regulation, 
interest rates, share price movements of peer companies and competitors, as well as overall market movements, may have a 
significant impact on the market price of our securities. The stock market has from time to time experienced extreme price 
and volume fluctuations, which have often been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies.

Uninsured or Uninsurable Risk
We may become subject to liability for risks against which we cannot insure or against which we may elect not to insure due 
to the high cost of insurance premiums or other factors. The payment of any such liabilities would reduce the funds available
for our usual business activities. Payment of liabilities for which we do not carry insurance may have a material adverse 
effect on our financial position and operations.

Conflicts of Interest Risk
Certain of our directors and officers are also directors and operators in other companies. Situations may arise in connection
with potential acquisitions or opportunities where the other interests of these directors and officers conflict with or diverge 
from our interests. In accordance with the BCBCA, directors who have a material interest in any person who is a party to a 
material contract or a proposed material contract are required, subject to certain exceptions, to disclose that interest and 
generally abstain from voting on any resolution to approve the contract. In addition, the directors and the officers are required 
to act honestly and in good faith with a view to our best interests. However, in conflict of interest situations, our directors and 
officers may owe the same duty to another company and will need to balance their competing interests with their duties to us.

Circumstances (including with respect to future corporate opportunities) may arise that may be resolved in a manner that is 
unfavourable to us.

Key Personnel Risk
Our success will depend on our directors and officers to develop our business and manage our operations, The loss of any key 
person or the inability to find and retain new key persons could have a material adverse effect on our business. Competition 
for officers and directors can be intense and no assurance can be provided that we will be able to attract or retain key 
personnel in the future, which may adversely impact our operations.

No Established Market for Shares Risk
There is currently no established trading market through which common shares in our authorized capital may be sold. Even if 
a trading market develops, there can be no assurance that such market will continue in the future. You may lose your entire 
investment.

Global Economy Risk
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The ongoing economic slowdown and downturn of global capital markets has generally made the raising of capital by equity 
or debt financing more difficult. We will be dependent upon the capital markets to raise additional financing in the future, 
while we establish a client base for our product. Access to financing has been negatively impacted by the ongoing global 
economic downturn. As such, we are subject to liquidity risks in meeting our development and future operating cost 
requirements in instances where cash positions are unable to be maintained or appropriate financing is unavailable. These 
factors may impact our ability to raise equity or obtain loans and other credit facilities in the future and on terms favourable 
to us and our management. If uncertain market conditions persist, our ability to raise capital could be jeopardized, which 
could have an adverse impact on our operations and the trading price of our Common Shares on the Exchange.

Dividend Risk
We have not paid dividends in the past and do not anticipate paying dividends in the near future. We expect to retain our 
earnings to finance further growth and, when appropriate, retire debt.

Share Price Volatility Risk
It is anticipated that our common shares will be listed for trading on an Exchange. As such, external factors outside of our 
control such as announcements of quarterly variations in operating results, revenues and costs, and sentiments toward the 
cryptocurrency sector stocks may have a significant impact on the market price of our common shares. Global stock markets, 
including the Exchange, have from time to time experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have often been 
unrelated to the operations of particular companies. There can be no assurance that an active or liquid market will develop or
be sustained for the common shares.

OTHER INFORMATION

Additional information on the Company is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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AGRIOS GLOBAL HOLDINGS LTD. 
UNAUDITED PRO-FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018 
(Expressed in US Dollars) 
(Unaudited) 
  
 

 
Agrios Global 
Holdings Ltd. 

$ 
Notes 

 
Pro-forma 

Adjustments 
$ 

Pro forma 
Consolidated 

$ 

ASSETS     
Current assets     
 Cash 2,085,356 2(a) 130,327 6,248,803 
  2(b) 3,932,422  
  2(d) 100,699  
 Term deposit 4,780,858   4,780,858 
 Amounts receivable 809,045   809,045 

Prepaid expenses and deposits 72,287   72,287 
     

Total Current Assets 7,747,546   11,910,993 
Non-current     

     
Property, plant and equipment 20,435,147   20,435,147 
Deposits 8,367   8,367 
Intangibles – Customer Lists  194,032   194,032 
Goodwill 1,050,172   1,050,172 

Total Assets 29,435,264  4,163,447 33,598,711 
     
LIABILITIES      
Current liabilities     

   Accounts payable 301,800   301,800 
Deferred income tax 46,000   46,000 
Current portion of mortgage payable 236,233   236,233 
Current portion of instalments 117,332   117,332 
Due to related party 100,634   100,634 

     
Total Current Liabilities 801,999   801,999 

     
Non-current     

Long-term portion of mortage payable 4,363,767   4,363,767 
Long-term portion of instalments 43,200   43,200 
DIT Liability 3,881,115   3,881,115 

     
Total Liabilities 9,090,081   9,090,081 

     
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY     
 Share capital 20,413,169 2(a) 125,765 24,447,165 

  2(b) 3,807,532  
  2(d) 100,699  
Reserves 1,391,608 2(a) 4,562 2,475,236 
  2(b) 124,890  
  2(c) 954,176  
AOCI (7,629)   (7,629) 
Deficit (1,451,965) 2(c) (954,176) (2,406,141) 

     
Total Shareholders’ Equity 20,345,073  4,163,447 24,508,630 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 29,435,264  4,163,447 33,598,711 
 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this unaudited pro-forma consolidated statement of financial position
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AGRIOS GLOBAL HOLDINGS LTD. 
NOTES TO PRO-FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018 
(Expressed in US Dollars) 
(Unaudited) 
  
 

 
1.  PROPOSED TRANSACTION 
 

Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated in British Columbia, Canada, on February 
18, 2017. On June 23, 2017, the Company changed its name from Sparrow Capital Corp. to Agrios 
Global Holdings Ltd. The Company is in the Cannabis Industry. The Company’s head office is located at 
1980 – 1075 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, BC, Canada, V6E 3C9. 
 
On June 8, 2018, the Company closed a Merger Agreement and Plan of Reorganization (the 
“Agreement”) with Timberland Bay Properties LLC (“Timberland Bay”) and Agrios Merger Sub 
(Washington) Inc. (“Merger Sub”). Under the Agreement the transaction is structured as a business 
acquisition whereby Merger Sub is merged with and into Timberland Bay, and the surviving company 
became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The members of the Timberland Bay received 
29,166,667 fully paid common shares of the Company. 
 

2.  UNAUDITED PRO-FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS 
 
The unaudited pro-forma consolidated statement of financial position has been prepared based on the 
following assumptions: 

 
a) The pro-forma statement of financial position assumes the Company completes a brokered private 

placement (“Financing”) for gross proceeds of $136,635 (CAD $179,500) at a price of $0.38 (CAD 

$0.50) per unit.  Each unit will consist of one common share and one share purchase warrant, 

resulting in the issuance of 359,000 common shares and 359,000 share purchase warrants. The 

share purchase warrants are convertible into 35,900 common shares if the Company has not 

completed a liquidity event by the later of 120 days from closing or December 31, 2018. Each 

Financing common share will be exercisable for an additional $0.04 (CAD $0.05) security every 30 

days from the later of 120 days from closing or December 31, 2018 if the liquidity event does not 

occur. In connection with the Financing the Company incurred $6,309 (CAD $8,288) of share 

issuance costs and issues 21,450 Agent’s Warrants.  The Agent’s Warrants will entitle the holders to 

acquire 21,540 common shares at an exercise price of $0.38 (CAD $0.50) for two years from the date 

the company completes a liquidity event with a fair value of $4,562 (CAD $5,993).   

 

b) The pro-forma statement of financial position assumes the Company completes a private placement 
(“Financing”) for gross proceeds of $4,162,130 (CAD $5,475,767) at a price of $0.46 (CAD $0.60) 
per share resulting in the issuance of 9,126,278 common shares.  In connection with the Financing 
the Company incurred $229,709 (CAD $302,208) of share issuance costs and issues 516,802 
Finder’s Warrants.  The Finder’s Warrants will entitle the holders to acquire 516,802 common shares 
at an exercise price of $0.46 (CAD $0.60) for two years from the date of closing with a fair value of 
$124,890 (CAD $164,307).   

 
c) The pro-forma statement of financial position assumes the Company granted 5,300,000 stock 

options that are exercisable at a price of $0.46 (CAD $0.60) per share for a period of five years. 

5,000,000 options vest over 18 months from the date of grant while 300,000 options vest over a 

period of 12 months. The fair value was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model 

applying a market price of $0.46 (CAD $0.60), an exercise price of $0.46 (CAD $0.60), a risk free rate 

of 2.16%, an expected volatility of 100% and an expected dividend yield of 0%.  

 
d) The pro-forma statement of financial position assumes the Company completes a private placement 

for gross proceeds of $100,699 (CAD$130,761) at a price of $0.46 (CAD $0.60) per share resulting in 

the issuance of 217,935 common shares.   
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AGRIOS GLOBAL HOLDINGS LTD. 
NOTES TO PRO-FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018 
(Expressed in US Dollars) 
(Unaudited) 
  
 

 

3. PRO-FORMA SHARE CAPITAL 

As a result of the pro-forma assumptions and adjustments, the share capital as at June 30, 2018 is 
comprised of the following: 
 

 

   Share Capital 

  
Note  Number of 

shares $ 

Balance as of June 30, 2018  73,934,176 20,413,170 

Tranche #2, net of issuance costs 2(a) 359,000 125,765 

Private placement, net of issuance costs 2(b) 9,126,278 3,807,532 

Private placement, net of issuance costs 2(d) 217,935 100,699 

  
               

83,637,389  
       
24,447,166 

 
 

4. INCOME TAXES 
 

 The effective income tax rate applicable to the consolidated operations is estimated to be 30%. 
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SCHEDULE “F” 

AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER 

 



AGRIOS GLOBAL HOLDINGS LTD.
(the “Company”)

AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

1. Mandate

The audit committee will assist the board of directors (the “Board”) in fulfilling its financial oversight 
responsibilities. The audit committee will review and consider in consultation with the auditors the 
financial reporting process, the system of internal control and the audit process. In performing its duties, 
the audit committee will maintain effective working relationships with the Board, management, and the 
external auditors. To effectively perform his or her role, each audit committee member must obtain an 
understanding of the principal responsibilities of audit committee membership as well and the 
Company’s business, operations and risks.

2. Composition

The Board will appoint from among their membership an audit committee after each annual general
meeting of the shareholders of the Company. The audit committee will consist of a minimum of three
directors.

2.1 Independence

A majority of the members of the audit committee must not be officers, employees or control persons 
of the Company.

2.2 Expertise of Committee Members

Each member of the audit committee must be financially literate or must become financially literate 
within a reasonable period of time after his or her appointment to the committee. At least one member of
the audit committee must have accounting or related financial management expertise. The Board shall 
interpret the qualifications of financial literacy and financial management expertise in its business 
judgment and shall conclude whether a director meets these qualifications.

3. Meetings

The audit committee shall meet in accordance with a schedule established each year by the Board,
and at other times that the audit committee may determine. The audit committee shall meet at least 
annually with the Company’s Chief Financial Officer and external auditors in separate executive
sessions.

4. Roles and Responsibilities

The audit committee shall fulfill the following roles and discharge the following responsibilities:

4.1 External Audit

The audit committee shall be directly responsible for overseeing the work of the external auditors in
preparing or issuing the auditor’s report, including the resolution of disagreements between 
management and the external auditors regarding financial reporting and audit scope or procedures. In 
carrying out this duty, the audit committee shall:
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(a) recommend to the Board the external auditor to be nominated by the shareholders for the 
purpose of preparing or issuing an auditor’s report or performing other audit, review or attest 
services for the Company;

(b) review (by discussion and enquiry) the external auditors’ proposed audit scope and
approach;

(c) review the performance of the external auditors and recommend to the Board the 
appointment or discharge of the external auditors;

(d) review and recommend to the Board the compensation to be paid to the external 
auditors; and

(e) review and confirm the independence of the external auditors by reviewing the 
non-audit services provided and the external auditors’ assertion of their independence in 
accordance with professional standards.

4.2 Internal Control

The audit committee shall consider whether adequate controls are in place over annual and interim 
financial reporting as well as controls over assets, transactions and the creation of obligations, 
commitments and liabilities of the Company. In carrying out this duty, the audit committee shall:

(a) evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of management’s system of internal controls 
over the accounting and financial reporting system within the Company; and

(b) ensure that the external auditors discuss with the audit committee any event or matter
which suggests the possibility of fraud, illegal acts or deficiencies in internal controls.

4.3 Financial Reporting

The audit committee shall review the financial statements and financial information prior to its release 
to the public. In carrying out this duty, the audit committee shall:

General

(a) review significant accounting and financial reporting issues, especially complex, 
unusual and related party transactions; and

(b) review and ensure that the accounting principles selected by management in preparing 
financial statements are appropriate.

Annual Financial Statements

(a) review the draft annual financial statements and provide a recommendation to the Board 
with respect to the approval of the financial statements;

(b) meet with management and the external auditors to review the financial statements and 
the results of the audit, including any difficulties encountered; and

(c) review management’s discussion & analysis respecting the annual reporting period prior 
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to its release to the public.

Interim Financial Statements

(a) review and approve the interim financial statements prior to their release to the public; 
and

(b) review management’s discussion & analysis respecting the interim reporting period 
prior to its release to the public.

Release of Financial Information

(a) where reasonably possible, review and approve all public disclosure, including news 
releases, containing financial information, prior to its release to the public.

4.4 Non-Audit Services

All non-audit services (being services other than services rendered for the audit and review of the 
financial statements or services that are normally provided by the external auditor in connection with
statutory and regulatory filings or engagements) which are proposed to be provided by the external 
auditors to the Company or any subsidiary of the Company shall be subject to the prior approval of the 
audit committee.

Delegation of Authority

(a) The audit committee may delegate to one or more independent members of the audit 
committee the authority to approve non-audit services, provided any non-audit services
approved in this manner must be presented to the audit committee at its next scheduled
meeting.

De-Minimis Non-Audit Services

(a) The audit committee may satisfy the requirement for the pre-approval of non- audit 
services if:

(i) the aggregate amount of all non-audit services that were not pre-approved is 
reasonably expected to constitute no more than five per cent of the total amount of fees 
paid by the Company and its subsidiaries to the external auditor during the fiscal year in 
which the services are provided; or

(ii) the services are brought to the attention of the audit committee and approved,
prior to the completion of the audit, by the audit committee or by one or more of its 
members to whom authority to grant such approvals has been delegated.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

(a) The audit committee may also satisfy the requirement for the pre-approval of non-audit
services by adopting specific policies and procedures for the engagement of non-audit services,
if:

(i) the pre-approval policies and procedures are detailed as to the particular

LEGAL_29664421.1



service;

(ii) the audit committee is informed of each non-audit service; and

(iii) the procedures do not include delegation of the audit committee's 
responsibilities to management.

4.5 Other Responsibilities

The audit committee shall:

(a) establish procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by 
the company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters;

(b) establish procedures for the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the 
company of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters;

(c) ensure that significant findings and recommendations made by management and 
external auditor are received and discussed on a timely basis;

(d) review the policies and procedures in effect for considering officers’ expenses and 
perquisites;

(e) perform other oversight functions as requested by the Board; and

(f) review and update this Charter and receive approval of changes to this Charter from 
the Board.

4.6 Reporting Responsibilities

The audit committee shall regularly update the Board about audit committee activities and make 
appropriate recommendations.

5. Resources and Authority of the Audit Committee

The audit committee shall have the resources and the authority appropriate to discharge its 
responsibilities, including the authority to

(a) engage independent counsel and other advisors as it determines necessary to carry out its 
duties;

(b) set and pay the compensation for any advisors employed by the audit committee; and

(c) communicate directly with the internal and external auditors.

6. Guidance – Roles & Responsibilities

The following guidance is intended to provide the audit committee members with additional guidance 
on fulfilment of their roles and responsibilities on the committee:
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6.1 Internal Control

(a) evaluate whether management is setting the goal of high standards by communicating 
the importance of internal control and ensuring that all individuals possess an understanding of 
their roles and responsibilities;

(b) focus on the extent to which external auditors review computer systems and 
applications, the security of such systems and applications, and the contingency plan for 
processing financial information in the event of an IT systems breakdown; and

(c) gain an understanding of whether internal control recommendations made by external 
auditors have been implemented by management.

6.2 Financial Reporting 

General

(a) review significant accounting and reporting issues, including recent professional and 
regulatory pronouncements, and understand their impact on the financial statements; and

(b) ask management and the external auditors about significant risks and exposures and the 
plans to minimize such risks; and

(c) understand industry best practices and the Company’s adoption of them.

Annual Financial Statements

(a) review the annual financial statements and determine whether they are complete and
consistent with the information known to committee members, and assess whether the financial
statements reflect appropriate accounting principles in light of the jurisdictions in which the 
Company reports or trades its shares;

(b) pay attention to complex and/or unusual transactions such as restructuring charges and 
derivative disclosures;

(c) focus on judgmental areas such as those involving valuation of assets and liabilities, 
including, for example, the accounting for and disclosure of loan losses; warranty, professional 
liability; litigation reserves; and other commitments and contingencies;

(d) consider management’s handling of proposed audit adjustments identified by the 
external auditors; and

(e) ensure that the external auditors communicate all required matters to the committee.

Interim Financial Statements

(a) be briefed on how management develops and summarizes interim financial information, 
the extent to which the external auditors review interim financial information;

(b) meet with management and the auditors, either telephonically or in person, to review 

LEGAL_29664421.1



the interim financial statements; and

(c) to gain insight into the fairness of the interim statements and disclosures, obtain 
explanations from management on whether:

(i) actual financial results for the quarter or interim period varied significantly from 
budgeted or projected results;

(ii) changes in financial ratios and relationships of various balance sheet and 
operating statement figures in the interim financials statements are consistent with 
changes in the company’s operations and financing practices;

(iii) generally accepted accounting principles have been consistently applied;

(iv) there are any actual or proposed changes in accounting or financial reporting
practices;

(v) there are any significant or unusual events or transactions;

(vi) the Company’s financial and operating controls are functioning effectively;

(vii) the Company has complied with the terms of loan agreements, security 
indentures or other financial position or results dependent agreement; and

(viii) the interim financial statements contain adequate and appropriate disclosures.

6.3 Compliance with Laws and Regulations

(a) periodically obtain updates from management regarding compliance with this policy 
and industry “best practices”;

(b) be satisfied that all regulatory compliance matters have been considered in the 
preparation of the financial statements; and

(c) review the findings of any examinations by securities regulatory authorities and stock
exchanges.

6.4 Other Responsibilities

(a) review, with the Company’s counsel, any legal matters that could have a significant 
impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPANY 

Dated: October 26, 2018 

This non-offering prospectus constitutes full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the 
securities previously issued by the Company as required by the securities legislation of British Columbia. 

“Chris Kennedy” “Herrick Lau” 
Chris Kennedy 

Chief Executive Officer 
Herrick Lau 

Chief Financial Officer 

On Behalf of the Board of Directors 

“Savio Chiu” “Larry Ellison” 
Savio Chiu 

Director 
Larry Ellison 

Director 



CERTIFICATE OF PROMOTER 

Dated: October 26, 2018 

This non-offering prospectus constitutes full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the 
securities previously issued by the Company as required by the securities legislation of British Columbia. 

“Herrick Lau” 
Herrick Lau 



 

FORM 2A – LISTING STATEMENT 

 

APPENDIX B 

Exchange Listing Statement Disclosure – Additional Information 

CAPITALIZATION 

Issued Capital 

 Number of 

Securities 

(non-diluted) 

On Listing  

Number of 

Securities 

(fully-diluted) 

On Listing 

%of Issued 

(non-

diluted) 

% of 

Issued  

(fully diluted) 

Public Float 

 

    

Total outstanding (A)  83,637,389 105,288,442 100% 100% 

      

Held by Related Persons or 

employees of the Issuer or 

Related Person of the 

Issuer, or by persons or 

companies who beneficially 

own or control, directly or 

indirectly, more than a 5% 

voting position in the Issuer 

(or who would beneficially 

own or control, directly or 

indirectly, more than a 5% 

voting position in the Issuer 

upon exercise or conversion 

of other securities held) (B) 

24,827,939(1)  35,327,939(4) 29.69% 33.55% 

     

Total Public Float (A-B) 58,809,450 69,960,503 70.31% 66.45% 

     

Freely-Tradeable Float 

 

    

Number of outstanding 

securities subject to resale 

restrictions, including 

restrictions imposed by 

pooling or other 

arrangements or in a 

shareholder agreement and 

securities held by control 

block holders (C)  

24,817,939(2)(3) 33,867,939 

(2)(3)(5)(6) 

 

 

29.67% 32.17% 

     

Total Tradeable Float 

(A-C) 

58,819,450 71,420,503 70.33% 67.83% 

Notes: 

(1) Includes 1,526,272 Common Shares held by Curtis Livesay, 508,333 Common Shares held by Ellison Family 

Partnership, LLC, 5,000 Common Shares held by Herrick Lau, 21,583,334 Common Shares held by James F. Foster Trust, UTA 
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dated August 1, 2016, James F. Foster, Trustee, 1,200,000 Common Shares held by Larry D. and Merrilyn Y. Ellison RLT dated 

June 12, 2012, Larry D. Ellison, Trustee, and 5,000 Common Shares held by Savio Chiu  

(2) Including 21,583,334 Common Shares held by James Foster, 1,708,333 Common Shares held by Larry Ellison, and 

1,526,272 Common Shares held by Curtis Livesay,  

(3) Subject to escrow agreement to be executed prior to listing.  

(4) Includes 2,500,000 Common Shares issuable pursuant to exercise of Performance Warrants and 550,000 Common 

Shares issuable pursuant to exercise of Options issued to Chris Kennedy, 450,000 Common Shares issuable pursuant to exercise 

of Options, 500,000 Common Shares issuable pursuant to exercise of Performance Warrants and 450,000 Common Shares 

issuable pursuant to exercise of Options issued to James F. Foster, 1,500,000 Common Shares issuable pursuant to exercise of 

Performance Warrants and 450,000 Common Shares issuable pursuant to exercise of Options issued to Larry Ellison, 300,000 

Common Shares issuable pursuant to exercise of Options issued to John MacPhail, 400,000 Common Shares issuable pursuant to 

exercise of Options issued to Savio Chiu, 2,500,000 Common Shares issuable pursuant to exercise of Performance Warrants and 

300,000 Common Shares issuable pursuant to exercise of Options issued to Leo Robinton, 300,000 Common Shares issuable 

pursuant to exercise of Options issued to Curtis Livesay, and 300,000 Common Shares issuable pursuant to exercise of Options 

issued to Vania Gaudia.  

(5) Includes a total of 7,000,000 Performance Warrants issued to Directors and Officers which are subject to release upon 

achievement of certain performance milestones as described in the respective warrant certificates. 

(6) Including 550,000 Options held by Chris Kennedy, 450,000 Options held by James Foster, 450,000 Options held by 

Larry Ellison, 300,000 Options held by Leo Robinton, and 300,000 Options held by Curtis Livesay. 

 

Public Securityholders (Registered) 

 

Instruction: For the purposes of this report, "public securityholders" are persons other than 

persons enumerated in section (B) of the previous chart. List registered holders only. 

 

Class of Security     

Size of Holding   Number of holders  Total number of securities 

     

1 – 99 securities     

     

100 – 499 securities     

     

500 – 999 securities     

     

1,000 – 1,999 securities  36  40,900 

     

2,000 – 2,999 securities  39  80,300 

     

3,000 – 3,999 securities  57  171,000 

     

4,000 – 4,999 securities  9  36,000 

     

5,000 or more  securities  206  58,481,250 

     

  347  58,809,450 
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Public Securityholders (Beneficial)  

 

Instruction: Include (i) beneficial holders holding securities in their own name as registered 

shareholders; and (ii) beneficial holders holding securities through an intermediary where the 

Issuer has been given written confirmation of shareholdings. For the purposes of this section, it is 

sufficient if the intermediary provides a breakdown by number of beneficial holders for each line 

item below; names and holdings of specific beneficial holders do not have to be disclosed. If an 

intermediary or intermediaries will not provide details of beneficial holders, give the aggregate 

position of all such intermediaries in the last line. 

 

Class of Security 

 

    

Size of Holding   Number of holders  Total number of securities 

     

1 – 99 securities     

     

100 – 499 securities     

     

500 – 999 securities     

     

1,000 – 1,999 securities  36  40,900 

     

2,000 – 2,999 securities  39  80,300 

     

3,000 – 3,999 securities  57  171,000 

     

4,000 – 4,999 securities  9  36,000 

     

5,000 or more  securities  213  83,309,189 

     

  354  83,637,389 
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Non-Public Securityholders (Registered) 

 

Instruction: For the purposes of this report, "non-public securityholders" are persons enumerated 

in section (B) of the issued capital chart.  

 

Class of Security 

 

    

Size of Holding   Number of holders  Total number of securities 

     

1 – 99 securities     

     

100 – 499 securities     

     

500 – 999 securities     

     

1,000 – 1,999 securities     

     

2,000 – 2,999 securities     

     

3,000 – 3,999 securities     

     

4,000 – 4,999 securities     

     

5,000 or more  securities  7  24,827,939 

     

  7  24,827,939 

 

 

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES 

 

The Company currently has the following securities which are convertible or exchangeable into common 

shares: 

 

Type of Convertible Security Amount 

Options 5,300,000 

Warrants  7,424,000(1) 

Performance Warrants 13,500,000 

Finders’ Warrants 1,663,213 

Agent’s Compensation Options 445,440 

Total: 28,332,653 (1) 

Notes: 

(1) Each of the 7,424,000 Warrants issued and outstanding are exercisable to acquire, without further consideration, 0.10 

Common Shares (each whole Common Share, a “Warrant Share”) if the Issuer has not completed a Liquidity Event (as defined 

in the Agency Agreement) by the later of (i) 120 days following the respective date of closing, or (ii) December 31, 2018 (the 

“Liquidity Expiry Date”), provided that for each additional thirty day period after the Liquidity Expiry Date that the Issuer has 

not completed a Liquidity Event, each Warrant shall automatically convert into an additional 0.05 of a Warrant Share without 

further action or consideration by the holder subject to a pro-rata per diem adjustment should a Liquidity Event close within any 

such thirty day period. 
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On Listing, the Company will have the following securities which are convertible or exchangeable into 

common shares: 

 

Type of Convertible Security Amount 

Options 5,300,000 

Warrants  7,424,000(1) 

Performance Warrants 13,500,000 

Finders’ Warrants 1,663,213 

Agent’s Compensation Options 445,440 

Total: 28,332,653 (1) 

Notes: 

(1) Each of the 7,424,000 Warrants issued and outstanding are exercisable to acquire, without further consideration, 0.10 

Common Shares (each whole Common Share, a “Warrant Share”) if the Issuer has not completed a Liquidity Event (as defined 

in the Agency Agreement) by the later of (i) 120 days following the respective date of closing, or (ii) December 31, 2018 (the 

“Liquidity Expiry Date”), provided that for each additional thirty day period after the Liquidity Expiry Date that the Issuer has 

not completed a Liquidity Event, each Warrant shall automatically convert into an additional 0.05 of a Warrant Share without 

further action or consideration by the holder subject to a pro-rata per diem adjustment should a Liquidity Event close within any 

such thirty day period. 
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SCHEDULE A  

CERTIFICATE OF THE ISSUER 

The first certificate below must be signed by the CEO, CFO , any person or company who is a promoter 

of the Issuer and two directors of the Issuer. In the case of an Issuer re-qualifying following a 

fundamental change, the second certificate must also be signed by the CEO, CFO, any person or company 

who is a promoter of the target and two directors of the target. 

Pursuant to a resolution duly passed by its Board of Directors, Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. hereby 

applies for the listing of the above mentioned securities on the Exchange. The foregoing contains full, true 

and plain disclosure of all material information relating to Agrios Global Holdings Ltd. It contains no 

untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a material fact that is required to be stated or 

that is necessary to prevent a statement that is made from being false or misleading in light of the 

circumstances in which it was made. 

Dated at Vancouver, BC, this 2nd day of November, 2018. 

“Chris Kennedy” “Herrick Lau” 

Chris Kennedy 

Chief Executive Officer 

Herrick Lau 

Chief Financial Officer 

“Savio Chiu” “Larry Ellison” 

Savio Chiu 

Director 

Larry Ellison 

Director 

“Herrick Lau” 

Herrick Lau 

Promoter 




